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THE FEDERAL RESPONSE TO THE AIDS EPI-
DEMIC: INFORMATION AND PUBLIC EDUCA-
TION

MONDAY, MARCH 16, 1967

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
HUMAN RESOURCES AND

INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE
OF THE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,

Washington, DC.
The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:03 a.m., in room

2154, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Ted Weiss (chairman of
the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Representatives Ted Weiss, Barney Frank, and James
M. Inhofe.

Also present: James R. Gottlieb, staff director; Gwendolyn S.
McFadden, secretary; Mary Kazmerzak, minority professional staff,
Committee on Government Operations; and Linda A. Valleroy,
Ph.D., congressional science fellow.

OPENING STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN WEISS

Mr. WEISS. Good morning, The Human Resources and Intergov-
ernmental Relations Subcommittee is now in session. We will be
joined by other colleagues as the hearing proceeds.

Since 1981, the Public Health Service has reported almost 32,000
cases of AIDS in the United States. Unknown thousands suffer
from pre-AIDS conditions. Medical experts believe that up to 2 mil-
lion Americans are already infected with the AIDS virus.

Based on the current growth rate of the epidemic, more than
74,000 new cases will be diagnosed in the year 1991 alone.

These numbers only hint at the incredible suffering being en-
dured by those struck down by the disease and by their families
and friends and loved ones.

We have no vaccine to prevent the disease. Effective drugs for
treatment are not yet in sight, although a few do show some prom-
ise. In light of these facts, it would be a grave mistake for the
American people to relax and assume that researchers will find a
cure for AIDS in the near future.

Public health officials tell us that the greatest hope for stemming
the AIDS epidemic is an aggressive public health education cam-
paign, greater than the United States has ever undertaken. Last
fall, the National Academy of Sciences concurred, emphasizing that
"The most effective measures for significantly reducing the spread

(1)
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of . . . (AIDS) are education of the public and voluntary changes in
behavior."

At about the same time the Surgeon General warned when re-
leasing his excellent report on AIDS last October, "The need (for
education) is critical and the price of neglect is high."

Today the subcommittee will hold its seventh public hearing on
the Federal response to AIDS. In earlier hearings we have re-
viewed overall AIDS funding, discrimination, patient care, civil
rights, testing and drug development, issues which remain ex-
tremely important. Today, we will focus on Federal efforts to
devise and implement a massive public education campaign.

There are many dedicated Government Public Health Service
people attempting to mount an effective education campaign. But,
despite their urging for months, and in some case, for years, of spe-
cific education activities that are needed, they have been unable to
get administration approval even for an overall AIDS information
plan, which has been circulating for months.

In some cases, aggressive Federal activity has been stalled by bu-
reaucratic and interdepartmental fighting, and in other cases, by
controversies over the content of education materials being devel-
oped by Federal contractors.

Only after this hearing was announced a few weeks ago did a
number of important projects finally begin to start moving at the
Department. Some of these had been stalled for months, like a pro-
posal to hire an ad agency to begin work on a media campaign.
Even with this new initiative, it will probably be another full year
before the mass media campaign begins.

One major stumbling block to Federal efforts is the continuing
dispute over the content of school education- material on AIDS.
While I agree that school curriculum should be locally determined,
the administration must not use this as an excuse to limit the in-
formation local school boards and parents have available to make
those decisions. As the Surgeon General stated, "We can no longer
afford to sidestep frank, open discussions about sexual practices."

The National Academy of Sciences was forced to conclude last
fall that "The present level of AIDS-related education is woefully
inadequate. It must be vastly expanded and diversified."

Other coun tries with many fewer AIDS victims have undertaken
some excellent education campaigns. These will hopefully become
models for the United States.

Fortunately, many local organizations, and public and private of-
ficials have stepped in to fill the void in Federal efforts. Some of
these, like the Amsrican Red Cross, have been supported by grants
from the Public Health Service, but much, much more is needed.

Education, information and the practice of safe behavior are the
only weapons we presently have to stop the spread of the epidemic,
to lessen unnecessary fear and to cease discrimination against
AIDS victims.

Until now, the Federal Government's information and education
efforts appear to have been, at best, slow and inadequate. Today,
we will attempt to learn why, and try to make sure that everything
which can be done, is being done.

As we proceed and other members arrive, we will afford them
the opportunity to make their opening statements.
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We have a number of panels scheduled. Our first witness, panel
one, will be Dr. David W. Fraser, who is president of Swarthmore
College, a member of the Institute of Medicine, and a member of
the Health Care and Public Health Panel of the National Academy
of Sciences Committee on a National Strategy for AIDS.

Dr. Fraser, before we proceed, the tradition and practice of the
subcommittees of the Government Operations Committee is to
swear in the witnesses. Would you please raise your right hand.

Do you affirm that the testimony you are about to give will be
the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth? Let the
record indicate that the witness answered in the affirmative.

Dr. Fraser. your entire statement, as prepared, will be entered
into the record, without objection.

STATEMENT OF DAVID W. FRASER, M.D., PRESIDENT, SWARTH-
MORE COLLEGE, AND MEMBER, IISSTITUTE OF MEDICINE, AND
HEALTH CARE AND PUBLIC HEALTH PANEL OF THE NATIONAL
ACADEMY OF SCIENCES COMMITTEE ON A NATIONAL STRATE-
GY FOR AIDS
Dr. FRASER. Next to the threat of nuclear war, AIDS is fast be-

coming the most important public health problem of the 20th cen-
tury. That importance comes from three facts, that it is likely to
kill 179,000 people in the United States alone by 1991, that it af-
fects especially young adults and, increasingly, children, and that,
although we have no effective drugs to treat it nor vaccine to pre-
vent it, we do know how to prevent the spread of the virus that
causes it.

Education is the one tool that we have for controlling the AIDS
epidemic but up to now it has not been used with near the effec-
tiveness that is called for. I shall try to lay out the case for a cen-
trally coordinated, comprehensive educational program to halt the
spread of HIV, the AIDS virus, via sexual transmission, through in-
travenous drug use and from mother to infant.

HIV is most commonly spread by sexual intercourse, specifically
anal intercourse and vaginal intercourse. People who are intent on
not catching HIV have several good strategies they can follow.

The surest is to remain in a monogamous relationship that has
been so since 1977 or to abstain from anal or vaginal intercourse
but these strategies are not practical for many people and the
number for whom this advice is not helpful grows as each genera-
tion becomes sexually active.

For those people, using a condom during anal or vaginal inter-
course is likely to be very effective. Barring a tear in the condom
the HIV is most unlikely to be transmitted through it, and other
activity during lovemaking, including kissing and oral-genital
intercourse, does not seem to spread the virus.

For couples who become monogamous, the blood test for antibody
for HIV may be very helpful in determining when it is safe to swp
using a condom. If both partners are seronegative 6 months after
entering into a monogamous relationship, they are on pretty solid
ground to assume that condoms are no longer needed so long as
they have sex only with each other.
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I should like to emphasizt,. that I am not offering different advice
for heterosexual and homosexual people here. All sexually active
people are at risk. The risk of AIDS does not derive from sexual
orientation but rather from particular sexual acts, number of part-
ners, and precautions taken or not taken.

To date, educational efforts have clearly been insufficient except
in a few special situations like the gay population of San Francisco
where intense education has been associated with marked changes
in sexual behavior.

One problem is the language used to educate. The Surgeon Gen-
eral has quite appropriately called for blunter, more explicit infor-
mation about specific sexual acts and specific precautions but
advice continues too often to be vague.

Warnings about "intimate sexual activity" or "exchange of
bodily fluids" do not adequately differentiate between the potential
riskiness of anal and vaginal intercourse and the apparent safety
of, say, mutual masturbation.

We have heard welcome, open talk about condoms in recent
weeks but the utility of condoms needs to be more widely known
and their use encouraged and accepted.

The second most common way for HIV to spread is through the
sharing of needles and syringes by intravenous drug users. Again,
the mechanics of halting virus spread are simple.

If drug users would not share equipment, the virus in the blood
would not be spread this way although spread from infected drug
users to their sexual partners would still be a matter of concern.

Because of the complex psychological and social factors associat-
ed with intravenous drug use, simple dissemination of information
is unlikely to sufficient to curb spread of HIV in this population.

Public health workers will need also to help addicts get off drugs,
to assist them into more stable personal situations, and to help
them take more responsibility for their actions.

A great expansion of methadone maintenance programs may be
an essential companion to education of drug users about AIDS.

The third biggest educational need has to do with the risk of
transmission of HIV from mother to her infant or fetus. Over 300
cases of AIDS have been reported in children, half of them under 1
year of age. Most of the infants are born to mothers who are intra-
venous drug users themselves, are sexual partners of drug users or
bisexual men or are from countries where the prevalence of HIV
infection is higher in women than it now is in the United States.

But as heterosexual spread of HIV becomes more common, the
number of women of childbearing age who are infected and could
in turn pass HIV on to their children will increase.

We must develop educational programs to identify women at
high risk of HIV infection and, in conjunction with serologic test-
ing as indicated, counsel them about the risks to them and their
children and alternatives open to them such as birth control or
abortion.

In focusing on these three groups in need of education, I do not
mean to indicate that education is not needed elsewhere. Myths
about AIDS need to be dispelled so that people who are infected
are not treated innumanely at work or at school by people who
think erroneously that they might transmit the virus by such daily
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activities as shaking hands, sneezing, coughing or sharing of uten-
sils or even by embracing and kissing.

But the emphasis must be on educating people about ways they
can stop HIV transmission through sex, by sharing N drug para-
phernalia and from mother to child.

I understand that the Centers for Disease Control has been given
a mandate to oversee a national educational program about AIDS.
Concentrating responsibility in that way will be essential for
mounting an effective program but five other elements will also be
necessary.

First, model progrems for education and control must be devel-
oped for use in the States and the money must be provided for put-
ting these model programs in place.

Second, counseling of people at high risk in conjunction with con-
fidential serologic testing is critical. This will require great expan-
sion of counseling and voluntary testing in such places as clinics
for sexually transmitted diseases, IV drug use, and prenatal care.

Third, private physicians must be mobilized to serve as counsel-
ors and educators for all of their patients at risk of AIDS. Profes-
sional medical organizations, like the American Medical Associa-
tion and the American Academy of Pediatrics, and State medical
societies should be leaders in encouraging and focusing the work of
private physicians to alert their patients to the danger and to help
them r' tke responsible choices.

Fourth, special attention must be paid to AIDS education for
young people from junior high school on. By taking the initiative in
developing models for AIDS education in schools and then provid-
ing funds and encouragement for putting them in piace, the Feder-
al Government would indicate how important it is that AIDS edu-
cation be universal, be frank anti begin early.

Fifth, advertising must be used more than it has been. Prime
time television offers an important opportunity to reach a large
portion of the U.S. population with detailed information about
AIDS risk and practical preventive measures. The networks should
be willing to contribute substantially to this effort as part of their
public trust. Direct mailings, local radio spots and billboards can
also be used imaginatively.

In summary, AIDS education should be pursued with a sense of
urgency and a level of funding that is appropriate for a life-or-
death situation. The total budget for AIDS education and public
health measures from governmental and private sources combined
should approximate $1 billion by 1990.

This represents per capita expenditure equal to that provided by
the State of California for San Francisco in 1986. If we are to slow
the spread of HIV, we must be ready to educate the entire U.S.
population ve '1 the intensity that to date has been reserved for se-
lected high-risK groups.

With a disease that has as long an incubation period as AIDS, we
cannot afford to initiate intensive and sustained control measures,
which means education, only after the disease becomes rampant
everywhere.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Fraser follows:]
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Testimony of David W. Fraser, M.D.

on AIDS Education

House Subcommittee on Human Resources and Intergovernmental Relations

March 16, 1987

I as David U. Fraser, President of Swarthmore College, a physician and

an epidemiologist. Today I am representing the National Academy of Sciences

and the Institute of Mediciae, on whose Committee on a National Strategy for

AIDS I served last year.

Next to the threat of nuclear war, AIDS is fast becoming the most

important public health problem of the 20th century. That importance comes

from three facts: 1) that it is likely to kill 179,000 people in the U.S.

alone by 1991 and the epidemic could continue to expand in the decades

afterwards; 2) that it affects especially young adults and, increasingly,

children and 3) that, although we have no effective drugs to treat the

underlying disease or vaccine to prevent it, we do know how to prevent the

spread of the virus that causes it.

The pzrallels with nuclear war go somewhat further. At one level we

know how to prevent nuclear war too -- we could dismantle all nuclear

weapons. But to get mankind to the point that that might be done is a very

complicated matter, requiring concentrated and comprehensive planning and

implementation.

Education is the moat promising tool that we now have for controlling

the AIDS epidemic but up to now it has not been used with near the

effectiveness that is called for. I shall try to lay out the case for a

centrally coordinated, comprehensive education program to halt spread of the

1l
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virus that causes AIDS, the Human Immunodeficiency Virus or HIV, via sexual

intercourse, through intravenous (IV) drug use and from mother to infant.

HIV is most commonly spread by sexual intercourse, specifically anal

intercourse and vaginal intercourse. Like all sexually transmitted

di the chances of acquiring it go up as ones number of sexual

partners goes up. And, the risk is related directly to the proportion of

partners who are infected.

People who are intent on not catching HIV have several good strategies

that they can follow. The surest is to remain it A monogamous relationship

that has been so since 1977, or to abstain from anal or aginal intercourse

But these strategies are not practical for many people and the number for

whom this advice is not helpful constantly grows as each new generation

becomes sexually active. For those people, using a condom during anal or

vaginal intercourse is likely to be very effective. Barring a tear in the

condom the HIV is most unlikely to b.a transmitted through it .- and other

activity during love-making, including kissing and oral-genital intercourse,

does not seem to spread the virus. For couples who become monogamous, the

blood test for antibody to HIV may be very helpful in determining when it is

safe to stop using a condom. Host people develop a positive serologic test

for HIV within 6.8 weeks of becoming infected; on the outside seroconversion

may take 6 montin. So if both partners are seronegative 6 months after

entering into a monogamous relationship, they are on pretty solid ground to

assume that condoms are no longer needed so long as they have se only with

each other.

0
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If a man is iJund to be seropositive, he should continue to use a

condom during intercourse. If a woman is seropositive, her male partners

should continue to use condoms.

Those who reject monogamy or condoms may still be able to lower their

risk of AIDS considerably by decreasing their number of sexual partners or

by ensuring that the people th whom they do have sex are seronegative for

HIV.

I should like to emphasize that I am not offering different advice for

heterosexual and hooe...wuAl people here. The risk of AIDS does not derive,

it seems, from sexual orientation but rather from particular sexual acts,'

numbers of partners, and precautions taken or not taken. All sexually

active people are at risk, although that risk will vary (and is varying)

according to the frequency of the infection in the population from which one

chooses sexual partner(s).

Given that the risk of AIDS is great and growing and that ways to halt

the sexual spread of HIV are pretty straight forward, it is essential that

we find ways to alert people to their risk and inform them of ways that they

can alter their sexual behavior to lower that risk markedly. Efforts to

date have clearly been insufficient except in a few special situations like

the gay population of San Francisco where intense educational efforts hay-

been associated with marked changes in sexual behavior. One problem is the

language that has been used to educate. The Surgeon General has quite

appropriately called for blunter, more explicit information about specific

3



9

Fraser -- AIDS education 4 March 16, 1987

sexual acts and specific precautions but advice continues too often to be

vague. Warnings about "intimate sexual activity' or "exchange of bodily

fluids' do not adequately differentiate between the potential riskiness of

anal and vaginal intercourse and the apparent safety of, say, mutual

masturbation. We have heard welcome, open talk about condoms in recent

weeks but the utility of condoms needs to be more widely known and their use

encouraged and accepted.

The second most common way for HIV to spread is through the sharing of

needles and syringes by intravenous drug users. Again, the mechanics of

halting virus spread are simple. If drug users would not share equipment

the virus in the blood would not be spread this way, although spread from

infected drug users to their sexual partners would still be a matter of

concern. The importance of educating drug users is especially great because

of the wide differences that now exist in the rate of HIV infection among

drug users in different cities in the U.S. Many people now at high risk of

infection can be spared if effective educational efforts can be mounted

quickly, and then sustained.

Because of the complex psychological and social factors associated with

intravenous drug use, simple dissemination of information is unlikely to be

sufficient to curb spread of HIV in this population. Public health workers

will need also to help addicts get off drugs, to assist them into more

stable personal situations, and to help them take more responsibility for

their actions. A great expansion of methadone maintenance programs may be

an essential companion to education of drug users about AIDS.

FCx
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The third biggest educational need has to do with the risk of

transmission of HIV from mother to her fetus or infant. Over 300 cases of

AIDS have been reported in children, half of them under one year of age.

Most of the infants are born to mothers who are intravenous rug users

themselves, are sexual partners of drug users or bisexual men, or are from

countries where the prevalence of HIV infection is higher in women than it

now is in the United States. But as heterosexual spread of HIV becomes more

common the number of women of childbearing age who are infected and could in

turn pass HIV LI to their children will increase. We must develop

educational programs to identify women at high risk of HIV infection and, in

conjunction with serologic testing as indicated, counsel them about risks to

them and their children and alternatives open to them such as birth control

or abortion.

In focusing on these three groups in need of education, I do not mean

to indicate that education is not needed elsewhere. Myths about AIDS need

to be dispelled so that people who are infected are not treated inhumanely

at work or at school by people who think (erroneously) that they might

transmit the virus in such daily activities as shaking hands, sneezing,

coughing or sharing of utensils--or even by embracing and kissing. But the

emphasis must be on educating people about ways they can stop HIV

transmission through sex, by sharing IV drug paraphernalia and from mother

to child

We understand that the Centers for Disease Control has been given a

mandate to oversee a national educati9nal program about AIDS. Concentrating

15
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responsibility in that way will be essential for mounting an effective

program, but other elements will alb, he necessary. Suggestions for model

programs for education and control must be developed for use in the states,

and the money must be provided for putting those model programs in place.

Experienced representatives of state and local health departments, health

c:e providers, educators and potential consumers can help greatly in

advising on the content of these model programs.

The use of serologic testing in conjunction with careful counselling is

likely to be an important par* of education especially of those in high risk

groups. This will require great expansion of counselling and voluntary

testing in clinic,: for sexually transmitted diseases, IV drug use, and

obstetrics and gynecology. In all of this work, we must be very careful to

protect the confidentiality of test results if these programs are to be

effective in reaching those that need them.

Private physicians must be mobilized to serve as counsellors and

educators for all of their patients at risk of AIDS. Professional medical

organizations like the American Medical Association and the American

Academy of Pediatrics, and state medical societies should be leaders in

encouraging and focusing the work of private physicians alert their

patients to the danger and to help them make responsible choices.

Special attention must be paid to AIDS education for young people in

jurior high school, high school and college, many of whom are entering

perio,..s of experimentation with sex and drugs Frank discussion of the risk

rl
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of AIDS and behaviors that do and do not transmit HIV has become an urgent

necessity. CDC could, for example, develop several model curricula for use

in junior high schools, allowing local school boards to select which might

be most appropriate for their particular settings. By taking the

initiative, however, CDC and the Federal government generally would indicate

how important it is that AIDS education he universal, be frank and begin

early.

A broad and effective educational campalgn is likely to require far

more use of advertising than has occurred to date. Prime time television

offers an important opportunity to reach a large portion of the

population with detailed information about AIDS risk and practical

preventive measures. The networks should be willing to contribute

substantially to this effort as part of their public trust. Local radio

spots and billboards can also be used imaginatively

AIDS education should be pursued with a sense of urgency and a level of

funding that is appropriate for a life-or-death situation. Greatly expanded

eeucatioaal rrograms to effect behavioral change are necessary for high-risk

groups and the public at large. The total budget for AIDS education and

public health measures from governmental and private sources combined should

approximate $1 billion annually by 1990 This represents per capita

expenditure equal to that provided by the State of California for San

Francisco in 1986. If we are to slow the spread of HIV. we must be ready to

educate the ente U.S. population with the intensity that to date has been

reserved for selected high risk groups. With a disease that has as long an

incubation period as AIDS we cannot afford to initiate intensive and

sustainc control measures -- which means education -- only after the

disease becomes rampant everywhere.

A7
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Mr. WEISS. Thank you very much, Dr. Fraser. Before we proceed
with questions, let me take note of the fact that we have been
joined by one of the newest members on the subcommittee and in
the Congress, Mr. Inhofe from Oklahoma. We are delighted to have
you with us. I understand that you have an opening statement that
you would like to give.

Mr. INHOFE. Yes, I do, Mr. Chairman, if I may be allowed to
make a brief opening statement. I want to thank you for holding
the hearing on AIDS education and prevention efforts. It is urgent
that we as Members of Congress work toward stopping this dread-
ful killer.

In my home State of Oklahoma, the number of AIDS cases has
doubled each year since 1983 according to the State health officials
I have personally talked to. By the end of the decade, the disease
could become the No. 2 communicable disease in the State. To date,
there have been 92 reported cases of AIDS and 49 deaths.

Of the reported cases, 25 have occurred in Tulsa, OK, the district
which I represent. Oklahoma health officials estimate that the
number of AIDS cases could top 800 by 1990.

Although these numbers are much lower than most other States,
the spread of AIDS represents a serious threat to all communities.

Today's tragic reality is that AIDS is continuing to affect more
Americans because many of its victims continue to transmit the
disease because they are unaware that they are carriers of the
virus.

AIDS is no longer confined to homosexuals and drug users but
has been spread to the general population. Recent studies by the
Federal Public Health Service indicate that approximately 9 per-
cent of all new cases of AIDS involve those who contracted the dis-
ease as a result of heterosexual activities.

It is my hope that today's hearing will make significant progress
in preventative measures to stop the spread of AIDS.

I want to thank you for giving this emphasis on it, Mr. Chair-
man. One of the myths that kind of spreads around is that only
people on the east coast and the west coast should be concerned
with this problem. In visiting with Bill Dannemeyer prior to going
into session in January, I found that people out in California are
very much concerned.

There seems to be a fear, Mr. Chairman, for people in my part of
the country to address this as being a serious problem. So as an
experiment and I will share this with you, I went back in the third
week in January, and held a news conference just on AIDS and the
threat that it was in a very frontier spirited conservative area like
Tulsa, OK, and let me assure you that it captivated their attention.

I feel very strongly in my limited exposure to the knowledge on
AIDS that it is the greatest life threat in the history of the world. I
am vey, very much concerned about it. So that comes from out in
Oklahoma, and 1 do have a question for Dr. Fraser when the appro-
priate time comes.

Mr. WEISS. Thank you very much, Mr. Inhofe.
Dr. Fraser, you are familiar with the Surgeon General's report

on AIDS, I'm sure.
Dr. FRASER. Yes.

A Fl
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Mr. WEISS. We will, incidentally, from time to time be placing
the various reports and documents that we refer to in the hearing
record, without objection. If any of the members or any of the wit-
nesses have material which they would like to place in the record,
please so indicate and we will try to make that effort.

Are you in general agreement with the findings and recommen-
dations contained in the report?

Dr. FRASER. Yes. I think in general the U.S. Public Health Serv-
ice has done a remarkable job in investigating this problem and in
iden ways to control it. I think that more has to be done
than has been done. Much of the limitation of that has to do with
funding, but clearly the directions are outlined by the Surgeon
General.

Mr. WEISS. Are there any areas of serious disagreement between
the National Academy of Sciences' report and the Surgeon Gener-
al's report?

Dr. FRASER. I think the biggest area of contrast is in the concern
of the National Academy and Institute of Medicine Committee that
the education effort be greatly expanded, centrally coordinated and
put forward more assertively than has been the case in the past.
We recognize that many in the U.S. Public Health Service want to
do that same thing but our Committee wanted to emphasize this
even more strongly than the Surgeon General has because there is
so much more to do.

Mr. WEISS. The National Academy of Sciences' report states that
"education to prevent HIV infection can be strongly expected to
bear results," especially in view of the serious and fatal nature of
the disease.

What leads you to believe that education will help to prevent
HIV infection?

Dr. FRASER. I think the best evidence of that comes from the gay
populations, as in San Francisco, where intense efforts have been
put in place by the city, by private voluntary organizations, and by
the State of California, along with help from the U.S. Public
Health Service. There, there has been evidence of changes in
sexual behavior, as evidenced by drops in rectal gonorrhea rates,
indicating changes in sexual behavior in that population.

Mr. Wriss. Until recently, relatively little money has even been
requested by the Public Health Service for information/education.
I wonder if this can be connected in any way to the overly optimis-
tic predictions by the administration several years ago that soon
we would have a vaccine and effective treatment measures.

Is there still a belief the administration, do you think, that
one need not worry too much about AIDS because we will soon
have a cure?

Dr. FRASER. There may be members of the administration who
believe that. The scientists with whom I talked believe that, for the
next 5 or 10 years, our emphasis has to be on education because it
is the only method we have to halt spread of the virus. Even the
optimists hink that a vaccine will be unavailable for the next 5
years.

Mr. WEISS. The NAS report describing AIDS education to date
states "The present level of AIDS related education is woefully in-
adequate." Why did the Committee come to that conclusion?

19
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Dr. FRASER. Well, for example, if we look at one of the major
needs, counseling in conjunction with confidential serologic testing
of high-risk groups, perhaps $40 million has been spent last year on
that activity. I would estimate that the cost of a really adequate
program of counseling and confidential testing of high-risk people
would cost somewhere between $200 and $600 million a year.

It is a major expense to train counselors. There is a high burnout
rate among counselors. There is the need for very careful work be-
tween counselors and high risk people, to make sure that they un-
derstand the way this disease is spread, that they understand the
mechanisms that are open to them to halt the spread of the disease
and they understand what their own situation is, if they happen to
be infected.

Mr. Muss. The report also states that "If behavior modification
is the goal of education about AIDS, the content of the material
presented must address the behavior in question in as direct a
manner as possible."

The Surgeon General agreed with that very conclusion. Based on
your experience and the discussions of the NAS Committee, do you
believe that the Federal Government can effectively support frank
and open education efforts?

Dr. FRASER. I think it's hard for the Federal Government to do
that. I think that the Federal Government has taken some steps to
put some dibtance between the tendency to be reserved in speech
and the actual decisionmaking about what materials are used at a
local level, but I certainly see a trend toward more frankness. I
think we need much more frankness than we have had to date, not
just talk about condoms but talk about specific sexual acts, as I didin my testimony.

Mr. WEISS. Why did the Committee believe that only the Federal
Government was situated "to develop and coordinate a massive
campaign to implement the educational program"?

Dr. FRASER. The Federal Government has been superb in my
view and I think in the view of all members of the Committee in
pursuing the scientific aspects, the epidemiologic aspects and the
virological research that has been necessary. It is in a uniquely
strong position to provide publicity about the need for education
and adequate funding throughout the United States, not just in
States where there is already the perception of a very high risk,
like California or New York, but n States where the perception is
that the risk is not so immediate.

We need to have education put in place intensively now in high-
and low-risk areas. I do not see the central drive for that coming
efficiently anywhere from any source other than the Federal Gov-
ernment.

Mr. WEISS. The Public Health Service has been working on what
they call an AIDS information/education plan for many months.
Have you, or to your knowledge, any of the National Academy of
Sciences' Committee members been asked to assist in the drafting
or review of the Public Health Service plan?

Dr. FRASER. I have not been asked and I don't know of other
people who have been asked.

Mr. WEISS. Have ou seen the proposed plan?
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Dr. FRASER. No. I have talked to people who have seen it but I've
not seen it myself.

Mr. Wilms. The NAS Committee expressed serious concerns
about the Centers for Disease Control's directive, requiring local
review boards to determine whether materials developed for AIDS
education were too explicit, the so-called "dirty words issues. Why
is this a problem and who do you think should make these dect-
zi.;zs?

Dr. FRASER. I think there are different sensitivities about the use
of explicit information. I think it has traditionally been difficult for
the Federal Government to impose educational standards on local
areas. The U.S. Public Health Service has worked hard not to in-
trude on State responsibility and local responsibility in this area.

AIDS is a problem that I think pushes us up to the limit of what
is appropriate. I think it would be quite useful for the CDC to de-
velop educational information perhaps in two or three different
forms with various degrees of explicitness that would be appropri-
ate perhaps for different age groups as well as for different popula-
tions and offer that range of educational material to the State and
local authorities who could pick out what seemed to be most appro-
priate for the groups they were educating.

Mr. WEISS. I gather that the NAS Committee felt a great concern
about having all this work prepared, and then having the local
review board negate what had been developed.

Dr. FRASER. I think we did worry about that but we also worried
on the other side about what would happen if the CDC worked out
one set of educational material which was then objectionable to
local educational and health authorities. We did not want to lose
the opportunity to have the fullest education of all populations at
risk and were willing to consider a variety of ways that could be
effective.

Mr. WEISS. Directly following the expression of concern that I
quoted, the next line is "The result of such a process . . . " that is
the local review board process, "could be to cut off frank, explicit
information from areas where it is needed the most, in regions out-
side those urban centers that have large concentrations of homo-
sexual men and IV drug users, where awareness of the specifics of
HIV transmission is already high."

Do you agree with that?
Dr. FRASER. I do agree with that and I think that to have local

review can hal, e that effect, but I think with central leadership
from the Federal Government, going further than the Surgeon
General has in talking about the importance of bluntness, we can
create an environment in which it is all right to talk about sex,
and it is all right to talk about behaviors that will prevent the
transmission of HIV.

That's the kind of leadership that I think the Federal Govern-
ment can give. That doesn't mean that the Federal Government
need prescribe every letter of the text that is used in schools or
with high-risk populations.

Mr. WEiss. It is generally recognized that the private sector must
play a major role in AIDS educatior. In fact, some, such as the
American Council of Life Insurance in conjunction with the Red
Cross, have done so in the past.
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Does the Academy, or do you, have any suggestions on promoting
an expatsion of private efforts?

Dr. FRASER. Well. certainly looking at those areas where AIDS
Aucation has beFn 4sod. pi :vete organizations have contributed
mightily to the work in San Francisco or New York. There are pri-
vate medical groups that we think could do more. The American
Medical Associatic:1, I think, could have a major effect in educating
physicians and in focusing their work on providing proper educa-tion to all of their patients who are at risk of AIDS. This is a whole
population of counselors that the private .nedical community couldhelp mobilize.

Mr. Wass. Have there been efforts to involve the medical asso-ciations in the overall effort?
Dr. FRASER. There have been some. I don't think they have been

as comprehensive or as effective as they could be.
Mr. Wass. Up to now, public service announcements have been

the primary vehicle used to do what little education has been done.Is this sufficient to reach the people that are the targets in the
education campangn

Dr. FRASER. I think not. They tend to be brief. They tend to beout of prime time. They do not necessarily reach the broad range of
U.S. population including high-risk groups that need to be reached.I think we. need a far more comprehensive advertising campaign
involving extensive time in prime time, involving direct mai_ings,
involving radio spots and billboards. All of these are likely to com-plement each other in providing for a much more effective out-reach to high-risk groups.

Mr. WEISS. The report notes the extremely high costs involved inthe use of mass media, such as newspaper, TV and radio -,,,ivertis-
ing, yet reflects that private sector companies are willing to spend$30 to $50 million to introduce a new camera cr a new deo-gent.
Those efforts are judged successful if they produce a modes-. ,ihiftin behavior.

How much advertising do you think will be needed to inslience
the behaviors that spread AIDS?

Dr. FRASER. It's very hard to say nationally. In San Francisco,
the average expenditure in 1986 by the State of Californi x wasabout $5 per person for all educational and public health acti ities.
That included a fair amount of advertising. A comprehensive cam-paign without my suggesting who actually pays for it, because I
think the networks ought to be willing to provide a large projw-
tion of it free, might cost in the ares of $100 million a year.

Mr. WEISS. The report indicated that by the year 1991 there
should be about $1 billion a year provided for total public educa-
tion, mass education programs, from a variety of sources, public
and private.

The report also said that the major portion of this total should
come from Federal sources because only the national agencies arein the position to launch coordinated efforts commensurate withthe problem. Even then it is possible that the amounts envisagedby the NAS Committee will not be sufficient to stem the increase
in the disease.

Do you agree with those conclusions?
Dr. FRASER. Yes; I do.
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Mr. Wares. Does the National Academy of Sciences have any type
of ongoing review of AIDS?

Dr. FRASER. The National Academy of Sciences' Institute of Med-
icine Committee has not met since its report was released at the
end of last fall. It has, however, seen great value in, and discusses
in its report the value of, continuing to have oversight. To my
knowledge, the next stage has not been taken in that process.

Mr. Wass. Do you think that the NAS would be willing to under-
take a continuing advisory role, such as a Federal contract, to re-
quire annual detailed reports and recommendations, such as the
1986 report that you issued?

Dr. Rasa. Yes. I think the National Academy of Sciences and
the Institute of Medicine feel an ongoing responsibility to help in
overseeing, although not directing, of course, the ongoing Federal,
State, and local efforts.

Mr. Wass. Thank you.
We have been joined, since opening the hearing, by our distin-
ished colleague from Massachusetts, Mr. Frank, and we welcome

to this hearing. He has played a very important role in the
ongoing hearings that this committee has conducted over the years.

Mr. Fran o you have an opening statement or any comments
or questions?

Mr. Falaric. Thank you.
Dr. Fraser, I'm sorry that I missed part of your statement, but I

read it through as I was sitting here.
One question that I have has to do with areas that you had

touched on by Mr. Weiss. It seemed to meand I'll be asking our
friends from HIS herethat Dr. Koop, who is, I thought, well in-
tentioned, thoughtful, on tie' right track, got somewhat slowed
down when he had to sign a treaty with Secretary of Education
Bennett on the question of educaion, and it seemed to me that Dr.
Koop's thoughtful and well -info ailed direction was somewhat de-
terred by Mr. Bennett's deciding to ideologize it.

And I will ask the people from HES about that, and not expect
them to answer me, but I will ask them.

But I did want to ask you, without commentingwell, let me ask
you specificallyyou saw the statement that was issued as a result
of the Koop/Bennett meeting, which I think was initiated by
people outside of the administration.

Dr. FRASER. I have heard about it. I have not seen it.
Mr. FRANK. All right. Well, it seemed to me to move the ed'ica-

tional efforts away from explicitness, et cetera. Do you think that
was helpful?

Dr. FRASER. I think it's extremely important that the educational
effort be explicit, and I strongly favor the direction that the Sur-
geon General has gone in suggesting that language be blunt, that
we talk about specific sexual acts, and that we talk about specific
ways that people can keep from spreading the HIV.

I would be very disappointed if we retreated into euphemisms.
Mr. FRANK. I think that's not just euphemisms that we're talking

about, but we're retreating into, it seems to me, not discussing
some things, as I understood what Mr. Bennett was trying to do.

I guess, as I understand, what Mr. Bennett seems to be doing,
and some others, is that they believe that the education we do
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should have a dual purpose, that it should be to inculcate values
in fact, Mr. Bennett 's values and Mr. Meese'e--and that education
which suggested that behavior that Mr. Bennett doesn't approve of
might be carried out would be wrong.

I'm wondering what you think, and specifically what, as I under-
stand it nowlet me leave aside Mr. Bennett for nowbut there
are people who argue that any education ought to be based on tell-
ing people that they should be monogamously heterosexual, and
thenif they are married, and if they are not ntarried, they should
abstain from sex., and that those should be essential elements of
AIDS education.

I wonder what you think about an AIDS education that would
tell people that they should be engaged only in sex after marriage
and no other kind? Do you think that will be an effective education
program for the part of AIDS that is sexually transmitted?

Dr. FRASIR. I don't think it will have the degree of effectiveness
that we just have to have in an AIDS education program. I think
we have to reach out to all people in our country a he are at risk of
spreading or acquiring HIV.

Mr. FRANK. Well, I think we should stress
Dr. Pataust. To do that, we cannot proscribe certain activities,

and we cannot write off certain people. We must bring the educa-
tion to all people who are at high risk, recognizing that there are
differences in sexual behavior and sexual orientation. We must be
helpful to the people whom we're serving, not condemning of cer-tain actions.

Mr. FRANK. Well, I must say, of all the things I would like to see
members of the President's Cabinet doing, proscribing sexual prac-
tices for Americans without regard to health effects, seems to me
it's very low on my list, so I would like them to concentrate on the
health effects.

I mean, if they are that interested in other things, then they
ought tomaybe Secretary Bennett should go be the MC on "The
Dating Game," but he ought notciaughter)but he ought not to
interfere, it seems to me, with efforts to save people's lives.

You're a college president. How effective, aiming at the college
population with which you are particularly familiar at Swarthmore
and an alumnus of which is making big political news in Massa-
chusetts these days, as you know, but how effective would this type
of education which, as I understand it, basically says that the thing
you should tell particularly unmarried college students of any
sexual orientation is that the best way for them is to abstain and
that information should heavily counsel abstention from any
sexual activity and should not in any way suggest that it was okay
to engage in any form of sexual activity?

Would you find that to be a particularly effective way of trans-
mitting information to the college students with whom you're fa-miliar?

Dr. FRASER. I would find that quixotic. I think it is fine to tell
people that the way to lower their risk the most is to abstain from
sex. It's probably true.

Mr. FRANK. No one doubts that. I don't think anyone doubtsthat.
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Dr. FRASIER. But that is not practical advice for the large majori-
ty of people, including a large proportion of college students. So I
want to be more helpful to our students than such advice would be.

Mr. FRANK. Well, I notice in your own statement, you, I think,
talk about monogamy and that that's the safest way, if you're
going to be having sex, and I don't thinkand I'm glad you said
thatno one is doubting that abstention is the safest. But the ques-
tion is whether that is sufficient unto itself as advice. And I guess
the question basically has been answered by what you say.

I agree very much with what you say, and I think we ought to be
clear that we are talking about people in the executive branch of
the administration and the executive branch of the Federal Gov-
ernment, who I think are, for ideological reasons, interfering with
the most effective form of education.

It seemed to be very clear that Dr. Koop, on his own, was going
in a better direction until he was presumably directed by higher
political authorityunfortunately not higher medical authority
higher political authority and lower medical authority to water
down his efforts, and I think that is unfortunate.

I thank you.
Mr. Weiss. Thank you very much, Mr. Frank.
Mr. Inhofe.
Mr. INHOFE. Dr. Fraser, I think it probably would be more appro-

priate to explore this with another witness, who is more directly
involved in the other concerns, other than just education. But in
terms ofdo you have any comments or thoughts about the vari-
ous State laws that might be inhibiting the research and develop-
ment because of protecting privacy or any other banner under
which they are passing laws to inhibit the transfer of information
to make a more effective research and development program, inso-
far as the AIDS virus is concerned?

Dr. Fa sea. I think there is a very thorny issue having to do
with protecting confidentiality of information about serologic test-
ing for HIV. I don't have an answer for what would be most appro-
priate.

The poles of the argument are, I'm sure you well know, that on
one hand public health authorities need to know who is infected, if
they are going to pull together the information and attack the
problem in as effective a way as they could.

On the other hand, if there is any thought that the confidential-
ity of such information would be breached, then people with the
greatest need to know their own infection status and to modify
their behaviors would be likely to refrain from being tested out of
fear that those results would become public.

A number of States have wrestled with what kind of State law to
have about reporting or not reporting, and they disagree.

Mr. Immix. Yesterday, I read something rather alarming that
came out of, I think, Ascension, out of Paraguay, concerning the
mosquito being a vector of this. I know that this is not to be dis-
cussed, and this isn't your end of it, but I just wondered if you
heardthat was over the weekendthere was a release concerning
that. Did you read that by any chance?

Dr. FRASER. No. And its certainly not my area.
Mr. INHOFE. Yes, OK, fine. you.
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Mr. Wass. Thank you very much, Mr. Inhofe.
You have not heard any evidence that, in fact, this disease is

transmitted by mosquitos, have you?
Dr. FRASER. No. And I think the probability of that is very small,

given the concentration of virus in the blood and the amount of
blood that is carried by mosquitos.

Mr. Wiass. Thank you very much. Thank you, Dr. Fraser, for ap-
pearing and sharing your knowledge with us.

Our second panel will consist of Federal agency officials, and I
want to welcome all of them.

First, we have Dr. Robert E. Windom, our distinguished Assist-
ant Secretary for Health, Department of Health and Human Serv-
ices, accompanied by other Public Health Service officials, who he
will introduce.

Dr. Windom, Dr. Dowd le, Dr. Noble, and the other distinguished
members of the panel, as you kno-pi, we ask our witnesses to swear
or affirm to the truth of their testimony. So would you all please
stand to be sworn?

Do you affirm that the testimony you are about to give is the
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

Thank you. Let the record indicate that all of the witnesses have
replied in the affirmative.

Dr. Windom, your entire statement will be entered into the
record as submitted to us, and you can then proceed as you deem
most appropriate. We would appreciate it if you could limit your
oral presentation to 10 minutes, if possible.

STATEMENT OF ROBERT E. WINDOM, M.D., ASSISTANT SECRE-
TARY FOR HEALTH, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, ACCOMPANIED BY DR. LOWELL HARMISON,
DEPUTY ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR HEALTH; DR. WALTER R.
DOWDLE, DEPUTY DIRECTOR [AIDS), CENTER FOR INFECTIOUS
DISEASES, CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL; DR. JUAN RAMOS,
DEPUTY DIRECTOR FOR PREVENTION AND SPECIAL
PROJECTS, NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF MENTAL HEALTH; DR.
ROY PICKENS, DIRECTOR OF CLINICAL RESEARCH, NATIONAL
INSTITUTE OF DRUG ABUSE; DR. GARY NOBLE, AIDS COORDI-
NATOR, PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE' R. SAMUEL MATHENY, DI-
RECTOR, AIDS OFFICE, ..,UREA 'rctOURCES AND DEVEL-
OPMENT, HEALTH RESOUIr 'ICES ADMINISTRA-
TION; DR. JAMES HILL, ASST VI' av THE DIRECTOR, MAID;
AND HARELL LITTLE, CHIEF, 11.. aET BRANCH, OASH
Dr. WINDOM. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and members of the

committee. I am pleased to have this opportunity to discuss the
Public Health Service's response to the Acquired Immune Deficien-
cy Syndrome epidemic and the emphasis on education and preven-
tion activities.

With me today are Dr. Lowell Harmison, Deputy Assistant Secre-
tary for Health; Dr. Gary Noble, the Public Health Service AIDS
Coordinator; Dr. Walt Dowdle, the Deputy Director of the Centers
for Disease Control; Dr. Juan Ramos, NIMH Deputy Director for
Prevention and Special Projects, Dr. Roy Pickens; Dr, Samuel
Matheny; Dr. James Hill; and Mr. Harell
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I will now summarize my testimony, Mr. Chairman.
In a few short years, AIDS has grown from a rare and unusual

health problem to an epidemic of major proportions; it is expected
to continue to grow. More than 31,000 cases of AIDS have been re-
ported to date. Already 16,000 of these patients have died. It is esti-
mated that by `'le end of 1991, the cumulative total of AIDS cases
in the United States will reach 270,000 and result in nearly 180,000
deaths.

Statistics will show that in 1986, AIDS became one of the top 10
leading causes of potential life loss. Cases of AIDS have been re-
ported in all 50 States, Puerto Rico, the Virgin Islands, and the
trust territories.

Although the mOority of cases continue to occur among how- -
sexual and bisexual men and intravenous irug abusers, the infec-
tion is also spreading among non-IV-drug-abusing heterosexuals
and from infected mothers to newborn infants. Nearly 1,2n0 cases
of heterosexual transmission and more than 450 cases of IDS in
children have been reported.

In addition, most infected IV drug abusers are heterosexual and
can spread the virus by their sexual contacts.

There is no vaccine against AIDS and only a few drugs with very
limited therapeutic potential. Complicating the picture is the fact
that infected persons are capable of spreading the virus to others
for years before experiencing the signs or symptoms of AIDS. At
this time, information and education, which provide opportunity
for individuals to eliminate or to reduce high-risk behavior, are the
only means we have to prevent the spread of AIDS infection.

From the beginning, providing information has been an impor-
tant part of our work. Our early efforts concentrated on the dis-
semination of scientific information to America's health communi-
ty. Recently there have been significant changes in the direction
and momentum of these efforts. Eighteen months ago, among our
primary concerns were the safety of our blood supplies and the pro-
vision of alternate testing sites for people who believed they may
have been exposed to the AIDS virus. Sind .hen, safeguards have
been put in place to ensure the safety of our blood supply. The al-
ternate test sites have become a nationwide counseling and testing
program, and AIDS health education and risk reduction programs
are now in place across the Nation.

The report of the Public Health Service meeting in Coolfont,
WV, last June and the Surgeon General's report on AIDS that was
issued in October together mark the beginning of a more intense
phase in our information and education efforts.

Within the Public Health Service, I have taken steps to enhance
the effectiveness of our fight against AIDS. I have strengthened the
position of the Public Health Service AIDS Coordinator. I have con-
tinued to rely on the Public Health Service Executive AIDS Task
Force and its work by a series of subgroups, one of which focuses
on information, education, and health education risk reduction. I
have assigned lead agency responsibility for this activity to the
CDC, and they now chair that st:bgroup.

CDC's Director, Dr. James Mason, has also taken steps to
strengthen the management of AIDS activities. Also we initiated a
Federal Coordinating Committee on AIDS Information, Education,
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and Risk Reduction, which brings together Federal officials to co-
ordinate the Federal Government's AIDS information and educa-
tion efforts. I serve as Chairman of that Committee.

At my direction, the CDC is coordinating the development of the
information education plan to prevent and control AIDS in the
United States. This is a comprehensive Public Health Service plan
for informing and educating the American people about AIDS. The
plan specifies the audiences to be addressed, the basic elements of
AIDS information =3 education, and the outline of strategies by
which this education can be accomplished.

The plan draws upon the knowledge and experience the Public
Health Service has gained since AIDS was first recognized, and it
incorporates the contributions of many experts in the PHS agen-
cies.

Successful implementation of this plan depends upon action and
collaborative efforts among State, county, and municipal 7,^vPr4-
ments, professional and service organizations, the private sector,
and the Federal Government.

From 1983 through 1986, the PHS spent $40 million to inform
and educate the public in groups at high risk of acquiring the in-
fection. In fiscal year 1987, we :re planning to spend more than
$79.5 million and in fiscal year 1988 more than $103.9 million.
However, it is expected that funds appropriated by Congress in any
given year for information and education will be multiplied many-
fold by the efforts and resources of the pubuc, other public agen-
cies, and the private sector. This combined operative effort over
the long term will have a much greater im .z.t on changing public
behavior than the efforts of the Federal Government alone.

Under the plan, our efforts are targeted to certain populations.
The first is the general public.

A second is the special population of school- and college-aged
youth. Schools, colleges, and family institutions provide an effective
channel for appropriately instructing the young people of our
Nation about AIDS before and as they reach the ages when they
might practice behaviors that put them at risk of infection.

A third target population is those persons at increased risk or
who are infected. Our highest priority is informing and educating
those groups at increased risk of acquiring or transmitting the
AIDS virus because of certain behaviors or circumstances, such as
homosexual and bisexual men, N drug abusers, hemophiliacs,
female sex partners of those at risk, and prostitutes and their cli-ents.

The fourth target population is our Nation's health workers.
Members of this group have direct responsibility for patient care
and for counseling AIDS patients, persons with laboratory evidence
of infection, or other concerned persons. They will provide leader-
ship in informing and educating the public.

I will highlight the activities that are being directed toward each
of these populations.

Now that we have taken steps to protect our blood supply, we
will be concentrating on preventing the sexual transmission of the
AIDS virus and preventing the transmission of AIDS among N
drug abusers. Primary Federal responsibility for this aspect lies
within the CDC. Information and education effort.J to prevent the
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sexual transmission of AIDS will encompass a number ofmajor ac-
tivities. This fiscal year, we are planning to conduct a national
public information campaign.

In September 1986, an AIDS hotline service was expanded to a
full 24 hours daily operation. We are continuing to distribute our
Public Health Service public service announcements. as well as
publications and materials prepared in collaboration with the
American Red Cross and other organizations. To date, we have dis-
tributed about 325,000 copies of the Surgeon General's Report on
AIDS.

This fiscal year, we will be establishing a National AIDS Infor-
mation Clearinghouse in order to manage and handle the many
publications regarding AIDS prevention and control. We plan to
bring together major public and private sector organizations that
are currently actively involved in the fight against AIDS and solic-
it their contribution to the Nation's effort to stem the epidemic.

Working at community levels, NlDA, the National Institute of
Drug Abuse, is utilizing mass media and special print media to
inform their special target audiences. Local communities are being
encouraged to undertake public education programs. V, .t are work-
ing with the entertainment community to encourage the industry
to undertake activities to educate the public.

A national toll-free telephone has been established which directs
drug abusers to treatment programs in their communities. This
hotline service has been promoted in advertising which promotes
treatment for intravenous drug abusers. The drug hotline is linked
also to our AIDS hotline.

Schools efficiently can inform 90 to 95 percent of young people
about the dangers of AIDS and how to avoid becoming infected.
The 5 percent of children who do not attend school may be at even
greater risk and will require special efforts through mechanisms
other than schools if they are to be reached by our efforts.

In 1987, we are initiating a comprehensive school health educa-
tion program. To supplement the Stet,. and local efforts, we will be
working with national organizations to help schools provide effec-
tive AIDS education. To round out our program, we will be under-
taking a number of other activities designed to assist State and
local education agencies, such as establishing an annotated, com-
puterized bibliography of relevant AIDS education materials, sum-
marizing the private sector development of effective school health
education materials, assessing the impact of national, State, and
local efforts, and establishing a national coalition for AIDS school
health education.

Prevention and control of AIDS will depend upon successfully in-
terrupting the transmission of the virus among those persons
whose behaviors or their circumstances put them or others at risk
of infection. The major element of our efforts to prevent sexually
transmitted AIDS is the provision of assistance to the States in
conducting AIDS prevention programs, which include health educa-
tion risk reduction programs and counseling and testing.

Currently, we are funding six demonstration projects designed to
implement and evaluate intensive community level programs to
prevent the transmission of HIV infection. Two of the projects have
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program elements directed toward reaching minority populations
at risk.

CDC, working with the Health Resources and Services Adminis-
tration [HRSA] and the National Hemophiliac Foundation, is sup-
porting the development and delivery of health education and risk
reduction counseling programs for hemophiliacs.

We will be continuing our joint venture with the Conference of
Mayors that is designed to help stimulate information and educa-
tion programs at the community level. In 1987, we will be initiat-
ing pilot projects to develop and test approaches to prevent perina-
tal transmission of the AIDS virus.

The two major problems confronting this area of public health
are (1) how to reach uninformed groupsadolescents, ethnic mi-
norities, drug abusers, and womenwith the message on risk re-
duction, and (2) how to surmount resistance of persons toward
changing their behavior. Thus, the National Institute of Mental
Health also has funded research into these areas.

Targeted AIDS community demonstrations will be awarded as
demonstration research contracts that focus on specific prevention
initiatives. Health workers also will be stimulated and involved to
help decrease the risk of transmitting the virus to others; they also
represent a major channel for providing adequate AIDS informa-tion.

NIDA's educational activities are focused on providers who come
in contact with drug abusers, such as drug abuse treatment pro-
gram staff, primary health providers, and social service personnel.
Emphasis is placed on building State and local training capacity,
developing educational and training materials, and training train-
ers to facilitate such capacity building.

The National Institute of Mental Health is striving to overcome
a shortfall of funding for academic institutions throughout the
Nation to train all types of AIDS health care providers to recog-
nize, refer, or treat the mental health elements of this disease.

The National Institute of Dental Research is developing posters
and leaf ets for use in dental offices, clinics, and schools to increase
awareness of the need for the use of barrier techniques for dental
care providers.

In fiscal year 1987, HRSA will award grants to develop three re-
gional AIDS Education and Training Centers to provide educationand training for health care providers. HRSA is also supporting
AIDS service demonstration projects in New York, San Francisco,
Los Angeles, and Miami, which provide extensive information re-
lated to the prevention of further spread of the AIDS virus.

CDC has engaged in a wide variety of activities, ranging from the
issuance of guidelines in the MAWR to distributing slide series in
response to nearly 4,000 requests.

In conclusion, sir, I have been highlighting the work of our
Public Health Service agencies, and I am proud to be associated
with all these dedicated people in the Public Health Service who
have committed so much personal effort to the battle to prevent
AIDS.

But it must be emphasized that we are not working in isolation.
We must recognize the role that the media has played in helping to
create the information base among our population upon which we

ry
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will be able to build, and it is important that we recognize the hard
work and the invaluable efforts of the many voluntary organiza-
tions that have been such a major part of this national effort to
deal with this modern-day scourge.

As I stated at the onset, to meet the AIDS challenge will require
an all-out effort by the whole of our society.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman My colleagues and I will be happy to
help answer questions that you may have.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Windom follows:]
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee.

I am pleased to have this opportunity to discuss the Public Health Service's

(PHS) response to the acquired
immunodeficiency syndrome (AIDS) epidemic with

emphasis on education and prevention activities

With me today are Dr. Lowell Harmison, Deputy Assistant Secretary for Health,

Dr. Gary Noble, the PHS AIDS Coordinator; Dr. Walter R. Dowdle, Deputy

Director (AIDS), Centers for Disease
Control (CDC); Dr Juan Ramos, Deputy

Director for Prevention and Special
Projects, NIMH;, Dr. Roy Pickens, Director

of Clinical Research, HID° rr. Samuel Matheny, Director, AIDS Office, Bureau

of Resources and Development, HRSA; Dr James Hill, Assistant to the Director,,

NIAID.,; and Mr. Harell Little, Chief,, Budget Branch, GASH.

In a few short years, AIDS
has grown from a rare and unusual health problem to

an epi'emic of major proportions It is expected to continue to grow. More

'.nan 31,000 cases of AIDS have
been reported to date; 16,000 of these patients

have already died. It is estimated that by the end of 1991 the cumulative

total of AIDS cases in the United
States will reach 270,000 and result in

nearly 180,000 deaths. In 1985,, AIDS became the eleventh leading cause of

potential years of life lost before the age
of 65 and, when the data has been

compiled on all other diseases, the
statistics will show that in 1986 it

became one of the top ten leading causes
of potential life lost. Cases of

AIDS have been reported in all 50 States, Puerto Rico, the Virgin Islands,, and

the Trust Territories.

33



29

Although the majority of cases continue to occur among homosexual and bisexual

men and intravenwys drug abusers, the infection is also spreading among nonIV

drug abusing heterosexuals and from infected mothers to newborn infants.

Nearly 1,200 cases of heterosexual transmission and more than 450 cases of

AIDS in children have been reported. In addition, most infected IV drug

abusers are heterosexual and can spread the virus by their sexual contacts.

There is no vaccine against AIDS and only a few drugs with very limited

therapeutic potential. Complicating the picture is the fact that infected

persons are capable of spreading the virus to others for years before

experiencing the sign, or symptoms of AIDS. At this time, information and

education, which provide opportunity for individuals to eliminate or reduce

highrisk behavior, are the only means we have to prevent the spread of AIDS

infections.

From the beginning, providing information has been an important part of our

work. Our early efforts concentrated on the dissemination of scientific

information to America's health community. For eximple, CDC has published

22 recommendations and guidelines since 1981, and the National Institutes of

Health (NIH) has sponsored through the National Institute of Allergy and

Infectious Diseases (NIAID) 10 large AIDS related conferences for health care

professionals and support personnel. They have collaborated with a number of

professional societies by sponsoring workshops on AIDS during national or

regional meetings, and two international conferences on AIDS have been held,

and a third is planned for 1987.

2
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Recently there have been signific.nt changes in direction and momentum to the

efforts. Eighteen months ago, among our primary concerns were the safety of

our blood supplies and the provisior of alternate testing sites for people who

believed they may have been exposed to the AIDS virus. Since then safeguards

have been put in place to ensure the safety of our blood supply the alternate

test s:+es have become a nationwide counseling and testing program;, and PIDS

health education/risk reduction (HE/RR) programs are in place across the

Nation. We now have further evidence that AIDS is not just a disease of white

homosexual males. It is spread heterosexually;: it is being transmitted by

mothers to their infants and it is occurring disproportionately among Blacks

and Hispanics.

The report of the PHS meeting in Coolfont, West Virginia last June and tho

Surgeon General's Report on AIDS that was issued in October together mark the

beginning of a more intense phase in our information and education efforts.

The American public is ready to learn more about how they can protect

theaselves and others from AIDS.

Within PHS, I have taken steps to enhance the effectiveness of our fight

against AIDS. I have strengthened the position of the PHS AIDS Coordinator

which is being ably filled by Dr. Noble. I have continued to rely on the PHS

AIDS Executive Task Force which meets weekly and is supported in its work Lly a

series of subgroups, me of whit,' focuses on information/education and health

education/risk reduction. I have assigned lead agency responsibility for this

activity to CDC, and they now chair that subgroup. Dr. James 0. Mason, CDC's

3
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Director, has also taken steps to strengthen the management of AIDS

activities. His created the position of Deputy Director (AIDS), with full

authority and responsibility for all of CDC's AIDS activities, and appointed

to that position Dr. Dowdle who is with me here today.

Also, we initiated the Federal Coordinating Committee on AIDS Information,

Education and Risk Reduction which brings together Federal officials to

coordinate the Federal Government's AIDS information/education efforts. I

serve as Chairman of that Committee.

At my direction, CDC is coordinating the development of the "Information/

Education Plan to Prevent and Control AIDS in the United States." This is a

comprehensive F4S Plan for informing and educating the American people about

AIDS. The Plan specifies the audiences to be addressed, the basic elements of

AIDS information and education,, and the outline of strategies by which this

education can be accomplished. The Plan draws upon the knowledge and

experience PHS has gained since AIDS was first recognized, and it incorporates

the contributions of many experts in the PHS agencies: Alcohol, Drug Abuse

and Mental Health Administration, Centers for Disease Control, Food and Drug

Administration, Health Resources and Services Administration, National

Institutes of Health, and the Office of the Surgeon General

Successful implementation of this Plan depends upon action and collaborative

efforts among State, county, and municipal governments;: professional and

service organizations; the private sector;, and the Federal government. From

1963 through 1966, PHS spent $40 million to inform and educate the public in

groups at high risk of acquiring infection; in fiscal year 1987, we are

4
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planning to spend more than $79.5 million; and in fiscal year 1988 more than

$103.9 million. However, it is expected that funds appropriated by Congress

in any given year for information/education will be multiplied manyfold by the

efforts and resources of other public agencies and the public sector. This

combined cooperative effort, in the long term, will have a much greater impact

on changing public behavior than the efforts of the Federal Government, alone.

Under the Plan, our efforts are targeted to certain populations The first is

the general public. In order to control transmission of AIDS virus, everyone

must be aware of behavior that puts them at risk of infection They must

learn how the virus is and is not spread.

A second special population is school and collegeay-d youth Schools,

colleges, and family institutions pr de an effective channel for

appropriately instructing the young people of our Nation about AIDS before,

and as, they reach the ages when they might practice behaviors that put them

at risk of infection.

A third target population is those persons at increased risk or who are

infected. Our highest priority is informing and educating those groups at

increased risk of acquiring or transmitting the AIDS virus because of certain

behaviors or circumstances, such as homosexual and bisexual men, IV drug

abusers, hemophiliacs, female sex partners of those at risk (of special

concern because of potential pregnancy), and prostitutes and their clients

5
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The fourth target population is our Nation's health workers. Members of this

group have direct responsibility for patient care; for counseling AIDS

patients. persons with laboratory evidence of infection, or other concerned

persons; and for providing leadership in informing and educating the public.

Now I will highlight the activities that are being directed toward each of

these populations.

THE PUBLIC

An informed public provides the basis upon which other information/education

programs operate. Individuals need further information on the steps that can

be taken to protect their health. Special efforts are needed to provide

information through a variety of channelstelevision, radio, press,

advertisements, and personal appearances. The program must be closely

coordinated and sustained over a long period of time in order to adequately

inform the public. Now that we have taken steps to protect our blood supply,

we will be concentrating on preventing the sexual transmission of AIDS

virusprimary Federal responsibility for this aspect rests with CDC, and with

preventing the transmission of AIDS among IV drug abusers - -the National

Institute for Drug Abuse (NIDA) has this responsibility.

The Food and Drug Administration has worked with blood banks and plasma

centers on programs: (1) to inform persons at increased risk for AIDS that

they should refrain from donation, and (2) to test all blood and blood product

donations for the presence of AIDS antibody to reduce the risk of transmitting

AIDS virus through the transfusion of blood or plasma

- 6 -
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Preventing Sexually Transmitted AIDS

Information /education efforts to prevent the sexual transmission of AIDS will

encompass number of major activities. This fiscal year we are planning to

conduct a major national public information campaign This mass media

campaign will reach the public through television, radio, and the various

print media at the national and local levels. It wil provide the broad

backdrop for intense State and community efforts that will be carried out

across the country. W4 will be contracting with a national communications

agency to assist in the planning and design of this multimedia campaign.

W. are continuing on other fronts to get information to people who need it

In September 1916. we contr,rted with the American Social Health Association

to take over the operation of the national AIDS Hotline. Service has been

expanded to full 24 hours of daily operations. The Hotline offers a taped

message and referral to an operator for further information. The number of

calls steadily increased with taped messages.

W4 are continuing to distribute PHS-developed public service announcements as

well as publications and other materials prepared in collaboration with the

American Red Cro.i and other organizations To date, we have distributed

about 325,000 copies of the Surgeon General's Report on AIDS, and other

private organizations have reproduced thousands of copies for distribution

CDC, which has taken over most of these activities has sent camera-rely

copies of the report to all PIDS program ccord:mators

-7 -
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This fiscal year we will be establishing a national AIDS information

clearinghouse system designed to facilitate access to information needed by

the public at largo and by State and local AIDS program personnel engaged in

developing or conducting AIDS prevention and control programs. The

clearinghouse will develop and maintain inventories of available AIDS

information and assist State and local AIDS program personnel in obtaining,

developing, and using information about AIDS. It will iuentify and assist in

filling information gaps through the development or identification of needed

information for such grcups as minorities which require specialized emphasis

and culturally sensitive materials. Lastly, it will provide a mechanism for

the distribution of NS information materials. We expect to award a contract

for this project in August 1ee7.

W plan to bring together ma,,r public and private sector organizxcions that

are currently actively involved in the fight against AIDS or which could make

significant contributions to our Nation's effort to stem the epidemic Our

goal is to provide a continuing forum for the exchange of information and the

coordination and stimulation of voluntary information/education programs

8188/I8 Drug Abuse

Working at the community level, the National Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA) is

utilizing mass media and special print media to inform the general public and

special target audiences Market research has been conducted to determine the

best means of reaching th target audience of intravenous drug abusers, ti r

sex partners, and other :lose associates, such as family members, with mass

8
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media messages about AIDS and drug use Based on this research, radio and

television, as well as print, materials are being developed to intervene at

the different stages of drug use in order to halt or slow the spread of AIDS.

Messages are encouraging the drug abusers to seek treatment or to stop sharing

needles if treatment is not possible.

Local communities are being encouraged to undertake public education

programs Community contacts in target cities are being helped to develop

local coalitions among organizations concerned about AIDS in IV drug abuse.

We are working with the entertainment community including the film,

television, and music industriesto encourage the industry to undertake

activities to educate the public about the threat of AIDS in IV drug abuse and

to communicate an antidrug message to preteens, teens, and young adults.

A national toll free telephone service has been established which directs drug

abusers to treatment programs in their community. This Hotline service is

being heavily promoted in advertising which promotes treatment for intravenous

drug abusers. The drug Hotline is linked to the AIDS Hotline to assure

appropriate handling of special requests and needs.

These media activities have until now been focused at the community level.

Given the urgency of the AIDS epidemic and the growing public concern

regarding the relationship of AIDS and drug abuse, the climate is improving

for getting public service announcemen's on television NIDA is considering

the need for a broader public service campaign including a full range of

television, radio, and print advertisements on the AIDS and drug abuse issue.

9
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SCHOOL AND COLLEGEAGED YOUTH

Every day more than 7 million students attend 90,000 elementary and secondary

schools in 15,500 school districts across the United States. Schools

efficiently can inform 90 to 95 percent of the young people about the dangers

of AIDS and how to avoid becoming infected. Our youth and young adults must

understand that sexual activity and IV drug abuse can lead to AIDS. The

5 oercent of children who do not attend school may be at even greater risk and

will require special efforts through agencies other than schools if they are

to be reached by our nfforts. To educate our Nation's youth about AIDS, we

must be we that there is a broad base of national, parental, and community

support and that school officials, especially classroom teachers, are well

prepared. We must be sure that curricula about AIDS are scientifically

accurate, culturally sensitive,, and developmentally appropriate for students

in each community.

In 1987, we are initiating a comprehensive school health education program. A

principal feature of the program will be the provision of fiscal support and

technical assistance to about 10 State and 12 local education agencies in

areas with the highest incidence of AIDS to rapidly implement effective

education about AIDS for students and for schoolaged youth who do not attend

school. The scope and content of these AIDS school health education programs

will be determined at the local level with assistance from the health agency.

Training and demonstration projects will be etqablished in three metropolitan

areas and in one State School officials and teachers from around the country

10
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will be able to attend training sessions in order to learn firsthand how to

develop and implement effective AIDS education in the schools. In this way we

can assist school systems that do not receive dir'ct funding.

To supplement the State and local efforts, we will be working with national

organizations to help schools provide effective AIDS education Through these

organizations, we hope to stimulate, reinforce, and assist State and local

efforts to reach students, schoolaged youth not attending school, college

populations, Black youth, and Hispanic youth.

To round a3t our program we will be undertaking a number of other activities

designed to assist the State and local education agencies, such as

establishing an annotated computerized bibliography of relevant AIDS

educational materials, stimulating private sector development of effective

school health education materials, assessing the impact of national, state and

local efforts, and establishing a national coalition for AIDS school health

education.

Our work with the State of Indiana provides an example of beneficial results

that can come from the collaborative approach we are taking. Indiana State

Board of Health, with funds and technical assistance from CDC, developed an

AIDS school curriculum guide called AIDS: What Young Adults Shoul4 grow. It

is a companion to an excellent curriculum on sexually transmitted disease

education. This AIDS school health curriculum was recently completed and

offered to thn Indiana's local school boards We were told that even before

it was off the presses nearly livery State in the Union had requested a copy of

the curriculum.

11
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PERSONS AT INCREASED RISK OR INFECTED

Prevention and control of AIDS will depend upon successfully interrupting the

transmission of the virus among those persons whose behaviors or their

circumstances put them and others at risk of infection. Here again I will

discuss our activities in terms of two broad categories: those people at risk

of infection through sexual transmission of the virus and those at risk

because of IV drug abuse.

Preventing Sexually Transmitted AIDS

The major element of our efforts to prevent sexually transmitted AIDS is the

provision of assistance to States in conducting AIDS prevention programs. CDC

will be awarding 55 cooperative agreements totaling more than $22 million to

States, territories, and selected cities for this purpose. In response to the

States requests for streamlining and simplifying the bureaucratic process, CDC

has collapsed the two previously separate health education/risk reduction

programs and the counseling and testing prove= into a single a,Jard for each

participating State. In mid-1985 funding was provided for 50 counseling and

testing projects covering nearly 900 sites through which more than 79,000

people were tested Of these, about 17 percent were seropositive. In 1986

testing sites funded by these projects increased to almost 1100 through which

more than 150,000 people were tested Preliminary reports indicate that

nearly 19 percent of those tested were seropositive °retest co4nseling

sessions increased 89 percent, and posttest counseling increased by 118

percent in 1986 over 1985.

12
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The health education/risk reduction projects have been more recently funded,'

and it is too early to report significant results from these efforts. In all

of the 55 participating States and metropolitan areas information and

education activities have been initiated and work has been started on

defining, in detail, their AIDS problems. To date, 21 projects have targeted

informational services to black communities and 15 have activities aimed at

their Hispanic populations

Concurrently, we are funding six demonstration projects designed to implement

and evaluate intensive community level programs to prevent the transmission of

HIV infection. These projects are being carried out under a strict protocol

that is designed to permit evaluation of the activities in terms of their

impact on the disease. Two of the projects have program elements directed

toward reaching minority populations at risk. In a further attempt to find

effective risk reduction approaches, we have been supporting eight innovative

projects that aro evaluating risk reduction approaches directed toward

homosexuals, IV drug abusers, and minorities.

CDC, working cooperatively with the Health Resources and Services

Administration and the National Hemophiliac Foundation (NHF), is supporting

the development and delivery of health education and risk reduction counseling

programs for hemophiliacs Their particular health p,oblems are being

addressed by the NHF through a netwo'k of service centers

We will be continuing our joint venture with the Conference of Mayors that is

designed to help stimulate information /education programs at the community

level.

13
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In 1987, we will be initiating pilot projects to develop and test approaches

to prevent perinatal transmission of the AIDS virus. The focus will be on

preventing infection among reproductive age women.

The two major problems confronting this area of public hototh are how to reach

uninformed groups (adole:cents, ethnic minorities, drug abusers, and women)

with the message of risk reduction, and how to surmount resistance of persons

towards changing their behavior. ft:DS is so pernicious that the National

Institute of Manila Health (NIMH) believes it must go beyond campaigns to

inform persons about the need for and the techniques of risk reduction. Thus,

it also has funded research into identifying elements which inflL nce

noncompliance of behavioral changes, and has funded evaluation studies to

determine the effectiveness of various intervention techniques.

_Persons with AIDS need the support of families and friends. In turn, families

and friends of persons with AIDS need help in dealing wit; thu situation.

Recognizing this need, the NIMM has prepared publications directed towards the

alpropriate groups and has incorporated psychosocial considerations into its

training programs.

AIDS/IV Druq Abuse

In order to help communities develop AIDS prevention programs and to assess

the effectiveness of preuention initiatives, NIDA is implementing two

demonstration programs in fiscal year 1987. comprehensive AIDS community

demonstration projects and targeted AIDS demonstration projects.

14



Comprehensive AIDScommunity'demonstration grants will be awarded to five

communities that have a high prevalence of AIDS associated with IV drug

abuse. The focus of these grants will be outreach services to recruit drug

abusers into treatment, to educate intravenous drug abusers and their partners

regarding the risks of infection and transmission, and to ma..e antibody

testing available to intravenous drug abusers, their sexual partners, and

children This effort is complementing the $252 million substance abuse

research, prevention, and treatment program expansion that is a part of the

war on drugs.

Targeted AIDS community dcnonstrations will be awarded as demonstration

research contracts that focus on specific prevention initiatives, including

the use of indigenous outreach workers, outreach to sexual partners and

prostitutes associated with IV drug abusers, outreach in emergency rooms and

drug abuse deto, eicmtion units, case finding in high drug use areas, and

increasing the AIDS prevention capabilities of methadone maintenance programs.

HEALTH WORKERS

Health workers must be prepared to address infected persons health needs and

to counsel, or refer for counseling, those Infected with AIDS virus to reduce

the infected person's risk of transmitting the virus to others. Our Nation's

health workers represent a major channel for providing accurate AIDS

information to the patient, sex partners of the patient, friends and family

members of the patient, allied health care workers, and the public

Additionally, some health care workers by virtue of their occupation nc 1 to
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be informed that there is some very small risk of infection and how to avoid

it. A number of the PHS components have been actively involved in this aspect

of our information /education strategy, and I will highlight some of their

activities

ADAMHA

NIDA's educational activities are focused on providers who come in contact

with drug abusers such as drug abuse treatment program staff, primary health

care providers, and social service personnel. The activities include the

development of training manuals for service providers; training workshops for

drug abuse treatment program counselors, administrators, and health care

workers; technical assistance to treatment programs and drug abuse

authorities; and development of video tapes and other materials in English and

Spanish for intravenous drug abusers and their sexual partners. Emphasis is

placed on building State and local training capacity, developing educational

and training materials, and training of trainers to facilitate such a capacity

building

The suddenness of AIDS precluded sufficient numbers of care providers trained

in its mental health aspects The NIMH is striving to overcome the shortfall

by funding academic institutions tnroughout the Nation to train all types of

AIDS health care providers to recognize, refer, or treat the mantra health

elements of the disease. The trainino institutions are linked to one another

and to research centers in order to share the best educational techniques and

most current research findings.

- 16 -
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NIH

Earlier I mentioned some of the NIAID pant accomplishments. This year NIAID

will sponsor regional conferences in Nashville, Atlanta, Minneapolis/St. Paul,

Seattle, Denver, and San Diego. These conferences will provide information to

nurses and social workers.

The National Heart, Lung, and Blood Institute (NHLBI) is initiating an

educational program about blood donation in collaboration with the American

Red Cross, the American Association of Blood Banks, and Community Council of

Blood Centers. Fear of AIDS and other transfusion related diseases has led to

a decrease in donations at the same time the use of blood has continued to

increase. The educational program will be directed to the medical profession

to prevent excessive use of blood for therapeutic purposes and to the public

to dispel incorrect beliefs about acquiring AIDS through donating blood.

The National Institute of Dental Research is developing posters and leaflets

for use in dental offices, clinics, and schools to increase awareness of the

need for and use of brrriQr techniques for dental care providers. In

addition, a collaborative effort with NIAID is being developed to design

conferences aimed at dental card providers, similar to those sponsored by

NIAID in the past, and to provide workshops at professional meetings of dental

rare workers.

17
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HRSA

In fiscal year 1987, HRSA will award grants to develop three regional Ai3S

Education and Training Centevi (ETC). Program objectives for each ETC will be

to provide, in collaboration with health professional schools, local

hos,itals, and health departments, education and training to primary care

providers on the treatment and prevention of AIDS and AIDS infection, to

provide updates on new and timely information about HIV infection to

approximately 1,000 primary and secondary health care providers; and to serve

as the support system for area health professionals through the AIDS Hotline,

clearinghouse, and referral activities In 1988, there are plans to add

additional ETCs.

HRSA is also supporting AIDS service demonstration projects in New York,

San Francisco, Los Angeles,, and Miami. While the grants are intended to

demonstrate the creation of comprehensive, cost effeztive ambulatory and

community-based ,ealth and support systems for ;Arsons with AIDS, each grant

does provide extensive information related to the prevention of further spread

of the AIM virus. During 1987, approximately seven additional such

demonstration ;rants will be awarded.

CDC

CDC has been engaged in a wide variety of activities ranging from the issuance

of .guid.o..es in the MMWR, to distributing slide aeries in response to nearly

4,000 requee , to the prov'sion of ca..2r4-ready copies of the Surgeon

General's Report on AIDS to rll AIDS program ,Jordinators and conducting

-10
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courses for laboratory workers in the latest techniques. This fall they

picked up on the activities that .ere started at th.i Public Health Service

level involving the development and distribution of educational materials in

cooperation with the American Red Cross and distribution of the Surgeon

General's Report on AIDS. In 1987, CDC will provide additional specialized

training to program coordinators,, AIDS health educators, AIDS antibody test

counselors, and other health providers. They will also be developing training

modules and educational materials to train both practicing dental

professionals and dental students about infection control procedures with an

emphasis on AIDS.

Conclusion

I have been highlighting the work of our PHS agencies, and I am proud to be

associated with all the dedicated persons in the Public Health Service who

have committed so much personal effort to the battle to prevent and control

AIDS. But it must be emphasized that we are not working in isolation We

sus: recognize the role 'hat the media has played in helping to create the

information bas) amorq our populations upon which we will be able to build.

And, it is important that we recognize the hard work and invaluable efforts of

the many vo'untary organizations that have been such a major part of this

Nation's effort to deal with this modern day scourge. As I stated at the

outset,, to meet the AIDS challenge will require an all out effort by the whole

of our society. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will be happy to answer any

questions that you may have.

19
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Mr. WEISS. Thank you very much, Dr. Windom. What we will be
doing during the course of our questioning is to attempt to deter-
mine to what extent the various proposals or programs which you
have outlined have in fact been implemented or are being imple-
mented.

Because we will have, I think, extensive questioning, I will be
breaking off my part of the questioning from time to time to allow
my colleagues also then to ask their questions.

Dr. Windom, several years ago, HHS Secretary Heckler an-
nounced with great fanfare that AIDS treatments and vaccines
were close at hand. Those predictions, I believe, were extremely
misleading, and may have lulled the general public into a false
sense of security about the seriousness of AIDS. These may also
have lulled the Federal Government into a false sense of security.

How would you now characterize the likelihood that we will have
an effective vaccine and treatment in the near future?

Dr. Winnost. Mr. Chairman, a number of vaccine programs are
underway where testing is being done within the laboratory, in ani-
mals. It is anticipated that if progress continues as it is estimated
based on today's circumstances, there is hope that a vaccine may
be available within 5 to 10 years. No one can say that definitely.
It's just not possible because of what has to be done at various
stages in order to get a final product. This is just a projected esti-
mate.

Mr. Winss. I appreciate that. Then Secretary Heckler's projection
was that within 2 years, we would have a vaccine. Many scientists
suggested that that was just an unrealistic statement, but coming
from Secretary Heckler it was believed. I think that your state-
ment is a very realistic one. I applaud it because it demonstrates
why we have to be focusing, as you said in your statement, on edu-
cation/information efforts.

Dr. Womost. Yes. Thank you, sir.
Mr. Winos. Did you review the Surgeon General's report on AIDS

before it was released in October 1986? Were you in agreement
with its findings and recommendations?

Dr. WINDOM. No. We did not review that document because it
was produced as a ;» .t of a direction to the Surgeon General for
him to provide the report and to present it as a response to the
President's request. It was Dr. koup's own document that was put
together and distributed without our having been involved in the
review.

Mr. WEISS He reports to you through channels; isn't that right?
That's the way the system works?

Dr. Ilitemost. Yes, sir.
Mr. W.188. He received a directive from the President to prepare

this report; is that correct?
Dr. WINDOM. Yes, in January 1986, I believe, President Reagan

asked him to prepare this report and to release it to the Nation.
Mr. Winss. He did that, and was not asked to submit it to you

before it was released?
Dr., WINDOM. No, sir.
Mr. Winss. Was the Surgeon General's report presented to the

President before it was released?
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Dr. WINDOM. I understand it was presented to the Domestic
Policy Cabinet Group end I presume to the President. I do not
know that for sure, sir.

Mr. Wass. Has the President made any public statements on the
report or on AIDS, since the report was issued in October?

Dr. WINDOM. No, I have not heard any public report on that
from the President.

Mr. Wass. Indeed, I just saw a recent copy of the Department's
green sheet, the compilation of stories relating to AIDS. In a story
dated March 5, 1987, I read that Koop has urged Reagan to take a
lead in the war on AIDS.

Have there been discussions within your Department or with the
President urging him to take a lead in the war on AIDS?

Dr. WINDOM. No, not that I'm aware of, sir, any personal con-
tacts or expressions; not that I'm aware of.

Mr. Wass. Your testimony reflects that 325,000 copies of the Sur-
geon General's report have been printed. Can you tell us how many
have actually been distributed to date?

Dr. WINDOM. I do not know that total number but I know there
is an ongoing distribution process. We are continuing to have the
report distributed because it has been a very well received and is
an important document. I do not know the exact number that have
been distributed, sir.

Mr. Wass. Dr. Dowdle, would you have that information?
Dr. Downes. Yes. In fact, that's very does to the number. It's

over 300,000. I think, more to the point, that copies have also been
provided in a camera-ready form to all the States and to many
other organizations. They also are distributing copies of the report.

Mr. Wass. There have been some discussions, I understand, of
having that report mailed directly to every home in the country.
Do you know how much it would cost to do that?

Dr. WINDOM. That proposal, Mr. Chairman, has been raised, and
we will be talking about that. I will be convening a group of mem-
bers of our staff to look at the questions of whether a direct mail-
ing would be feasible, what type of document would be appropriate
for a mass mailing, the size, and the cost. That is a concern of ours
and we are in the process of evaluating it.

Mr. Wass. Dr. Koop is quoted in a Sacramento headline, dated
March 6, saying that the Public Health Service is considering mail-
ing a simplified version of his widely publicized AIDS report to
every household in the country. When do you expect to have a deci-
sion on that?

Dr. WINDOM. We would hope probably that by about the middle
of April we will come up with something to resolve that question.

Mr. Wass. At about the same time as the Surgeon General's
report in October, the National Academy of Sciences released its
comprehensive AIDS report. Have you read that document? Are
you familiar with its detailed recommendations?

Dr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
Mr. Weiss. Are you and the Department in agreement with its

findings?
Dr. WINDom. We feel it makes a very significant contribution to

the subject and we have listened to and met with members of the

53
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Institute of Medicine and discussed their findings even prior totheir releasing that report.
Mr. Wass. Did the Department prepare any type of response tothe report?
Dr. Wnitoom. No, officially, no one asked for a response to thereport, sir.
Mr. Wawa. How about unofficially? Did you have an analysis?
Dr. WINDOM. Within our Public Health Service, we asked ourvarious agencies to look at the report and give their opinions to us.That was just in-house.
Mr. Wass. Can you make copies of those reports available to us?
Dr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
(On June 2, 1987, the Department advised the subcommittee that

"none of the agencies have started the reports.")Mr. Wass. Did you express any disagreements? Were any dis-agreements expressed with the report?
Dr. Wnwors. I think the question that has been raised most has

been about the figures for 1991. We feel they are estimations, butwe want to try to approach them. We fe,.: we are making progressalong the line, and with the budget increases from year to year,particularly in the education area, are approaching the total that
they mentioned, Federal combined with other sources, of $1 billionfor education. I would say that very likely this target may be met,indeed may be exceeded.

Mr. Wrass. Last month, the Department scheduled a press con-ference to finally announce a major new AIDS Information/Educa-
tion Plan. Later, we were advised by your staff that the plan would
be released around ti e 1st of March. In fact, Dr. Mason testified atan Appropriations Committee hearing 2 weeks ago that the planwas complete.

Why was its release delayed?
Dr. WINDOM. In order to come forth with a plan of this type, and

in the process to respond to all people and groups involved, a con-siderable amount of time was needed for the plan to be reviewed
and for input to be received. As you can recognize, this 's a most
sensitive matter, and it is best to react to the concerns of all the
individual participants. It has taken time. iVe are just about ready
to go to press. We anticipate that very, very soon.

Mr. Wzrss. Dr. Dowdle, when did CDC begin working on this new
major information/education plan? When was the plan first re-quested, by whom, and why?

Dr. DOWDLE. Well, CDC was given the responsibility for working
on the plan in November, about the time we were givcr. the respon-sibility for an information education program. However, it wasstarted a few weeks or months earlier within the Public Health
Service.

Mr. WEI88. Who first requested it and why?
Dr. DOWDLE. Dr. Windom requested it.
Mr. WEISS. What was the basis `'or the request, Dr. Windom?
Dr. WINDOM. The basis, Mr. Chairman, was that I felt we neededto develop a doc ment that would be available for many people inthe Nation to use and that it would be best for this document tocome from the Public Health Service. In order to do this, I asked
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Dr. Mason and WI people at CDC to take the lead in putting it to-
gether.

Mr. Wxuss. When did you make that request?
Dr. WINDOM. It was in November, as I recall. I'm not sure exact-

ly what date.
Mr. Warm Dr. Do A le has just indicated you began working on

itthe date actually is October 28, I believe. You had discussions
on it for some months previously. You must have made that re-
quest earlier.

Dr. Dowd le, what's your recollection as to when you were re-
quested to start working on that plan?

Dr. DOWDLE. Well, actually it emerged from other }-its and pieces
of work that was goilig on. It was weeks after the idea had started
at P115 that CDC was asked to put the plan together. Again, I
don't know the exact date, but early October probably.

Mr. WErss. Was that before the Coolfont meeting in June 1986?
Dr. Downie. I think actually there may be a little misunder-

standing here. As far as the 7 ublic Health Service Information/
Education strategy goes, all of this evolved out of the meetings that
were held as early as 1985. In fact, the Public Health Service pub-
lished a strategy in 1985 in Puhlic Health reports. It was updated
in 1986 with the Coolfont report. Nth documents said that a major
infory ation/education effort would required to combat AIDS.

This current document grew out of Dr. Windom's request that
there be a specific document on information /education.

Mr. WEISS. The discussions had Been going on for the better part
of a year before you actually started this final plan?

Dr. DOWDLE. That specific de. ument. Not only were activities dis-
cussed, but information education activities have been implement-
ed beginning as early as 1984 and 1985.

Mr. %rm. When did you, or Dr. Mason, first review a draft of
this new plan?

Dr. DOWDLE. The present plan?
Mr. Weiss. Yes.
Dr. DOWDLE. The plan was reviewed over the Christmas holidays

and submitted on January 2.
Mr. Weiss. We have a memorandum, minutes of a Public Health

Service task force, dated September 8, 1986, and this among other
documents will be entered into the record.

[The memorandum follows:]

El
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES Pubic won Sew,

Memorandum
0.. S:P 18

From Assistant Secretary for Health

S4,0c: Minutes of the September e, 198f, Meeting of the PBS Executive
Task Force on AIDS

To Members, PBS Executive Task Force on AIDS

Attached are the minutes of the September 8, 198f, meeting of the
PBS Executive Task Force on AIDS. The next meeting is scheduled
for Monday, September 22, 1986, 9 to 10:30 a.m., Conference Room
/29G, Humphrey Building.

Attachments

Robert E. Windom, M.D.

,
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PBS Executive Task Pbrce cn AIDS
September e, 1986

Minutes

Participants

Dr. Dickson, Acting Assistant Secretary for Health

Dr. Doft'le, PBS AIDS Coordinator
Ms. Gelberg, ftecutive Secretary, PBS Executive Task Force on AIDS

Mr. Artim, GASH
Ms. Bart, CASH
Ms. Barth, CASH
Ms. Brady, CASH
Dr. Bridge, ADAMRA
Ms. Casselberry, CASH
Ms. Donoghue, Nni
Ys. Evert, CASH
Mr. Fanning, CAM
Dr. Fauci, NIB
Mr. Forbush, CASH
Dr. Galasso, NIB

Dr. Goodwin, ADAMHA
Dr. Hardy, CDC
Dr. Harmison, CASH
Ms. Hassell, CASH

Dr. Hopkins, CDC
Ms. Kershner, GASH
Dr. Koop, SG
Ms. Lengel, CASH
Dr. McCarthy, N/H
Dr. Meyer, PDA
Dr. Noonan, HASH
Dr. Pickens, MAMBA
Ms. Pollard, CASH
Mr. Riseberg, CCC
Dr. Rodrigues, NTH
Dr. Rose, CASH
Jr. Samuels, OSG
Ms. Segal, DASH
Mr. Smith, HCFA
Dr. WVngaarden, NIB

Dr. Dickson opened the meeting by noting the variable reporting of
figures for seropositive testing among the country's youth. Fifteen in

10,000 is the figure for Army recruits; in some areas of New York City,

one in 50 test positive. Discussion centered cn some of the reasons for

this disparity.

Dr. Dickson also reported that the Institute of Medicine (Ia) is
completing the analysis for its report cn AIDS and that it will be
presented and discussed at its annual meeting in October. Dr. Dowdle
indicated that the draft report is still being reviewed by IOM. Data

presented ty PAS at Con':alt are being used.

57
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Report of the AIDS Coordinator

Dr. Dowdle reported that 14/Dr, and CDC are meeting to discuss their
mutual activities on AIDS and IV drug abuse and will report to the Tank
Force shortly. In a meeting with the Swedish Minister of Health last
week, Sweden reported nearly 100 cases of AIDS and 3,000 to 5,000
positive antibody tests. AIDS information has been delivered to every
hone in Sweden. The country is donating about one million dollars to
the World Health Organization to assist with the AIDS efforts in
developing countries.

Italy has reported 300 cases of AIDS as of July. Fifty-seven percent is
among drug addicts and addicts who are also homosexual and 29 percent
wag homosexuals. Of 28,000 convicts who have been screened, 4,727
test positive. About 6 percent of Italy's AIDS cases are among children
of drug abusing parents.

Reports of the six subgroups

O Epidemiology and Prevention

Dr. Hopkins reported: 1) the Epidemiology and Prevention

Subgroup meeting scheduled for today is postponed and will
probably meet next ',today; 2) he is expecting the IWR
article an AIDS and Minorities by Friday and will circulate
it to the Task Force for comments before the next meting; 3)
an up -dated status report on the Belle Glade investigation is
almost complete. The preliminary review of the data will be
presented at ICCAC three weeks from today. He will send out
the draft report to the Task ftrce for review within two
weeks; 4) the AIDS Hat Line is receiving 800 calls per day to
the tape and 300-400 callers are staying an to speak to
individuals; 5) the latest draft of the agenda for the PAS
Ccnference on Promoting Public Health Action: Use of MX-

Antibcxly Testing for Prevention Programs wes
distributed. The meeting is scoeduled for Wednesday and
Thursday, October 22-23. Consents and suggestions on the
draft agenda should be made to Dr. Jim Allen at CDC, FTS 236 -
3476. Ms. Lengel suggested a press briefing at the end of
the conference; 6) the ACIP is recommending that children
with known AIDS should not be given live virus vaccines.
Children uto test positive, but are asymptomatic can be given
Mgt but not live polio virus. The ACIP statement on AIDS is
also suggesting that children of parents in AIDS high-risk
groups he evaluated before immunization.

Dr. Eidson brought tp the issue of the recent press reports
about operational problems at the CDC AIDS laboratory. There
ues some discussion of these reports and the distractions
they are causing at CDC. Dr. tMone indicated that a report
is being prepared for Dr. Vandon.
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o Blood and Block! Products

Dr. Meyer will be is ing the Public Fealth Service in
October to take a new position in the private sector.
Dr. Meyer reported that FDA has licensed the 8th AIDS ELISA
test, using a different cell from both the Gallo cell and the
Genetic system cell. Be also reported that 20/20 is making
requests for information relating to blood safety and AIDS.

o Behavior, Neuroscience, and Addiction ;meets

Dr. Goodwin repotted that D!3. McFarland and Gibbs from
NINCI have joined the subgroup. A major focus of the
subgroup is the issue of IV drug abusers and coordination
between CDC and N/DA to avoid overlap. Be circulated a copy

of the agenda for the NIMB AIDS Research Methodology
Conference to be held at the Linden Hill Hotel in Bethesda an
September 18 and 19. Dr. Goodwin also discussed the David
Jewess' editorial in the August 72 issue of Science, about
the role of the social scientist in identifying special
populations, attitudinal changes and how to recognize
attitudinal changes.

Dr. Pickens repotted that new infotmation on needle sharing
and IV drug abusers indicates tlat needle sharing is more
prevalent than has been thought. Needle shar-m in shooting
galleries has increased substantially among heroin and

cocaine abusers. These hard cote, chronic drug abusers are

the most difficult to treat. There was a discussion about
the difficulty in obtaining good hard data about how many
people abuse drugs intravenously, and to what extent these
people know about the risk of AIDS, and the opportunities for

prevention. Dr. Pickens also reported that a list of

priorities =A has been developed and will be circulated
by the next meeting.

o Vaccine and 'Therapy

Dr. Gala= repotted: 1) all committees are meeting and
raking progress; 2) three RFPs and RFAs on AIDS have been
announced, including RFPs on better methodologies to detect
the virus, better methodologies for markers of immunity and
an RFA on the pathogenesis of AIDS and associated factors; 3)
the animal model committee is looking carefull., at protocols
regarding the use of chimpanzees; 4) the vaccine subgroup is

beginning to develop general clilical protocols for the
evaluation of vaccines. Dr. Jim Curran is joining the
subgroup for this activity; !) the international conference
plans are taking shape and the planning group is ready to

publish the call for abstracts. The length of the conference

will be four and one -half days.

5 9
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Dr. Dietson asked about the progress being amide at the
Primate Center at the University of California at Davis in
the development of a vaccine for Simian AIDS. The general
consensus was that the report was encouraging, but that any
implications for AIDS vaccines in humans were unknown.

Dr. Dowdle reported that the Hastings Institute will host a
meting cn Cttober 6 and 7 to &scam drug availability for
more individuals than is rrently possible under protocol
studies. PHS's concern is to maintain the scientific
credibility of treatment trials. Drs. Dawdle, Fauci,
MCCarthy and Meyer s representative, Ms. Donoghue and Dr.
Hill will participate in the meeting. Dr. Meyer suggested
that PHS begin planning foc drug distribution in the event a
promising drug nears readiness for approval. He stressed
that the government will have a real status in working with
industry to make such a drug available.

Dr. Dickson asked Dr. Fauci to comment an his work on the
effect of the AIDS virus cn the 13 cells in the bone marrow.
Dr. Fauci indicated that, thwgh the s cells were stimulated,
the effect was that of imeurceuppression.

o Patient Care and Health Service Delivery

Dr. Noonan repotted that the subgroup functioned as a review
panel for the HASA applications. Five applications were
reviewed and four were approved, all with conditions.
Negotiations are underway now regarding the conditions. It
is expected that the grants will be funded before
Cttober 1. The 1Moert Wood Johnson Foundation (FaCF) had two
representatives an HRSA's review panel; and there were two
representatives from PHS and one representative from HCFA an
the RWIF's review panel in an effort to avoid overlap.

o Information and Education

Ms. Lengel reported that: 1) a flyer an the availability of
the three ?HS video tapes has been sent to 30,000 groups and
organizations; 1) we are purchasing the master reel of 50
celebrity PSAs produced by IFEK-"V in California, to Mich we
can add our own tag line; 3) COC has ruled to advise that we
can use paid advertising.

Dr. Hopkins repotted cn the draft AIDS Information and
Education Action Plan drafted by CDC and modified by this
subgroup. The plan examines the relationship of the CDC
information and education efforts to all others in PHS in
order to reinforce information and help avoid conflicting
messages. Comments on the action plan should be made to
Ms. Lengel by Monday, September 15.
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S

Dr. Dickson asked Dr. Rapp to discuss the status of the

Surgeon General's Report on AIDS. Drs. Reap, )b''igue, and

Samuels have met with 32 grows for 2-4 hour discussions.

have received absolute cooperation from all of the

groups. According bp Dr. Rdop, we have the founded= for a
remarkable coalition of organizations reflecting the views of

large segments of the population on AIDS.

Dr. Goodwin suggested that more public information efforts be

made by describe the importance of animal research on AIDS.

Re also suggested that any publicity cn progress in research

include mention of the use of animals in the research.
Mt. Risebery discussed the ruling of a three-judge court that

the animal rights' grew has no legal standing bo challenge

the use of animals in.research and further that they should

not have such standing.

Dr. Yoop suggested devekccent of a formal liaison with the

entertainment industry to encourage writers, producers and

actors to focus cn a number of health education issues Uhich

could be addressed in soap operas, sitcoms, and other

television entertainment.

Dr. Dickson noting the presence of Preposition 64 cn the

California ballot in November and its quarantine
implications, asked Ms. Lengel about her view of its chance

for success. She indicated that though there was
considerable concern, the likelihood of its pelsage remains

unclear.

Ms. Hassell reported that Congress returns today from its one

month recess. No formal hearings have been scheduled yet for

AIDS for the month of September.
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Mr. WEISS. It says that Dr. Hopkins reported on the draft AIDS
Information/Education Plan drafted by CDC and modified by thissubgroup. You had a draft plan as of the early part of September;isn't that correct?

Dr. DOWDLE. That is what I was referring to earlier about earlierwork that was going on. The plan that has been submitted now ac-tually was begun in early November.
Mr. Waiss. There is no correlation? There was no continuity ofthese plans?
Dr. DOWDLE. In fact, the work that was part of the earlier planwas incorporated into the present plan.
Mr. Winss. It's one continuing process; isn't that correct?
Dr. Dow-ats. Yes, sir.
Dr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
Mr. WEISS. What were described at task force meetings as "finaldrafts" of the AIDS plan were circulated several times in the

months following that September 8tb meeting. Yet, it still has notbeen released and implemented; is that correct?
What was the cause for the continuing delay in issuing the plan?Dr. Dowd le.
Dr. DOWDLE. Well, again, there was sort of an evolution of think-

ing of what purpose the plan should serve. Initially, it was thoughtthat this was an internal working document as had been the Cool-font report and the 1985 study. Later, the thinking was that thisshould be more of a public document. Then we took a little differ-ent tack.
Mr. WEISS. When was the Public Health Service's Information/

Education document first submitted to the Department of Educa-tion for review? I am referring to the plan which is about to be re-leased.
Dr. Down It was in earlier November. There was a very earlydraft of the . sent in the latter part of November.
Mr. Wings. By November, you had a draft proposal which yousubmit Id to the Department of Education; is that correct?
Dr. DOWDLE. What we were submitting at that time was only twosections of the plan, the introduction and what was called ti e basicelements of information. We felt ths.t this was an area that weneeded to get wide consultation cn, so we submitted that first

before submitting the second p -43 c f tr plan dealing with specificactivities.
Mr. WEISS. We have a copy of thy; plan or proposed plan that yousubmitted to the Department of Education dated November 14,1986. It is entitled "U.S. Public Health Service Plan To Preventand Control AIDS Through Information Education and Risk Educa-tion." It is a very comprehensive proposal of some 17 pages. It wasn'ot just a limited set of suggestions or proposals for Education's at-tention; isn't that correct?
Dr. DOWDLE. Yes, sir, but the present document is about threetimes that length.
Mr. WEiss. Because of textual material or charts that have beenattached?
Dr. DOWDLE. Well, again, the idea was to get out concepts in thatfirst draft. Now the activities have been sharpened, and the time-
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frame in which these activities are to be accomplished is detailed.
All of that was done for the document that we are now discussing.

Mr. WEISS. On December 3, the Department of Education sent
you their detailed comments and editing of the draft plan. That
memorandum was signed by Mr. Jack Klenk, identified as issues
staff.

Dr. Dowthe or Dr. Noble, do you know what this gentleman's
background and training are? Is he a public health specialist?

Dr. NOBLE. I'm sorry. The question was?
Mr. Wzrss. Do you know what Mr. Jack Klenk's background is?

Do you know if he is a public health specialist?
Dr. Novi. I'm sorry. No; I don't.
Mr. Wilms. Is he to your knowledge an expert on either public

health education or school curriculum?
Dr. NOBLE. I have not inquired.
Mr. Weiss. In any event, he made extensive revisions in the doc-

uments and returned them. Were his recommendations followed in
the subsequent draft of the plan?

Dr. Down's. Well, we incorporated those which we felt were ap-
propriate; yes, sir.

Mr. WEISS. Dr. Windom, for the record, would you please describe
the Public Health Service task force?

Dr. WINDOM. The Public Health Service task force?
Mr. WEISS. Yes; please.
Dr. WINDOM. Yes, sir. It was established in early 1984. It is made

wz. of representatives from the five agencies of the Public Health
Service. It is broken down into working groups composed of repre-
sentatives of those agencies who have various special interests that
relate to a certain area, such as therapeutics, vaccines, and educa-
tion.

Mr. WEiss. This is a Task Force on AIDS; right?
Dr. WINDOM. Yes, sir. It has met every 2 weeks ever these last

2Y2 years to update the group as to what progress has been made,
what committee action has been taken, what the status of the
whole program is at that time.

Mr. %rm. On December 15, after your November 14 proposal
had been analyzed and commented on and edited by the Depart-
ment of Education's Mr. Klenk, there was another version of the
plan that was distributed to the task force. It had omitted from it
the so-called messages section.

Dr. Dowdle, Dr. Noble, would you tell us what the messages sec-
tion comprised and why it was deleted from the plan?

Dr. DOWDLE. I don't recall the specific document. I think you
may be referring to the change in the name of that section. In fact,
from the very first, it was changed to basic elements of informa-
tion, which had been referred to sort of loosely as messages.

Mr. WEISS. The minutes of that December 15, 1986, meeting say
that:

Dr. Dowdle reported that the subgroup met during the past week and distributed
the current draft version of the plan. Comments are due at the end of this week, the
wants are not included in the plan. It was not intended that these elements be
the final messages.

Does that refresh your recollection at all?
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Dr. DOWDLE. 1 think what that referred to, when we said "mes-
sages were not intended to be fmal messages," was what we were
trying to convey in the plan. The basic elements of information
were concepts that we need to get across. Specific messages, and
how they would be packaged and what information would be pro-
vided, would be worked out for certain situations, certain geograph-
ic areas, and certain populations according to the recommendations
of our consultants.

Mr. WEISEL But those were then removed after the Department of
Education's comments; is that right?

r DOWDIX. Well, the same, quote, "messages," are still in the
document. They have not been lost. They have been modified as
other people have reviewed them, but they are still there.

Mr. Wiass. By January 12, the "final" plan was circulated to the
task force and Dr. Mason stressed it was then important to "imple-
ment the plan as soon as possible" and that he would like to re-
solve issues surrounding the plan by the end of that week so that
the important messages contained in it could get out to the public.

What were the important public health messages urgently
needed which the plan would help disseminate?

Dr. DOWDLE. Well, the plan essentially, as Dr. Windom has out-
lined, is aimed toward the public, school-and college-aged youth,
those at highest risk, and health care workers. These were ele-
ments of information which we felt should be gntten out to those
four major groups.

Mr. Witiss. Dr. Dowdle, isn't it true that in fact there were a
number of exchanges, written and oral, between you, Dr. Noble,
and the Department of Education, during which you were basically
attempting to complete this Public Health planning document
while the Department of Education was attempting to mold the
document into something altogether different?

Didn't you have that kind of disagreement with the Department?
Dr. DOWDLE. We did have a memorandum from their end we did

respond to the memorandum from them and we did p' in changes.
I might add though, we also had suggestions from mners as well,
both verbal and written.

Mr. WEISS. How would you characterize what the Department of
Education was attempting to do to the document?

Dr. DOWDLE. Well, I really can't say what the Department of
Education was attempting to do. I think some of the points that
they made were good points. In fact, we took some of the points.
We did expand some of the elements of information to include
their suggestions.

As to some of the other points, we felt that they were not neces-
sarily appropriate for the document that we were trying to
produce.

Mr. WEISS. What were those?
Dr. DOWDLE. These were points which we felt were more detailed

than we had initially considered. For example, we were trying to
create a more generic document, and we felt that some of their
comments fit best for certain populations and not for others.

Mr. WEISS. Dr. Noble, didn't it get to the point that you were
forced to write to the Department of Education a very stern warn-
ing about their continuing delay of the plan?
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Dr. NOBLE. We responded to the first set of comments with a
memorandum in which we urged the need for speed, since we felt
that it was important to proceed with the document as soon as pos-
sible.

Mr. Wiass. This is now the second plan. I have a memorandum
dated January 29, 1987, which is addressed to Mr. Klenk at the De-
partment of Education. Your closing two sentences are:

It is absolutely critical that an information education effs.rt move forward in a
timely manner. The consequences of delayed action will be AIDS cases that might
have been prevented and no one wishes to shoulder that responsibility.

I assume that by that point, you were getting 1,d up by the con-
stant delays from the Department of Education; is that correct?

Dr. Nods. Democracy is a slow process. We wanted to have the
best document, and frustrations are inevitable whenever you try to
mold to' ether comments end viewpoints -In a wide variety of
sources. Nonetheless, I think the final document is the better for it.

Mr. WEISS. Well, democracy is indeed a slow process but at the
same time, as you indicated, the chief consequence was to delay ac-
tions, and that might have been prevented. And what you are
saying is that people may be dead because of the delays?

Dr. NOBLE. One point I would like to make here is that despite
the absence of a formal published education plan, the workers in
the field have gone on unhindered, and the CDC, ADAMHA, HRSA
and others have been going full steam ahead. I think those com-
ments might be amplified by others.

Mr. Weiss. Dr. Windom, you also recogniied the need to imple-
ment this important plan in January, and apparently directed each
agency under your direction to immediately prepare new imp:e-
mentation plans which were due April 1. Is that correct?

Dr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
Mr. WEIBEL Now, is that same implementation date still in the

current draft of the plan? Is that still operative? Is April 1 the date
for implementation?

Dr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
Mr. WEISS. So that it has not, the plan has not yet been issued?

Is that correct?
Dr. WINDOM. That is correct.
Mr. WEISS. Dr. Dowdle, you then proceeded on February 9 to

schedule a press conference for the following week to release the
plan, indicating that it was complete. Why wasn't that press con-
ference held?

Dr. DOWDLE. Well, I think it was Dr. Windom's press conference,
sir.

Dr. WINDOM. There was question about having a press confer-
ence. We discussed having one, but never made a definite commit-
ment.

Mr. WEISS. I see. In other words, you reported, but it was not
going to be your press conference, then it would be Dr. Windom's
press conference on that date?

Dr. DOWDLE. That's correct
Mr. Muss. OK.
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On February 11, in fact, the White House issued a memorandum
limiting the scope of AIDS education. Wasn't that the reason that
the press conference and the plan were again delayed?

Dr. DOWDLE. No.
Dr. WINDOM. No, sir. No.
Mr. %ass. Now what specific role did your Department have in

the discussions and drafting of the, new White House memorandum
on AIDS education?

Dr. WINDOM. Well, this was taken into consideration, Mr. Chair-
man, Pat like all the other input that we had, and we discussed it.
We looked at how it could be fit into our program and into the doc-
ument. It was considered like any other response that we asked for.

And I might mention that you've been mferring to the Depart-
ment of Education all along, but we do have a Federal coordinating
committee, which I established last November. It's made up of
many Federal Government departments, and it meets every 2
weeks. Representatives of various Federal departments meet for an

t,e on what has transpired and is in progress in the area of
AIDS. We also asked these representatives to look at the plan at
various draft stages, and they in turn gave back their responses.

Mr. WEIBEL Did you, Dr. Noble, participate in the White House
meetings or deliberations on that White House memorandum?

Dr. NOBLE. I did not attend formal meetings, but we participated
in discussions.

Mr. WEtss. Did any of the Denartment people participate in
formal meetings?

Dr. Wnwom. Yes, I attended two of the domestic policy group
meetings at the White House, and Dr. Koop also attended with me.
We presented the program at that point, and discussed various as-
pects of it. We also apprised them of our progress as time went on.

Mr. WEtss. You had a reaction, you responded to that memoran-
dum, did you not, Dr. Noble? What was your reaction to it?

Dr. NOBLE. The point that I was attempting to make was that the
Public Health Service, traditionally, in its nearly 200 years, has
been strongest when it is attempting to do what we call risk assess-
ment. That is, we provide the best scientific information on which
judgments can be made and actions can be taken. My own personal
feeling is that the Public Health Service role is not to try to
manage risk, that is, risk management. That, in this particular
case, is something that is the responsibility of the local constituted
health and education authorities.

Mr. WEtss. And you have said that, in your response, "the Feder-
al Government should leave the job of molding the moral specific
message to the local educators, as recommended, and not try to
mold the message at the Federal level." Is that correct? Because
you were concerned that we would be creating an impossible over-
sight responsibility for the Public Health Service?

Dr. NOBLE. That's correct.
Mr. WEtss. Are you involved in any further review of Public

Health Service plans on AIDS now being conducted by the White
House, OMB, Justice Department, or elsewhere in she Govern-
ment?

Dr. NOBLE. As a part of the Office of the Assistant Secretary for
Health, yes, I would expect to continue to be involved.

6 t.7
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Mr. Wass. Now is the plan undergoing review elsewhere at this
point?

Dr. WINDOM. No, at this point, sir, it is in our Department, and
we're awaiting the Secretary's final review, and his clearance of
the document.

Mr. Wawa. We had some indication that 'ender normal processes,
yct\ 'd have to have that plan submitted to the OMB or to the Do-
mestic Policy Council, or to the Justice Departi.-kent. Is that not so?

Dr. WINDOM. They have had an opportunity fo.- input, yes. They
have looked at this latest draft.

Mr. Wises. And when did that take place?
Dr. WINDOM. That was the latter part of last week, during last

week.
Mr. WRiss. Thank you very much. Mr. Frank.
Mr. FRANS. Thank you. I should begin b' saying that in general,

I think, your Department deserves a lot of credit for doing a
number of very useful things in fighting AIDS at a time when it
hasn't always been easy. I don't think the overall Federal response
is what it ought to have been. I think your Department, I think Dr.
Bowen has done well, and I think Dr. Koop has been particularly
useful.

I'm not sure about elsewhere, I don't know if the PresidentDr.
Koop I guess called on the President to fight a war. Maybe it's one
of his covert wars, and that's why we don't quite know that
what's happening. But what has to be done still, and that's why I

;nk these hearings, for which the chairman was, as usual, very
w' 1 prepared, are very useful.

A:.d I think he has documented ....n important issue, which is that
goad instincts of the medical people in your Department are

being somewhat diverted by political and ideological objections
elsowhere, and so Ithe first question that I have to ask you is
thatis about the missing man at the table, Dr. Koop. Did anybody
tell him not to come?

Dr. WINDCM. No, he was aware of this hearing, but he said he
couldn't make it.

Mr. WEIss. He's traveling and speaking right now.
Mr. FRANX. My understanding is that he was offered a choice of

four dates, and my sense is that somebody didn't want him here.
Dr. WINDOM. Oh.
Mr. FRANK. Will we, could we get a promise that he could testify

at a hearing on this issue, because it's been hard to get him, and
Ito be honest, I mean he wanted ityou know, we ought to be
explicithe, in this, as well as in AIDS education.

He made a statement that politically angered a lot of people in
the administration. I'm struck, T just happened to be reading here,
and I get behindthe February 20th Washington Post is talking
about a conservative political conference. The Secretary of Educa-
tion, William J. Bennett, sensing the loom in the room, said he
was making headway in his effort to instill values into teaching,
but there have been pockets of resistance.

I mean, I get the sense he thinks of several of you as a pocket of
resistance for which I congratulate you, but I think that's been
part of the problem with Dr. Koop. I think Dr. Koop is getting
clipped a little bit, and my understanding is that we want him to
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testify. So you're saying there's no problem that he wantedthat
ha is free to testify on this subject any time, any place?

Dr. WINDOM. Yes, sir. He would have been '-lre today, except he
had a commitment of a speaking engagement today.

Mr. FRANK. Well, again my understanding was that he had been
asked, he had been offered other dates, and that it was Idril of
hard to find one.

Dr. WINDOM. I wasn't aware of that. He was welcome to come.
Mr. FRANK. We got the sense that as I think, people were t:ying

to get a date with Dr. Koop, he was following Dr. Bennett's advice
and just abstaining, and wasn't about to behe wasn't about to be
available.

I yield to the chairman.
Mr. WRI88. We try not to make Dr. Koop's life even more diffi-

cult than some other people in the administration have been doing,
and we did offer some alternative dates through his congressional
liaison people, or the Department's congressionul liaison people,
and they indicated that he was not available, and then we were
never able to make sufficient contact with Dr Koop to really tie
him down to any specific date. And so we deckled to go ahead, but
we welcome your assurance that in fact, you will be helpful in
making sure that he is not barred from participation.

Dr. WINDOM. Not a bit, sir.
Mr. Fitaxx. Well, I appreciate it, and I don't want to make a

bigI don't want to make trouble with anybody. No one suggested
to me that that was the case. I just came and didn't see him, and
thought that was kind of unusual, so I initiated a conversation
with members of the staff of the subcommittee chairman, and
that's where I got the information.

And late- on I think will be important to have him here, be-
cause I doan I think ti chairman, in a very, very clear wav, doc-
umented the point, which is that your willingness to go ahead with
what is medically indicated in this case as being somewhat contra-
indicatedbad word, I guesscounterindicated by the other people
in the administration, and that worries me, and I think that what
we want to do is to stress that that ought not to be that.

Let me just say in general, when you talk about the Education
Department, and I know democracy is a slow process, and all of
those things, but let's get specific. Is it the case? It seems to me the
case, but the general direction of the Department of Education, and
some others, is to say to you what you will do if you were making
medical judgments alone, based on the public health menace here,
has to be changed because of our ideological position about what is
appropriate human sexual behavior. Now is that an accura't'e char-
acterization of what you've been heat aig from people in Ea'ication
and elsewhere?

Dr. WINDOM. Mr. Frank, I think that when you see the iocu-
ment, you will agree that it is a risk assessment, scientifically Ii-
rected to people in many, many sectors of our country who will re-
spond to it, and then take that information and use it in the best
way they feel they can to communicate to the people whom they
serve. I think the input we've had from everybody who has contrib-
uted has been meanmgful and necessary for us to achieve the best
presentations.
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Mr. FRANK. Thank you, doctor. Now would you answer my ques-
tion? And that was very nice of you to say that. Would you answer
my question now?

Dr. WINDOM. That this was held back or indifferent?
Mr. FRANK. Yes. It's always nice to talk to you
Dr. WINDOM. No, I do not feel like that
Mr. FRANK. For instance, I ask you if the t" _rust of thenow for

instance, if I ask you if theabout the thrust of the advice you
were giving the Department of Education? Your response was that
everything you heard was meaningful. Well, I'm sure it was mean-
ingful. I think it's very meaningful when Dr. Koop is forced by Sec-
retary Bennett to dilute the quality of what he wants to say, as I
would interpret it.

So, I'm not asking you if it was meaningful. I'm willing to stipu-
late that it was meaningful. What I was asking is, has there been a
thrust from the Department of Education in which ideological or
political, or however one wants to categorize it, values have been
put forward?

You talk about democracy is a slow process, compromise. Have
they basically been indicating, it seems to us this way, that what
you would do on medical grounds alone, doesn't reflect the proper
set of values; that it would appear to be condoning the sexual prac-
tices that ought not to be condoned? I don't know now you condone
them by taking those facts I don't understand, butand that's the
question.

It's the nature of the input. I mean, I'm sure the document, I will
stipulate, that the document will be a risk assessment. You told me
that, and I'm sure it will be, and that education was meaningful.
Now let's get beyond that to my question. Have they been giving
you kind of ideological or value-oriented suggestion to change the
nature of what you would do medically?

Dr. WINDOM. No. I do not feel thatno. It will not change th
nature of our program.

Dr. HARMISON. Congressman, I think one of the most important
parts in addressing this disease is getting behavioral changes; med-
ical judgment is not the only avenue through which those changes
occur.

Mr. FRANK. I think soI agree with that too. But sooner or later
you come to these hearings you're going to be told things that ev-
erybody knows, and I appreciate that. It has always been true, and
surely you have to do that.

But since you volunteered, will you answer my question?
I didn't ask you to talk, but if you want to, that's perfectly OK if

you would answer my question as part of what you have to say.
Dr. HARMISON., I think the answer to the question is no. The De-

partment of Education, through Secretary Bennett, has provided
input to look at the full spectrum of issues as viewed by the De-
partment of Education. We put the same emphasis on timely re-
sponse that was in Dr. Noble's--

Mr, FRANK. I didn't ask you about time of response. It shouldn't
be that hard. I didn't ask you about time of response.

Dr. HARbusoN. We got valuable information from the Depart-
ment of Education. We did not compromise our medical judgment
in the plan.
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Mr. hum. Was the agreement between Dr. Koop and Dr. Ben-
nettit looked like some changes in what Dr. Koop had originally
said. Is that accurate, or am I misreading that?

Dr. WINDOM. Well, I talked to Dr. Koop and to Mr. Bennett. I
met with them because there was a great deal of publicity out
there that they were having a fight and disagreeing. They spoke
out aud, I think, ;lave very similar thoughts about how to approach
this subject. That's why they came forth with that statement.

Mr. FRANK. These series of events, Dr. Koop's statement, the
statement between Bennett and Koop doesn't reflect any disagree-
ment between them?

Dr. WINDOM. No, it was a combined statement.
Mr. FRANK. I understand that, Doctor. Do you believe it?
Dr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
Mr. FRANK. You may be the only person in this room who does.
Dr. WINDOM. Is that right?
Mr. FRANK. And I don't think you do, but I understand the con-

straints you're under. That's why I didn't
Dr. HAMMON. Well, there's a benefit of having first-hand knowl-

edge of those discussions. I think the discuasions were very amica-
ble, and the dimensions of what each was saying were very careful-
ly understood.

Mr. FRANK. Well, agafn, you know, people can disagree without
yelling at each other, as I hope we are manifesting today. But the
question you're telling me that there was no disagreement be-
tween Dr. Koop and Mr. Bennett? That Mr. Bennett didn't feel
that Dr. Koop, in talking about sex education at an early age, or
any of these things, was doing anything wrong, or was not properly
value, maybe?

Dr. HABMISON. Well, I think there were perceptual views of what
possibly each had said.

Mr. FRANK. Perceptual views? What's that?
Dr. HARMISON. Well, I think that there were a lot of things re-

ported about what each had said, or had not said.
Mr. FRANK. Well, you mean Koop and Bennett were reading

about each other in the paper, and incorrectly inferred that there
were disagreements when they were really in agreement all the
time?

Dr. HABMISON. All I can address is the direct discussions.
Mr. FRANK. All right, you're not under oath, Doctor. You can say

whatever you want.
Dr. HARBISON. All right, I think that the point here was demon-

strated by the chairman. I don't expect you to talk openly about
thue disagreements. I don't think we ought to pretend that they're
.. it there, and I think we have a real problem here, that we have
political and ideological agendas which are slowing things down
and, as the chairman says, when you slow things down, you are
causing deaths, not intentionally.

People are well intended, but the fact in that the later this infor-
mation comesif you believe education has any value, then in this
area you believe in saving livesthe more people who don't read it
and do something that they could have been deterred from doing,
and they die. And maybe they spread the disease to other people.
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And secondly, 1. think we are getting a dilution, and I think that is
unfortunate.

Mr. FRANK. I've been arguingI would tell you, I would like to
think that the Federal Government is capable of doing the job of
educating, butand I am not suggesting that it's the Federal role
to tell people that cert lin kinds of sexual practices are good or bad.
I'm a little surprised frankly, to have conservatives announce that
it's their jobI thought these were people who believe in a limited
role of the Federal Government. When they want to set the Feder-
al Government up as the arbiter of truly consenting private sex
fantasies among adults, I guess I don't understand limited Govern-
ment very well.

But they have the constitutional right to do anything with that
they want. But when it retards medical people giving the best
advice, and that seems to be clearly happening, then I think we
have a problem, and I think the chairman did a good job of demon-
strating that, and I think the hearing is important for this reason,
and I don't really expect you to say very much, except that we
hope that wt will be demonstrating by these hearings, that there
are people in Congress, and I think in the majority in Congress, if
you louk at the way we have voted on these things, who under-
stand that the best possible medical information is what people
ought to have and want to have, and those who think that particu-
lar individuals don't behave in the proper way are free to say so,
but they shouldn't be retarding medical information when they do
it.

Thanks. I have no further questions.
Mr. WEISS. Thank you very much, Mr. Frank.
We will move on to another area, but related.
Dr. Windom, I understand that the Government's public informa-

tion program was originally coordinated out of the Office of the As-
sistant Secretary for Health and was transferred to the CDC in At-
lanta.

When was that done and why?
Dr. WINDOM. The education plan?
Mr. Wyass. The Government's public information program was

originally coordinated out of your office.
Dr. Dowd le, Dr. Noble, do you know when that was transferred

to Atlanta, to CDC?
Dr. WINDOM. In late November last year, when I directed them

to go ahead and devel a plan. And that included the produc-
,Ion of it, implementation, and followup.

Mr. WEISS. We have memorandums indicating that that was
done sometime in 1984 or .985. Why it was moved from Washing-
ton to Atlanta?

Dr. WINDOM. If it was done in 1984, it was done, I'm sure, with
the idea in mind that CDC had within it the people who would best
be able to put the plan together and carry it out, because they deal
with disease control and prevention activities already.

Mr. WEISS. OK. In August 1985, the Director of the Department's
Office of Public Affairs, a person named Shelly Lengel, the Chief
Public Health Service Informatic Officer, expressed serious con-
cerns about the status of the Government's AIDS information ef-
forts.
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Dr. Dowd le, were you and Dr. Mays. ,.ware of her concerns or
any other problems in the program a that time? And to refresh
your recollection, let me indicate tha' -a a memorandum that she
wrote to Dr. Mason on August 26, she said:

As you know, you and I discussed, and it was my idea to move the public informa-
tion program to Atlanta. However, it has not worked well.

For instance, it took 9 months to update "Facts About AIDS." Our three video-
tapes are outdated and have been shelved, and there has been no new project under-
taken. With a subject like AIDS, I don't think you can be reactive. You mast be
aggressive in getting information to the public.

I assume that Dr. Mason got that letter. Were you aware of it, or
that memorandum?

Dr. DOWDLE. Yes.
Mr. WEISS. And what was your response to that?
Dr. DO WDLE. Well, I think we need to recognize that the first ef-

forts of the Public health Service in the information and education
area were directed toward those at increased risk, and most of that
effort was directed through the States in assisting them in develop-
ing their own information and education programs, including later
demonstration projects and innovative risk-reduction projects.

What she was referring to was the specific activities in the public
area

Mr. Wriss. Yes.
Dr. DOWDLE. CDC's activities to that point represented primarily

providing information through the Morbidity and Mortality
Weekly Report and developing guidelines. What she was talking
about was the need to get more information out into the public
area. We quite agreed with her comments.

Mr. WEISS. Well, again, this is not an outside critic. This is the
Chief Public Information Officer for the Department of Health and
Human Services.

Dr. DOWDLE. That's correct.
Mr. WRiss. Who is saying that "it was my idea to get it down to

you guys in Atlanta, because I thought that it was centralized
there, you could do a better job, and it took you nine months to
update the Facts About AIDS pamphlet." She then goes through
another series of things that you did not do or had gotten outdated.

It seems to me that that's somebody above you expressing con-
rn of implementation of programs that were already in place.

Never mind vi cher they were sufficient, but they were in the
place, and, in fact, nothing sufficient was being done to keep them
operative.

Dr. DOWDLE. Well, I think that Ms. Lengel's point was a good
one. She also did ar excellent job in developing -naterialsas well
as in collaboration with the other agenciesand getting these out
in collaboration with the Red Cross. Many that you see here, in
fact, Ms. Lenge! was instrumental in doing. Other agencies were
also assisting.

Mr. WEISS. Now that same memorandum, that August 26 memo-
randum, urged that an ad hoc advisory group on AIDS information
be created and that members all be communications specialists, not
program people.

When did tnat ad hoc group first meet?
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Dr. DOWDLE. Well, there were actually several groups. I don't re-
member the exact time.

Mr. WEISS. We have a date indicating that it was November 19,
1985. Do ;rou have any reason to disagree with that?

Dr. alVirD LE. No, that's correct.
Mf. Vinss. OK.
Dr. Downu. That's right.
Mr. Wits. Who particip ted in that ad hoc group?
Dr. DOWDLL There were a number of outside organizations. I

was not present, but largely these were people who were experts in
public information types of activities.

Mr. WEISS. Right. According to the November 4th minutes of
1985, the ad hoc group was comprised of four advertising agencies,
the Red Cross, the American Public Health Association, the AMA,
gay rights organizations, and others.

The ad hoc group was presented with a new AIDS information
plan at its November 1985 meeting. As you'd indicated, that plan
had gone back to November, F.nd in addition made some specific
recommendations for immediate action.

Do you know what those specific recommendations were?
Dr. DOWDLE. Those recommendations again related to the need

for public information, and if I recall them correctly, they were for
specific activities. I don't remember the exact details.

Mr. Wnss. One of the recommendations was for the creation of a
coordinating council.

Do you know if that coordinating council wa-. ever created, and if
so, is that Coordinating Council for AIDS Information the same as
what you now call he National Clearinghouse?

Dr. DOWDLE. No, sir, that's not the same.
Mr. Wnss. Tell us when the Coordinating Council was created.
Dr. DOWDLE. Well, the coordinating Council was to be an out-

growth of that ad hoc group that got together. There were several
meetings of that group which expanded to an even larger meeting
in the srring of 1986 at NIH. That meeting consisted of representa-
tives of a still larger number of groups that were working on AIDS
information and education programs.

Mr. WEISEL Is it still in existence?
Dr. DOWDLE. No, sir.
Mr. V.-EISS. When was it disbanded?
Dr. DOWDLE. It was not actually a formal group. It was never a

formal group.
Mr. Wass. Has the Natior ' Clearinghouse on AIDS Information

been Put into operation?
Dr. DOWDLE. The National Clearinghouse on AIDS is now in the

form of a request for a contract. It's u review at the present
time and should bethe clearinghouse shoule be in force sometime
this fall.

May I point out, though, that clearing..ouse activities are taking
place right now. In fact, the hotline does also provide information
on a when-requested basis.

Mr. WEISS. Right. The request for proposals was issued when?
March 4, I understand; is that correct?

Dr. DOWDLE. I'm sorry, sir?

7 °
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Mr. WEISS. The request for proposals for the National CleE....ing-
house on AIDS Information was issued on March 4.

Dr. DOWDLE. Well, it hasn't been actually issued yet. It's in
review right now.

Mr. Wsiss. It's in review?
Dr. DOWDLE. Yes, sir.
Mr. WEISS. I understand, according to the contract proposal, that

it will not start operating until 6 months after the currently pro-
posed contract date, which. is June 30; is that correct?

Dr. DOWDLE. That's correct. We still hope we cad hold to that
date, right.

Mr. WEiss. That means, then, that the earliest operation date is
December 30 1987, if all goes well; isn't that correct?

Dr. DOWDLE. That's correct.
Mr. WEISS. That's an awfully long gap, don't ycu think?
Dr. DOWDLE. But I would like to point out that clearinghouse op-

erations are in place by a number of different organizations, as
well as States. In fact, CDC supports clearinghouse operations
within States.

Mr. WEISS. I know. But you were calling for a national clearing-
house; isn't that correct?

Dr. DOWDLE. That's correct.
Mr. WEISS. Right.
Dr. Dow. E. That's correct.
Mr. WEISS. You still think that it's important to have the nation-

al clearinghouse?
Dr. DOWDLE. Oh, absolutely.
Mr. WEISS. Is the delay due, at least in part, to the fact that the

OMB initially rejected the proposal for the AIDS Clearinghouse?
Dr, DOWDLE. Well, not this part' _Liar clearinghouse that we're

discussing here; no, sir.,
Mr. WEISS. We have a memorandum indicating that, in fact, you

won an appeal from the OMB when they had rejected the clearing-
house request.

Dr. DOWDLE. 3h, is that the 1988 budget request you're referring
to?

Mr. WEISS. Yes.
Dr. DOWDLE. Well, that's not the present one and, in fact, that

has not affected the present one at all. That referred 4.0 1987
money.

Mr. WEISS. Also that OMB approved Abe 1987 clearinghouse?
Dr. DOWDLE. Yes.
Mr. WEISS. But they rejected car tinuation of it for the fiscal 1988

budget; is that correct?
Dr. DOWDLE. Yes. Dr. Windom, would you want to say some-

thing?
Dr. WINDOM. I asked Mr. Hare 11 Little, our budget analyst, to

comment.
Mr. Wriss. What is your name again, sir.
Mr. LITTLE. Little, L-i-t-t-l-e.
Mr. WEISS. Right, Mr. Little.
Mr. Lrrrl.E. The situation with our requests, 1987 and 1988, to

OMB, is this. Whey did not include funds for a clearinghouse, based
on our recommendations that came out of Coolfont.

roj
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Subsequently, the Congress passed an appropriation in 1987 for a
clearinghouse activity at CDC. The OMB passback, of course, did
not include funds for the clearinghouse, although funds were in-
cluded in 1987. It did not include funds in the 1988 budget, because
we hadn't asked for therm

We then went back and appealed to the OMB for the continu-
ation cost of that clearinghouse. Therefore, it is included in both
the 1987 and the 1988 budget.

Mr. WEISS. Right. But it is true, is it not, Dr. Dcwdle, that the
clearinghouse conceptwhile it may not have been formally re-
quested by the agency because of internal discussions in the vari-
ous levels of the Governmentoriginally emanated from within
the Public Health Service; isn't that correct?

Dr. DOWDLE. Yes, sir.
Mr. WEISS. And when the administration rejection came through,

Congress, based on this knoNledge of what had been requested in-
ternally, decided to give you the money; is that correct?

[Pause.]
Mr. Wxiss. Yes, that is correct.
Now the 1985 plan called for formation of an ad hoc communica-

tions group to advise the Public Health Service on need and meth-
ods fc .. reaching various segments of the public.

Has that been done? Have you created an ad hoc communica-
tions group?

Dr. DOWDLE. That was the group that Ms. Lengel was referring
to, the ad hoc group, which did meet on several occasions.

Mr. WEISS. Is there an ongoing group in existence currently?
Dr. DOWDLE. Actually, the present plan involves looking at this

in a different way. It's become a much larger type of operation, and
particularly now with CDC having responsibility for being the lead
agency.

Mr. %%sq. The 1985 plan also called for the creation and imple-
mentation of a "Master Distribution Plan" for all AIDS materials
in fiscal year 1986. Has this been done?

DOWDLE. The effort° on the distribution of the materials that
you see here were actually carried out in collaboration with the
Red Cross and with the States, as well as with other community
service providers.

Mr. WEISS. What does that mean?
Dr. DOWDLE. All these information/education materials were pro-

vided to the States. They were provided to anyone who had an
AIDS information/education progr n, and also were made avail-
able through the hotline to anyone who wanted them.

Mr. WEISS. Is it your answer that the "Master Distribution
Plan," which was called for in the 1985 plaid, was achieved?

Dr. DOWDLE. I think what was achieved was through utilization
of as many channels as possible. We did that, short of the clearing-
house we're talking about now.

Mr. Weiss. The 1985 plan reflects that the Public Health Service
had undertaken a small media campaign with the American Red
Cross.

How much Federal support was involved for that grant; do you
know?
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Dr. DOWDLE. We can get the sums fe- you, sir. I don't have the
exact figures.

Mr. WEISS. Our information is $100,000. Do you ha" my reason
to disagree with that?

Cr. DOWDIA. That's probably about right.
Mr. WEISS. The November 1985 plan also included L half million

doi!ars to produce and distribute videotapes through the National
Institutes of Health outreach programs.

Was that done at any time in 1986, Dr. Hill?
Dr. Hu.L. We have not done that yet, sir, but we are planning a

larger program to di. ;ribute tapes of this type, perhaps through
medical schools and universities.

Mr. WEiss. You are planning to do that?
Dr. Thu.. Yes. We have not done that.
Mr. Weiss. You have not done that, althoug}, that was a 1985

proposal.
CDC had its own title, "Separate Plan for Community Level

Health Education," at that point.
Dr. Dowd le, do you have a copy of that plan with you, the "Sepa-

rate Plan for Community Level Health Education"?
Dr. DOWDLE. No, sir, I don't. But what that consisted of was the

information/education grants which were provided to the States.
Mr. WEISS. In January 1986, a revised "Facts on AIDS" was ap-

parently available for distribution.
How was that distribution accomplished?
Dr. DOWDLE. Well, there is an organization which distributes

these facts under contract with the Public Health Service, and I
have the address of the organization here. It's Inter America Re-
search. The address goes out in the Surgeon General's report and
in other information provided by the Public Health Service. An in-
dividual may write to this organization and get copies of AIDS ma-
terials. We've also sent these materials to all the AIDS organiza-
tions and all individuals with information/education activities.

Mr. WEISS. When was that contract entered into?
Dr. DOWDLE. Perhaps a year and a half to 2 years ago.
Mr. WELSS. And how much is that contract for, do you know?
Dr. DOWDLE. I really don't know. It's a contract to distribute to

the public publications provided by the Public Health Service.
Mr. WEISS. Can you tell us how many copies of the publications

were distributed by them?
Dr. DOWDLE. We can tell you what items are being distributed;

yes, sir. I can't tell you the exact number of how many have been
distributed right now, but we can provide that to you.

Mr. WEISS. So you don't know whether a million copies or 15
copies were distributed?

Dr. DOWDLE. Over time hundreds of thousands of copies have
been distributed.

Mr. WEISS. Over the years. Over how many yeas?
Dr. DOWDLE. Over a year to a year and a half.
Mr. %las. We have an indication with regard to the "Facts on

AIDS" pamphlet, that photostats were given to each Public Health
Service agency and the 10 regional offices, so that they could print
copies for distribution. This comes from the min ates of January 13,
1986.

. ,.
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Was that a method of distribution for the "Facts on AIDS" pam-
phlet?

Dr. DOWDLE. Yes.
Mr. Wziss. how nany copies of the brochure were sent out in

this manner by the regional offices and the Public Health Service
agencies?

Dr. DOWDLE. Well, I think it's very difficult to get an aotual
number of these, because we often provide camera-ready copy to
other organizations and ask them to reprint them themselves. So tc
get a precise number on how many have '.. en distributed would be
virtually ii tiossible.

Mr. Wzis._ You'd ki icv how many copies your 10 regional offices
distributed, would you hot?

Dr. DOWDLE. They would, yes, but *'le States do their own re-
printing and distribution, so we woulc: ...Lot know the exact number
unless we asked each individual State for this information.

Mr. WEISS. Is there an ongoing mechanism by which the regional
offices report in regarding the distribution of materials during any
particular timeframe?

Dr. DOWDLE. We have not put such a reporting mechanism in
place. I'm sure we could go back and try to get some estimate of
how many have been distributed.

Mr. WEISS. In January 1986, HHS Secretary Dr. Bowen indicated
that he wanted to personally initiate a weekly radio show on AIDS
information.

Was that done?
Dr. DOWDLE. I'm sorry, sir. I missed that point.
Mr. WEISS. In January 1986, Dr. Bowen indicated that he wanted

to personally initiate a weekly radio show on AIDS information.
When was that done, if it was done?
Dr. DOWDLE. We were involved in developing the script for that

show, but I think it's actually planned later on this spring or
summer. I'm not certain of the time.

Mr. WEISS. Dr. Windom.
Dr. WINDOM. There were a number of those programs in early

1986 and throughout the year. But I'm not certain of the regularity
of them, sir, and exactly how many dealt with AIDS. He covers
many different health issues.

Mr. WEISS. No. The January 13, 1986, minutes indicate that "Sec-
retary Bowen has indicated his interest in weekly radio news mes-
sages wherein reporters could p' one him and obtain information
on AIDS."

Could you, for the record, submit to us what was done to imple-
ment that interest on the part of the Secretary?

Dr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
[The information follows:]

7 r)I
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH aiHUMANSERVICES 0160e af Ito Sectary

Wiahnion D C 20201

MEMORANDUM

TO: Bob Irwin
Public Health Service

FROM: James A. Miller
Office of Publ c Affairs

SUBJECT: "Housecalls" series

Dr. Bowen has been doing a weekly radio series of messages
"Housecalls" or 15 months. The very first "Housecalls"
program aired, in February 1986, talked about the nationwide
shortage of blood camel by tha fear of AIDS. Subsequentlythe Surgeon General began development of his report on AIDS
which was issued last October. It is felt that it would be
premature for the Secretary to make pronouncements on
thisimportant subject while that report was still inpreparation. In the months immed'ately following the
issuance of the Surgeon General's report Dr. 'Coop was the
point person for the Department on this subject. In Januaryof this year, Dr. Bowen spoke about AIDS at the National
Press Club, a speech carr.ed on national public radio to
hundreds of stations and Ale which received wide publicnotice.

As we discussed, Secre-4.: Bowen plans to record a special
"Housecalls" series on My 26, 1987. At the same time, we
will videotape two television spots and record two or more
radio spots for the National Association of Broadcasters.
NAB will satellite feed them to ROO TV stations and 4,700
radio stations early in June.

I hope this helps you. If there is any more information youneed please let me know.

Pl -)
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Mr. WEISS. In February 1986, another AIDS public information
program was prepared. Among its many recommendations were
the following: "at this point, a primary need for fiscal year 1927 is
sophisticated market research."

Dr. Windom, in the course of your prepared testimony you talked
about market, research. Specifically, what market research was un-
dertaken at that time and what were the results?

Dr. WINDOM. I'm not aware of early 1986 research efforts.
Mr. WEISS. You said for fiscal year 1987. We are now halfway

through fiscal year 1987.
Dr. WINDOM. Well, in the program that is being planned, further

media involvement in disseminating our information is underway.
Dr. Dowd le may comment on that.

Mr. Weols. Dr. Dowd le.
Dr. DOWDLE. Well, that is of course part of the ad agency cud--

tract. There would be an evaluation before any campaign would be
conducted and after the campaign.

Mr., WEiss. But so far, nothing; right?
Dr. DOWDLE. I might also point out that with the information-

education grants that have been given to the States, most States
have been requested and have compliea with evaluation before and
after their programs. We have information coming in now from the
various States which is quite helpful in determining what the level
of knowledge is within those particular areas.

Mr. WEISS. I'm not a market research expert and I suspect you
may not be either, but I think both of us know that evaluation of
programs after presentation is not the same as market research.

Dr. DOWDLE. I agree, sir.
Dr. HARMISON. Mr. Chairman, I might point out that the Ica-ition-

al Institute on Drug Abuse let a contract in 1986 to look at how v'
get the message out on IV drug abuse and things of that nature,
which is a part of this overall effort. We can supply for the record
the contract and its objective and what it has accomplished.

Mr. WEISS. Say that again. You had - contract?
Dr. HARMISON. A contract explorinb how to move the message

out on IV drug ab.ise was let by one of the institutes within
ADAMHA for exploring that question. The contract was let in
early 1986. I don't have the details at my fingertips, but we would
be pleased to provide that for the record.

Mr. WEISS. It would be worthwhile and helpful to have it.
[The information furnished is in the appendix, see p. 193.]
Mr. ur.m7.ss. The February 1986 plan also called for "a mass media

campaign with particular emphasis cn young people who have not
been specifically addressed by our previous efforts."

I'm sure there were earlier calls for mass media campaigns. Why
wf. , it that only 2 weeks ago, at least a year after the recognition
of the need, that a proposal to do a mass media campaign was fi-
nally issued?

Dr. WINDOM. Well, this is part of our continuing development of
that program. Of course, many in the school systems have been in-
formed and we have responded to their requests. It is part of the
implementation of our plan tx. do it in a more organized way..

Mr., WEISS. No, we are talking about the mass media campaign.
Again, my understanding is that part of itthe request for propos-
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als for a mass media campaignwas prepared at lea: as late as
January 12 of this year.

Dr. DownLE. That's why we are hiring the ad agency. That's part
of the total package.

Mr. WEISS. We have not been able to find a dollar amount in
that contract proposal. When our staff inquired about it, we were
told that the contract for mass media campaign was planned to be
$1 million this year; is that correct?

Dr. DOWDLE. That's for the ad agency, sir. That wouldn't be the
entire cost of the campaign.

Mr. WEISS. What do you have in mind for the cost of the cam-
paign itself?

Dr. DOWDLE. Well, in the area of public information, we have set
aside something like $6 million now to cover all of that.

Mr. WEISS. That would be for what year?
Dr. DOWDLE. For 1987.
Mr. WEISS. For fiscal 1987.
Dr. DOWDLE. Yes. But I should point out though, as Dr. Windom

said earlier, that our efforts will be multiplied manyfold by other
organizations, both private and public, and the media in getting
out these public messages. We would anticipate that we would be
working with others in getting these messages out.

Mr. Wriss. I know, but in this hearing and our series of hearings
we are discussing as to the Federal response. I know thank good-
ness, that there are other people out there doing things. Our con-
ce: n is what and through what agency the Federal Government is
c:xng things.

Under that new contract proposal, how long will it be until ads
actually appear in newspapers or on TV?

Dr. DOWDLE. We should let the contract sometime in June. We
are hoping to get the program moving sometime this fall.

Mr. WEISS. Again, the question is when will the ads actually
appear? According to the provisionc within the proposed RFP, it
will be 40 weeks after the contract date of June 21, 1986. Forty
weeks is next March or April. At the earliest, it seems to me,
under a best case scenario, those ads will not actually appear until
around March or April 1988; isn't that correct?

Dr. DOWDLE. No, sir. We expect to have something before then.
Even in the process of replying to the RFC, the companies that will
be responding will have given considerable thought to the final
product. We feel that we certainly should be able to get somethin
from that contract by the fall.

Mr. WEISS. Again, I have before me in the request for proposal,
the plans for TV and radio productions, and pretesting and cam-
paign planning workshops. These date range from 26 to 30 weeks
after contract award. One is for 26 to 30 weeks after contract
award. The last is for 40 weeks after contract award.

I don't know on what basis you are projecting early fall or any
time in the fall. According to those contract provisions, it seems to
me you are talking about 1988.

There was also rwognition, at about the same time in February
1986, of the need to bring in groups such as the National Education
Association, the American Federation of Teachers, the National
PTA in the AIDS information activity. Has that been done?
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Dr. DOWDLE. We hc.ve brought in a number of organizations. I
can't tell you the F _fie names of those organizations, but they
are in the education field. They have met with CDC and have
worked with CDC in developing draft guidelines and broad outlines
of what an education program ought to consist of. That has been
done; yes, sir.

Mr. WEISS. The February 1986 plan suggested the need for infor-
mation specifically geared toward students on college campuses to
be done in conjunction with the American College Health Associa-
tion. What is tne status of that program?

Dr. DOINDLE. That has not been don yet.
Mr. WEIS3. On March 26, 1986, you conducted a Public Health

Service conference on AIDS information and education activities.
Who was invited to that conference and what were its recommen-
dations?

We have the recommendations. I don't have a list of who attend-
ed it.

Dr. DOINDLE. I'm sorry. I'm not aware of what you are referring
to.

Mr. WEISS. I'm going to ask you to look at a copy of it, and to
respond for the record after looking at it. I'm going to ask you
some specific questions about it.

One important recommendation at that meeting was that the
Public Health Service should develop a national strategy for edu-
cating health care providers. What has been done in that area, and
specifically, what did the conference attendees think was needed at
that point?

Dr. DOWDLE. For health care providers?
Mr. WEISS. Yes.
Mr. Him. I don't recognize this, Mr. Chairman, but the National

Institute of Allergy and infectious Diseases as a part of this out-
reach effort did convene a consultant group at about that time. We
asked for advice on our outreach efforts, which have been a series
of conferences in the past for health care providers. We have asked
for their advice on how we should target our populations and our
conferences for the next year to include nurses and social workers.
I'm not sure whether this is it.

If I could just back up on the previous questioi, that I didn't
answer as far as the videotape, our plan at that time had been to
videotape our large conferences for health care provieers, and we
did in fact videotape them. They turned out to be abo'it 8 hours of
fairly boring didactic-type presentations, and they weren't felt suit-
able for distribution. We have not backed up and made plans for
more appinpriate tapes.

Mr. WEISS. The memorandt.'n that I asked you to '.00k at, Dr.
Dowdle, is from Shelly Lengel, Direelr of the Of5ce A' Public Af-
fairs. It is to attendees of the Public Health Service conference on
AIDS information and education activities, on March 26, 1986. It
says:

Thanks to all of you who took time from your busy schedules to meet with us on
this important subject of AIDS information and education efforts. The Public
Health Service c -..tendees I have spoken with who attended the meeting thought it
was worthwhile . . . et cetera.

Do any of you have any recollection as to what--

81
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Dr. DOWDLE. Yes, I'm sorry. I misunderstood the date you werereferring to.
Mr. WEISS. March 26, 1986.
Dr. DOWDLE. Yes, that's one of the groups that I had referred to

earlier that had been convened by Ms. Lengel. What you have
there are the recommendations from that group. These were indi-
viduals who were invo! red in information/education programs.

Mr. WEISS. One suggestion of that March conference was that a
followup assessment take place at a similar meeting in the fall of
1986. Do you know if that second conference was ever held?

Dr. Downi.E. No, sir I don't think it was.
Mr. WEISS. Dr. Dowdk, i sin now turning to CDC's School Health

Education Initiative. Give vs some idea of how that prrticzt get
started and when you and Dr. Mason first reviewed any plans forit.

Dr. DOWDLE. Recalling anything in AIDS is a major problem. Ev-
erything runs together as far as time.

Mr. WEISS. We have a May 15, 1986, memorandum which indi-
cates that by at least that date, Dr. Mason had made specific
changes in a draft initiative. You may be able to give us an earlier
time.

[The memorandum follows:]

L2
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Note to: John Sennett, CID
Don &wrath, OPA
James Curren, CID

Donald Nopkino OD

Martha Katt, OPTI
Steve Margolis, CPS
Cane Matthews, 0CC
1111 Muldoon, OPS
Claude Pichelsime-. 'M0
Kathy Rao, OD
Sue Teal, CPS

MIERRE1111011amr

Attached is our gatentdraftofanirolllealo
Prevent AIDS. iie..-11111.11100111....'.-in
the Monday, May 12, AIDS budget meeting.

It is con:rube:hive la that it

covers the risks of sexual behavior as
well as IV drug use and it builds on

CDC's existing capability in the field of school health as well as well

recognised national professional networks and cuttleula.

We would appreciate your comments directly to
Lloyd Kolbe, ext. 3923, either

in writing (margin notes or othervis or by phone by poop rqday, May 16th,

if possible. If :major rethinking of the proposal is not required, we would

then incorporate a ssssss ry changes and be ready to finalise the initiative

early next week.

If there are others vho should see this
draft, please ist as know.

'Dunk you,

Ginny Sales

CEDE
Ext. 2836

v--44"r
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SCHOOL HEALTH EDUCATION TO PREVENT AIDS (FY 87)

Every school day, sore than 47 million students attend 90,000 elementary and
secondary schools in 15,500 school districts across the Nation.. A large
proportion of these students will be at increased risk for contrasting and
spreading HTLVIII/LAV, the virus that causes AIDS. Most males and females
will experience intercourse before they graduate from high school, and most
will engage in sequential monogamy or nonmonogamous relationships for several
years before marrying. Several studies suggest that a sizable proportion of
young people will experiment in at least one homosexual activity before
coaching adulthood. Many students will discover their bisexual or homosexual
orientation. Many G,her students will experiment with intravenous drugs
during late adolescence and early adulthood. By reaching 90-931 of our young
people, the Natisn's schools could provide an appropriate and efficient
vehicle to educate a critical segment of the public about AIDS, and about
means to reduce spread of the virus that causes ir. Indeed, several studies
indicate that people have changed or are willing to change their behavior in
response to fear of acquiring or transmitting STDs in general (1-3), and AIDS
in particular (4).

Administrators in each of our nearl 16,000 school districts largely are left
publi: health leadership and resources, and must rely on sketchy

information about AIDS provided by the media, as they each autonomously
struggle to develop school policies and educational programs about AIDS for
their respective faculty 'tudents, and partnts. These school officials are
far less effective, and become confused and discouraged, when they are
required to seek and integrate information about Intravenous drug use and A.DS
from one Federal agency, information about means to reduce sexual trans,ission
of HTLVIII/LAV from a second Federal agency, and assistance in formulating
policies about students or faculty who may be infected from a third. They
become further discouraged when they must seek and coordinate opinions and

assistance from State and local health depar'. .ts as well as from State and
local education departmeuts; and when they are required to seek and integrate
opinions and resources of relevant professional and voluntary health and
education organizations in the private sector.

The Office of School Health Programs (OSHP) in the Division of Health
Education (DUE), Canter for Health Promotion and Education (WE), at the
Centers for Disease Control (CDC) proposes to enable the Nation't schools to
substantially contribute to the primary prevention of AIDS by educating a
critical segment of he public about AIDS, and about specific means to reduce
its spread. The OSHP will utilize the school health networks, relationships,
and experience it has established in nationally developing and disseminating
its elementary and secondary school health education curricula, and other
school health curricula and interventioas, during tf past 10 years. More
specifically, the OSHP proposes to simultaneously conduct the six
complementary activities outlined below.
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1. Dev n and National Leadership for School Health Education

A national coalition of relevant agencies and leaders periodically will be

4°
convened: to provide general direction and technical assistance for the

initiative; to coordinate and integrate relevant places, activities, and

AISP1

resources of isportant public and private sector agencies; and, to ensure

that the initiative is acceptable to various constituencies. Illustrative

of Federl agencies that could contribute to such a coalition are the U.S.

Department of Education, the' Center for revention Services and Center for

Infectious Di , CDC, MANNA the National Institute on Drug Abuse, and

the Division ,f Maternal and Child Health (URSA),

Professional and voluntary organizations that have expressed inter.est in

providing school education about AIDS include the American School health

Association, the American Association of School Adtinistrators, the

American Red Cross, the National Center for Health C.cation, the Ne 'onal

Association of Set of Hoards, the Association of State and Territorial

Health Officers, the National longress of Parent and Teacher Associations,

the American Academy of Pediatrics, and the National School Health

El'ucation Coalition. Most of these national private sector education and

health organizations have State and local affiliates that consequently can

P21p school, in communities throughout the U.S. to provide effective

education about HTLVIII /LAV infection 'nd AIDS. The OSHP has

wellestablished working relationships with each of the public and private

sector organizations listed above.

7 principal associations E $50,000 each, plus 10 secondary associations

$25,000 each $600,000 + 202 indirect $720,000

2. Develop and Dis%eninate Educational Materials
and Curricula to Prevent AIDS

There is an ur,ont need (1) to develop and rapidly disseminate relatively

brief and high focused information about AIDS to schools that want to
provide such information quickly; and, (2) to develop more curricula for

schools that vent to assure that their students are more thoroughly

informed about AIDS and means to reduce the spread of these virus that

causes it.

Within the first year of the proposed initiative, relatively brief and

highly focused educational :materials about AIDS will be prepared or adapted

and disseminated to: (a) elementary, secondary, and co' ege students, (b)
teachers, (c) school administrators and boards, (d) parents and other

concerned community members and (e) young people who any not be attending

schools or colleges.

Within the second year, sore sophisticated and extensive curricula about

AIDS will developed: by revising the OSHP's elementary nchool Crowing
Health curriculum to address AIDS; by adding a now module about AIDS to

the OSEP's secondary school Teenage Health Teaching Modules; and, by

expanding the Center for Prevention Services' curriculum on STD: A Guide
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Page 3 - AIDS Education

for Todays's 'lows Adults. These materials and curricula will be designed:
(a ) to focus on those specific populations and behaviors that most
influence the transmission of AIDS (as suggested by the first paragraph of
this proposal); (b) to incorporate our understandings about educlia
techniques that have proven mosi successful in modifying such beh./iors
(e.g., increasing decision- making sktlls and resistance to persuasion);
and, (c) to ensure that the materials and curricula are acceptable and
feasible for schools to adopt and maintain. Equally if not sore important,
model testier training procedures that school districts can use to help
school :a: -lty understand and teach about AIDS will be developed
(incorporating the brief educational materials as well as the more
extensive curricula described above). Furtb--, means to disseminate the
teacher training procedures and education.. Aerials will be
systowically developed. In addition, techniques will be developed to
enable school faculty and other youth workers (e.g., Job Corps and
recreation staff) to tar7et and provide edocation about AIDS to school -age
youth who are not attending school. Ro ted v, the woo wit"

Av ious ational levision rail ro

a message that mil coura people. ';:-. seek comp with
' r ociatio

inf rec edations o avoid /LAV infection.

finally, instruments that already are being used to provide data about
important student health knowledge, attitudes, and risks will be expanded
to address AIDS. New instruments also will be devised to enable schools
and colleges to specifically assess the AIDS knowledge and risks of their
respective student populations. These instruments can be used b/ schools
to focus the.: educational programs on priority AIDS knowledge and risks;
they can be used to evaluate the outcomes of such programs; and they can be
used to assess State and nat'onal improvements in student AIDS knowledge
and risks over time.

To rapidly develop and disseminate brief education materials, to revise
Growing Healthy, to develop a now Teenage Health Teaching Module on AIDS,
to expand STD: A Cade for Today's Young Adults, and to revise and develop
instruments to measure student knowledge and risks related to AIDS
million + 2 'JZ indirect 51.74 million.

3. Increase the Capacity of States to Provide Education About AIDS

A cooperative agreement will be awarded to each State department of
education to work with is respective State department of healtl to
increase their collaborative capacity to encourage and enable all schools
in the State to provide effective education about AIDS. Thu OSHP will use
its close working relationships with (1) the Society of State Directors of
Health, Physical Education, and Recreation (in State departments of
education), and (2) the Association of State and Territorial Directors of
Health Promotion (in State departments of health) to plan, coordinate, and
implement these activities. As part of its cooperative agreement, ea,n
State will be asked to systematically delineate the extent to which
students in that State were provided education about AIM from year to year.

54 States and tercit,,ries @ 560,000 each $3.24 million + 201 indirect
53.888 million
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4. Increase the Capacity of Colleges and Trade Schools to Provide Education

about AIDS for School Teachers, School Administrators,
Comaunity Youth

Personnel, and College and Trade School Students

A cooperative agreement will be awarded to organizations that represent end

influence colleges and trade schools (e.g., American Association of

Colleges for Teacher Education, American College Health Association,

Association for Supervision and Curriculum
Development, Phi Delta Kappa) to

help colleges and trade school:, immediately provide inservice (i.e.,

continuing education) training ..boat AIDS for current school faculty and

community youth workers; and to provide preservice training about A..S for

future school faculty and corsenity youth workers. These organizations

also collaboratively will design and encourage colleges and trade schools

to provide education about AIDS for their students.

S organizations 8 $100,000 each $500,000 4 20% indirect $600,000

5. Accelerated Response for the Primary Prevention of AIDS in Ten High Risk

Cities

Incorporating each of the four activities outlined above, immediate and

intensive programs 'o prevent the spread of HTIVIII/L0 among school-age

and college-age populations will be planned and Implemented In each of ten

high risk cities (as determined by the size of the infected reservoir, the

size of the school-age population, the pavalence of Intravenous drug use,

etc.). OSHP staff will work with relevant public and private health and

education agencies in each of thesn cities to plan and implement these

intensive primary prevention programs.
Th.se programs will enable the

educational institutions in high risk cities to collaboratively focus on

those who are not identified as stropoSlarei and will complement the

intensive community-based prevention programs currently being planned and

ivlemented by CDC.

10 cities 8 $400,000 - 4 million + 20% indirect $4.8 million 6`i"

6. Core Support to Implement and Manage the Projects Listed Above

A small number of core staff v.11 be required to implement and manage the

five component orograms listed above. Staff will be required who are

trained and experienced: in designing and isplementi, broad-scale school

and community health education programs; la developing and evaluating

school and community programs to influence
health behaviors of children and

achlescents; in disseminating and managing health education interventions

.n State and local health and education agencies; to Although scientific

and technical assistance aoout AIDS will be sought from CDC staff (rather

than being duplicated at CHM, employment of core staff with the skins

suggested above will be critical to enable CDC to help coord4nate this

Initiative among participating national public and private sector agencies;

87
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to direct extramural development end dissemination of educational materials
and curricula; to provide assistance and stewardship for developing
Interventions in the fifty States and in the ten high risk cities; and to
monitor and ensure the quality and effectiveness of all activities
associated with this initiative.

10 FTE @ $75,000 each $750,000 v. 201 indirect $900,000

Summary of Resources Required

I. Develop a %,tional Coalition and Leadership $ 720,000
2. Develop al Disseminate Educational Materials $ 1,740,000
3. Increase th4 Capacity of the States to Provide $ 3,888,000

Education
4. Increase the Capacity of Colleges and Universities $ 600,000

to Train Teachers

5. Accelerated Response in Ten High Risk Cities $ 4,800,000
6. Core Support for tile Initiative $ 900.000

Total $12,648,000
(including 10 FTE's)



CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL
School Health Education to prevent AIDS

ProJMa

(dollars in thousands

1986 1987 1987

Planned Pl.nned Amendmt

1988

Request

1. Develop a National Coalition and

Leadership
a. 7 principal association coopers-

tive aggreements

b. 10 secondary association coopers-
tive aggreement

- 420

- 300

420

300

2. Develop and Disseminate Educational

Materials

a. rapidly develop and disseminate

brief educational mater.als

b. revise Crowing Healthy to address

960

120

960

120

AIDS

c. develop a new Itlyage Health
30t

120

300

120on AIDS

d. expand STD: A Guide for Today's
Young Adults to address AIDS

240 240
e. develop instruments to measure

student AIDS knowledge and risks

3. Increase the Capacities of States to
3888 2588

Provide Education
- 54 States and territories

4. Increase the Capacity
of Colleges and Trade

600 600

Schools to Train Teachers

- 5 cooperative aggreements

5. Accelerated Response in
4800 4800

Ten High Risk Cities
- provide technical assistance to

high risks cities

6. Core Support to Implement and Manage

the initiative

1050 1050

Total
12798 12798
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CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL
School Health Education Zo Prevent AIDS

1986 1987

212itEL Planned Planned
1988

Amendmt

720

:740

1989
Request

1, Develop a National Coalition b Leadership

2. Develop 4 Disseminate 14 ,rional
Materials

720

1740

3. Increase the Capacity of Colleges
and Universities to Train teachers

3888 3888

4. Increase the Capacity of the States
to Provide Education

600 600

5. Accelerated Response in Ten High 4800 4800
Risks Cities

6. Core Support fDr the Initiative 1050 1050

Total 12798 12798

0
V kJ.
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Dr. Down's. It was in tl at year; that's correct. I'm
not certain of the exact date 41:en essentially all the dis-
cussions took place.

Mr. WEiss. When MIS that School Health Education Initiative fi-
nally issued and how much has been spent on it to date?

Dr. Dowm.E. About $11 million has been set aside for the school
initiative in fiscal year .987. All of that, in one way or another is
now planned. RFC's have been written and are in clearance.

Mr. WEISS. So far, none of that has been speat?
Dr. Dc TIME. The intent is to have all of that oui, by this fiscal

year.
Mr. WEIN. That again takes us from May 1986.
The figure we have 's $13 million. As you say, that ,..as tut been

spent yet.
The May 1986 draft of the School Health Education Initiative in-

cluded the following quotation.
There's an urgent need to (1) develop and rapidly disseminate relatively br;oi and

high focused information about AIDS to schools that want to providesuch 'nforma-
tion quickly, and (2) to develop curricula for schools that want to assure that their
students are more thoroughly informed about AIDS and means to reduce the spread
of the virus that causes it.

Here we have what is perceived by the Government to be an
urgent nee, ,, almost a year ago, and the Federal Government has
been unable to get the initiative started.

Do you find that acceptable?
Dr. DOWD1E. Well, I think we have to recoL size that -:oups have

been called together to begin discussions as to what constituted a
program I mentioned that earlier. Also we have to consider that
funds were appropriated in November 1986 and we are now talking
about getting the contracts on. in the next month or so. That's not
as 1 ong as it mk-ght appear.

Mr. WEISS. The sense that I get is that we are almost at the
stage, in regard to information/education, that we were in 1983, in
regard to research, even though information/education had been
pressed ;ust as urgently since 1983. It really is troublesome, be-
cause all of you at the CDC and the Public Health Service have
had a recomition of the urgency of the problem, the critical nature
of the problem and the need to move forward. Yet there seems to
be no driving mechanism to put any of these programs for broad
educational outreach and appeal into effect.

My question is, who should be provicIng that drive? Is there any-
body in the Federal Government who is providing that drive?

I assume you all may be frustrated. I'm frustrated More signifi-
cant than that, we have people who are already infected with the
disease. We have people who could be prevented from being infect-
ed. We are now talking about hundreds of thousands of cases
coming at us. Perhaps almost 2 million people already infected and
carrying the virus.

I don t see the organizational effort and the drive within your
agencies to intervene, to do anything. It's all plans and it is all sug-
gestions and the plan is followed upon by a plan and nothing ever
seems to really happen. Other people are doing some things, yes,
indeed, they are. Thank goodness they ire.

What do you say (Lbout that?

91
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Dr. Downie. Mr. Chairman, I'm very pleased that you raisedthat point.
Mr. WEE3S. Dr. Windom, would you like to respond, sir?
Dr. WINDOM. Thank you Mr. Chairman. I do think much has

been going on. You say it is not evident, but when it comes to the
reality of the situation, for mmths and even the last 2 or 3 years,
many have been speaking about the problem of AIDS and trying to
educate the public in many forums. We are continuing rggressively
to do that. I think the focus on this document possibly has made it
look like that is the only way in which we are going to solve the
problem. There has been an ongoing public affairs activity within
our department and all the agencies have played a part. For sever-al years now, the word has come forth through the scientific com-
munity about the disease. Information has been spread through
medical centers, medical schools, local forums, and so forth.

I think there has been a very active program. It's just a matter
that it is not in the form of one document.

Mr. WEISS. The program may be there. The planning may be
the. e. It sure as heck is not working

Dr. Dowd le.
Dr. DOWDLE. I'd like to respond, if I may, just to say that I really

can't let this go by without responding, considering the number ofhours put in by the people who are responsible for getting out the
RFD's and developing the education/information program for the
schools. It's an exceptional bunch of people, very hardworking, who
have spent many, many hours of consultation.

Mr. WEss. I don't question that at all. And that, I think, is part
of the frustration. They meet, they plan, they propose, and ulti-mately nothing or very insignificant

Dr. DOWDLE. But it's in the pipeline now. It's in progress. And I
think they've done a remarkable job getting it out as soo- as theyhave. There is nothing we can do to speed up that process. The
RFP's will be out on the street and it will be bid on.

Mr. WEISS. Well, it seems that one of the things that can be done
to speed it up is to recognize the kind of moneys that need to be
spent on it. You can't get any of this with just a wish and a prayer.
It's going to cost a lot of money, and we have, thankfully, because
of the commitment of both Houses of Congress, forced and thrust
money upon the administration, which you people have spent well.Each year, except this year, you are forced to come back asking usfor less than what we gave you the previous year. Then we find out
that the administration is trying to rescind some of that and cut
back some of that.

I can see that by 1991 you could be meeting the billion dollar
goal that the National Academy of Sciences has set forth as far asresearch and health programs are concerned. But I don't see how,given the present rate of spending that the Federal Government is
going to come anywhere close to the billion dollars for education
and information recommended by the National Academy of Sci-ences.

Unless that kind of commitment is made, then you can ha, allthe good people in the world meeting all the long hours -atthey re willing to contribute, and ultimately you're not goi..4 tohave mass education programs Somebody someplace in the admin-

Dg
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istration ought to be driving this effort, otherwise all you have is
words. The words sound pretty. If you den% remember what wls
^aid a year ago, they sound great. But we'll come back a year from
4ow and they will be the same words, and lives will have been lost.

I know that you all are concerned about that. What I'm asking
lb, how can you get the people who control the purse strings to un-
derstand that these programs you're talking about cannot take
effect unless money is spent and committed?

Dr WINDOM. Well, we are urging more money. As you know, the
President's budget contains a request for 28 percent more than this
year for 1988 I think that escalation is evidence of the fact that we
do r. cognize the needs that must be met. I am going to be out more
and more speaking about this issue. I want to give you the good
news, Mr. Chairman, if I may, that I just got the message that the
Secretary has signed the document, and therefore it will be at the
printer very soon. I am hopeful that we'll have that printed copy
out within 5 to 10 days.

Mr. Wiriss. Dr. Harmison, you had wanted to say something. Do
you want, to add anything?

Dr. HARMISON. Yes. Thank you, sir.
I think as one looks back at it, the capacity for the research on

AIDS was laid during more than 10 years of molecular biological
work. The same basis has been laid for the AIDS education activi-

tY.Beginning in June 1982, documents issued on how to recognize
the disease, long before we knew what the cause wasI'd be
pleased to provide for the record material beginning in March 1983
on prevention of acq'iired immune deficiencylaid the framework
for formulating the education message that has gone out through
scientific journals and through the efforts of our Public Affairs
Office that was headed by Shelly Lengel.

In mid to le. te 1984, we informed the education effort in a more
concise way within the Office of the Assistant Secretary of Health,
following the identification of the AIDS etiological agent.

There has been an enormous framework. I certainly can agree
with you that more has to be done, and that it should be more
timely, but we are very concerned that a solid, sound information
base be laid. I think there has been no effort left unaddressed in
creating that solid foundation of information, and we hope to reach
out through this plan as another step in trying to solidify our edu-
cation efforts.

Mr. Wiass. Tell me precisely what your title is.
Dr. HARMISON. I'm the Deputy Assistant Secretary for Health.
Mr. Wrass. And what falls within your area of responsibility?
Dr. klARMISON. Well, I assist Dr. Windom in carrying out his re-

sponsibilities. My role in this effort has been to take the blood test,
when it was initially identified in Dr. Robert Gallo's laboratory,
and carry it through various stages of getting it tested and devel-
oped.

Mr. Wins. Well, I would suggest that on public and mass educa-
tion, you might want to do a little bit more research into what ac-
tually has been done. Never mind wl-aL, the framework was that
was accomplished 4 or 5 years ago.

9'3
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Dr. Dowd le, I assume that you attempt to keep apprised of what
other countries, especially England and Western Europe, are doing
in the AIDS information/education area.

Would you give us some idea of the programs undertaken in Eng-
land and France and what you understand to be the cost of those
campaigns?

Dr. Downes. Well, perhaps the most aggressive campaigns in
Europe are in Great Britain, and they have t aside $20 million
for that purpose. Their program has consisted of mailings to all
households, as well as radio spots, television advertising, and even
special television programs for the youth.

Denmark has had a similar type of program, with increased ...m-
phasis on television.

Switzerland and the Netherlands have done much the samething.
Mr. Wass. Why do you think it is that those foreign countries,

all of which have far fewer cases of AIDS than we do, have spent
so much more per case or per capita and are so much aliead of the
United States in information efforts?

Dr. DOWDLE. I really can't answer that, except I think that when
we've asked them this, before, "how can you get out the informa-
tion messages so quickly?" We have received several answers. For
example, Denmark feels that they are much more of a homogene-
ous group in terms of thinking. Therefore, it's easier to get out
these types of campaigns. In this country, we're a much more di-
verse group, and there are many, many different ideas and many
different backgrounds that have to be taken into consideration.

Mr. Wins. In fact, you've been urging within the Department
that we undertake exactly that kind of campaign that has been un-
dertaken in Europe or England; isn't that correct?

Dr. Dowai "-;s, sir. It's something we should be considering.
And, as Dr. m pointed out, we will be.

Mr. WEIr Ast June, the Public Health Service held a major
planning comerence at Coolfont, after which a new Public Health
Service plan for prevention and control of AIDS and the AIDS
virus was issued. Two of the recommendations issued on informa-
tion and education were: (1) the need for a major national inform.-
tion/education campaign, and (2) to explore the use of paid media
advertising.

Was the Coolfont conference recommendations the basis for
drafting the AIDS information/education plan that you just said
Dr. Bowen has signed off on?

Dr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
Mr. WEISS. What other implementation activities were begun as

a result of that Coolfont meeting and report? Dr. Dowdle?
Dr. DOWDLE. Well, I think that basically the Coolfont report put

in perspective what the predicted caseload would be in 1990 awl
1991. It also pointed out that those at risk sexually in the hetero-
sexual population should also be targeted for information/educa-
tion programs.

Mr. WEISS. I have a few questions about some of the specific on-
going items reflected in the post-Coolfont plans.

0



One, information and education program grants for high-AIDS-
incidence areas. How much was budgeted, and how much was actu-
ally spent in fiscal year 1986; do you know?

Dr. DOWDLE. In 1986?
Mr. Wiass. In 1986, yes.
Dr. DOWDLE. We would have to sub.nit that for theare you

talking about total?
Mr. WEiss. Well, your budget person, I think, is here. Maybe he

can respond.
Mr. Lrrruc. I'm not sure I have the exact amount for CDC in

1986.
Mr. Wiciss. Pardon?
Mr. LITI'LE. In total, we will spend $26.9 million in 1986. I'm not

sure exactly how much of that went to CDC's high-incidence areas.
In total, the Public Health Sere' , will spend over $32 million in
information and education activitt

I can supply thator CDC can ai- that i, r the record.
Mr. WEISS. Will you please supply ti :at for the record?
Mr. Limy. Yes, sir.
[The information follows:]
In FY 1986, approximately $17.9 million was awarded to high incidence areas.

Mr. WEISS. How about in 1987 so far? Do you know how much
has been budgeted and how much spent in fiscal 1987 up to this
date?

Mr. Larru. For 1987, $80 million has been budgeted.
Mr. Muss. For high-AIDS-incidence areas is the question.
Mr. Lrzyrix. I'm sorry. This is for the total information, health

education, risk reductior idget. I do not have the answer for high -
in'idence areas.

Mr. WEISS. Thank you.
Dr. DOWDLE. We can give that to you, sir, the breakdown by

State and by location.
Mr. WEISS. I .-.-ould welcome that.
Dr. DOWDLE. We can provide that.
[The information follows:]

0 tir,ti '
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AIDS Prevention
projects were

awarded on April 30,
1987, for a total ofapproximately $24.4

million, of which $14.3
million went to highincident^ areas. The breakdown for high incidence

areas by project area
is as fo.lows:

Area of
FY 1987High AIDS Incidence

Funds Awarded

California
$ 2,607,184(Includes separate

award to Los Angeles
and San Francisco)

Colorado
744,375Connecticut
480,262Florida

1,425,213Georgia
489,915Louisiana
569,484Massachusetts
648,206Michigan
575,321New Jersey
969,931New York State

2,654,664(Includes separate
award to N.Y. City)

Ohio

607,284Pennsy.venia
716,342Texas

978,291Washington
492.978Washington, D.C.
371,221

TOTAL FY 1987 Funds
14,330,671High Incidence Areas

ti
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Dr. DOWDLE. I might also say that the new funding for all loca-
tions in the States will actually not come out until May. The States
are still operating on the previous allocations.

Mr. Weiss. The U.S. Conference of Mayors, to aid community-
based groups, was funded at $250,000 in 1986. How much has been
budgeted and spent on this in fiscal year 1987?

Dr. WINDOM. I can't give that to you at the moment, sir. I will
have to try to supply that for the record.

[The information follows:]
Approximately $250,000 is budgeted for FY 1987, and is expected to be awarded

on June 1, 1987.

Mr. WEISS. Our information is that, in fact, there has been zero
spent in fiscal 1987 for the U.S. Conference of Mayors' eight com-
munity-based groups program.

Dr. WINDOM. That we would have to check, sir.
Mr. WEISS. All right.
Dr. DOWDLE. It is budgeted, sir, for 1987 and 1988.
Mr. WEISS. How much was budgeted for 1987?
Dr. DOWDLE. $300,000.
Mr. Wrass. Can you tell us how much of that has been spent in

fiscal 1987?
Dr. Down's. No; I really can't speak to that; no.
Mr. WEISS. You will supply that for the record.
The information follows:]

Approximately $250,000 is budgeted for FY 1987, and is expected to be awarded
on June 1, 1987.

Mr. WEISS. And now I would like to ask about the community-
based capacity project in 37 low incidence States. How much of the
budgeted $5 million was actually spent in fiscal year 1986? Does
Budget have that? Do you have that breakdown?

Dr. WINDOM. We don't have that breakdown, sir.
Mr. WEISS. Will you give that information as well as how much

has been spent so far in the first 5 months of the current fiscal
year?

Dr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
[The information follows:]
In FY 1986, $4,580,744 was spent on Community-based capacity building projects.

In FY 1987, the funds for these projects were consolidated with the funds for the
Augmentation projects and the Counseling and Testing projects, and were awarded
on April 30, for a total of approximately $24.4 million.

Mr. WEISS. The AIDS prevention augmentation projects were
funded at $5 million for fiscal year 1986. Can you tell us how much
was actually spent in fiscal year 1986 and so far in 1987? Again, if
you don't have that, please submit it for the record.

Dr. WINDOM. We will submit that, sir.
[The information follows:]
In FY 1986, $6,611,095 was spent on thu AIDS Augmentation projects. In FY 1987,

the funds for these projects were consolidated with the funds for the Capacity build-
ing projects and the Counseling and Testing projects, and were awarded on April 30,
for a total of approximately $24.4 million.

Mr. WEISS. Finally, the community-based demonstration projects
were funded at $4 million in fiscal year 1986. How much was actu-
ally spent in :986 and how much was spent in 1987?

0
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Dr. WINDOM. That again will have to be submitted for the record,
sir.

Mr. Wilms. I am distressed that we don't have that information
available since these are your major information education pro-
grams that are currently ongoing. I would think that somebody
would have that information.

Dr. WINDOM. We do have it. We want to give it to you exactly,
sir, and we just don't have it right at our fingertips.

[The information follows:]
In FY 1986, $3,732,152 was spent on the AIDS Community based Demonstration

project& In FY 1987, no funds have been obligated to date. The projects are expected
to be renewed no later than September 29, 1987, for an estimated $4,006,098.

Mr. WEISS. All right. I am going to ask you a summary question.
Excluding funds for testing for other risk reduction projects, how
much was appropriated and how much was actually spent by the
Federal Government in all of fiscal year 1986 for AIDS information
dissemination and education?

Dr. DOWDLE. For 1986?
Mr. Lrrn.z. Excluding testing, but including the health educa-

tion, risk reduction activities?
Mr. WEISS. Right. Would you come closer to the microphone so

that we can hear you?
Mr. Lrrri.E. $26.9 million, excluding
Mr. WEISS. Say that again.
Mr. affix. Excluding the alternate test site activity that oc-

curred in 1986, the total in 1986 was $26.9 million, including the
health education and risk reduction activities in the State health
departments.

Mr. WEISS. For this year, Dr. Windom, you stated in your testi-
mony that the Public Health Service will spend more then $79.5
million solely for education. Is that correct?

Dr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
Mr. WEISS. Again, that is solely for education, not for the risk re-

duction programs or the testing programs; is that right?
Dr. WINDOM. That includes risk reduction which is part of the

education packet, the program is education and risk reduction and
dissemination of information. That would be $79.5 million.

Mr. WEiss. How much is it just for education and information?
Mr. Lirri.E. Approximately $15 million, sir.
Mr. WEISS. Approximately?
Mr. Unix. $15 million.
Mr. Wziss. Do you have any idea how much has actually been

spent so far within the first 6 months of fiscal year 1987?
Mr. LITTLE. Sir, since the appropriation was only enacted in No-

vember and many of these programs are new, the $80 million total
for 1987 compares to approximately $30 million in 1986. The RFP's
we discussed earlier have not all been finalized, and much of the
money has not been awarded. I would estimate that the awards to
date would be very small, but that is due in large part to the fact
that we had such a large increase in 1987 compared to 1986.

I can give you the exact numbers for the record.
Mr. Wziss. I would appreciate that.
[The information follows:]

74-444 0 - 87 - 4
D8
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Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome Information Dissemination/Public Affairs
[Total 1987 obligations as of Mar 31. 1987]

CDC $475,000

NIH 360,000
ADAMHA 236,000

Total PHS 1,071,000

Mr. WEISS. For fiscal year 1988, which as you all know, begins
October 1 of this year, and again, exclusive of moneys for testing
and other prevention activities, how much has been requested by
the Department just on information education?

Dr. WINDOM. $15,900,000.
Mr. WEiss. That will include the total major media campaign

that you just issued the reqtiest for proposal on; is that correct?
Dr. Wi Nnom. Yes, sir.
Mr. Wzos. Dr. Dowd le, last summer you said, and I quote, and I

hope accurately, "It's very clear we haven't done everything in the
education field that we would like to do and should be doing" and
"The money is not here for a large educational program right
now."

As the Federal leader on AIDS, can you tell us what is needed by
way of dollars? What should we be looking for, for an education
program that in fact would do the job?

Dr. DOWDLE. I don't know that I could give an exact figure, sir.
Quite frankly, there are a number of different opinions and a
number of different ideas. I'm sure a number of different experts
have different ideas on how the information education program
ought to be run at a national level.

One of the reasons for getting the ad agency involved is to get
experts together with other consultants to determine the most ef-
fective way that we can run this campaign, what is the most effec-
tive way not only to get information outwhich, by the way, is
considerable at the momentbut to have it out in such a way that
we can effectively change behavior.

Mr. WEISS. Late last year, you contracted to have a management
consultant firm, Coopers & Lybrand, review CDC's organization
and management of AIDS activities. Why was that undertaken at
that time?

Dr. DOWDLE. Why, sir?
Mr. WEISS. Yes.
Dr. DOWDLE. Because the feeling was that CDC's earlier role had

been in epidemiology and in laboratory research, leading to preven-
tion, but that now, we were going to be involved in a much differ-
ent and much more extensive way in information and education
programs. In short, this was a different mode than what CDC had
been involved in up to now. That was the reason for the review.

Mr. %ass. I have the memorandum concerning their findings
and recommendations. I will ask you to tell us what the findings
were rather than my quoting them.

Dr. DOWDLE. Well, basically, they recommended that there be a
central office for AIDS within CDC, under a Deputy Director of
CDC, and that that office should have line responsibility. I was ap-
pointed to that particular job. Second, they pointed out that there
should be consolidation of CDC contracts with the States. That con-

^ 7

99



95

solidation is well underway. They were talking about consolidating
three grants, and consolidation of at least two of the three grants is
in process.

They also referred to different ways in which the organization
within CDC should lead to enhanced communicatior. That too is
now in effect through the organizational arrangement that we now
have.

One of the other points was to emphasize the need for CDC to go
out into further types of information education responsibilities.

Mr. WEtss. The findings that we have indicate the folloving:
First, that AIDS has placed a severe strain on CDC, and second,
that major changes should be given serious consideration.

Dr. Down's.. Yes.
Mr. WEISS. Major State and local discontent with CDC regarding

grant programs and management exists.
Dr. Downix. That's correct.
Mr. WEISS. Third, that the traditional CDC response to crisis has

apparently not worked well and places great strains on the agency
personnel. They say that the single greatest scarcity is personnel.
The number of people allocated to CDC to perform the new duties
expected of it clearly does not allow the agency to fulfill its new
responsibilities.

Dr. Downes. That's correct.
Mr. WEISS. Finally, AIDS has consumed considerably more time,

not only of people assigned to AIDS, but of others; right? Then they
made a number of recommendations based on that. One was to re-
quest needed personnel; two, to contract out some activities; three,
to simplify grant and cooperative agreement processes and miscel-
laneous others.

Dr. Dowdle, last December 1, you expressed again the need to
mobilize the non-Federal sector into the AIDS information effort.
Before I get into that, what has been done to follow up on the find-
ings and recommendations besides, I guess, your work and your co-
ordinating role which is an important step? Beyond that what has
been done to get additional personnel and so on?

Dr. Downes. Well, as I've indicated, all of the recommendations
with one exceptionthat we look at other ways of contracting out
in-house activities have been implemented. The one reason why we
have not gone further in contracting out is because we think we
have explored this quite thoroughly. All of the recon mendations of
the Coopers & Lybrand group essentially are in place.

Mr. WEISS. Have you requested additional personnel?
Dr. Dowmx. Additional personnel?

WEISS. Yes.
Dr. DOWDLE. Yes. We are getting additional personnel for the

Office of the Deputy Director; yes.
Mr. Wings. Is that the only area where the consultants thought

you needed personnel?
Dr. Dowers. No. There are other areas, too, in which additional

FTE's were thought to be needed.
Mr. WEISS. Have you made the request for those?
Dr. DOWDLE. Yes, sir, we have.
Mr. Wilms. To whom?
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Dr. DOWDLE. The requests have been made in the usual funding
cycle.

Mr. WEiss. Have those requests been made to the Appropriations
Committee?

Dr. DOWDLE. They are part of the 1988 request.
Mr. Wiass. On the non-Federal sector mobilization in the AIDS

information effort, you proposed a meeting in January or February
of private sector organizations which are already involved in AIDS
activities. What was the purpose of the meeting?

Dr. DOWDLE. This was a private sector
Mr. Wins. Again, according to Decembe 1, 1.86, minutes of the

task force, Dr. Dowdie proposed convening a meeting in January or
February of private sector organizations who are already involved
in AIDS activities.

Dr. DOWDLE. Yes.
Mr. WEISS. What was the purpose?
Dr. DOWDLE. The purpose of this was to try to encourage the for-

mation of a coalition of private and public organizations, which we
are very much interested in supporting.

Mr. Wins. Was that meeting held?
Dr. DOWDLE. There have been several meetings, and we believe

we will have such a coalition this summer.,
Mr. WEiss. It is not t oing to be January or February, it is going

to be sometime around th.ne, July, or August?
Dr. DOWDLE. I can assure you that it is in progress and we are

certain that it will be done.
Mr. WEiss. Dr. Windom, in your testimony you state that Federal

funds appropriated for AIDS will be multiplied manyfold by other
public and private agencies. The National Academy of Sciences'
report stated that the leadership and major portion of the funding
for AIDS education must come from the Federal Government.

Are those views compatible? Can we depend on the States to
have the expertise and the funds to do the job that is needed?

Dr. WINDOM. We feel they will be able to complement and help
supplement the Federal funds and, as we progress from year to
year, we anticipate they also will participate more

Mr. WEISS. What proportion of the education and information
fundssay that $1 billion that you think might very well be reach-
able by the target datewill have to come from Federal sources
and what proportion from other sources?

Dr. Wnwom. There is a great deal of specula ; on about that
ratio, sir. I think if we look now to see what is going on out there
in the public as far as dissemination of information, there has been
a substantial but indefinite increase. I think the recent survey in
the Washington Poet showed significant evi ..ice in 6 months of
public awareness, lifestyle changes and so forth. The information is
getting out, but I don't know that we can pinpoint the exact per-
cent or dollar increases there are.

Mr. WEISS. You do agree with the NAS that the major portion of
that funding for AIDS education will have to come from the Feder-
al Government?

Dr. WINDOM. Yes, I think it will and we are working toward that,
sir.
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Mr. WEiss. The budget information supplied to us last week in-
cludes an indication that OMB has approved and has or will re-
quest $100 million additional supplemental for AIDS to be trans-
ferred from other HHS accounts.

What accounts will it be transferred from and for what AIDS
purposes?

Dr WINDOM. That has not been decided yet. We will look closely
at which agencies could contribute and how much could be ob-
tained from each. No definitive action has yet been taken.

Mr. Wmss. It is under discussion between you and OMB?
Dr. WINDOM. have Mr. Little please comment on that.
Mr. Lirriz. The 1987 portion of the President's 1983 budget pro-

posed that authority be provided to the Secretary to permit him to
transfer up to 1 percent of any funds appropriated to the Depart-
ment for discretionary programs from such programs to the AIDS
efforts.

At this point there has been no discussion of such a transfer to
AIDS being necessary. And we, of course, would have to have the
approval of the Congressional Appropriations Committees before
we could implement such a proposal.

Mr. %ass. Well, did you request that authority from OMB to
begin with? How did it come about? How did that $100 million sup-
plemental discussion start?

Mr. Lrrrix. It came back as a part of the OMB allowance. It was
not requested, to my knowledge, by the Department. I believe it re-
fleets the President's and the Secretary's position that AIDS is the
No. 1 public health priority, and as such it warrants special atten-
tion. We want to give the Secretary as much flexibility as possible
to respond to any emergency or unique opportunity by a shifting of
funds to AIDS.

Mr. Wigiss. I have no further questions at this time. If any of you
want to make additional comments before we close out this panel,
please feel free to make them at this time.

Let me just state that, we know that you have a very, very diffi-
cult, but also, a very, very heavy and important responsibility.

What you do, Dr. Windom, and what your associates, Dr. Dowdle,
Dr. Noble and the others in the Public Health Service do, can and
will determine whether literally hundreds of thousands, perhaps
millions of Americans will or will not fall to this dread epidemic.

So, I hope that in the course of the inhouse bureaucratic discus-
sions that will be ongoing, that you will take with you the assur-
ance that Congress has been and will continue to be supportive of
your efforts. But you have to provide the thrust and the lead. It's
your ball game, really. And that is the purpose of these hearings
that we're holding: to try to get a continuing update as to where
we are in various aspects of the struggle against AIDS, and to what
we need to do, we on our side, you on your side. If nothing else, I
hope you walk away from these hearings with a sense that we're
really concerned about the sense of urgency which has to be inject-
ed into this fight.

Dr. WINDOM. I want to thank you, Mr. Chairman, again, for the
opportunity to be here and to express our views and to hear yours
and those of others in Congress. We realize the magnitude of this
problem. And I'd like to point out that we're very thankful that
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this happened now rather than 10 or 20 years ago, because we have
been able to move more rapidly than ever before. We have a great
challenge ahead of us. It's going to take the cooperation and in-
volvement of every sector, and we're going to work hard to lead
that movement and continue to be actively involved.

Mr. WEISS. Anybody else?
[No response.]
Mr. WEISS. Thank you all very, very much for your participation.
Dr. WINDOM. Thank you.
Mr. Wass I assume we'll be getting a cony of the plan just

signed off by Dr. Bowen
Dr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
Mr. WEISS [continuing]. In time for inclusion in this record.

Thank you.
[The AIDS information/education plan is in the appendix, p. 255.]
Mr. WEISS. This brings us to our third panel consisting of wit-

nesses from agencies which are directly involved in providing es-
sential servicec to persons with AIDS, and the information/educa-
tion needs at the State and local level.

And, so, if Ms. Gebbie, Dr. Joseph, and Ms. Stroud will come for-
ward, I think we can proceed with this panel. Would you please
remain standing and raise your right hand?

Do you affirm that the testimony you are about to give will be
the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

Let the record indicate that all three of the witnesses responded
in the affirmative.

Dr. Joseph, I understand that you have a difficult transportation
schedule, and so we will hear from you first. If you have time to
stay for your part of the questions before we hear from Ms. Stroud
and Ms. Gebbie, that will be all right. If you have to rush off we
will understand, and we'll submit questions to you and have you
respond in writing.

Dr. JOSEPH. Thank you very much.
Mr. WEISS. We have your prepared statements which will be en-

tered into the record in their entirety, and we would appreciate
your limiting your oral presentations to about 7 minutes, if possi-
ble.

Dr. Joseph, We'll start with you.

STATEMENT OF STEPHEN C. JOSEPH, M.D., M.P.H., COMMISSION-
ER OF HEALTH, NEW YORK CITY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

Dr. JOSEPH. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, thank you for
your courtesy. I appreciate the opportunity to be here today to talk
about the AIDS epidemic as it appears on the line in New York
City. Although I must say, some of the things I've heard in the last
several hours make me wonder at times whether we're talking
about tho same epidemic.

But a view from New York City with particular reference to our
education and health promotion activities really must start from
the fact that we have seen, as of the end of February 1987, approxi-
mately 9,200 diagnosed cases of AIDS in the city, 58 percent of
those people are dead, and AIDS is currently the leading cause of
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death in New York City for men age 25 to 44, and for women age
25 to 29.

Half a million New Yorkers are estimated to be infected with the
HIV virus. Gay and bisexual men make up the largest percentage
of cases, although their proportion a AIDS cases has fallen from 73
percent in 1981 to 55 percent in 1986, while the proportion of cases
among intravenous drug abusers or IVDA's has risen from 22 per-
cent to 36 percent in 1986.

We have some 200,000 people in New York City who shoot N
drugs, and from 50 to 60 percent of them are thought to be HIV
virus infected. The growing numbers of N drug abusers who are
infected present unique problems in controlling the spread of the
disease. And had I time, I would refer you to one of the charts that
I gave you in my prepared testimony that I think indicate the mag-
nitude of the problem and the multiple complexities of the prob-
lem.

IVDA's have been and will likely continue to be the major source
of the spread of infection to women and children. We've had 932
women with AIDS in New York City diagnosed since 1981; 80 per-
cent of these women have been intravenous drug users or the part-
ners of IVDA's. We have 178 of those, some 400 cases of AIDS in
children that were described in the last panel, and the vast majori-
ty of those children have been infected from their mothers; 92 per-
cent of the mothers who infected those children were either N
drug abusers or the sex partners of N drug abusers.

Of great concern is the increase of AIDS and HIV infection
among New York City's minority communities. More than half of
all AIDS victims in New York City are black or Hispanic; 86 per-
cent of male N drug users with AIDS are black or Hispanic; and
91 percent of mothers of children with AIDS are black or Hispanic.

You perhaps have seen our projections, that by the end of 1991
we will accumulate something like 40,000 cases of AIDS with per-
haps 30,000 deaths. I think one of the things that needs repeating,
when we talk about health promotion and risk :.eduction, is that no
one knows what the cumulative burden will be more than 5 or 6
years out in the epidemic; we do not know what the 10- or 20-year
clinical horizon is.

Well, against this background, and as the epidemic spreads in
New York City, let me mention a number of public policy and
public health policy issues that are emerging and seem to us to be
critical.

First, intensive and explicit public education efforts need to be
implemented without creating irrational anxiety and hysteria.
Presently, the only feasible way to alter the AIDS epidemic is by
education of the public, training health and social service profes-
sionals, and counseling for personal risk reduction and antibody
testing.

In my written testimony I've listed the various groups ranging
from the sanitation workers to policemen and parole officers that
we have been working with, and the general education programs
and specialized training programs throughout the city. I have also
submitted for the committee's interest a packet of the various bro-
chures, flyers, and wallet cards that we've produced in recent
months and years, and our subway cards. The poster that you have
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which is entitled, "Women Can Get AIDS, Too," has just gone up
within the last month. It will be viewed by an estimated 5 million
subway riders, something like 120 million times.

We've been working with two advertising agencies for a multi-
media public health advertising campaign that will run this spring.
This will focus on the two issues of IV drug use and heterosexual
transmission risks. And I would just like to accentuate what you
and Dr. Fraser said about the importance, the critical importance
of getting moving with mass media activities.

Another one of our major health education and promotion activi-
ties is a campaign to promote condom use, educate about condom
use, and distribute condoms. We have a midyear funding initiative
which will allow us to distribute 1 million condoms in New York
City this year as part of a broader based educational campaign.

We're increasing our outreach and education to higher risk popu-
lations. I go back to my comments about the intravenous drug
abusers. This is a group of people where we do not have the cohe-
sive base that I think was found in the gay community, particular-
ly in San Francisco and New York, that has led to such success as
we have had so far in behavior modification. I think there's a long
way to go before we're able, with confidence, to have in place risk
reduction strategies that we know will work with the N drug
abuser.

I've listed in my prepared testimony some of the activities that
we have, working on the street, working with community-based or-
ganizations that are actually in the shooting galleries. And you
may note that we are proposing in New York City a small, careful-
ly controlled experiment to distribute clean needles and syringes as
part of the risk reduction effort.

We believe that much more work needs to be done with physi-
cians, through our hotline activities and directly. I've distributed
for you our new counseling and testing policy in which we state
that there needs to be much more access to information and activi-
ty by private physicians.

The second critical public health policy issue is that vigorous
public health actions need to be increased while resisting ineffec-
tive measures of social control. There has been much discussion re-
cently, as I'm sure you are well aware, of the issue of keeping test-
ing in a voluntary, confidential, and counseling-based mode. We've
been moving aggressively in New York City to make testing in this
context more widely available.

In addition to the physician-based testing of the past, we have
now opened two anonymous test sites run by the city. The State
has also opened five anonymous test sites in New York City. We
are offering counseling and testing in half of our sexually transmit-
ted disease clinics. We'll increase that to 100 percent in the next
fiscal year. We also are permitting teaching hospitals to be sites for
performing the laboratory tests.

We are now recommending that nhysicians should actively con-
sider if their patients may be at risk of HIV infection, discuss risk
avoiding behavior as a part of routine medical care of all patients,
and offer counseling, and if appropriate, HIV testing to patients
considered to be at risk.
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We have begun a program that we call, "Contact notification,"
rather than the old term of, "Contact tracing." We believe that it's
critical for infected persons to notify their sex and drug partners of
the risk. And where an index person requests us either to help in
this process or to undertake the process for him or her, we will di-
rectly and actively do so.

The third critical public health policy issue is that increases and
available resources for research and education must support the
broad range of clinical public health and social service needs.

I commend you, Mr. Chairman, for your bill to waive the 24-
month waiting period for Medicare eligibility. All across the service
front, whether in the development of community-based organiza-
tions or in making more help available for the homeless, we need
vestly increased resources.

In fiscal 1987, New York City will spend approximately $258 mil-
lion on programs in AIDS treatment, human services, public health
initiatives, and human rights discrimination; $73 million of those
dollars are city tax levy. Next year we will spend $335 million, and
I would anticipate a good deal more than that, of which some $90
million or more will be city tax levy. These kinds of numbers un-
derscore what I fmd very discouraging: The reluctrnce and slow-
ness with which the Federal administration has recognized the
true dimensions of the AIDS crisis, and their slowness in moving to
support us adequPtely with resources and leadership in that area.

We have had tne forthright statements of Dr. Koop and echoed
elsewhere in the administration. We have the CDC shouting alarm.
But no one really has been willing to send us a fire bucket.

I would associate myself entirely with the comments made by Dr.
Fraser, and we'll skip the part of my testimony related to the Na-
tional Academy of Sciences report.

Let me just end by mentioning some things that I think in-
creased Federal support could translate into, in terms of specific
measures for controlling the spread of AIDS in New York City. It
would provide us with funding to enable us to rapidly increase con-
fidential, voluntary counseling and testing. I would anticipate that
we will see the demands for counseling and testing multiply many-
fold within the next 12 months.

We desperately need increased funding to provide access to sub-
stance abuse treatment programs for IV addicts; waiting time for
methadone maintenance in New York City is estimated to be as
long as 3 months, and 6 months to get into drug free programs.
We've got to have more help both from the Federal and State level
to increase our access to the addict community.

We continue to need funding for increased efforts to expand the
knowledge base, both directly in New York City and nationally. In
my testimony you will see a description of the research activities
that we are currently cs ying on.

There needs to be, as think everyone has said this morning, a
massive increase in public health education and risk reduction ef-
forts; much of that leadership must emanate from the Federal Gov-
ernment. One thing that made my life easier over the last 12
months, and there haven't been many things, was the NAS Com-
mittee report. If we could have that kind of clear thinking, direct
and explicit leadership, as I think Dr. Koop has attempted to give
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us, if we could continue to see that from a Federal level, it would
enable us at a local level to do much more, to gain more credibility,
to garner both the resources and the support that we need.

And finally, we need Federal support to really underscore that
we must eliminate the false dichotomy between civil liberties and
public health. Stands on issues such as contact tracing and manda-
tory antibody testing have at times been portrayed as sacrificing
public health in the name of civil liberties. But I believe that all
the localities that are of high prevalence really are combining in
their insistence on voluntary, confidential testing, and the other
voluntary measures, which are based on sound public health princi-
ples, as well as a concern for civil rights and civil liberties.

I think we need leadership from the Federal level to get the mes-
sage across that this is not an either/or affair. The kinds of
damage done by the ill-considered Justice Department opinion on
discrimination last summer created enormous problems for us in
New York, and I think throughout the Nation.

Finally, the AIDS epidemic and our understanding of it is grow-
ing and changing constantly. Responsible policy must be continual-
ly reexamined against these changes in conditions; and it must be
modified, if necessary, to reflect current knowledge of disease
transmission, and at the same time remain flexible enough to ac-
commodate important discoveries.

There are few, if any, certainties in this crisis, and we must be
willing to change course as the data warrant it.

Biomedical research cannot eliminate the problem of AIDS in
the short run; education, health promotion, and risk reduction will
remain our critical weapons in the fight against AIDS for at least
the next several years.

I do apologize, thinking I had an earlier morning testimony. I
have a meeting with the board of health and the mayor on AIDS,
as a matter of fact, at 3:30. But I'd be pleased to answer any direct
questions you have, and certainly happy to respond to any written
questions that the staff or anyone else on the committee wishes to
send us.

Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Dr. Joseph follows:)
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Nowhere in North America is the relentless tragedy of

AIDS more starkly felt than in New York City. As of the end of

February 1987, 9,188 people have been diagnosed with AIDS in

New York City since 1981; 58 percent have died. AIDS is the

leading cause of death in New York City for men 25 to 44 years

of age, and women 25 to 29.

Half a million people are estimated to be HIV-infected in

New York City today. Gay and bisexual men make up the largest

percentage of cases, though their proportion of AIDS cases has

fallen from 73 percent in 1981 to 55 percent in 1986, while the

proportion of cases among intravenous drug abusers (IVDAs) has

risen from 22 percent in 1981 to 36 percent in 1986. Fifty to

60 percent of the City's estimated 200,000 heroin users are

thought to be HIV-infected. The growing numbers of infected IV

drug abusers present unique problems in controlling the spread

of the disease (Chart I).

IVDAs have been, and will likely continue to be, the

major source of the spread of HIV infection to women and

children in New York City. Of the 932 women with AIDS

diagnosed in New York City since 1981, 80 percent have been

IVDAs or the sex partners of IVDAs. We have seen 178 cases of

AIDS in children, the vast majcrity infected from their

mothers; 92 percent of mothers who infected their children

were IVDAs or the sex partners of IVDAs (Chart II).

AIDS is also increasing among New York City's minority

communities. Thirty-one percent of AIDS cases !ri New York City

are among Blacks, and 23 percent are among Hispanics;
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together, Blacks and Hispanics represent more than half of all

people with AIDS in New York City. Eighty-six percent of male

IV drug users with AIDS are Black or Hispanic; 91 percent of

mothers of children who have AIDS are Black or Hispanic.

By the end of 1991, over 40,000 people will have

developed AIDS in New York City alone; 30,000 will have died

(Chart III). Our projections are based on a five-year

horizon; no one knows the 10- or 20-year clinical outlook for

those now infected. Nor do we know what long-term burdens will

be posed by HIV-associated illness, for example, tuberculosis.

The impact of HIV-immunodeficiency on the trends of other

important diseases is under study and as yet is incompletely

understood.

Against this background, and as the epidemic spreads in

New York City, a number of public health policy issues are

emerging as critical.

First, intensive and explicit public education efforts

need to be implemented without creating irrational ar=ietv and

hysteria Presently, the only feasible way to alter the AIDS

epidemic is by educating the public, training health and social

service professionrls, and counseling for personal risk

reduction and antibody testing. The New York City Department

of Health program for AIDS education and counseling is a

multifaceted prevention and tisk reduction effort that on the

one hand directs education at the general public, health

providers, social service personnel, and community

organizations, and on the other hand targets information and

outreach for people engaged in high-risk behavior.
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Our campaign to educate the general population about AIDS

includes information in a variety of formats, such as

brochures, flyers, videotapes, wallet cards, and posters in

English and Spanish. The first in a series of bilingual

posters for City subway cars appeared in early 1986. The

second poster, entitled "Women Can Get AIDS Too," has just g3ne

up. The posters will appear in subway cars for approximately

three monE.s, during which time they will be viewed an

estimated 120 million times by some five million subway

riders. We have also men working with two advertising

agencies for a multimedia public health advertising campaign

that will run in the spring, hitting the issues of IV drug use

and AIDS, and heterosexual transmission risks.

The Health Department has launched an educational

campaign, on which we will spend S1 million this year, to

promote latex condom use. This includes distributing a million

condoms next year, with educational material, through clinics

and education and counseling programs, pregnancy testing sites,

and otht.. places where we find people who need to change their

behavior.

For community and professional groups, the Department

provides specialized training programs to help people

incorporate AIDS information into their community and work

lives. Professional groups that Health Department educators

have trained include Board of Education personnel; Sanitation

workers; health care and social service workers; drug

treatment professionals; and police, probation, and

corrections officers. Our public health educators reach over

- 3 -
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3,000 people per month; they receive more than 20 requests for

educational sessions per week, per educator.

To provide the medical community in New York City

accurate, current information about clinical research and

disease surveillance, the Health Department holds monthly AIDS

Clinical Investigators Meetings. An AIDS Forum is held every

month for city officials, representatives of voluntary

organisations, and others concerned about AIDS.

We are increasing our outreach and education to high-risk

z.opulations. Special efforts address IV drug users and their

sexual partners. Public health educators are assigned to local

areas with the highest incidence of IV drug use to raise

community awareness of AIDS prevention. To educate IV drug

addicts on the need to use clean drug injection equipment, or

'works,' Health Department brochures, including one entitled,

AIDS and Drugs, caution that 'the best protection is no

injection,' and describe methods of cleaning 'works.'

Videctapes and posters as well as training for drug counselors

and socia! service workers target people at risk because of

drug use. The Department cooperates with many city-wide and

local organization, including supporting the community group

ADAPT (Association for Drug Abuse Prevention and Treatment), to

reach those at risk through IV drug abuse. The Department is

working with ADAPT on AIDS outreach projects such as doing AIDS

prevention and education programs in high risk areas, even

within shooting galleries themselves.

The January 1987 Financial Plan for New work City

includes additional City funds for contracts with

- 4 -
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communil-y-based agencies for further AIDS educational programs

directed at minorities, homosaxuals, and IV drug abusers.

Poi members of high-risk groups as well as the general

and professional public, the Health Department AIDS Information

Hotline gives anonymous and confidential counseling and

information about AiDS and risk behavior, as well as referrals

for persons wishing antibody testing. Last month the number of

lines increased from four to seven, with four lines to handle

physicians' questions. Increases in the public health

education c Taign on subways and in the mass media, in the

numbers of physicians involved in testing and counseling, in

the counseling and testing sites, and in the number of peop:e

who are becoming aware of their risk, al' point to a continuing

increase in the demand for the Hotline. We need to expand

Hotline days and hours to improve access to this most important

source of anonymous, confidential information and counseling

for people who are Lt risk, as well as who are at the point

where prevention agdiast infection is still possible.

The sec'nd critical_oublic health volicviUMVIAIbat

vigorous public_nealth actions need to be increased while

resisting ineff.lctive measures of social control. Virt'aally

all public health officials from areas of highest AIDS

prevalence agree that mandatory HIV-antibody testing when no

treatment is available, and unless confidentiality can be

assured, would be unwise and counterproductive. HIV-infected

people -- already facing devastating discrimination in housing,,

employment, and insurance -- would not cooperate with our

counseling, education, and testing if they feared that society
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was considering measures that could lead to quarantine,

isolation, and additional forms of discrimination.

New York City is moving aggressively to make voluntary,

confidential counselina and testing much more widely

accessible. We have just published a policy regarding the

increased availability of voluntary, confidential HIV antibody

testing and counseling. The policy contains guidelines for

health professionals on preventing and treating HIV infection,

as well as education of those at risk.

In New York City, our policy is that anyone who wishes to

know his or her antibody status should hive access to this

information, provided the test results are confidential, tests

are voluntarily undergone, and counseling is available before

and after testing. We recommend that physicians should

actively consider if their patients may be at risk of HIV

infection, discuss risk-avoiding behavior as a part of routine

medical care of all patients, and offer counseling and, if

appropriate, HIV testing to patients considered to be at risk.

Testing in New York City is available through free,

anonymous test sites established in the City by the City and

State Health Departments; through any licensed physician in

New York City, using a laboratory with a special permit issued

by the New York City Health Department if counseling, consent,

and confidentiality are guaranteed by the lab; and at five of

our Sexually Transmitted Disease clinics in New York City.

To support the confidential, voluntary aspects of

counseling and testing, we have adopted a course of action

known as contact notification. With this approach, the Health

- 6 -
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Department is urging, and directly and actively assisting when

asked, people who are seropositive to notify their contacts.

The third critical public health policy issue is that

increases in available resources for research and education

must support the broad ranee of clinical, public health. and

social service needs. In Fiscal 1987, New York City will spend

approximately $258 million on programs in AIDS treatment, human

services, public health initiatives, and human rights

discrimination. The City share of this figvre is $73 million

in tax levy dollars. Next year, we will spend $335 million, of

which $90 million is City tax levy dollars.

The' aeral administration has bs.en very reluctant to

recognize the true dimensions of and propose an adequately

funded federal response to AIDS. It must do much more to

support the unprecedented demands for AIDS treatment, human

services, public health initiatives, and human rights

discrimination resources, without sacrificing the research and

education efforts that are so necessary.

A milestone in our efforts to increase federal funding

for AIDS research, care, and education was the report of the

National Academy of Sciences, calling for a $2 billion AIDS

research and education effort. The Academy recommended that $1

billion a year be newly appropriated for extensive basic and

applied biomedical investigations of the disease. Another $1

billion would go for a massive, continuing education campaign

to increase public awareness of the ways of protecting against

infection. The money would also be applied to other necessary

public health measures, such as screening the blood supply,

- 7 -
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voluntary confidential testing, and increased efforts in

treatment and prevention of IV drug use. The Academy's call

must herald an increase in the national commitment against the

massive problem of AIDS.

Increased federal support would translate into measures

for controlling the spread of AIDS in New York City in the

following ways. It would:

provide fundina to enable us to rapidly increase

confidential. voluntary counseling and testing. By the

beginning of this year, over 17,000 people had used these

counseling and testing services. We will continue to make

voluntary, confidential counseling and testing sites more

widely available -- though expanded testing requires

substantial investments in money and trained personnel.

provide fundinc to increase access to substance abuse

treatment programs for IV addicts. This is one of our most

critical options for halting the spread of AIDS among addicts

end to women and children. Currently, New York City has long

waiting lists for methadone maintenance; drug-free

rehabilitation programs are full to capacity. The federal

government must consider drug rehabilitation programs as one of

our important priorities, and provide more federal dollars

through states and communities so that more addicts may find

treatment for their addiction.

The Department of Health, in conjunction with the

Division of Substance Abuse Services of New York State, has

developed a proposal to explore an additional strategy for

reducing the spread of HIV among drug users: a research

- 8 -
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project to determine the effect of the exchange of clean

needles to a small, carefully selected and monitored group of

IV drug addicts awaiting entry into drug treatment. If

approved by the State Health Commissioner, the research study

will serve as the basis for evaluating the efficacy of this

approach in halting the further spread of the AIDS virus, while

avoiding promotion of IV substance abuse.

provide fundina to increase efforts to expand our

knowledge base. Research needs to be expanded to investigate

the nature of HIV and its transmission. Currently, Health

Department researchers are collecting data for two studies, a

survey of hospital patients suspected of having AIDS to

identify associated risk factors, and a study of risk factors

for transmission of AIDS in heterosexual couples in which one

partner contracted AIDS from a blood transfusion. In another

project, Department researchers and five participating

hospitals are studying HIV transmission from infected mother to

child. A series of blind and anonymous serosurveys are

planned, to shed greater light on current infection patterns,

especially among womer of childbearing age.

provide fundina _to increase massive public health

education risk reduction efforts. We must have more support

for the programs we are already operating: the Hotline,

training programs, community-based presentations, counseling

and testing. Additionally, we need more funding to allow more

community-based groups to take on more responsibilities for

continuing the educational programs we have established. We

- 9 -
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desperatel" need more maCia programs on AIDS services and risk

reduction.

Support poliCies_that eliminate thef0110A1ChOtomv

between civil liberties and public health. Stands nn issues

such as contact tracing and mandatory antibody test.ng have at

times been portrayed as sacrificing public health in the name

of civil liberties. Yet the approaches taken by New York City

are based on sound public health principles; virtually all

public health professionals agree that public health would be

hindered by control measures such as mandatory testing -- as

well as by ill-conceived judicie opinions such as the Justice

Department's opinion last year, although the Supreme Court

decision in the Arline case takes a substantial step toward

overturning the inappropriate Justice Department decision.

The AIDS epidemic, and our understanding of it, is

growing and changing constantly. Responsible policy must be

continually reexamined againrt these changing conditions, and

be modified if necessary to reflect current knowledge of

disease transmission while at the same time remain flexible

enough to accommodate important discoveries.

Biomedical research cannot eliminate the problem of AIDS

in the short run. Education, health promotion, and risk

reduction will remain our critical weapons in the fight against

AIDS for at least the next several years. Those of us in a

position to influence policy must do all we can to advance

these weapons against this major and mounting health problem in

New York City, across the United States, and around the world.

- End -
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Mr. Mass. Thank you very much, Dr. Joseph. To a significant
extent, I think you have responded in your testimony to the ques-
tions that we have prepared. I welcome the material that you have
supplied. While we can't include all of it in the record, because of
the volume, we will keep it in our archives and use it that way. I
want to make special note of the subway and bus posters that
you've referred to. Will you show that, Jim? How long has that
been used?

Dr. JOSEPH. That went up last summer, I believe in May or June
1986. The other one, "Women Can Get AIDS, Too"both of these
are in English and Spanish. You're showing the English versionsthis went up a month ago. I think, you know, these are important,
but there's no singe channel answer. We need mass media activity,
we need a great expansion of our hotline.

In my written testimony, I talk about our hotline being expanded
from seven telephonesfrom four telephones to seven. Since that
testimony was written at the end of the last week. we've expandedfrom 7 to 14. You'll hear from others about voluntary hotlines inthe city. I think we've got to move on the educational front, com-
pletely across the board. In the schools, with the hotlines, commu-
nity outreach, one on one on the street and in the galleries, massmedia on TV, subway posters. We really have to go with every
weapon that we have.

Mr. Muss. Are your mass media efforts based on contributed
time and talent, or are you paying?

Dr. Jostmt. The mass media campaigns that I mentioned are pro
bono efforts on the part of the advertising agencies, but the produc-
tion costs, as you know, need to be paid for. We received $00,000
specifically for mass media efforts from the city council in thisbudget, and those moneys will be used up in the two campaigns
that I'm describing for the spring.

Mr. Weiss. You have our gratitude and sincere appreciation for
taking the time to come down for this hearing today, and for the
ongoing tremendous work that you are doing in the city of New
York.

Dr. JOSEPH. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I do apologize
again, both to you and my colleagues on the panel for dashing off.
Thank you.

Mr. WEISS. Thank you.
Ms. Gebbie, we'll hear from you next.

STATEMENT OF KRISTINE M. GEBBIE, R.N., I.N., ADMINISTRA-
TOR, HEALTH DIVISION, OREGON DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RE-
SOURCES

Ms. GEBBIE. Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the opportunity to behere, and to represent particularly the AIDS education concernsand interests of the parts of the country other than those with the
highest incidences of the disease. I come riot only as the head of the
health division for the State of Oregon, but as the chair of the
AIDS Committee for the Association of State and Territorial
Health Officials. One of our major efforts has been to provide somepolicy guidance for our member States, being particularly interest-
ed in States which had a low incidence of the disease early on, and
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were able in part to insulate themselves from working on this epi-
demic early because of a broad public perception that this disease
would not crossin our case, the boundary of Californiaan invisi-
ble barrier.

Because of the difficr I t nature of this epidemic, the fact that you
cannot talk about it long without t.91king about death and sex;
without talking about homosexuality, which is taboo in many
areas; it was easier for many parts of the public to say, "not me,"
rather than to say "what can we do to prevent it from becoming a
high incidence disease in our locality?" For that reason I differenti-
ate the educational campaign into two components. One is the fac-
tual educational campaign about the disease, what it can do, and
what should be done about it. And then the second part, that
which goes beyond that, to teach the behavior change necessary to
prevent spread of the disease.

The first part, just the basic education is necessary to get people
interested in what they need to do, and also to allay the panic
which complicated our educational efforts at the beginning. The
second part, the behavior change, is necessary for anyone who is
putting themselves at risk of the disease, in order to reduce spread.

A major part of the problem with this educational effort is the
luxury we have not had, of testing what to do first, seeing what
really, really works and then_putting it into effect in an organized,
very slowly developed way. We've had to leap in and do things,
testing them as we go, operating out of the best informed estimates
of public health workers, who are familiar with epidemics, out of
the efforts of those familiar with people at high risk, and then to
put our evaluation campaigns in place as we go along.

Oregon is typical, I think, of most States, in that our educational
activities are organized at a statewide level, providing resources,
materialsprinted materials, videotapes and the likebut carried
out at the local level, through community-based groups, and
through our local health departments, who can tailc- activities to
the experiences of each separate community. That experience at
the State level I think, is a parallel of what happens nationally.
We need to be able to tailor our educational programs to the differ-
ent demographics, the different social attitudes, the different vo-
cabularies of each area of this country, or ofeach State.

I'd like to go through some of the separate target audiences that
we have focused on within Oregon, again because I think it's typi-
cal, and because it illustrates the diversity with which educational
materials need to be developed.

The first target audience are public health officials. We needed
people in every single one of our 35 local health departments, at
least 1 person who could respond to public questions, who could co-
ordinate alternate site testing activities, field questions about that,
and who can provide the public speaking that s needed on a regu-
lar basis in every part of the State. We did that through a program
of training trainers in every local health department, major educa-
tional eftbrts that were undertaken before any Federal funds were
available to a State like ours.

A second major target audience for us are all other health pro-
viders. Physicians, nurses, dentists, emergency medical services
providers, you name them, they're on our target list. We have tried

12&
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to work with their own associations. For example, the Oregon Med-
ical Association has sponsored a road show education program to
reach family practitioners and other primary care providers out-
side of the metropolitan area. The Association of Practitioners in
Infection Control has provided a ready to move road show that will
go into any institution receiving its first AIDS patient to go over
attitudinal information, and to go over basic infection control infor-
mation for the nursing or housekeeping or other staff as they have
their first encounter with this disease. We need to continue to
repeat that kind of program. As has been referenced several times
earlier today, many health care providers have yet to see their first
patient with AIDS, have yet to really take on their responsibility
for education, and it will take continued reinforcement from public
health officials and from professional associations to get all of the
health providers participating in this.

A third major target audience for us has been school officials. We
started with them by developing policies for school practices, trying
to have policies in place prior to a first public confrontation on ad-
mission of a child to school. We have yet 4-o have such a public con-
frontation. I'd like to believe it's because we won't ever have a
major public confrontation, that the policies are in place, and a
child's first enrollment in school will be very quiet. But in fact, as
is true of many States, we do not yet have school age children of
any number with this disease. That foot in the door of developing
policies with the school board, with the school principals, with the
school superintendents, with the PTA, was also our starting point
for making schools aware of the need for education, and provided
us with a foundation of a relationship that then lets us come back
and say, "now what are you going to do about curriculum? You've
got the policies, now you need the knowledge." And we have been
nble to move on to that.

A fourth target audience, current high risk groups, are being
reached as much through the counseling and testing programs as
they are through any form of mass education program. We see
those groups needing much more personalized education. We are
using our community-based groups, such as our AIDS networks,
and our drug abuse treatment programs to reach out to the identi-
fied high risk groups.

Our fifth major target audience are young people not yet experi-
menting with drugs or sexual activity. References have been made
earlier today to curriculum activities in the high school and in the
junior high school. I want to emphasize that that education has to
go down to the grade school level. I only have to look at the girls

pregnantwho are 11 who get regnant every year in Oregon to know that
waiting until junior h school is too late to teach people about
safe sex activities. And we have in fact got scho,..25 down to the
grade school level in Oregon providing educational materials on
AIDS. It is specifically tailored in each case to the abilities of that
student group, and it is not uniform across the State. We have a
high school curriculum available across the State, that's in place in
50 schools-50 school districts, out of our 300. We hope to have it
statewide within another year. We have a middle school i;urricu-
lum available and taking it statewide. It has helped break the bar-
rier of many discussions of sexually related activity in the schools.

1 -2
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You have heard much mention already this morning of sexually
active heterosexuals, and the need for a broad based public educa-
tion campaign, so that all people who may be at risk of this disease
grasp that the threat is outside of the previously talked about high-
risk groups, and that anybody is at risk. Women are a special
target in this group in our State as elsewhere, and we do see the
masa media as a major participant here. We have, like other
places, had the donation of public advertising firms to help us with
that campaign.

I will add, anybody else who doesn't fit in the above groups as
our final target audience. There are people who may not be sexual-
ly active today, or who may be in a mutually monogamous relation-
ship since prior to 1977, who still need all of the basic information
to support the activities. One of our goals is to have every single
service organization in the State of Oregon, the Lions, the Kiwanis,
the Rotary, the PTA, to have an AIDS topic on their regular pro-
gram sometime in the next year, so that we really reach out to a
broader audience. That helps break the barrier of talking aL ut
things like sexual activity. It gets people thinking about what they
need to do in the school, in the workplace and other places.

Let me close with a brief reference to resources. I concur with
the thrust of several things that have been said this morning, that
a bigger Federal investment is necessary. I think we could easily
double the Federal investment in education, and spend the money
wisely, particularly on dissemination of information, and on the
evaluation of what works and doesn't work. I think that can best
be done nationally.

But I want to underscore the need for continued State and local
resources because that's what promotes ownership of the program,
and allows the tailoring of the program to what works in the com-
munity, and gets around that barrier of denying that this is a par-
ticular local problem, not just in New York or San Francisco, but
in Portland and John Day, and Halfway, Oregon, and all those
other places that I'm trying to reach, and my counterparts in every
other State are trying to reach.

We need the national leadership, but we need to collaborate, and
that will expand the dollars exponentially to what we can do.
Thank you very much.

Mr. Wmss. Thank you very much, Ms. Gebbie.
[The prepared statement of Ms. Gebbie follows:]
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Department of Human Resources

HEALTH DIVISION
1400 S.W 5th AVENUE, PORTLAND, OREGON 97201 PHONE

(503)229-5032

March 13, 1987

PEMEDITATIONOraaTILAUELTEanismf

TO: Human Resources and Intergovernmental Relations
Subcommittee

PROM: Kristine Gebbie, Administrator
Oregon Health Division
Chair, AIDS Committee, ASTHO

AIDS ADOCATIDS

A major component of each state's public health program in response to
the epidemic of Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome (AIDS) and infection
with Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) is education. This is an
essential component because lack of information about the virus, the
disease it causes, its method of spread, the ability of individuals to
choose behavior which can eliminate or greatly reduce the risk of
infection is one of the major weapons available to combat both the
spread of the disease and spread of the panic which has complicated our
public health effort. Any educational program has two components,
education about HIV infection and AIDS and education to prevent the
spread of HIV infection and therefore AIDS. The factual information
about the disease, its methods of spread, its effect on the body and the
complex of social reactions which surround it are necessary for health
providers to accurately deal with their patients or their communities
and to dispell the myths and rumors that have complicated our effort.
Education to prevent spread of the virus must not only include the facts
and figures but be capable of motivating people to change their behavior
or to maintain a behavior pattern which can protect them from the
disease.

In all parts of the education we have been putting programs into
practice without the luxury of carefully controlled test programs to
identify exactly 'which form of education, which style of presentation,
what level of detail, or other variables will effect the learning which
takes place, the retention of that learning, and the actual effect of
the learning on behavior. We are using the best informed estimates of
experienced public health workers of those familiar with groups at high
risk of this infection and implen.a=ting evnluation programs as as we go
along.
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As with a large number of public health programs in this country. AIDS

Prevention education is being organized at the level of state public

health agencies but is further particularized and carried out by local

health agencies. In some jurisdictions, very large local health
departments are carrying out programs which may be bigger than the state
programs with which they relate. This is particularly true in those
large cities which have very high rates of infection and of the disease
and have had substantial public health resources available in general.

Oregon is typical of many states in which the program development and
general framework are being organized at the statewide level with the

day to day activity carried out at the local level allowing materials
to be tailored to the experiences. attitudes, and resources of the local
community.

leaux_manants
For a variety of reasons, the educational programs are targetted at
several different audiences, each of which need different levels of

detail on the virus, its spread, its effect on individuals, the methods
of preventing infection, and methods of dealing with those who have been
exposed, who have been infected or who are experiencing illness

Briefly, important audiences include:

(1) Public health officials - each public health agency must have
staff who are knowledgeable about this disease.
can coordinate efforts at the local level and participate
in the educational program. In Oregon, we have prepared
local health officials in two ways, first with a basic
education program that prepares them to participate in
our alternate site testing program and in epidemiologic
activities, and second , through a train the trainer
program which prepares them to provide educations/
Programming within their local jurisdiction.

(2) Other health Providers - this target audience is
important (1) because they will be caring fox or
responding to infected individuals or ill individuals
and (2) because they are looked to as a resource by the
worried members of the community seeking accurate
information about the disease. In Oregon, providers have
scheduled AIDS related programs onto regular meetings
of their associations. The Association of Practitioners

14
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in Infection Control have provided core training
for health care institutions regarding infection control
practices and appropriate response to hospitalized
infected persons. The Oregon Medical Association, has
cooperated in an educational program geared at the
practicing physician who is not specializing in
infectious diseases but may be seeing the worried well
or the exposed person seeking testing or information.
This program has been well received and will be
repeated in various geographic areas of the state.

(3) School officials - because of the major public
policy problem caused with the admission of
children with AIDS in other states, school officals
were an early target of education, primarily througn
the development of policies regarding the admission of
children with AIDS to school. Working through
associations of school 3ards, school administrators.
educators, the State Department of Education, sufficient
information was provided to facilitate the adoption of
the policies. Work is now going on with the Department
of Education regarding implementation of an AIDS
curriculum in all schools. A high school level
curriculum is available and is being utilized in many
schools. One of our next targets is to adapt this
curriculum for use with younger students. As schools
become interested in use of the curriculum, teachers,
administrators and parents must be educated so that
implementation of the program goes smoothly. In each
school district. there are unique resources and needs
which must be taken into account in planning and
presenting the material.

(4) Current high risk groups - this is the area of education
that has probably received the most attention and of
which many people are aware. Education within the gay
community and within :.he drug using community is being
done utilizing the resources of those already familiar
with these communities. In Oregon, as elsewhere, the
community-based AIDS organizations which have grown out of the
gay community have been particularly active and effective and

1
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have brought resources and capacities to the program which

could not have been quickly developed, if at all.
within the public health community. The programs
working with drug abusers have also become actively
involved in identifying ways of reaching out to their

group.

(5) Young pcople not yet experimenting with drugs or sexual

activity - this is the target audience for the school-

based program. The middle school and upper grade school level

is key to stopping spread of the disease in the next

generation of adults. We have not got comprehensive materials

available yet. As school officials, which were mentioned as a

target audience earlier, become informed, they will be able to

work more actively with the health agencies in designing

materials. This program particularly must be geared to the

individual attitudes and experiences of each local community

because of the history of concern about any information
on sexuality in the schools.

(6) Sexually active heterosexuals - this group has until very
recently succeeded in denying the risk for AIDS and HIV

infection and is one of the groups with the fastest growth of

rate of infection. While general media attention has
made some members of this group aware of their potential

risk, we have not yet got clear programs which we can

assure ourselves are changing behavior. Approaches

will have to be on a large scale using general public

education and advertising techniques.

(7) Anybody else who didn't fit into the above groups -
This includes. for example, all employers In order

to prepare them for their first experience with a known

infected person in the worksite to improve infection
control practices in first aide stations. to encourage

consideration of issues related to continued employment
and insurance coverage for those with AIDS.

RIMIIKELEORJEICATIA
Education is one of the most important components of the attack on HIV

infection. In response to recent questions about a much broader use of
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the HIV antibody test. I and many othe: public health officials pointed
out that as weapons to fight this infection, each antibody teat done is
a tradeoff against dollars that could be spent on education and in many
cases, the tradeoff to use of the teat is not a wise investment of
dollars. I believe education programs meat be "owned" by the public
through their public health agencies at all levels. This allows the
particularlisation of the program to local needs, the involvement of a
broader group of people in preparation and delivery of materials and a
much better funded program than we probably would have if any one level
of government were totally responsible for it.

Op until the present, the State of Oregon. both at the state and locallevel, is spending at least one dollar of local resources for every
dollar of federal funding available for AIDS education. This is, in
fact, probably more likely to be one and a half to two times but it is
impossible to fully calculate the dollar value of the volunteer hours
which have been utilised. Budgetting for the next two years. it looks
more likely that local resourceds will be three timez what we are
currently anticipating from the federal effort. More federal dollars
certainly could be used Lit as indicated earlier, fully funding
education federally a) may not be affordable and b) may not be the best
because it could reduce the local ownership and commitment to the
program.

There are some things that can be best bought at a nationwide level and
could support local activities. From my perspective, a major one is the
evaluation of our educational efforts. We have been implementing
programs based on intuition and experience with other diseases. We know
this disease is different. The social response has made that clear. We
are implementing what is our best shot but we must have extensive
evaluation of our effectiveness. That evaluation must be long term and
must allow comparison of different groups and experiences in different
areas. Such evaluations are. I think. best developed and supported at a
national level. That would also allow a federal role in communicating
quickly across the country the results of work and experiences so that
adaptations can be made based on emerging knowledge.

Another major role for the federal agencies and one that is being
developed well in the new plan for education is that of preparing the
national leadership in key areas regarding AIDS so that they can.
through their own networks, prepare local groups to be responsive to
local education. An example of this is work with national school-
related associations and organizations so that when a local school
district is approached by a local health department they not only get
the message about AIDS and its prevon..ion at that level but can look to
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their national association of educators, of PTA's, of school principals,
for reinforcement. 1 want to emphasize that the national work loos not
replace the local efforts. Iducation must be organised and delivered
locally but the national work is reinforcing.

It is difficult to put a speciiic dollar amount on the need, but
experience in Oregon would indicate that amounts of .oney spent on
education could be doubled effectively for the next several years to
allow for adequate development of the teaching materials needed and
outreach to all target audiences. State and local health officials are
eager to continue collaborating wit: their federal colleagues in
preventing further spread of HIV infection. Education is one of the
most potent weapons.
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Mr. %ass. Ms. Stroud.

STATEMENT OF FLORENCE STROUD, R.N., M.P.H., DEPUTY DIREC-
TOR FOR COMMUNITY PUBLIC HEALTH PROGRAMS, SAN FRAN-
CISCO DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Ms. STROUD. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My comments today are
going to be focused on our efforts with adolescents, but I wanted to
take the opportunity to second a couple of comments Dr. Joseph
made, with respect to needed funding for expansion of testing pro-
grams.

We believe both in our alternative test sites, as well as our pro-
vider-based testing, that more Federal money is needed not only for
the analysis of the tests, but for some of the kinds of education and
counseling that have to go on with individuals who come for the
test, and community residents from where they come. So I would
certainly echo the need in the high prevalence area of San Francis-
co, for increased money for alternative testing and provider testing,
and increased money for methadone treatment of our IV drug
users.

There's been a great deal of discussion today about the National
Academy of Sciences report, and I wanted to start my testimony
with one of its recommendations as it related to young people. Spe-
cial attention must be paid to AIDS education for young people in
schools and colleges, many of whom are entering periods of experi-
mentation with sex and drugs. Frank discussion of behaviors that
do and do not transmit HIV has become an urgent necessity for
this target population. I think it's within the spirit of that recom-
mendation that we in San Francisco decided that we must move
quickly to provide public education to our adolescents and to our
preadolescents living in San Francisco. I would like to describe
three specific programs or projects for you today.

The first has to do with a school-based education. In the fall of
1985, a survey was conducted among high schoolers in San Francis-
co, primarily to find out what they knew about AIDS, whether they
wanted accurate information about the disease, and whether they
believed that it ought to be a part of their school curriculum.

Many of us working in San Francisco were really kind of sur-
prised that there was so much misinformation among our adoles-
cents who really were exposed to a media that talked about AIDS
all the time. However, the reality was that there was a lot of mis-
information. Students wanted accurate information, and they
almost unanimously agreed that it ought to be a Nat of the regu-
lar school curriculum.

A joint task force was formed, including teachers, parents, health
department staff, and school board staff. And that group developed
a joint policy not only in management of children with HIV infec-
tion, but it also developed a plan on how youngsters in the district
ought to be educated.

We came up with what we felt was a short-term and long-term
strategy. The short-term strategy was that in May of last year, all
students, grades 9 through 12, 25,000 of them, would not leave
school that year without having participated in a one class session
on AIDS. We now call it AIDS-101 for kids.

1
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The longer term strategy required that we needed to runtrain
a sore of teachers who felt comfortable, who were well informed,
and who could teach in the district about AIDS, and to develop a
curriculum for the middle schoolers, grade 6 through 8, as well as
the high schoolers.

The one class session response was gratifying from students.
They learned information, you had a pre- and poet -test, so we knew
what they learned, or could remember at least at that point, and
they were able to transfer the knowledge very well. But more im-
portant, we provided for them an opportunity to call our public
health centers if they had need for answers to other questions. We
were very gratified that a number of the students, very sexually
active students, who felt they could not discuss some of their own
concerns in the classroom, availed themselves of our health cen-
ters, where they could discuss one on one, what the danger of con-
tracting AIDS was, how they could prevent it, and how they might
protect themselves. We decided that one session experience was so
good, that we're going to do it again this year in May.

In the meantime, during the summer of 1986, we were able to get
money from CDC to train a core of teachers, and that began last
summer and fall. We now have 130 teachers in the. San Francisco
unified school district who are trained, r-d I must say that it's im-
possible for school districts to release teachers for training without
some kind of outside funding. Most of our districts are very
strapped in terms of funds for education, and unless there is out-
side funding to relieve teachers who can be trained, and they can
be adequately trained in 5 days, then we're not going to have
people who can competently implement the kinds of curriculum
that are being designed.

We've just completed the curriculum. It will be out in print, in
fact it probably was on Friday, for the middle school and the high
school students, and I've included an outline of that curriculum, so
that you get a little flavor of what is included in the curriculum.

The elementaryI mean, also, to agree with Ms. Gebbie that it's
important that the elementary age youngsters know about human
reproduction, disease control, and self-esteem. And the later ele-
mentary age youngsters need more explicit information, I think,
about human sexuality.

Let me move quickly to a second effort that we've been involved
in, and it was one using a medium that is a part of the adolescent
culture, particularly the black and Hispanic culture in our commu-
nity. And we were very alarmed at the high rates of STD's among
blacks and Hispanics in San Francisco.

We decided to borrow from the whopping medium that is so pop-
ular among our kids, and we initiated a rap contest. The purpcie
was, not only to have the kids develop messages in their own lan-
guage that they could give to their peers, but we also did it because
we wanted to get a foothold in youth serving agencies in San Fran-
cisco, so that we cotZdato back time and time again to reenforce
the message about prevention. The contest, we felt, was a
monumental success. We offered the kids money for the first three
winning raps. They grasped the information very well. They put it
to poetry and a beat. And we used local media folks who agreed to
produce PSA's out of the winning raps. And they're in the process
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of doing that. The winning rap, by the way, was held on Monday,
March 9. So, we've just completed that., and we're really delighted
at how adolescents grasped this information, and how they can
convey it.

We don't know whether or not it was enough to change or
modify people's behavior. And again, we believe one of the roles
the Federal Government can play is to assist those of us at the
local level who come up with innovative programs, to help us
evaluate which strategies seem to be effective in modifying behav-
ior of kids who are already sexually active; which strategies seem
to be effective in helping kids delay initiating sexual activity.

And the third thing I'll briefly run through is a series of radio
messages. We are not unaware of youngsters in our community
who are almost always with their little boxes. And they listen to
the radio, and we figure that some 80 to 1,000 of our kids listen to
the radio daily. And we decided to develop a series of radio mes-
sages at times when they listen, when they're not in school, for
those who are in school, but in the early evening and in the early
morning. These messages will be aired twice a day over ethnic sta-
tions in San Francisco. And after each message, those listening to
the messages will be given two or three phone numbers of places
they can go, should they like to discuss further the messages that
they've heard.

I also would like to reemphasize the fact that, I believe, for the
Adolescent, any kind of educational program has to be multidimen-
sional in order to reach our youngsters. And I also would like to
reinforce that it is important that teachers be trained, that teach-
ers can, with intensive training, deal with some of their own hang-
ups about human sexuality, learn about AIDS, and be as effective
in providing education, as many of the health providers that we
work with.

Another thing I wanted to say, and I think it's critical as we
impact on minority communities, that there has to be an attempt
to educate at the infrastructure of each of those communities.
We've begun working in churches and community groups because
we know the kids who get our information go back to those com-
munities, and go back to those churches. And it is very difficult,
when you're talking about a disease like AIDS, and you come
smack into some religious beliefs that will not allow people to
really hear Ifou.

And I believe in the future we will need more funding to really
work with those community groups, and try to change some of the
religious attitudes that really, I think, will at some point impede
our ability to get the information where it ought to be.

It is critical at the local level that there be coordination and col-
laboration between local governmental entities, as well as collabo-
ration and coordination among private agencies. We would not
have been able to produce the PSA's that are now in process had
we not been able to find a production company that gave us, not
pro bono, but at a marked discount their time and their skills to
shake these PSA's, so that they would really appeal to teenagers.
That kind of collaboration and coordination, I think, is essential.

And the last thing I want to say is, I do support the National
Academy's recommendation that for public education there is a
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need for a total of $1 billion from Government and private sources
in public education through the year 1991 or 1990.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Stroud follows:]
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One of the recommendations on public education made by the National Academy of

Sciences' Committee on a National Strategy for AIDS reads as follows:

"Special attention must be paid to AIDS education for young

people in schools and colleges, many of whom are entering

periods of experimentation with sex and drugs. Frank

die -usaion of behaviors that do and do not transmit HIV has

become an urgent necessity for this target population."

It is the spirit and substance of that recommendation that has guided and

informed our educational efforts with youth in San Francisco. I would like to

describe three separate but related projects in which we are involved that are

designed to educate our youth who are in school, as well as those who are not.

I. School-based Education

In the Fall of 1985, a survey was conducted among high school students in

our public school system to determine (a) what they knew about AIDS, (b)

whether they wanted accurate information about the disease, and (c) whether

they believed it ought to be a part of their school curriculum. The results

revealed that students had a lot of misinformation about AIDS, that they wanted

accurate information and that they believed it ought to be a part of the

curriculum.

A joint task force including teachers, parents and Health Department staff was

formed to develop a policy and plane for educating students. This policy was

adopted by the School Board and Health Commission. The program that grew from

this joint policy had a short-term and long-term strategy.

The short-term strategy required that during the Spring of 1986, students would

have at least one class aession on AIDS. The longer-term strategy required the

development of a curriculum on AIDS for middle school and high school students,

and special training of teachers.

Students' response to the one-class session:, was very gratifying. Students

really wanted information and, after some initial uneasiness, asked excellent

0 '



questions about the disease, how it was spread and how they could protect

themselves. Parents were given the opportunity to review materials and to

attend special evening meetings to discuss the classes.

We have just completed three separate, four-day teacher tra.leing courses for

middle school, high school and elementary teachers. The middle and high school

curriculum has been completed after piloting it at several elites, and is now in

use.

Funding for theae activities was provided by the Health Impartment and the

School District with the exception of a $60,000 grant froo CDC for teacher

training and curricuAum development. The pro,...t could have moved more

expealtiously had more federal funding been r qable, e.g. we would have

developed a more creoftle evaluation methodoiugy for documenting and evaluating

our efforts in a stepwise fashion, and we could have invested more time

working with private schools in our city.

II. Rap'n Contest

A second program we initiated was a rap'n contest - geared to youth from 13 to

19 years of age. This program enlisted youth who were in school, as well as

those who were not. Since rap'n is a contemporary form of communication among

adolescents, we felt it would be an effective medium to use for youth educating

other youth about ways to protect themselves about AIDS and prevent its

spread. The contest was followed by a series of meetings with those who

particiated so we could learn what they learned, determine whether it

modified their behavior, or helped them think more critically about the

consequences of certain sexual behavior and use of drugs. The winning "rape'

are being developed as television and radio PSAs. Staff from our Department

and several community agencies continue their work with the diverae youth in

our ccaaunity to reinforce the learning that has already occurred, and to

easiest youth to maintain more healthy behaviors (I've attached some of the

"raps" that the youth developed). We wish that we had the funds to follow a

cohort of there young people over time to determine whether our efforts, and

which educational strategies in particular, were effective in helping our youth

adopt wore healthy behaviors. This would assist ua and others in choosing

those community programa more likely to influence their behavior.

j[ f) .)
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III. Radio Messages

A third program developed to appeal to youth in school and out of school was a

aeries of radio mesaages about AIDS - what it is and how it can be

prevented. These one-minute information spots are being aired on key stations

that appeal to youth and are aired during those day and evening hours when

youngsters are known to tune in. Each message ends by directing the listener

to contact their local health department for more information and/or a physical

examination. We believe this technique has the potential for reaching

thousands of young people in a repetitive way. We will monitor inquiries to

our facilities that were prompted by the radio messages.

Our efforts to educate and change behavior of our youth were based on several

principles:

1. Didactic education, while necessary, was not sufficient to change

their behavior;

2. Educational strategies must be multifaceted if they are to appeal to

youth;

3. Programs must involve youth as teachers, and employ their own methods

for transmitting information:

4. There have to be ways, at a family and/or community level, to reinforce

learning in culturally sensitive and linguistically appropriate ways;

5. Programs will succeed only if there is viable collaboration between

local governmental entities and community agencies.

Local governments do not have the funding to mount the kinds of programs needed

to reach our youth. Local governments also can benefit from direction from

the federal government with respect to general kinds of programs that are

likely to succeed. This direction can and must be modified to local

environments. Again, I would support the Academy's recommendation that the

Federal government needs to develop a massive campaign to implement the

educational goals enunci,ted in their report. A budget of $1-billion dollars,

annually, by 1990 is a reasonable estimate for the multidimensional programs

that are warranted if we a:e to prevent the transmission of this lethal disease.
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AIDS EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM
PDR

SCHOOL-AGED YOUMSTERS

January 22, 1987

The Teacher's Curriculum Guide on AIDS has been designed and developed tc
prepare middle and high school teachers to provide current and accurate
information on AIDS for classroom instruction. This curriculum development is
part of a pilot project, a joint effort between the San Francisco Unified
School District and the San Francisco Department of Public Health. The pilot
project also includes a comprehensive Family Life Education/AIDS Teacher
Training program far elementary, middle, and high school teachers, as well as
monitored field testing of the curriculum guide by trained teachers. Funding
for this project has been provided by a grant from the Centers for Disease
Control. This collaborative endeavor has served to strengthen the efforts of
the School District and the Health Department to educate youth about AIDS and
related risk behaviors.

The Teacher's Curriculum Guide on AIDS is divided into four units and
preaents Information about AIDS within the context of other communicable
diseases. It is designed to be taught as either part of a comprehensive health
curriculum or in social studies, civics, history, contemporary social problems,
and /or science class. It has been written with a special focus on factual
information, as well as a focus on prevention behaviors and cognitive
processes. The prevention behaviors are identified and reinforced through the
use of age-appropriate activities. There will be both a middle school and high
school edition of this guide.

Teachers held responsible for delivering lessons based on this curriculum
guide require adequate preparation. Preparation should provide a background on
teaching human sexuality, responsible decision-making and specific strategies
for the reduction of risks associated with particular incimate (person -to-
person) activities.

Regardless of the prevailing social mores, it must be acknovledged that,
in any given adolescent population, some are likely to be sexually active or
approaching sexual activity which places them at risk for sexually transmitted
infections. constqaently, AIDS education in schools should be designed to
cover basic factual information to add to the student's knowledge base, and
elucidate specific behavioral strategies for avoidance of infections
transmitted through sexual and parenteral means. Tne specific strategies
should include, but not be limited to, choices such as abstinence, sut'ial
monogamy, and the use of condoms as barriers to infected sexual fluids.

On the following pages, you will find a detailed description of the Table
of Contents, as well as examples of two activities from the Teacher,:
Curriculum Guide on AIDS.
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TABLE OF CCNTENTS

Introduction

The Introduction defines the particular problems and issues that this
teacher's curriculum guide is designed to address and provides the reader with
an understanding of the need for such a guide.

Purpose of the Guide

This section identifies the overall goals of the vide as providing
teachers with practical and creative lesson plans for:

1) teaching adolescents basic information about AIDS; and

2) assisting adolescents in understanding their personal
responsibility for preventing HIV infection.

Suggestions for Using the Guide

This section offers specific strategies for utilizing the teacher's guide,
with special attention to the flexibility of the lesson plans. Teachers are
encouraged to use their discretion, in accordance with local guidelines, for
the selection of activities for particular classes or age groups.

Teacher Background Information

This section provides a comprehensive overview of the AIDS epidemic, with a
detailed description of how AIDS is transmitted, how it is not transmitted.
This section provides a comprehensive overview of acquired immunodeficiency
syndrome, including the current status of, and future projections for, the
epidemic. This section, along with the recmended resources, is intended to
serve as a basic primer on AIDS for those teachers who use this curriculum.

Special Considerations for Teaching About AIDS and Human Sexuality

Ia this section, the various psychosocial issues which impact the AIDS
epidemic arc identified and discussed. The issues are placed in the context
of Leaching about AIDS in the classroom and the range of emotional responses
that may be experienced by the tercher and/or that cal be expected from the
students. In addition, some basic guidelines for teaching human sexuality are
described and suggested for use in classroom presentations.

Unit 1 - Linking AIDS as a Communicable Disease

ills unit is des:glee to 1-welop an understanding of communicable diseases
and to place AIDS within the context of other communicable diseases.

J. 1
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Unit 2 - AIDS as a Communicable and Sexually Transmitted Disease

This unit is designed to offer basic information about AIDS, AIDS virus
transmission, symptoms of AIDS, transmission categories and risk behaviors.

Unit 3 - Risk Reduction and Prermtion of AIDS

This unit is designed to introduce risk reduction and prevention concepts,
identify risk reduction and prevention behaviors, and promote discussion of
these behaviors.

Unit 4 - AIDS and Our Community

This unit is designed to enable the student to understand the impact of
AIDS in his/her community al'd to learn how to locate and utilize community
resources and services.

Resources

This section will need to be adapted for each city. The guide will
describe AIDS- related resources locally and nationally, and provide an
explanation of hua to develop this section for a particular area.

Recommended Readings

Suggested readings on AIDS and related risk behaviors, sexually cc.nazatted
diseases, family life education, sex education in the schools, and special
concerns for adolescents will be included in this section for the teacher
requiring =re background on these subjects.

142
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EXAMPLE ACTIVITY (high school)

Unit 3

Video - Sex, Drugs and AIDS (high school)

Purpose

To introduce age-appropriate behaNioral strategies for reducing or preventing
the risk of infection with AIDS and other sexually transmitted diseases.

Time

One class period
Video viewing time: 20 minutes
Discussion: 30 minutes

Materials

Video camera recorder (VCR)
Monitor
Video - Sex, Drugs and AIDS (nigh school)

Preparation

Review the lecture on Risk Reduction and Prevention.
Preview the video to be used in your class.
Developing the activity:

1. Explain to the class they will be seeing a video which 4111 present
information on AIDS and highlight the essential points. Explain that
some of the people in the video are actors, but the representation of
people with AIDS is accurate.

2. After the screening, discuss the concept of risk as it was demonstrated
in the video.

Suggested questions for Sex, Drugs, and AIDS

1. Think about the first montage of clips showing people sharing food,

lipstick, hairbrushes, and soft drinks, using a pay phone and massaging
--are people at any risk for AIDS with these activities? What
activities do put people at risc for AIDS?

2. In the scene with the two people using intravenous needles, what could
they do to avoid getting AIDS or an: other bloodoorne disease?

3. For the woman who passed AIDS on to her baby, how might she have
prevented getting infected before she got pregnant?

4. The other people with LIDS - what can they do to protect their sex
partners?

5. How would you describe this video to a friend? What information would
you want to be sure to include?

1 12 04. so



ECAMPLE ACTIVITY (middle school)

Unit 3

Dear Abby-Dear Me letters.

Purpose

To provide students with an opportunity to practice using AIDS information as a
tool in prevention and for structured problem solving.

Time

One class period

Materials

Dear Abby - Dear Me

Preparation

Copy Dear Abby - Dear Me examples for each student

Developing the Activity

1. Distribute copies of the Dear Abby letters.

2. Instruct students to write brief responses to each letter. Allow 15
minutes for writing time.

3. Have students share and discuss their suggested solutions in pairs,
small groups or in a large class group.

4. Emphasize the prevention and risk-reduction aspects of the answer.
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Dear Abby - Dear Me

Dear Abby,

I've had it with my boyfriend. I'm afraid to break up with him because that
means I'll have to find someone else. How will I be able to find someone who
won't give me any diseases?

Signed, Dear Me!

Dear Abby,

I've been seeing this person for a long time. I've gone out with other people
all along, but this guy is special and I want to make a commitment to him. Do
you think that I should tell him about the other guys?

Signed, Dear Me!

Dear Abby,

What am i going to do? I really like this new girl in my class. We have gone
out a few times and I can tell she likes me, too. Do we have to talk about
having sex? What should I say to start the conversation? Help me soon -- we
have a date Friday night!!

Signed, Dear Me!

Dear Abby,

I have a friend who told me she has been shooting up. I heard a person can
get AIDS from using IV drugs. Is this true? What should I tell my friend?

Signed, Dear Me!

4 I)
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Carlos DuBose (16)
308 Eddy Street #606
San Francisco, CA 94112
673-3750

People in the world you've got to understand,
the life that you lead is beheld in your hands.

I know you like big things the life that is yours,

there's nothing here bigger, close to or more.

There's organs in your body that must be used right,
your brain is the first it controls all your might.
It's captive educaaon that all people need,
it wouldn't want cocaine, heroin or weed.

You like to get high it makes one be
foolish in the mind unable to work.
You see every day in life's society,
tt destroys and voids your immunity.

The next in line the vagina and the penis,
these parts of the body should be kept the cleanest.
And the fellas when your horny and usin' your erection,

the condoms in the world are oeant for protection.

Birth control stops babies for =wanting mothers,
rubber StOpor diseases carried by others.
AIDS a disease by sex it's transmitted,
sharing needles with another is how it's permitted.

So I've said my rhyme so very well,
I'm not playin' whm I'm sayin' - in life don't fail.

147
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No name

MY MISSION

My is to make sure you never use drugs again.
But that's not all that I'm gonna say,
I'm gonna talk about the ways that you can catch AIDS.

Listen up people this is not a game,
I'm gonna put it to you straight and very plain.
See we got a problem going on in the world,
and it's killing young boys and lots of young girls.

It's drugs and AIDS they kill everyday,
and to catch the AIDS virus you aon't have to be gay.
Drugs can kill you rtope your hearing me well,
all drugs will do for you is put you in jail.

So don't shoot up and least of all share,
I'm tellin' you this cause I really do care,
because it's only two ways that you can catch AIDS,
by sharing needles and unsafe sex play.

Sex, respect it, so before you inject it,
you should wear a condom so you don't get infected
with the AIDS virus that's easily collected.

This rapp is fact not intuition,
and I'm tellin you this because it is my mission.

He's master "Da 'nd I'm rappin "J"
and on the microphone now I'm Easy Drea
and we're the RUSH - IT CREW rappin hear today.
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Mr. Wens. Thank you very muck, Ms. Stroud and Ms. Gebbie.
Your testimony was very impressive and comprehensive. We're
grateful to you both for taking the time to travel all the way from
the west coast to give us the benefit of your experience and your
knowledge.

I have one question for each of you.
Ms. Gebbie, as of March 2, 1987, the State of Oregon liar had a

total of 126 AIDS cases; and_ yet, you've been active in setting .up
State education programs. Have you had any difficulty gaining
public and financial support for these programs?

Ms. Gssant. Yes, we've had some. We started asking for AIDS
programs at a time when Oregon as a State was still barely recov-
ering from a very deep recession. We've cut into State government
p over the last 5 years, and it is very awkward to show
up bettwweeen legislative sessions, when agencies are pinching, and to
say, "And by the way, I'd like some additional general funds to
fight this disease at which we have barely yet seen in our State."

Fortunately, we've had a lot of cooperation from the community-
based AIDS organizations, from the gay community, from our local
health departments, so it is not just me delivering that message.
And I think we've been quite successful in the message that we can
keep Oregon a low AIDS State only if we invest in education. And
even the physicians in Oregon who are caring for our AIDS pa-
tients, and might be expected to plead first for research or treat-
ment money, almost always preface their speeches with a plea for
education funding within the State. That kind of support across the
community did make it possible for us to get some State economic
support. It's still not sufficient for what we want.

And I suspect if I can accurately count our budget, it would come
close to increasing between 50 and 100 percent through the volun-
teer hours that have been spent by community-based groups, pri-
vate practitioners of medicine and nursing, public health people
working far beyond whatever paid hours they put in. It's imeossi-
ble to calculate what effect that has. But in a relatively small state
where you can almost get everybodyin numbers not necessarily
geographywhere you can almost get everybody in the same room
face to face when you need them, you develop a personal commit-
ment to conquer a problem that expands the dollar resources con-
siderably.

Mr. Wlass. Thank you.
Ms. Stroud, have parents generally been receptive to AIDS edu-

cation for their children? Have any asked that their children be
kept away from AIDS curriculum? What has been the parental re-
sponse?

Ms. STROUD. Very few parents. In May of last year when we did
the one class sessions we had three parents who decided their chil-
dren should not participate in that session. There were 24,000 stu-
dents ".ho participated in the session, and only three parents who
dissented.

I might mention, also, that we sent our materials and have been
in communication with the Catholic Diocese of San Francisco, as
well as independent schools in San Francisco; and theythe inde-
pendent schools have asked for our consultation. And so far with
the Catholic Diocese they have been attending our joint meetings,
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but we have yet to learn whether or not the materials are being
implemented. I would anticipate more resistance there than we ex-
perienced in the public schools.

Mr. Woes. I thank you both very, very much, and want to com-pliment you and your respective governmental organizations for
the work that you've been doing in this area.

Thank you.
Appearing on our fourth and final panel will be individuals

whose organizations provide a range of services including health
care, housing, public education, and counseling for persons withAIDS and our communities. They are Richard Dunne, executive di-
rector of Gay Men's Health Crisis, New York City; Gilberto Gerald,
director of minority affairs, National AIDS Network; Dr. Michael
J. Rosenberg, executive director of American Social Health Asso-
ciation; and, George Swales, master of arts, director of Sunnye
Sherman AIDS Education Project, Whitman Walker Clinic, Wash-
ington, DC.

Please remain standing and raise you right hand. Do you affirmthat the testimony you are about to give will be the truth, the
whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

Let the record indicate that all the witnesses have responded inthe affirmative.
Let me welcome each of you and express our appreciation for

your participation and for having the commitment to stay on
through the earlier panels' testimony.

We will start with you, Mr. Dunne, and then go on to the others.
We have your prepared statements and they will be entered into
the record in their entirety. 'lease summarize them or present
them as you think most appropriate.

STATEMENT OF RICHARD DUN 44 EXECUTIVE DIRECTCR, GAY
MEN'S HEALTH CRISIS

Mr. DUNNE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for the apportunity to
testify this afternoon before this subcommittee and for your leader-ship over the years on this issue.

I would like to talk today about AIDS information and education
and the role voluntary community-based organizations such as Gay
Men's Health Crisis have played and continue to play in this im-portant activity.

I believe that when future historians look back on this period, itwill be the consensus judgment that AIDS was the most important
event in this country in the second half of the century. Barring oneor more medical miracles, by the year 1991, there will be 270,00e
cumulative cases of AIDS; 180,000 people will have died of AIDS bythen. Eighty percent or more of these cases have already been diag-
nosed or are already infected. For almost all of those 300,000
people, in other words, it is already too late. Those 180,000 almost
certain fatalities by the year 1991 are more than three times the
number of Americans who died in the Vietnam war.

I also believe that this epidemic has been ahead of us and cer-tainly ahead of the Fedc-al Government since the moment this
virus arrived on these shores some 8 years or more aga Despite
very remarkable progress on the biomedical front, despite changes

/
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in the sexual behavior of the primary risk group, and despite the
heroic effort of many individuals, this epidemic is still out of con-
trol more than 5 years after it was first recognized.

One need only look at the mortality figures in New York City
where AIDS is now the leadir.g cause of death for all men between
the ages of 25 and 49 and for women between the ages of 25 and 29.
In certain health districts in New York City, as many as one of
every four deaths in the last 5 years was caused by AIDS.

Even after nearly 6 years of an epidemic, we still look for nation-
al leadership from the administration. We have heard today, as we
have heard in the past, of the administration's plans to begin z na-
tional education campaign. Yut, despite the best efforts of the sci-
entific community, biomedical research cannot eliminate AIDS in
the short term and education is the only preventive tool.

The fact is, however, that we require no new technological break-
throughs to limit the spread of AIDS. We already understand
enough about the cause and transmissio of the AIDS virus to give
people the knowledge they need to protect themselves.

Every segment of society needs to know enough about AIDS so
that each individual can make informed decisions about his or her
behavior. We have had considerable success in informing health
care workers mid gay and bisexual men and yet compared to what
needs to be done, we have only really begun.

Every youth old enough to engage in se:' a1 relationships or to
experiment with intravenous drugs needs to be educated about
drugs. Every adult sexually active ou+sioe a mutually monogamous
relationship, every gay and bisexual man, every intravenous drug
Wiser, needs to know the tools that can protect them and others,
and those tools are the condom and the sterile needle.

Special efforts need to be made in minority communities. We
usually perceive AIDS as an illness that mostly affects gay men
and intravenous drug users. From another perspective, AIDS is an
illness of people of rolor. Blacks and Hispanics represent 53 per-
cent of the case: in New York City and 45 percent nationally. Ac-
cording to a recent report from the Centers for Disease Control,
blacks and Hispanics are overrepresented in every single risk
group for AIDS except hemophiliacs. Clearly, the minority commu-
nity should be targeted for special education efforts.

I would like to outline for you some of Gay Men's Health Crisis
education and information programs. We established the first tele-
phone hotline in the world which answers questions and provides
counseling to over 60,000 people every year. About 40 percent of
the callers to our hotline are not gay.

We have a wide range of literature in English, Spanish, and Chi-
nese, targeted to the general public and to specific populations.
Over 38 different brochures are distributed through the mail, the
public library system, churches, schools, street fairs, hospitals, aod
outpatient clinics.

In 1987, GMHC will reach 2.5 million people with our literature.
Note that in contrast with Dr. Dowd le's statement, that he thought
their brochure would reach some 100,000 people around the coun-
try.
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Outside of the New York metropolitan area, GMHC's brochures
are distributed by a number of voluntary and Government agenciesthroughout the country.

We have an active speakers bureau that addresses Government
employees, professional associations, businesses, nurses, home careworkers, students and other groups. In 1986, GMHC reached over11,000 people through our speakers bureau.

We have specific risk reduction programs targeted to gay and bi-sexual men. We take these programs to wherever the audience is,
bars, bath houses, college campuses, shelters for the homeless, sub-
stance abuse programs, and resorts. We have professional educa-
tion programs for mental health professionals, both in hospitals
and community-based clinics. These programs are designed to sen-sitize and train social workers to the discrete needs of persons withAIDS and their families and friends.

We have conducted behavioral research to find more effectiveways o' .xmimunicating AIDS information in such a way thatpeople will understand and act on the information. Certain behav-iors are associated with the transmission of the AIDS virus and weneed to understand how to motivate people to change behaviors
that pose the risk of viral transmission.

We have prepared public service announcements that promoteunderstanding of what AIDS is and what it is not. Together withorganizations such as AIDS Project Los Angeles and the San Fran-
cisco AIDS Foundation, Gay Men's Health Crisis has produced anddistributed more than 60 different radio, television, and newsprintpublic sery b anrotmcements to major markets throughout theUnited Stat...

We have heard this morning of the administration's plans tofight the AIDS epidemic. Why has there been so little action in theface of this mounting disaster? Part of the answer to that questionis that AIDS was first evident in gay men and intravenous drugusers. Part of the answer is that we had mistakenly come to be-lieve that we had conquered infectious diseases in this country.Part of the answer is that the focus of health policy and planninghas shifted from the provision of comprehensive services to the con-tainment of health care costs.
I believe the answer lies deeper still. No one likes bad news andthe worse the news is, the less we like it. AIDS is the wc,rse possi-

ble news. There is a natural tendency to deny what is a terriblereality. The human suffering we see around us is often too much tobear.
AIDS is not going away and every time we look, it looms largerso that the shadow of this disease w ill darken all of our days. The

human tendency is to hope somehow we ourselves are going to bespared, but the more we learn about AIDS, the harder it is tomaintain the fiction that AIDS is something that happens to themand not to us.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Dunne follows:1
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Testimony before the House Subcommittee
on Human Resources and intergovernmental Relations

March 16, 1987
Richard D. Dunne
Executive Director

Gay Men's Health Crisis

Thank you for the opportunity to testify before this subcommittee.

I would like to talk today about AIDS information and education and the role
voluntary, community-based organizations such as Gay Men's Health Crisis have
played and continue to play in this important activity.

I believe that when future historians look back on this period, it will be the
consensus judgment that AIDS was the most important event in this country in
the second half of the century. Barring one or more medical miracles, by the
year 1991 there will be 270,000 cumulative cases of AIDS in the U.S.: 180.000
people will have died of AiDS by then. Eighty percent or more of these cases
have already been diagnosed or are Infected. For almost all of those 270,000
people, in other words, it is already too late. Those 190,000 almost certain
fatalities by the year 1991 are more than three times the number of Americans
who died in the Vietnam War.

I believe that this epidemic has been ahead of us from the moment the AIDS
virus arrived on these shores eight years yr more ago. Despite remarkable
progress on the biomedical front, despite sea changes in the sexual behavior of
the primary risk group, despite he heroic efforts of many individuals, this
epidemic is still out of control more than five y s later. We need only look at
the mortality figures in New York City: AIDS is .,ow the leading cause of death
for men between the ages of 25 and 49 and for women between 25 and 29. In
certain health districts of New York, as many as one of every four deaths in
the last five years was caused by AiDS.

Even after nearly six years, we still look for national leadership from the
Administration. We have heard today, as we have in the past, of the
Administration's !Awls to begin a national education campaign. Despite the best
efforts of the scilrainc community, biomedical research cannot eliminate AIDS in
the short term. The fact is, however, that we require no new technological
break-throughs to limit the spread of AIDS. We understand enough about the
cause and transmission of AIDS to give people the knowledge they need to
protect themselves.

Every segment of society needs to know enough about AIDS so that each
individual can make informed decisloos about his or her behavior. We have had
some success In informing health care workers and gay and bisexual men. Yet
compared to what needs to be done, we have only begun.
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Page 2

Every youth old enough to engage in sexual relations or to experiment withintravenous drugs needs to be educated about AIDS. Every adult sexuallyactive outside a mutually monogamous relationship, every gay and bisexual man,every intravenous drug user, needs to know the tools that can protect themand others -- those tools are the condom and the sterile needle.

Special efforts need to be made in minority communities. We usually perceiveAIDS as an illness that mostly affects gay men and intravenous drug users.From ziother perspective, AIDS is an illness of people of color. Blacks andHispanics represent 53 percent of the cases in New York City and 45 percentnationally. According to a recent report from the Centers for Disease Control,blacks and Hispanics are overrepresented in every single risk group to- AIDSexcept hemophiliacs. Clearly, the minority community should be targeted forspecial education efforts.

I would like to outline for you CMHC's education and information programs:

- The first telephone hotline in the would which answers questions andprovides counseling to over 60,000 people every year. About 40$ of thecallers to GMHC's hotline are non-gay.

- A wide range of literature in English, Spanish and Chinese targeted boththe general public and specific populations. Over 38 different brochuresare distributed through the mail, the public library system, churches,scho)ls, street fairs, hospitals and outpatient clinics. In 1987, GMHC willreach 2.5 million people with our literature. Outside of the New Yorkmetropolitan area, CMHC's brochures are distributed by a member ofvoluntary and government agencies throughout the country.

- An active speakers' bureau that addresses government employees,professional associations, businesses, nurses, home care workers, studentsand others. In 1986, GMHC reached over 11,000 people through ourspeakers' bureau.

- Specific risk reduction programs targeted to gay and bisexual men. Wetake these programs to wherever the audience is -- bars, bathhouses,
college campuses, shelters for the homeless, substance abuse programs andbeach resorts.

- Professional education programs for mental health professionals inhospitals and community-based clinics. These programs are designed tosensitize and train social workers to the discrete needs of persons withAIDS and their family and friends.

- Behavioral research to find more effective ways of communicating AIDSinformation in such a way that people will understand and act on theinformation. Certain behaviors are associated with the transmission of theAIDS virus and we need to understand how to motivate people to changebehaviors that reduce the risk of viral transmission.

r
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Page 3

- Public service announcements that promote understanding of what AIDS
is and what it is not. Together with AIDS Project Los Angeles and the
San Francisco AIDS Foundation, GMHC has produced and distributed more
than 60 different radio, television and news print public service
announcements to major markets h. :he United States.

Why has there been so little action in the face of a mounting disaster? Part of
the answer to that question is that AIDS was first evident in gay men and in
intravenous drug users. Part of the answer is that s I had mistakenly come to
believe that we had conquered infectious diseases in this country. And part of
the answer is that tF.2 focus of health policy and planning had shifted from the
provision of comprehensive service: to the containment of health care costs.
But I believe the answer lies deeper still.

No one likes bad news and the worse the news is, the less we like it. AIDS is
the worst possible news. There is a natural tendency to deny a terrible
reality. The human suffering we see around us is often too much to bear.

But AIDS will not go away. Every time we look, it looms larger so that the
shadow of this disease will darken all our days. The human tendency is to hope
that somehow we ourselves will be spared. But the more we learn about AIDS,
the harder it is to maintain the fiction that AIDS is something that happens to
"them," not to "us."

voloff(qq)
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Mr. Wvass. Thank you, Mr. Dunne. Mr. Gerald.

STATEMENT OF GILBERTO GERALD, DIRECTOR OF MMORI`iTY
AFFAIRS, NATIONAL AIDS NETWORK

Mr. GERALD. Mr. Chairman and members of the Human Re-
sources and Intergovernmental Relations Subcommittee, my nameis Gil Gerald and I'm the director of minority affairs for the Na-
tional AIDS Network. I appreciate this opportunity to present my
views on how the Federal Government should respond to the needfor educational programs on AIDS prevention, targeted toward mi-
nority communities.

I have professional experience with the desDerate need for educa-
tional efforts on AIDS and AIDS p-evention for minority communi-
ties. I wish to convey to the Cl, it and the subcommittee the
thanks and appreciation of nommunity-based AIDS service provid-
ers for your recognition of the seriousness of the AIDS problemearly in the crisis and for having continued to pursue an end tothis health problem.

An this committee knows, AIDS does not discriminate. Neverthe-
less, the minority community has been disproportionately affected
by this devastating health crisis. The AIDS weekly surveillance re-ports for the Centers for Disease Contcol show that while blacks
make up only 12 percent of the Nation's population, blacks com-
prise 25 percent of all people with AIDS. Simi lady, Hispanics makeup 6 percent of the population yet represent 14 percent of all
people with AIDS. Minority children represent 80 percent of all
children with AIDS in this country and black women constitute
one-half of all women with AIDSstatistically, a black woman is13 times more likely than a white woman to contract AIDS.

These staggering statistics have led more than one observer to
note that among minorities, AIDS is a heterosexual disease. This
pattern combined with a health sysiem that puts minorities at agreat disadvantage is documented in the Federal Government's
report of the Secretary's Task Force on Black and Minority He ith
of January 1986, creates a very bleak picture for the future of the
minority community with respect to the AIDS crisis.

Fears of increased societal stigma and discrimination and thepersistent myth that AIDS is a white gay male disease reinforces
the perception within the minority community that AIDS is of noparticular concern to people of color.

Homophobia and racism and the resulting lack of adequate fund-
ing for minority targeted AIDS education efforts prevent accesswithin the community to desperately needed risk reduction infor-
mation. Even in the face of statistics found in their own investiga-tions, the Federal Government's response has been, as stated
before, woefully inadequate to meet the challenge to stop the
spread of the AIDS virus within the minority community.

Several corrective measures can and should be undertaken in re-
sponse to the situation as I hay; outlined it. In the time allotted tome, I would like to elaborate on three points. Firet educational
strategies must accoun* "or specific linguistic, cultural, and ethnic
characteristics. As well, these campaigns must be senFitively waged
to account for various literacy levels among audiences if they are
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to be effective in changing behaviors within minority communities,
which like in other communities, places individuals at higher risk
for AIDS.

Funding must be specifically allocated for targeted campaigns,
otherwise affected minority communities will not be reached.

Second, too few community-based minority institutions are re-
ceiving Federal or State support for AIDS prevention programs.
Minority AIDS service providers are among the poorest organiza-
tions affiliated with the National AIDS Network. Yet they have
the best access to their respective communities.

For the health of the community, the Government must find cre-
ative ways to see that minority organizations with broad access to
their community receive support for their work.

Third, the Federal Government should monitor the impact and
efficacy of educationai programs with respect to targeted groups in-
cluding minorities.

The National AIDS Network has just completed a study that
demonstrates there is practically no evaluation of the effectiveness
of existing educational programs in terms of their ability to reach
minority communities to change high risk behaviors.

The AIDS crisis poses an additional burden on minorities who
are already economically, politically and socially disadvantaged. It
will take concerted and immediate action by the Federal Govern-
ment to insure that these factors do not contribute to the contin-
ued spread of the AIDS virus in our society, but it will first require
understanding.

For this reason, the National AIDS Network appreciates the at-
tention that you are giving the matter today and calls upon you to
take the necessary steps to respond to this epidemic. We csk you to
hold hearings in congressional districts where minority people are
disproportionately affected by this virus. In order to understand
the importance of education, we feel it is important for you to hear
firsthand the human suffering brought on by AIDS.

Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Gerald follows:]
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Statement by Gilberto Gerald
Director of Minority Affairs

NATIONAL AIDS NETWORX

Mr. Chairman and merhers of the Intergovernmental Relations and

Human Resources Subcommittk , my name is Gil Gerald, and I am the

Director of Minority Affairs for the National AIDS Network. I

appreciate this opportunity to present my views on bow the Federal

Government should r:spond to the need for educational programs on

AIDS prevention targeted towards Minority Communities. I have

professional experience with the desperate need for educational

efforts on AIDS and AIDS prevention for minority communities. I

wish to convey to the chair and the subcommittee the thanks and

appreciation of community based AIDS service providers for your

recognition c,f the seriousness of tke AIDS problem early in the

crisis and for having continued to pursue an end to this health

problem.

As this committee knows, AIDS does not discriminate. Nevertheless,

the minority community has been disproportionately affected by this

devastating health crisis. The AIDS Weekly Surveillance Reports

for the Centers for Disease Control show that while Blacks make up

only 121 of the nation's population, we comprise 251 of all people

with AIDS. Similarly, Hispanics make up 9 of the population, yet

represent i4% of all people with AIDS. Minority children represent

Het of all children with AIDS in this country and Black women

constitute fully one half of the women with AIDS. Statistically, a

Black woman is thirteen times more likely than a white woman to
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contract AIDS. These staggering statistics have led more than one

observer to note that among minorities AIDS is already a

heterosexual disease. This pattern, combined with a health system

that puts minorities at a great disadvantage, as documented in the

federal government's Report of the Secretary's Task Force on Black

and Minority Health (Jan 86), creates a very bleak picture for the

future of the minority community with respect to the AIDS crisis.

Fears of increased societal stigma and discrimination, and the

persistent myth that AIDS is a white, gay male disease reinforces

the perception within the minority community that AIDS is of no

particular concern to us. Homophobia and racism and the resulting

lack of adequate funding for minozity-targeted AIDS education

efforts prevent access within the community to desperately needed

risk-reduction information.

Even in the face of statistics found in their own investigations,

the Federal Government's response has been woefully inadequate to

meet the challenge to stop the spread of the AIDS virus within the

minority community. Several corrective measures can and should be

undertaken in response to the situation as I have outlined it. In

the time allotted to me, I would like to elaborate on three Pints.
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First, educational strategies must account for specific linguistic,

cultural, and ethnic characteristics. As well, these campaigns

must be sensitively waged to account for various literacy levels

among audiences if they are to be effective in changing behaviors

within minorities communities, which like in other communities,

place individuals at higher-ris% for AIDS, Funding must be

specifically allocated for targeted campaigns; otherwise, affected

minority communities will not be reached.

Second, too few community based minority institutions are

receiving federal or state support for AIDS prevention programs.

Minority AIDS service providers are among the poorest organizations

affiliated " . the National AIDS Network, yet they have the beat

access to tt r respective communities. For the health of the

tommunity, th "a nment soft find creative ways to see that

minority organizations with road access to their community receive

support for their work.

Third, the Federal Government should monitor the impact and

efficacy of educational programs with respect to targeted groups,

including minorities. The National AIDS Network has just completed

a study that demonstrates thxt there is practically no evaluation

of the effectiveness of existing educational programs in terms of

their ability to reach minority communities to change high risk

behaviors.
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The AIDS crisis poses an additional burden on minorities who are

already economically, politically, and socially disadvantaged. It

will take concerted and immediate action by the federal government

to insure that these factors do not contribute to the continued

spread of the AIDS virus in our societj. But It will first require

understanding. ror this reason, The National AIDS Network

appreciates the attention that you are giving this matter today,

and calls on you to take the necessary steps to respond to this

epidemic. We ask you to hold hearings in congressional districts

where minority poople are disproportionately affected Ay this

virus. In order to understand the importance of education, we feel

it is important for you to hear first hand the human suffering

brought on by AIDS.

Thank you.
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Mr. Wsass. Thank you very much, Mr. Gerald. Mr. Swales.

STATEMENT OF GEORGE SWALES, M.A., DIRECTOR, SUNNYE
SHERMAN AIDS EDUCATION PROJECT

Mr. Swims. Mr. Chairman and members of the Human Re-
sources and Intergovernmental Relations Subcommittee, good
afternoon.

My name is George S.' ales. I am the director of the Sunnye
Sherman AIDS Education .!roject of the Whitman-Walker Clinic lo-
cated in Northwest Washington, DC. The Whitman-Walker Clinic
is pleased and honored to have been asked to participate on a
panel to provide information and perspective on the subject of
AIDS education. On behalf of the president, Dr. Mary Jane Wood,
and the administrator, Mr. Jim Graham, I thank you

The Whitman-Walker Clinic is a community-based, nonprofit
clinic organized in 1983 to respond to the specialized health needs
of members of the gay and lesbian community. It has won local,
regional, and national awards and recognition for its service to the
community as a whole. It is operated by a total of 650 people, only
32 of which are paid staff. It is fmanced by the generosity of the
community, contracts for service, and grants; successfully raising
one private dollar for each public dollar or grant dollar.

While AIDS program work is by any measure the largest share
of our 1- at this time, the Whitman-Walker Clinic delivers a full
array of lalized services to its constituent community.

The 1. Ian-Walker Clinic AIDS Program consists of four serv-
ices: Al. vledical Services, AIDS Support Ilsrvices, the Robert N.
Schwartz, M.D. Housing Services for Persors with AIDS, and the
Sunnye Sherman AIDS Education Project.

The AIDS Education Project is the educational arm of the cliric.
In May 1986 under contract with the District of Columbia Depart-
ment of Human Services, the Whitman-Walker Clinic undertook a
much expanded health °duration program. The expansion in this
project came about as a result of the Whitman-Walker's and D.C.
Commission on Public Health's recognition and perception of an
urgent need for expanded educational efforts towards people who
are at high risk for AIDS. The project, then, represents a multifac-
eted approach to health education among gay and bisexual men, in-
travenous drug abusers, and prosthates in Washington.

That element of our service, which has as its target IV abusers
and commercial sex groups, is the focus of my testimony today, the
AORTA Project, the AIDS-education Outreach to the Alienated.

The AORTA Project is funded in part by the District of Columbia
Commission on Public Health, by a grant from Montgomery
County in Maryland, by community-based fundraising efforts and
by individual donations. Mt.ny of our visions for risk reduction edu-
cation, aimed at stigmatized and alienated populations a:e limited
by lack of financial resources. The AORTA Project's major focus is
to educate persons who are drug abusers, drug and substance abus-
ers, especially N abusers, but also persons who are alcoholics and
oral drug abusers, prostitutesfemales, males, trans persons, cross-
dressershomeless persons who have been displaced and are now
living on the street and from time to time in shelters, incarcerated

1 6-2.`
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men, women, and youth in prisons, jails, detention mite 1, and
community-based halfway facilities and youth who are on the
streets or in restricted institutional settings.

Beyond education, we hope to bring about changes in attitudes
at-risk behaviors, which will result in behavior changes,

er sex, and non-needle-sharing.
There are several means used in the AORTA Project to reach the

alienated, one of which is the Community Street Outreach Effort.
We contract with men and women who are of the streets, some-
thing that Heath and Human Services now calls eloquently "indige-
nous personnel." These are people who live on the streets, who ar-
from the streets, ex-abusers, ex-prostitutes, ex-offenders, who know
what they're talking about and know their way around the streets.
It is their job to get information to the abuser population or prosti-
tute population, whatever population they are attempting to reach.
They are very effective at it.

They have 3 to 5 quick minutes to a group who live fast and
travel light. If you get 3 minutes of their time, you've had a lot. In
that 3 minutes, they are to give the message of what the potential
dangers are to the individual, that he or she as a result of their
behavior may be at risk, what they can do about it. They are left
w:th a piece of literature, two condoms, and the hope that they will
lo,k at their lives and look at their style to take control of their

The first message in each case is, that your first option is to get
off of drugs. But if you are not yet ready, if you cannot get off of
drugs, your second message is, you must not shire needles.

Wherein our street outreach efforts are having an i2pact on
thob:- who are alienated, such a pr -'ram cannot be maximally ef-
fective milers some educational foe is also in place at all the in-
stitutions and systems that those who are alienated are likely to
encountercourt and probation outreach efforts. We have devel-
oped and are now delivering educational seminars for probation of-
ficers, judges, and court personnel to focus on AIDS and seroposi-
tive issues in relationship to persons they are 131...aly to come in con-
tact with.

We are entering an agreement with the District of Columbia Pro-
bation Department and the District of Columbia courts to refer per-
sons who are identified as engaging in at-risk behavior, drugs, and/
or prostitution to an AIDS education seminar, which will be con-
ducted by the Sunnye Sherman AIDS Education Services at the
Whitman-Walker Clinic.

It is anticipated that several ongoing monthly seminars will be
developed to accommodate persons' schedule.evenings, days,
weekends. The seminar presenters will certify that persons re-
ferred to the education seminars did indeed attend.

In incarceration outreach efforts, we have developed and are now
implementing AIDS education seminars for uniformed and nonuni-
formed corrections staff and for inmates. Currently, we have ongo-
ing monthly AIDS education seminars in the District of Columbia
correctional facilities, the District of Columbia Jail, Lorton, half-
way houses, the Montgomery County Detention Center in Mary-
land, and the Arlington County Jail in Virginia.
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All of our AIDS education seminars included not only informa-
tion about AIDS, but also information scout substance abuse and
human sexuality.

Bemuse we live in a tristate area, much of our focus beyond the
streets of Washington, DC, includes the institutions in Maryland as
well as Virginia. Once we have delivered AIDS educat. II seminars
to the staCin c.-2.rectional facilities, we then set up ongoing AIDS
education seminars for the inmates.

Because some jurisdictions are isolating inmates who merely test
HIV-positive, we set up special education seminars for seropositive
inmates to focus on such anxiety issues as education. The outcome
of focusing on this population is than bddy systems are established
that enable us to provide community resources to people who need,
upon release, medical followthrough, housing, employment, and
other support services.

We also have plans to deliver AIDS education seminars to the
metropolitsa police department personnel. We have included per-
sons from various police precincts and divisions in our training ses-
sions - -id have scheduled meetings to discuss conflicts with the
police department.

In our residential drug treatment outreach, we have developed
and are now delivering AIDS education seminars at private and
governmental residential dn.* and alcohol treatment programs in
northern Virginia, southern Maryland, and the District of Colum-
bia.

Because of the transition of residents and staff, we often agree to
set up ongni AIDS education seminars for the residents and sev-
eral sessions for the staff at 6-month intervals, thus allowing us to
keep the staff updated on whatever new information or media
focus that may be circulating and to address anxiety issues.

We do ongoing educational seminars twice a month to the Dis-
trict's detoxification program and the District's 28-day residential
treatment program.

We are also providing quarterly AIDS seminars to residents in
the District's long-term residential treatment programs All of
these programs are part of the Alcohol, Drug and Substance Abuse
Administration under the Commission on Public Health.

The District cf Columbia is the home of thousands of homeless
women and men and youth, who because of mental illness, sub-
stance abuse, chemical dependency, or economic hardship, find
themselves without shelter and/or the means to support them-
selves. This popuLtion of people is at high risk for contracting and
transmitting AIDS because of poor health care, poor nutrition, ex-
treme psychic and environmental stresses, lack of rest, and chemi-
cal dependence. These cofactors to HIV infection make the home-
less a particularly vulnerable group of people.

There have been cases of homeless persons who have been diag-
nosed with or who died from complications related to AIDS.

Outreach to prostitutes. Within any given month, it is estimated
that there are WO men, women, and transpersons who are on the
streets of Washington, f)C, involved in commercial sex. In the com-
mercial sex industry, in teams of two, outreach workers approach
persons working in the streets, talk to them one on one, give them
if .rature and free condoms, and provide them with intervention
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and referral information for AIDS services, drug and alcohol treat-
ment services, and other community or public social service agen-
cies, such as STD clinics.

We have found that most of the prostitutes are very receptive to
our efforts, say they are using condomsand there is evidence that
they areant: are concer..ed about AIDS. Many of the street pros-
titutes and hustlers are also N drug abusers. In the District of Co-
lumbia, that is estimated to be 40 percent.

Beyond the streets, the AORTA Project has attempted outreach
to male prostitutes who work independently or through model/
escort services and advertise in the classified sectic Is of selected
publications. By the fall of 1987, we hope also to implementan out-
reach to women who are in the commercial sex industry, but are
not working on the streets.

Male prostitutes who advertise have been surveyed via tele-
phone. We use a 12-item questionnaire which is attached to deter-
mine the level of knowledge about AIDS, safe sex behaviors, and
compliance with safe sex guidelines. Initial data gathered indicates
a huh level of awareness, but only a moderate level of compliance
with safe sex behaviors.

The rule-of-thumb seems to be, quote, "If the client is willing to
pay for anything, that's what the client gets," unquote. The same
seems to be true for most men, women, and transpersons wt.: king
on the streets. Clients sometimes pay more to engage in unsafe or
risky sexual activities which may expose both participants to HIV
infection.

A more concerted outreach to male model/escorts is planned for
the spring of 1987. Those male prostitutes who do participate in a
safe sex seminar will be granted a safe sex certificate and may use
that and negative antibody test information as part of their classi-
fied ads.

That concludes my oral presentation.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Swales follows:]

t j
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Mr. Chairman. Members of the Human Resources an- Intergovernmental
Affairs Subcommittee - Good Morning.

MY name is George A. Shales. I am the Director of the Sunny. Sherman
AIDS Education Project of the Whitman-Walker Clinic, located in
Northwest Washington, D.C.

The Whitman-Walker Clinic is pleased and honored to have been asked to
participate on a panel to provide information and perspectives on the
subject of AIDS education.

On behalf of the President, Mary Jane Wood, her officers. and the
Administrator, Mr. Jim Graham, I thank you.

The Whitman-Walker Clinic, Inc. is a community based non-profit.
organized in 1973 to respond to specialized health needs of members of
the gar and lesbian community. It has von local, regional, and
national awards and recognition for its service tO the community as a
whole. It is operated by a total of some 650, only 32 of which are
paid. Is is financed by the generosity of the communitY, contracts
for services, and grants; successfully raising one private dollar +or
each public (or grant) dollar.

While A.I.D.S. Program work is by any measure the largest share of our
work at this time, the Whitman-Walker Clinic delivers a full array of
specialized services primarily to the gay community. Other services
are: (1) Gay Men's Verneral Disease Clinic, (2) Alcoholism Services,
(3) Lesbian Resource and Counselling Center, (4) Counselling Group.
and (5) Gay Hotline.

The Whitman-Walker Clinic A.I.D.S. Program consists of four services;
(1) A.I.D.S. Medical Services, (2) A.I.D.S. Support Services, (3)
Robert N. Schwartz, M.D. Housing Services, and (4) the Sunnye Sherman
A.I.D.S. Education Project.

The Sunnye Sherman A.I.D.S. Education Project is the educational arm
of the Clinic. In Mar 1986, under contract with the District of
Columbia Department of Human Services, the Whitman-Walker Clinic
undertook a much expanded health education program. The expansion and
this project came about as a result of Whitman-Walker's and the D.C.
Commission of Public Health's perception of an urgent need for expaned
educational efforts toward people who are at high risk for A.I.D.S.
The project then represents a m.ltifaceted approach to health
education among gay and bisexual men, intravenous drug abusers, and
prostitutes in Washington.

That element of our service which has as its target I.V. eh/users,
commercial sex groups is the focus of my testimony today; the
A.O.R.T.A Project.

1 C
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OVERVIEW OF THE A.O.R.T,A. PROJECT

The AIDS-educati,Y1 Otst Reach To the Alienated (AORTA) Project was
established 14 June, 1986 as an education project of the
Whitman-Walker Clinic's educational services (Sunny. Sherman AIDS
Education Services). The AORTA Project is funded in part Cy the D. C.
Commission of Public Health, by a g Int from Montgomery County of
Maryland, by community based fund raising efforts, and by individual
donations. Many of our visions for risk-reduction education aimed at
stigmatized and alienated populations is limited by lack of financial
resources.

The AORTA Project's major focus is to educate persons who are:

- -drug and substance MD/users (especially IV users, but
also persons who are alcoholics or oral drug users)

- -prostitutes (females, males, and transpersons (cross dressers who
may be transsexuals, transgenders, or transvestites)

- -homeless (persons who have been displaced and are now living on
the streets and from time-to-time in a shelter)

- -incarcerated men, women, and youth (prisons, jails, detention
centers, and community based halfway facilities)

- -youth (who are on the streets or in restricted institutionalized
settings)

Beyond education, we also hope to b-ing about changes in attitudes
(regarding at -risk behaviors) which will result in beha.ior chances
(safe sex and not sharing needles).

In addition to the ALIENATED populations of drug and substance
abusers, prostitutes, incarcerated, homeless, anti youth, we also
focus on:

- -family, partners, friends and neighbors of the ALIENATED

--persons living and working with the ALIENATED

- -professionals who are most likely to be in touch with the
ALIENATED (police and correctional officers, probation and
parole officers, substance abuse counselors, ministers, VD/STD
workers, et al)

--butt , churches, and community based agencies which are
physically in the commercialized sex districts and drug *strips'
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There are several means used by the AORTA Project to reach the
ALIENATED;

Community /Street Outreach Efforts

We 'contract' with men and women who are recovered substance ab/
users, former prostitutes, and ex-offenders. These 'outreach
workers' are instructed by the co-derectors/health educators of
the W-W Clinic's Sunny. Sherman AIDS Education Services on issues
of AIDS, substance abuse, and human sexuality. The oe each
workers are also trained in skills of peer counseling and commu-
nication.

Iii addition to 'contracting' with sane outreach workers, we also
train and educate volunteers, appropriate court referrals, and
student interns. We are considering the merits of having youth
outreach workers from the District of Columbia's Sulmer Youth
Program.

ESEE INSERT--PERSPECTIVES7

Wherein our street outreach efforts are having an impact on those who
are ALIENATED, such a program cannot be maximally effective unless
some educational focus is also in place at all of the enstitut,ons and
systems that those who are ALIENATED are likely to encounter.

-- Court/Probation Outreach Efforts

We have developed, and are now delivering, educational seminars
for probation officers, Judges. and court personnel to focus on
AIDS and seroposetive issues in relationship to persons they are
likely to come in contact with.

We are entering an agreement with the .i. C. Probation Depar*ment
at,c1 the D. C. Courts to refer persons who are identified as
engaging en at -risk behavior (drugs and/or prostitution) to an
AIDS education seminar which will be conducted b' the SSAES of
the W-W Clinic.

It is anticipated that several on-going monthly seminars well be
developed to accomodate persons' schedules (evening and days;
a weekend; and varying the week day). The seminar presentors
will 'certify' that persons referred to the education seminars
did indeed attend.

Incarceration Outreach Efforts

We .cave developed, and are now implementing, AIDS educational
seminars fo- uniformed and non-uniformed correctional staff and
for inmates. Currently, ,e have on-e;ling monthly AIDS education
seminars in the D. C. Correctional facilities (D. C. Jail,
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Lorton, halfway residents), Montgomery County Detention Center in
Maryland, and Arlington County Jail/Detention Center in Virginia.

All of our AIDS education seminars include not only information
about AIDS, but also information about suoStance abuse and human
sexuality.

Because we live in a 'tri-state' area, much of our focus beyord
streets of WDC includes the institutions in Maryland as well 4s
Virginia. Once we have delivered AIDS educational seminars
the staff in correctional facilities, we then set up on-going
AIDS education seminars for the inmates.

Because some jurisdictions are isolating inmates who merely test
HIV positive, we set up special education seminars for seroposi-
tive inmates to focus as much on anxiety issues as education. The
outcome of focusing on this populat.on is that a 'buddy' system
is established that enables us to vovide community resources to
oersons who need, upon release, medical follow-thru, housing,
employment, and other support services.

We also have plans to deliver AIDS education seminars to
the Metropolitan Police Department personnel. We have included
persons from various police precints and divisions in our train-
ing sessions, and have scheduled meetings to disciss :conflicts
with the police department (i.e. "jump outs,' need for ID for
outreach workers, police taking condoms from prostitutes or
poking holes in them, etc.).

We also focus our educational efforts on Juvenile detention pro-
grams in WDC, Southern Maryland, and Northern Virginia.

Restdea:ta. Druo Treatment Outreach

s ta-e developed, and are now delivering, AIDS education semi-
nars at private and govermental residental drug and alcohol
treatment programs in Northern Virginia, Southern Maryland, and
the District of Columbia.

Because of the transition of residents (and staff), we often
agree to set up on-going AIDS education seminars for the
residents and several sessions fa.' the staff at six month inter-
vals (thus enabling us to keep the staff 'updated" on whatever
new information or media focus that may be circulating and to
address anxiety issues).

We do on-going educational seminars (twice a month) to the
Districts' detox program and the District's 28 day residential
treatment program. We are also providing quarterly AIDS seminars
to residents in the District's long term residential treatment
programs (CADAC, ADERO House (for youth), Ar`PT, et al). All of
these programs are part of ADASA under the ...omission of Public
Health of DHS.

.1 "".
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We have also set up quarterly AIDS educational seminars to al'
of the residential and non-residential drug treatment prow,
of KOLMAC, RAP, Second Genesis, and Phoenix House. We alt.
do seminars for tte staff before we do seminars for the per ins
in treatment.

putreach To The Homeless

The District of Columbia is home to thousands of homeless women,
men, and youth who because (.4 mental illness, substance abuse/
chemical dependency, or ecc Nino hardship, find themselves with-
out shelter and/or the means to support themselves. This popu-
lation of people is a high risk for contracting and transmitting
AIDS because of poor health cart, poor nutrition, extreme psychic
and environmental stressors, lack of rest, and chemical depen-
dency. These co-factors to HIV infection make the homeless a
particularly vulnerable group of people. There have been cases
of homeless persons who have been diagnosed with (or who died
from) complications related to AIDS.

The AORTA Project of W-W Clinic's SSAES has identified over 30
homeless shelters, half-way houses, drop-in centers and transi-
tional homes for homeless women, men, and youth. Since October
of 1986, over 340 women, men, and youth who are staff or resi-
dents of these agencies have participated in AIDS educational
seminars developed and delivered by staff and/or volunteers of
the AORTA Project.

The staff of homeless facilities in Metropolitan WDC have receiv-
ed a basic introduction on HIV infection, HIV symptoms, risk-
reduction activities regarding sex and drugs, and intervention/
referral for those homeless who manifest symptoms of HIV
infection. We also distribute risk-reduction literature and
free condoms for the residents of the shelters and return tor
seminars as often as the staff requests follow-up visits.

Prostitutes-- Outreach To The

Within any ci'vert month, it is estimated that there are about 500
women, men, and transpersons who are on the streets of WDC and
involves, in the commercial sex industry as prostitutes (women and
transpersons) or hustlers (men and transpersons).

:n teams of two, outreach workers approach persons working on the
streets, talk to them one-on-one, give them literature and tree
condoms, and provide them with intervention/referral information
for AIDS services, drug/alcohol treatment services, and other
community or public social service agencies such as STC clinics.

We hr t found that most of the prostitues are very receptive to
our ',forts, say they are using condoms (there is evidence that
they art), and are concerned about AIDS. Many of the street
prostitutes and hustlers are also IV drug ab/users.

V2'2
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(Sot Attached--Persnectivell

Beyond the streets, the AORTA Projecs has attempted outreach to
male prostitutes who t...4rk ndependently or through model/escort
services and advertise in the classified section of select publi-
cations. By fall of '87 we hope to also implement an outreach to
women who are in the commercial sex industry but are not working
on the streets.

Male prostitutes who advertise have been surveyed via telephone.
We used a twelve-item questionnaire (see attaches to determine
the level of knowledge about AIDS, safe sex behav irs, and com-
phi .4ce with s..f, sex guidelines. Initial data gathered indi-
cates a high love If awaren ss but only a moderate level of
compliance with sane sex beh, 'fors. The rule of thumb seems to
be, 'If the client is williny to pay for anything, that's what
the client will get.' The same seems to be tr e for most men,
women, and transpersons working on the street. -clients sometime
pay more to engage in unsafe or risky sexual activities which may
expose both participants to HIV infection.

A more concerted outreach effort to male model/escorts is planned
for the Spring of '87. Those male prostitutes who do participate
in safe sex seminar will be granted a safe sex certificate and
may use that and negative antibody status information as part of
their classified ad.

/b.;

03/13/87

4 k)
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STREET OUTREACH STATS

December 1986 to February 1987

February
3 month

1987 Cumulative
3 month
14VILO.

Contacts 1,043 5,244 1,748

One-on-one 640 2,452 817

Percentage 58% 47% 47/

Number of men 659 3,207 1,06'i

Percentage 63% 61% 61%

Number of women 384 2,037 679

Percentage 37% 39% 39%

Number Bluck 732 4,106 1,369

Percentage 71% 78A 78%

Number Whit. 203 927 309

Percentage 19% 18'/. 18%

Number Latino/Asian 108 211 70

Percentage 10% 4% 4%
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A.O.R.T.A. PROJECT OUTREACH TO HOMELESS

SHELTER / HOME Mate / Female #TRAINED

CC en's Shelter ri 4 (Staff)

La .-.. ada (living St.) M (Latino) 36 (S 5 Residents)

Coalitio., for Homeless M/F 35 (S)

Isaiah House ri 17 (S 5 R)

Calvary Baptist (Women) F 4 (5)

Allison Home F (teenagers) 7 (S)

Luther Place F 8 (5)

Dorother Day Catholic Worker F/M (Families) 12 (S 8 R)

Park Road (CFH)

Rachel House

Webster House (CFH)

Florida Ave. Women's Centp

CCNV Women's Shelter

Efforts for EA-Convicts

Hannah House

Mt. Carmel House

Health Care for the HaMeless

Calvary Drop-In Center

Christ House

Sasha Bruce F/M (Youth runaways) 21 (S 5 R)

ri 8 (R)

F 25 (S 5 R)

ri 8 (R)

F 8 (R)

F 26 0 5 R)

ri 48 (S 5 R)

F 20 (S 5 R)

F 26 (S 5 R)

ri 10 (S)

F/M 3 (5)

ri 15 (S)

TOTAL # TRAINED (3/12/87) 34:

r6 5k_
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A.I.D.S. INFORMATION
ASSESSMENT QUESTIONNAIRE

Hello! My name is I'm a staff worker/volunteer with the
Whitman-Walker Clinic's A.I.D.S. Education Projoct. We are trying to
educate people at high risk for exposure to the virus that causes
A.I.D.S. to help them lower their risk of getting the di by
knowledge of and practice of safe sex and safe I.V. drug methods. We
do not need your real name, and all the information you give will be
kept is. strict confidence. We are concerned about your health and
that o4 Your customers. We are not concerned about the logal issues
o4 your lifestyle.

Would you be willing to answer a few questions so we can find out
what we can do to help you protect yourself and your customers.

1) Have YOU heard o4 the A.I.D.S. (a,,uired immune deficiency
syndrome) disease?

/ / YES / / NO

2) What does the disease do to a person who gets it? (Check the
answer that most corresponds to their response)

It kills them.

It causes swollen lymph nodes in the neck, armpits, groin.

It causes them t' loose weight.

They get pneumonia (Pneumocystis carinii).

They get some kind of skin cancer (Kaposi's Sarcoma).

They get fevers, night sweats and have diarrhea.

Other

3) Have YOU ever taken the HTLV-III Antibody Test in a hospital,
doctor's office, or clinic to see i4 you have been exposed to the
A.I.D.S. virus?

/ / YES / / NO

4) If yes, what result did you receive?

/ / Positive / / Negative / / No result

5) Dc you use rubbers (condoms, trklans) when YOU have oral or
anal sex (blow Jobs, sucking, ass fucking) with your partners?

/ / YES / / NO / / SOMETIMES / / ALMOST ALWAYS

6) Can YOU tell me what 'SAFE SEX" means and how is it practiced?

/ / YES (record response) / / NO
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7) Have you ever used drugs 11 eroin or cocaine that you infected
with a needle?

/ / YES / / NO

IF YES, ASK THE NEXT TWO QUESTIONS

a) When was your MOSA recent use of intravenous drugs?

b) How long have you use%; intravenous drugs?

c) How often did you or do you shoot up?

/ / daily / / once a wool( / / once a month / / other

8) Do you use alcohol, marijuana, poppers or other drugs when you are
having sex with your partners?

/ / YES / NO

9) If the Whitman-Walker Clinic offered a safe sex/safe I.V. drug
program for you and your friends at one of the local bars (Brats
Rail, Chesapeake House, LaCage Aux Follies, Lone Star, Shooters)
or at the Clinic, would you attend'?

/ / YES / / NO (Record reasons why not)

10) Would you use rubbers (condoms, trojans) and ask your clients to
use them if they were provided at low cost or free of charge')

/ / YES / / NO

11) Would you purchase your own rubbers if they were not available
free?

/ / YES / / NO / / I alrerdy purchase them

12) Would you be willing to distribute a small, walletsized card
to your customers tnat describes safe sex methods and would you
ask them tc use those methods n their sexual encounters')

/ / YES / / NO / / I'd have to think about it some more

Thank you very much for your time in answering this questionnaire.
Would you be willing to give us a fake or real name and your mailing
address so we could send you some materials about safe sex/safe
drug use')

17 7
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Mr. Waiss. Thank you, Mr. Swales. Dr. Rosenberg.

STATEMEN7 OF MICHAEL .1. ROSENBERG, M.D., M.P.H., EXECU-
TIVE DIRECTOR, AMERICAN SOCIAL HEALTH ASSOCIATION
Dr. Rosa mom. Thank you, Mr. Weiss.
My name is Mich. el Rosenberg, and I am executive director of

the American Social Health Association. I'm also a practicing phy-
sician and researcher.

The American Social Health Association is one of the oldest non-
profit organizations in the country. Our programs focus exclusively
on sexually-transmitted diseases and include the National
Hotline, the National VD Hotline, ttie Herpes Resource Center, the
Sexually-Transmitted Diseases Researth Fund, and a variety of
public and school-based education programs.

We have operated the National AIDS Hotline for about 2 months
now, and with little advertising, we receive an average of 800 calls
a day to live operators and about twice that many for reco--ied
formation. Based on that experience, we have some insight, about
the public's need for AIDS information.

First all, there is a great lack of information and preponder-
ance of misinformation which desperately needs to be corrected.
This points up one component of the need for education.

The second part, I think, of that is that a e need to reach a great-
er audience which is not presently served, not presently motivated
enough to go to the trouble of calling an AIDS hotline.

I think a point for both of those, however, is that the Govern-
ment's response to the need for educz..- Lion is clearly inadequate at
this point. We are dismayed, in fact, that f, years into the epidemic,
we still haven't seen the long - promised plan for AIDS education.
The fiscal year is almost half finished, and we heard Dr. Windom
this morning testify to the fact that nearly $80 will be
made available for educational efforts. But I think that problem is
that none of that money or very little of that is on the streets, and
I think it's very unlikely that the Government will be able to spend
all of that money this year.

The second point I'd like to make is that the Centers for Disease
Control's track record on public education regarding sexually
transmitted diseases is really a rather poor one. I think in contrast
to the exemplary job they've done with getting our state of knowl-
edge about AIDS to where it is todayat least from the scientific
and epidemiologic perspective. There are project grants, for exam-
ple, which the CDC go to the States for sexually transmitted dis-
ease control. Those include a component of pit. 'ic education, but as
Mr. Gerald said earlier, there's really no provision for assessing
how well those work, in other words, do they meet thr, needs?
There's no feedback loop; there's no componeni, to say, -e are
the problems, and here's what we need to make them m.r.?. effec-
tive."

A few pilot studies have been conducted regarding education, but
there has really been no effort to institute these programs on a
wider scale.

There are about 14 million Americans in this country who ac-
quire a sexually transmitted disease ev'ry year, and I think it's
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fair to characterize the Federal public education response as virtu-
ally absent.

The CDC's approach to sexually transmitted aiseases so far has
really been a very traditional one. It's been based on individuals:
You find an individual, you test them, you treat them, and then
you try to find their sexual contacts.

The situation that we have today, though, is very clearly differ-
ent than that which has existed, which the CDC follows and has
followed since the introduction of antibiotics. They are different for
two reasons. One is that like A77,3, there are a number of untreat-
able sexually transmitted diseasesI'm referring primarily to the
viruses such as AIDS and herpes. The second reason is the unprec-
edented magnitude of the number of people who get these diseases.
And I think clearly that calls for a different kind of response.

In the last fiscal year, the CDC funded only two sexually trans-
mitted disease public education projects. One wes assistance to the
VD National Hotline, which the American Social Health Associa-
tion now subsidizes heavily, and the second was a $12,000 continu-
ation grant.

One of the remarkable things that have happened in the last few
months is that we have made remarkable strides in our ability to
educate the public about STD problems. Specifically I am referring
to the fact that condom advertisements are now openly permitted
on network television, that condom advertising appears in major
national magazines, that safe sex messages are commonly seen in
public.

The private sector and voluntary groups have brought about
much of this progress, and that has been helped, certainly, by the
Surgeon General's report and the report of the National Academy
of Sciences.

I think the areas of education, a couple of them have been under-
scored fairly heavily in testimony referred to earlier. T ould only
like to add to those the need for education for teenagers, which has
been discussed earlier, that we need to include older adults in
those, an particularly health professionals.

I don't want peopla to forg, t that 2.5 million teenagers in this
country every year get a sexually transmitted disease awl about 1
million t-,e igers become pregnant. So to advocate abstinence or
marital monogamy is the only preventive measures for young
people is, I think, to put our heads in the sand. In fact, it is easier
to change behavior than it is morality.

The second group, though, is older adults, and I don't want us to
forget that it is not only the teenagers we need to get to, it is older
adult. or parents who not only need to know how to talk to young-
er people but a lot of those older people find themselves single
again after years of having been married, and it is important that
they not be overlooked in these messages.

The third component of education is also one that has been re-
ferred to but I think deserves a little greater attention, and that is
professional education. Our efforts at professional education, I
think, are one of the cornerstones which need to be examined.
There was a study in the Journal of the American Medical Associa-
tion a few years back in which 127 medical schools were surveyed
in the United States and Canada. Of those, 54 percent had no sexu-
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ally transmitted disease clinic available for teaching, 69 percent of-
fered no clinical training in sexually transmitted diseases to medi-
cal students, and 76 percent offered no training to residents.

The report also showed that instruction in sexually transmitted
diseases within schools had actually declined over the previous 15years.

I think there is another compelling reason for public education.
That is what I referred to earlier. Fourteen million people in this
country every year get sexually transmitted diseases. Like AIDS,
some of those, in fact, all of them can be transmitted sexually andpassed on to newborns.

Syphilis in women and congenital syphilis are increasing, and
you might refer to the cLarta which I have included with my testi-
mony. Since 1979, cases of gonorrhea which are resistant to antibi-
otic ham increased thirtyfold. In fact, they have increased 90 per-cent just in the past year. There are 4.5 million new cases of chla-
mydia every year, which, like gonorrhesk, can lead to pelvic inflam-
matory disease or ectopic pregnancy.

Herpes 'ad human papiloma viruses affect millions of women
and millions of men. Approxim .tely 110,000 women are left sterilein the country each year from sexually transmitted diseases. I be-
lieve that if we had had effective public education programs or
sexually transmitted diseases in the past, we would likely have pre-
vented at least some of those sexually transmitted diseases, and I
include AIDS, in that category.

At this point I think it is clear that the Government rids to
make a clear commitment to public education for AIDS as . all asother sexually transmitted diseases. The private sector has set the
stage, the public health leaders have provided the script, the Amer-
ican nublic awaits in the audience, the curtain is up, and at this
point we are all waiting for the action to begin.

I thank you for the opportunity to express our views.
[The prepared statement of Dr. Rosenberg follow]

1 L'
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AIDS and other sexually transmitted iiiceasPq °seldom are openly

discussed on network television;
condom advertising appears in major

national magazines; salt ser messages are carruily seen in public. The

private sects: and voluntary
groups have brought about much of this

progress. The SUrgeon Grneral's Report and the report of the National

Academy of Sciences have s.pported these
efforts.as well as major public

education initiatives.

There are three areas of education I would like to address-

osenagers, older adults, and health professionals. Although we all agree

we would hope teenagers delay sexual activity, the reality is that. sex

is occurring at younger ages and marriage occurring at later ages. Another

reality is that 2 5 million teenagers get a sexually transmitted disease

each year and one million become pregnant. Tb advocate abstinence or

marital monogamy as the only preventive measures for it young people

is to put our heads , Jody in the sand. 'It is easier to change behavior

than to change moralities.

Young people in high scheol, college, and those who do not

attend school are not the only people we need to educate. Their parents,

many of wham find tivansebies single after divorce, need to know no only

how tc ilk to their children but need to deal with these new social

realities themselves.

The third component of illadatiron I would like tc str as is

professional education. A study published in the Journal of t' , American

Medical Association Showed that of the 127 medical schools surveyed in

the United States and Canada, 548 had no sexually transmitted asease

clinic available for teaching, 698 offered no clinical training in sexually

transmitted diseases to medical students, and 76% offered no training to

resiients. The survey also Showed that instruction is sexually transmitted
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diseases in medical schools has actually declined over the past fifteen

years.

Finally, Mr. Chairman, there is another compelling reason

for public education. Bain:teen million people in this country each year

get diseases whidh, like AIDS, are transmitted sexually and can be passed

on to newborns. Syphilis in women and congenital syphilis are again

increasing. Since 1979 cases of gonorrhea resistant to antibiotic have

increased 30-fold, increasing 908 in just the past year. There are 4.5

million new cases of chlanydia each year, which like gonorrhea, can lead

to pelvic inflammatory disease or ectopic pregnancy. Herpes and human

papilloma viruses affect millions of Americans. Approximately 110,000

women are left sterile each year from sexually transmitted diseases. I

relieve that had effective public education programs for sexually transmitted

diseases been in place, we would have had the mechanisms and oxpertise

to initiate AIDS education and we probably would have prevented same

cases of Aar s.

goverrgrent must make a rlpAr comnitzrent to public education

for AIDS and other sexually transmitted di, .Ages The private sector

has set the stage; public health leaders have provided the script; the

American public awaits in the audience; the curtain is up; and we are all

waiting for the action to begin.

our views.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for this opportunity to express
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THE NEW YORK TIMES, SATURDAY, NOVEMBER 22. 1986

Letters

AIDS: Oppoi-tunity for Wider Public Education
To the Editor:

The krone General, C. Everett'
Kopp. is tt be comtemded ifor- his
forthright report to the nation on ac-
glance immune deadens" Syndrome
Clop Health Official Urges Frank
Talks to Young on AIDS," news story
Oct. 23). He is absolutely correct that
our young "ere not receiving informa-
tion that is vital to *Mt future health
and wellbeing." His Views were
strongly reinforced by the report 'on
AIDS research by the institute at
Medic oe of the National Sciences
Academy (Oct. 30). but our concern
must not be limited to AIDS alone.

Had this country addressed the epi-
demic of sexual)), transmitted db.
eases appropriately In the past with
adequate Nods and support for re-
search, prevention red control. in-
eluding professional and public
education, perhips we would be bet-
ter prepared to deal with AIDS. If the

'wintry had faced the problem of sex-
ually transmitted diseases with suffi-
cient funds and programs perhaps
some cases of AIDS could Ens) have
been prevented.

At least 2.5 million Ameiicar i teen-
agers will contract a sexually trans-
mitted disease this year. At least
50,000 yang w men caber the age of
25 will be rendered sterile this year
by sexually transmitted diseases.

The treentonal pi:tolic response to
suds diseases has t one of IndU,
lemma because "no one iver dies
from V.D." AIL,, however, is not the
rely sexually transmitted disease
that kills Americans. Gonorrhea and
chiamydia, diseases that infect
roughly six million Americans mutu-
ally, cause apprcodraetely Isar of the
75,000 ectoplc pregnandes each pear,
which kill the fetus and can cause ma-

i ternal death. .Congenital syphilis,
which is main on the rite, kills in-

-its, as can herpes. Papilloma vi-
-ses transmitted from mother vi

baby can have life-threatenlitS masa-
quences for the baby. Papilloma vi-
rims have also been associated with
cervical cancer, which kills approxi-
mately 7.000 women etch year.

Teen-age girls are at especially
high risk for chlantydia. i disease
which is asymptomatic in a high pro-
portion of women, and can lead to ste-
rility. emotes pregnancy and can
cause pneumonia and blindness in
newborns.

We agree with Dr. Hoop that kids-
eves must be begun to adequatelyin-
form the public, Including youths,
about AIDS. But AIDS is twit the tip
of the Iceberg. There are It million
new cases of sexually transmitted
diseases each year. Many of those
cases go untreated; **DNS are els-

uts for which there Is no cure. No
vaccine exists for any sexually trans-= d diseases except hepatitis B.

We must not lose this important op-
portunity to educate the public. es-
pecially young people, about the full
spectrum of sexually transmitted dis-
eases for which they might be at
risk.' WENDY I. WEATMEIMER

'MICHAEL J. ROSENIBEAG. M.D.
Washington, Nov. 1, 1W

The writers ore, respectively, din e.
ton of public policy. American Social
Health Assn- and director of the
Reproductive Epidemiology Division,
Family Health International.
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FIGURE "1: RESISTANT STRAINS OF GONORRHEA
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Mr. Wares. Thank you, Dr. Rosenberg. I want to thank all of you
not only for yo':r testimony but also for the tremendous work you
are doing in the field.

Mr. Dunne. I understand that you brought a few of, your public
announcements to show. We are going to see Chose now.

ibfr. Durora. There are two sets, Mr. Chairman, one that is run-
ning currently that was produced by a television station in San
Francisco along with San Francisco AIDS Foundation a.. I is being
distributed, at least in the major markets, and then a second one
that was done over a year ago funded jointly by AIDS Project Los
Angeles, San Francisco AIDS Foundation, and Gay Men's Health
Crisis.

[Video presentation.]
Mr. Duenix. Those are four 80-second television PSA's. There are

also radio and newsprint ones. They ran in the New York City, Los
Angeles, and San Francisco marketplaces.

There is a second set of 64. We are not going to show you all of
them, but there will be representative spots that have been dope
and are now running in those marketplaces and are being distrib-
uted under the auspices of the National AIDS Network around the
country.

[Video presentation.]
Mr. Mum:. If I might, Mr. Chairman, I find it interesting that

the Centers for Disease Control a few weeks ago released a nation-
al media campaign, RFP. We found it absolutely easy to get the co-
operation of people like Bob Hope and the President's son, who
were more than willing to come forward and do these public serv-
ice announcements for us. So frankly, I think that they have cre-
ated the resistance in their own head.

I think when a friend of the President and when the President's
own son are willing to 'some forward and to do these public service
announcements for co. 'ity -based organizations, I can't imagine
thzt they would tur .n a request from the Department of
Health and Human E ices.

Mr. WEISS. Will public service announcements be enough? Whet
are your thoughts on the mass media campaign?

Mr. Nina. No. I think in response to that, I have the same
answer that Dr. Joseph from New York City gave, which is that it
is one piece of a very large and very complex mosaic. It certainly
out to include public service announcements, and we ought not
to have to depend on them being contributed by the networks and
by the stations; we ought to be prepared to buy time for them. But
it certainly also has to include education that takes place in the
schools, at the workplace, at colleges and universities, in shooting
galleries, indeed wherever we can find an audience that needs
either targeted or general education.

In New York City, for example, the Gay Men's Health Crisis is
distributing millions of pieces of literature through the public li-
brary system. I fmci it curious that we are doing that without any
Government support whatsoever, although most people would
think of libraries as a kind of a public service, and it certainly is a
wonderful place to engage people and to give them information.

Mr. Wawa. Approximately a year and a half ago, your organiza-
tion was awarded a grant of $240,000 from the Centers for Disease
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Control, which was subsequently held up due to Federal concern
with the explicit sexual content of the printed and video materials
which would be developed. Would you please describe what oc-
curred and what was the resolution?

Mr. Durum Yes. It was in August 1985 that 1e submitted a pro-
posal along with a number of other organization.. around the coun-
try, and it was announced shortly after, that the Gay Men's Health
Crisis proposal had been approved but that the funding would be
held up. We went, then, from August until April of the following
year before we received additional information. Obviously, there
were a lot of phone mills back and forth in between, but we never
really got a response.

Finally we did get a response and there were essentially two sets
of conditior a. One was that any graphical material we used had to
be such that it would not be offensive to the general population.
The materials we were preparing were not Mended for the gener91
population. They were intended for a sped& ommlatit

The second condition was that we ha advisory group to
all of our materials and approve it before it was used. Now,

we had already put together an advisory group because
that, frankly, makes sense, but there was an additional element to
that, and that was that once again the members of that advisory
group not come predominantly from the community for whom the
educational message is intended In essence, it would be the equiva-
le at of putting together a program to educate black Americans and
saying that a majority of your advisory group must be white Amer-
icans. What they said to us in essence was that you need to have
an advisory group but it cannot be made up of gay men, it must
consist predominantly of nongay people.

So all of these things slowed dt a our progress and became ele-
ments that we had to work aroune,.

Mr. Weiss. Thank you very much.
Mr. Gerald, up to this time what has been the Federal response

to the AIDS epidemic occurring among black and Hispanic Ameri-
cans?

Mr. GERALD. I would say practically nothing. The problem is that
there has been no overall coordinated program. There are bits and
pieces, a project here, a project there. Our survey of our communi-
ty-based organizations show that money has trickled down, per-
haps, through acme of the States, and you can uncover a piece of
literature here, and a video elsewhere.

The Government spoke earlier today about specific components
of NIMH programs, NIDA programs, and HRSA programs, but ba-
sically the Government is just not up to the work that we need to
get done in this country as far as educating the minority communi-
ty.

The results have been that there has been very little minority
input into the design or control of these projects. I think that the
analogy that Mr. Dunne just made about community input into
these programs is appropriateit is even worse when it comes to
minorities. There has been a lower priority for such programs be-
cause of the little fun a that has gone out to the community tor
education, little to no Ong for targeted program I, and very lim-
ited materials.
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We get calls from community-based service providers across the
country asking us for materials that have been proven to be effec-
tive. They tell us ,hat the materials that they have on hand are
not adequate in serving the nee is of minority communities or to
get the word across.

The vernacular or language of the community is ignored. Literal
translation into Spanish or other languages is made, and that is, of
.curse, inappropriate. As a result, there is a perpetuation of myths
and misinformation.

There is use of more general materials, and programs in minori-
ty communities. The agencies have to scramble for funds in the pri-
vate sector, and of course, again here, there is a lower priority in
terms of the funds that are made available.

Mr. WEISS. What do you think are the specific types of programs
that have a chance of teaching that segment of the minority com-
munity which seems to be most at risk, that is, the IV drug users?

Mr. GERALD. I first want to say that while it is true that the N
drug use does exacerbate the prob!,ra in the minority community,
minorities are disproportionat y affected in terms of all risk
groups, and that there are geographic differences. Take this local
Area of the District of Columbia. It is different than, let's say, Balti-
more, or Newark, or New York. Still, when we talk about the
transmission of the HIV virus in this particular area, for example,
bisexual and gay men still account for the majority of the black
cases.

So that there is no one model program in the idc, ' sense that
will work in any community. What we need to have is funding to
minority organizations that are set up and are being set up across
the country to respond to this issue. We need t4, have within local
community-based AIDS service providers more staffing of these
kinds of targeted programsdollars.

Mr. Wins. Thank you.
Dr. Rosenberg, you said in you cony that CDC's approach

to handling ,Aexually transmitted diset.....e has been testing, treating,
and finding ,-sxual contacts. Obviously, you cannot treat and cure
AIDS. Howymr, does it seem that CDC is approaching AIDS NO
testing and tracing as if it were curable syphilis or gonorrhea?

Dr. Rosiormao. I'm sorry. I missed the last part of that.
Mr. Wass. Is it your impression that CDC is apps oe thing AIDS

disease?
with testing and tracing as if it were curable sexually transmitted

Dr. ROSENBERG. I think the limited efforts that they have made
have been in that direction. The initial s. ggestion of contact trac-
ing was offered by the CDC in a conference a few weeks ago about
mandatory testing. I think that has beenat least if that was a
suggestion, I think that has been largely overruled by the public
health community.

I think the problem is really that they are not doing me. on
AIDS right now. I think that they do recognize that contact tracing
is probably not the most effective means of getting at AIDS, but at
the same time, I think that there are fairly clearly other meansI
am talking about educationthat are, and those have yet to be in-
stituted.
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Mr. Wards. On February 11 of this year, Attorney General Meese,
as Chairman of the Domestic Policy Council, issued a memoran-
dum which stated that any health information provided by the
Federal Government that might be used in schools should teach
that children should not engage in sex. In light of your knowledge
of STD rates in adolescents, is this a realistic position? Is it suffi-
cient?

Dr. Rosnissac. I certainly ti--ink it unrealistic to believe that
solely that approach will work. I think it is a reasonable starting
point, but at the same time, you cannot write off the other people
who choose not to subscribe to that viewpoint.

Mr.. Wass. Mr. Swales, Dr. Windom 's testimony indicates that
the Public Health Service plans to reach IV drug abusers, their sex
partners and other close associates with radio, television and print
media techniques. In your experience, how effective will this be in
educating and changing behavior?

Mr. SWAIM. With all to Dr. Windom, I think that the
effect will be moderate, rats= This population is affected by a
range of factors which make it very difficult to reach them because
they are not reliable readers of the Washington Times, nor are
they reliable viewers of channel 4, no tae they reliable, in many
instances, anything, and therein may lie one of the problems.

As I said in my earlier testimony, which might have sounded like
a smart remark, these people move fast and travel light. If we are
going to conduct information to them, we had better be prepared to
move fast and travel light, and we had better be prepared to pack a
wallop with the information that we intend to give them. That
needs to be in the shape that those people are accustomed to find-
ing their information: the language, the sounds, the smells, the en-
vironment, the whole 9 yards.

One of the problems as I see it, quite obviously, isand as I ob-
served, largely these people are people of colorit is interesting to
note that people of color start to occur down here at the functional
levels. When we were up at the policy and planning levels earlier
this morning, I did not see us. I think that may have something to
do with the way information is put into the system from the Gov-
ernment's perspective.

One of the ways we like to look at ourselves at Sunnye Sherman
is as a proactive star in a galaxy of reactivity. We cannot afford,
from where I sit, to take the time or to be boaled down in the
policy development and the planning. There is work to be done. We
operate basically on the motto of "Lead me, follow me, or get out of
my way; there is work to be done."

Mr. Wilms. What role might the Federal Government provide in
helping to educate high-risk groups such as the drug addicts and
street people that you have described?

Mr. SWAIM. I missed the very early part of your question.
Mr. Wogs. What do you think the Federal Government could ap-

do to provide help to those high-risk groups you are
wor with?

Mr. Wain. To begin with, the people of the Federal Govern-
ment could provide leadership that is obviously outspoken, forth-
right leadership. While it was music to our ears to hear Dr. Koop
respond it. October, and a very effective response it was, Dr. Koop
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is an employee of the leadership that we have elected and set in
place and designed as an emblem of what we represent.

Second, where I am in the business of delivering information, I
have to deliver information on the street presently with two paid
teams of outreach workers, I would love to have 22 teams out there
in all sectors. The concept of voluntarism isn't very prevalent in
the population of people that I have to reach and draw from to give
education to that population: Prostitutes, IV substance abusers.
They need to be paid. That is the system that they operate on.
They need to be paid something akin to respectable wages. We
presently pay ours $7.50 an hour. The Government or somebody
could provide funding for that.

We hear all manner of people who canI heard one man in mar-
keting boast about how he could "sell two milking machines to a
guy who only had one cow, and then take the cow in downpay-
ment." Where are those marketing skills when it comes to market-
ing health education and the preservation of life in the face of a
threat from AIDS?

Somebody needs to do the research around the issues of commu-
nication. The majority group has a responsibility here, since it con-
trols the resources, to effectively learn how to communicate with
the minority group because the minority groups, whether they be
abusers, people of color, sexual minorities, are a part of the whole
society.

Mr. WEISS. That's good. I thank you very much.
Within the context and as a followup to that last response, have

you seen anything by way of public education or mass education
efforts which has reflected the increased breakout of the disease
from the prime risk areas? Mr. Dunne, Dr. Rosenberg, either of
you.

Mr. Durum. I wish I could say I thought there was, but I'm
afraid the news is discouraging. NBC commissioned a poll m Janu-
ary 1987, and among the questions that they asked is, "Since you
became aware of AIDS, have you changed your sexual behavior in
any way?" They asked that question in January 1986 and they
asked it again in January 1987, and only 7 percent of the respond-
ents indicated that yes, they had changed their sexual behavior. I
would hazard a guess that probably the majority of those 7 percent
are gay or bisexual men, so it is clear to me that the message has
not gotten to heterosexuals that they are at risk, and we have cer-
tainly seen evidence in New York and other places where we have
seen a dramatic decline in the gonorrhea rate for, again, gay and
bisexual men, but during that same period of time, it has either
stayed the same or riaen somewhat for heterosexual men and
women.

Mr. Wins. Dr. Rosenberg.
Dr. ROSENBERG. By way of agreeing with that, I think that the

calls that we get for the AIDS hotline, for example, are predomi-
nantly from heterosexuals. I think that, unlike the statistics for
the gay hotline that we heard earlier, I think that when people
perceive themselves to be at high risk is when they go ahead and
call in, and largely we have not impressed upon the straight com-
munity that AIDS is a disease for which they are at risk as well.
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Mr. GERALD. From the perspective of minorities, I am extremely
concerned. I was just in the State of Alabama 2 weeks ago, and I
got information that 40 percent of the people with AIDS in the
State of Alabama are people of color. You have the States of Con-
necticut, the District, Florida, Maryland, New Jersey, New York
all of these Statesreporting that over 50 percent of their cases
are people of color.

You have the States of Michigan, North Carolina, Pennsylvania
reporting that more than 40 percent of their people with AIDS are
people of color. And again, in the States of Illinois, Delaware, Lou-
isiana, Virginia, more than 30 percent of their cases of AIDS occur
among people of color.

And again, there is a myth out there. There is a perception that
people are not at risk and that those at risk are confined to New
York and San Francisco. I think that this reinforces the real need
for doing an effective and coordinated national campaign.

Mr. WEISS. I want to thank all of you very much for your testi-
mony because I think it underscores the tremendous gap that is
out there and the tremendous gap between what is suggested that
the administration or the Federal Government has been doing and
the reality of what, in fact, is happening.

Today we have reviewed what is being done to inform and edu-
cate the American people on how to protect themselves and others
from AIDS. We have heard about the creative work and the dedi-
cated workers trying to teach people, including San Francisco
youth, New York City drug users, Oregon migrant workers, the
alienated in Washington, DC, and gay and bisexual men in the
New York metropolitan area

We applaud these efforts and hope that city and State agencies
and organizations around the country will follow their lead. How-
ever, what has been done up to now has been done with little lead-
ership, output or funding from the Federal Government. The Fed-
eral response in this crucial area of the fight against AIDS has
been slow, limited, and ultimately impotent. How many more
people must die before the administration takes heed and some-
thing really gets done?

Public health experts estimate that 74,000 new cases of AIDS
will be diagnosed in 1991 alone. Of these, 37,000, or half, are people
already infected with the AIDS virus. The other 37,000 are present-
ly uninfected. If a massive education campaign against AIDS began
this afternoon, many of these people and their family and friends
could be spared the suffering and tragedy of AIDS.

Unhappily and unfortunately, we do not see the beginning of
that massive effort this afternoon. We are pleased a long-delayed
superplan has finally been signed off on and released. However, we
have reviewed the various components of the plan this morning
and early this afternoon with the administration people. Tragical-
ly, it seems that many of the components of this plan are matters
which have been talked about for years and barely implemented.

Hardly any of these components are ready to go into effect before
another 6 or 9 months or longer. There is a desperate need for a
sense of urgency. We hope that today's hearing may have helped in
some small way to create a greater sense of urgency within the
Federal Government.
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We thank all of our witnesses very much for their participation
and all of their work.

The meeting of the subcommittee is now adjourned subject to the
call of the Chair.

[Whereupon, at 2:45 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned, to recon-
vene subject to the call of the Chair.]
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Page 2 of 2

SPEC/AL 8(a) SUBCONTRACT CONDITIONS (APR 1984)

(a) Ths Small Business Administration nes entered into Contract
N.. 271-86-8408 with the National Institute on Drug Abuse to furnisn
the supplies or services as described therein. A copy of the contract
is attacned hereto and made a part nereof.

(a) Professional Management Associates, Inc. hereafter referred to as the
subcontractor, agrees and acknowledges as follows:

(1) Thar he will, for and on behalf of the 584, fUlfill and perform
all of the re:mire:lents of Contract No. 271-86-8408 for the
consideration stated herein and that he nee read and is familiar
with each and every part of the contract.

(2) That tha SBA nos delegated responsibility for the administration
of the suocontract to the National Institute on Drug Abuse with
complete authority to take any action on behalf of the Government
under the terms and conditions of this subcontract.

(3) That ne will not subcontract the performance of any of the
rewires/eats of this subcontract to any lower tier subcontractor
without the prior written apprnval of the SEA and the designated
Contracting Officer of the National Institute on Drug Abuse.

(c) Psyeents including any progress payments under this subcontract will be
made directly to tne suocontractor by the HIM.
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SPECIAL 8(a) CONTRACT C VITICtiS (APR 1984)

The Small Business Adainistration (SBA) agrees to the following:

(a) To furnish the supplies or services set forth in this contract
according to the specifications and the terms and conditions
hereof oy subcontracting with an eligible concern pursuant to the
provisions of section 8(a) of th3 Small Business Act, as amended

.. (15 USC 637(a)).

(0, That in the event SBA does not award a subcontract for all or a
part of the worn hereunder, this contract may be terminated either
in wnole or in part without cost to either party.

(c) Delegates to the National Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA) the
revonsibility for administering the sy.ntrac% to be awarded
hereunder with cceplete.authority to take any action on behalf of

tne Governmentunder tne terms and conditions of the subcontract;
provided, however, that National Institute on Drug Abuse shall.
give advance notice to the SBA before it issues a final notice
terminating the right of a subcontractor to proceed with further
performance, sither in uncle or in part, under the subcontract for
default or /or the convenience of the Government.

(d) That payments to be made under any subcontract awarded under this
contract will DO made directly to the subcontractor by the

National Institute on Drug Abuse.

(e) That the suocontractor awarded a sUbcontract hereunder shall nave
tne right of appeal from the decisions of the Contracting Officer
cognizable under the "Disputes" clause of said subcontract.

2;U
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SECTION 8

B.1 To conduct market tesearcn to ascertain nest means of reacning target
audience of IV drug users and close associates with messages acout AIDS
and drug use, and to develop, produce and distribute materials to target
audience.

A complete description of tte required services is contained in Section C.

B.2 Consideration

This is an fully- funded, 1 year, cost - reimbursement completion type

contract.

a. Estimated Cost and Fixed Fee (APR 1984)

It is estimated that the total cost to the Government for full
performance of this contract will oe $165,786, of whicn the an of
$155,668 represents the estimated costs and $10,118 represents the
fixed fee.

O. Payment

For the performance of tnis contract the Government shall pay to the

Contractor:

(1) The cost thereof determined by tne Contracting Officer to be
allowable in accordance with Clause FM 52.216-7, " Allowable

Cost and Payment," (APR 1984).

(2) The fixed fee shall to; payable in accordance with Clause FAR
52.216-8, "Fixed Fee" (APR 1984). Tne fixed fee is suoject to

an equitable reaction in the event tne requirements of
Section F are not satisfactorily completed.

c. Indirect Cost

(1) The allowable indirect costs under tnis contract snail oe
established in accordance with the procedures set forth in

Clause FAR 52.216-7 "Allowable Cost and Payment" (APR 1984).

(2) Unless otherwise specified by amenirent of tne contract, during
the first 90 days of tnis contract indirect costs shall be
reimbursed at the following rates:

Tie Billing Rate

"Fringe Benefits 25.45% (c)

"Overfeed 50.00% (a)

"General & Administration 14.00% (0)
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Bases:

(a) Direct salaries and wages, bid and proposal salaries, and
including applicable fringe benefits

(b) Total expanses less bid and proposal and less fringe
benefits associated with bid and proposal.

(c) Direct salaries, °annelid salaries, BAP salaries, and GSA

salaries.

The soave rates are approved for pilling purposes only.

Within thil first 30 days of this contract the Contractor agrees

to sutait an indirect cost rate proposal to the Financial
Advisory Services Officer Plot.* with the information required
to negotiate provisional indLtect cost rates. The Government

will enter into negotiations with thO Contractor for the purpose
of establisning provisithal indirect cost rates.

(3) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Contractor shall, in tne case

of an upward adjustment of the provisional rates, comply with
the requirements of Clause FAR 52.232 -20, "Limitation of Cost"
(APR 1984) of the contract, and provide timely notification to
thO Contracting Officer, where *soh increase in costs causes

operation of that clause.

8.3 PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ODIECT COSTS

a. It Unallowable Unless Otherwise Authorized

Notwithstanding the clauses FAR 52.216-07, "Allowable Cost and
Payer? (April 196e), FAR 52.244-02, "Subcontracts Under
Cost.maisbursement and Latter Contracts" (APR 1984), and'reGAR
352.247.70, *Foreign Travel" (APR 1964), unless authorized in writing
by the Contracting Officer, the costs of the following items or
activities shall be unallowable as direct costs:

(1) Any fee or other payment for consultation in excess of
f150 /day /consultant or where the services of any consultant will
exceed ten days Curing the period of this contract.

(2) Acquisition, by purchase or lease, of any interest in real

Property;

(3) Special rearrangement or alteration of facilities;

(a) Purchase or lease of item of general purpose office

furniture or office equipment regardless of dollar value
(General purpose office equipment is defined as any items of

2
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personal property which are usable for purposes other than
research, such es office equipment and furnishings, pocket
calculators, etc.);

(3) Purchase or rental of any it of personal property having a
unit value of $ or more;

(6) Travel to attend general scientific meetings;

(7) Foreign travel.

o: Travel Costs

Travel expenses incurred by the Contractor exclusively in direct
performance of this contract anall not exceed:

1. Cost of air travel oy most direct route, using "air coach" or
"air tourist" (less than first class) unless it is clearly
unreasonable or imprecticable (e.g.,.not available for reasons
other then avoidable delay in making reservations, would require
circuitous routing or entail additicnal expanses offsetting the
savings on fare, or would not awe necessary cormsctions); or

2. Cost of rail travel oy most direct route, first class with lower
berth or nearest eqiivelent; or

3. Cost of travel by privately owned automobile. ItoWeVer,

reimbursement for transportation by this means shall not exceed
the cost of 1. or 2. above, wnithever is less.

A. The cost of travel by privately caned automobiles, end
sU7sistence costs shall be reisoursecl pursuant to the Goverrment
travel policy in effect at the time such costs are incurred.
The Contractor shall cite in any claim for reimbursement of
travel costs the source of the rates used.

c. Any coats incurred prior to the effective date of this contract shall
be considered unallowable end nct releoursaole under tnis contract.
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SECTION C
Description/Specification/work Statement

AIDS (Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome) is a condition cnsrecterized
by a dsfect in rho body's natural immunity to disease. Ihe causative
agent of AIDS is the turn T- lygntropnic virus or MTLV-IIT. The
virus is transmitted prirripslly by sexual contact with infected
individuals end by the snared use of intrevenous needles and/or other
drug-related paraphernalia. It can also be spread from mother to child
before, Owing, or shortly after birth and through the direct
ttsnefteice) of contaminated blood or blood products. Puple with AIDS
are vulnerable to severe illnesses wnich art not typically s tnreat to
anyone arose Lon system is intact. Eighty percent of all AIDS
patients die within two years of diagnosis. No patient is known to
hove recovered from the disease.

The Centers for Mein Control report over 20.000 cases of AIDS (May,
1966). M3reover, it has been estimated that there may be one million
people in the U.S. who have teen infected with AIDS virus, but ere
currently asyeptomatic. Indivicliels with a history of Intl's...en:us drug
use moms us approximately 27 percent of the total number of AIDS
cases. MU dog; users are disproportionately responsible
for hsterosexcel transmission of the disease. MO vsst gsjority of
known cases of adult heterosexually -tssnamitted AIDS cases : t also
traceable to IV drug users. Concern with containing the spread of AIDS
within and from the IV calamity is obviously well founoed.
Pediatric cases represent ilia than 1 1/2 percent of the total AIDS
cases; roomer. 32 percent of those children are the offspring of IV
drug users.

N. Oblective

Tne objective of this contract is first co conduct market research in
order to ascertain the rest means of reechirg the target audience of
intravenous (IV) drug users, their sex partners, and other close
associates, such at family emscers, with messages about AIDS and drug

use. Second, in accordance with the results of the research, the

contractor will develop, produm, and distribute appropriate materials
which will carry the messages to the target Guaira in such a wary as
to halt or slow the spread of AIDS. The Statement of Mark ipecifies

radio and tint materials for twill:oil and r . oilSeS

. marks research w I TT-%

.

ma !I s De

The contract trus colorises a market Meseartn part and a

Materials Development part.

2' '
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The basic ideas to be °sought to the target audience are intended to
provide intervention a. different stages of drug use: first, to get
users to Seek treatment for drug use* and second, if treatment is not
pulp's, to gat users to avoid snaring needles. As part of the

messages, the target audience will oe encouraged to call a NIDA "8070P
telephone number for referral to drug mouse treatment programs in their

local calamity.

NIDA is targetting tan (10) cities in its AIDS and Drugs Public
aeration P:ogram where tnere are large population of intravenous
neroin users. NIDA will not be targetting those areas already heavily
involved in pUblic adoration activities, such as New vork, New Jersey,
San Francisco, and Los Angeles, out will be working with representatives
of these paogrems to capitalize on their successful approaches to share
with otner cities re are in tne incipient stage. of planning tnair
pregame. A preliminary list of preoosed target cities includes:
Atlanta, Boston, Cnicego, Cleveland, Detroit, Houston, Dallas, Miami,
St. Louis, and Washington/Baltimore. Most target ouoleoce embers are

Black inner.city IV heroin users. The exact make-up of the target

audience varies sOmewnat ftcaTity.-to-city.

II. Services to be Performed

Independently, and not as an agent of the ::overneent, tne contractor
shell furnish all the necessary labor, materiels and facilities to

mount a public service viecelomml program wh.rs small reflect the
oasic standards of integrity, public acceptance and general
appropriateness by wnich public service educational orcgrays are judged
in determining tneir fitness for national and local media supoort.

Specifically, the contractor shall perform and complete tne following

tasks:

Task A. Program Orientation: Market Research

1. The Contractor snail meet with the Pro,!ect Cr!.-er and otner
Government personnel in order to disccem and ,.arifv the (=pose of
the =tract, and to orient tne contractor in 4.xleral on toe
relationstip between AIDS and IV dug use, as it relates to tne

contract.

aW k,3
2. The Contractor snail perform beck;,ound research, in order to learn

whs. is Known about adoration of the target audience on AIDS. The

f shell
doleagrepnicc o the target tlence ts well

s other resources OD the AIDS and IV drug use

reaTem. The Contractor shall consult with the National
Association of Broadcasters in Washington, D.C., to learn as far as
possible what radio stations would oe likely to reacn the target

audience. The Contractor snail also consult with radio stations

I

research on

2 "
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that have been determined to be likely channels of approach to tne
target audience, in order to explore whet types of AIDS-related
messages would be in acceptable taste for broadcast The
contractor shell talk to dog treatment personnel in the 11 target
cities to find out leather they know of radio stations wnich might

reach the target eurdence. The Contractor snail prepare a
prellainery report, based on its findings, to serve as thc bmsis of r

cis by the iota group to be convened in Subtonic 4, below. Wat

The Contractor shall rewire and convene two meetings at
determine. by the Pro ec

The participants shall arms o o target

and members of agencies (such as street workers) wno deal

with then. in order to encourage full participation, a $10
horerarliPshall be paid to each participant of the target audience
attending the meeting. There shall be no note then nine

ts to be recruited locall no travel or per e

be id
r

plus
anecessary

=tractor staff.(

to
Ihe participants shall

explore their media Mita the ways in Inlet tney empire
information thrown press, radio, and personal contact - and the
ways in wnicn AIDS messages could best reach them. The findings

fete tne two meetings shall be incorporated into the preliminary waks
report prepared in Subtasx 2, above.

Re Contractor shall organize and convene a york of up to 20
people, to meet for one day at the Puklawn
Maryland. The work group shell comprise experts from state and

organizations on AIDS and IV drug use Ithe Protect Officer

shall and for experts fileate.44_

to the target audience; members of

(e.g., the Office of Public Affairs/Relic ----/itmLwet
H ealth Service, and tne Centers for Disease Control) who nave
worked with AIDS =lie education and/or IV drug users (noes and
addresses Lobe furnished ..mGodvernmen); end
appropriate personnel aT NIDA era or. The work group

shall consider in detail the media habits of the target audience in
the target cities; past successes and failures in reaching these
audiences with AIDS messages; conventional and unconventional means
of reaching the target audiences; formats and appzmaches for radio
and print materials; and any otter topics to proem tie objectives

of the contract. The Contractor shall pay for 10 attendees,

honoraria at 3125, travel and per diem and make all travel /tea, 4;

arrangements.

5. The Contractor snail summarize the findings of the work group

meeting and coeoine the information with the preliminary report for

a final market research report. This report snail oe used as the

basis for deteruining the specific materials to oe developed in

Task 8 materials Development.

2

wet,k.
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Task 8. Materials Development

In accordance with tne results of the market researm, NIDA in
consultation with the contractor will determine the specific materials
to oe developed. All materials to be developed will need to reinforce
the themes of the campaign.

Radio and print materials are included in the Statement of work for
technical. tavromm: andeoridthommooss. All'materials are sum oerevy '01 t'. oy PtS ancIFFIS.

It is expected that the radio spots and print materials will oe
released in two waves. Tne first wove will be released by the end of
week 37 of the contract, and the second, by the end of week 50. Earn
wave will consist of nail' the total numer of radio spots and nalf of
tne print items.

3.

Tne Contractor snail organize and lead two focus grow meetings, a.
two sins the Project Officer. Tne focus grams

Insist )1 mempers.o .the of IV drug users,
their max partners, and Close associates such as family Reapers.
The two grams snail total people. In order to encourage full
participation, a $10 nonoraril oe paid to each participant of
tne target audierme attending the focus group meetings. All will
oe recruited locally (no travel or per diem to oe paid). The foal.
gramsgroups snail explore beliefs, attitudes, and possible resistance to
!messages concerning AIDS and IV drug use,..and (in particular)

possiole rpfinements of qrttent of such messages, and the oest
0tyles oftEadio and print materials to ream the target audience.
he Contractor snail prepare a report of findings from the
meetings; tnis report, together with the market research report
prepared in Task A.5, snail serve as the oasis for discussion at
the Creative Development Meeting, Steztasx 2 melon.

The Contractor snail organize and lead a one-day Creative
Development Meeting, to oe held at the Parklawn Building,
Rockville, maryland. Up to 20 people snail attend. Participants
snail Include VP to Jour mxperts from the work grow (Task A.4); a
lalpur representatives of the radio and print media;
representatives of OPA/FHS, the Contractor's creative staff and the
staff wafter responsiole for creative and copy-test research; and
NM project personnel. The Contractor snail pay nonoraria for 6
participants at $125, travel and per diem for up to 14
participants. The oasis for discussion snail oe the two reports
from Tasks A.5 and 8.1. W1.11/2-

Tne Contractor shall develop a Creative Plan, Incorporating the
ideas and concerns expressed at the Creative Development meeting ,

(Task 8.2 aoove), covering the entire program, and outlining a
schedule of production, launcning, and distrioution in two waves.
The plan snail :-clude (out not be restricted to):

amps,

2C 7
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a. Proposed theses and sub-tiles, and the rationale behind each.

o. A plan for distribution of radio materials to up to 500 radio

stations.

c. A plan for distribution of print materials to organizations
(Such as fliers or hendouts) or to the media (sucn as print

ads).

d. A plan for writing and placement of up to 10 magazine and
newspaper articles on AIDS and IV drug use, intended for
indirect reach to the target audience; the newspaper ,aticles
to re placed in We target cities.

Tne plan sell oe ammitted to the Project Officer. The Project

Officer shall have 5 working days to review and approve tne

Creative Plan. The Project Officer snail also select one of tne
proposedtnemes and suo-tremes to oe tne theme for tne program. 1114-da I :3-

4. The Contractor snail develop and produce radio materials as

indicated below:

s. Develop treatments for 20 nr more radio spots. Sunlit a
sufficient numoer of treatments to allow tne Goverment to
select and approve treatments for (total 12) eight 30- second
spots and four 20-second spots. Treatments snail oe waL ISi
multiculturally sensitive.

b. Upon selection and approval by tne Government of tne 20 radio,
treatments as specified in 1(a) above, write draft scripts. (, 7,1,

c. Undertake creative and copy-test research for Um program, as
required to ensure attainment or program objectives. Special

attention shall oe aide toward developing ways to ensure that

tne program reaches tne primary target audience.

The research is to include informal rcundtable discussions,
with an unstructured format, to assess tne effectiveness cf
program.

The Contractor snail !Wait the results of creative and
copy-test research to tne Government, and shall incorporate Ow
uest suggestions from tne research into tne draft scripts and
otner materials, acting on Us recommendations of Ow
Goverment.

O. Concurrently with Step c., SUblit draft scripts and live
arrwuncer copy to tne four (4) mercers of the MOM group (see
Task A.4) for review. Contractor snail pay honoraria to the

four work group sewers. The work group will have five --ring

2 0 8
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days from receipt of the materials, for review. The contractor

shell submit a smeary or the work group's suggestions to tne
favermant. The contractor shall incorporate tne best
suggestions of tne work group into the materials, acting on tne
recommendations of the Government.

e. Submit the ErlimmA &wee matarimTs. incorporating tne
. suggestions from Steps c. and d., to tne Government forTand approval. 1/P422/ley4

e

Z`l
r. upon review and approval of tne draft scripts by the

Government, write ClOILSAWs; develop descriptions of the
cxmkyround, cnerocter, and p5Tile of each person wro will be
tne oasis for the characters; submit a list of suggestions for

talent. In addition, submit specifications for recording
locations end a production scheoUle, write live announcer copy
in formats of several lengths (e.g. 60, 30, 20 seconds);
prepare live announcer cony in oath English and Spanisn as

necessary. Summit all material to the Government. THESE
MATERIALS WILL BE THE BASIS fCR REVIEW BY PHS AND THE ,64.eda-24
DEPARTIENT AND MAY RECULRE MOIFICATION.

G. Upon review and approval of tne spots by the Government, select

the narrator or announcer, select tne locations for recording,
and Cake all otner preparations for actual production. Talent

fees fo: spots shall apply for a two (2) year period from tne
recording date. Summit results of preparations to tne

Government.

h. upon review and approval oy the Government, perform said
recording.

1. Upon review and approval by tne Government, edit sound track
for 8:30-second and 4:20-second radio spots. Submit rough edit

to Ofoject Officer for approval.

j. Upon laview and approval ey the Government, fine edit the
spots. Suomit to Project Officer for approval. THIS MATERIAL

WILL SUBICT TO REVIEW BY PHS AND THE DEPARTMENT AND MAY

REWIRE MODIFICATION.

ion review and approval oy tne Government, make discs and/or
tapes of tne radio spots for two waves, not to exceed 500. The

first wave items are to oe packaged appropriately and sumitted

to tne Project Officer. Deliver 50 copies to AIDA Project

officer, in addition to the 500 aoove; total, 550 spots.

1. Release tne first wave radio and print materials. It is

contemplated tnat all, or nearly all, tne materials will ce
radio oecaese of the time needed to print tne other materials.

209
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a. Release the second wave of materials.

n. Sumit the following items to the Government before the end of

the contract period:

1. Master mixed trod: (magnetic) for radio

2. Final narration scripts for dal of the radio spots
3. Talent and mimic releases

5. The Contractor snail develop and produce print materials based on
tne Creative Plan (Task B.3). The print materials shall include:
(1) Pampnlets, fliers, posters, and handouts (final
product-camera -ready copy); (2) Articles for magazines, and for
newspapers in the target cities; and (3) Materials for radio kits:
packages, labels, fact sneets, cover letters, scripts and live
copy, and user reply cards, for up to 550 radio distribution kits.
THIS MATERIAL IS SUBJECT TO REVIEW BY FHS AND THE DEPART NT AND

MAY REQUIRE MODIFICATION.

The materials snail oe socaltted to the Project Officer.

a. Rough sketches and treatment copy; 6v,82,4. zoo

b. Draft layout and draft copy of all materials including magazine

and newspaper articles;

c. Final layout and final copy.

a. Mechanicals.
(wedi..

Task C. Launching and Distribution

Since tnis program is targetted to a limited audience, a full-scale

"launch event" with press conference, is not indicated. Marketing of

tne campaign will oe conducted under a separate contract, which will
involve regional meetings, training of local drug abuse community

groups, and tne use of tne materials of tnis contract in conducting
AIDS and drug abuse education programs at the local level. Tne

contractor will work with the Project Officer to prepare for the

marketing activities.

Distribution snail oe in two waves. Thus, there will be two Kits for

broadcasters, each one containing nalf of tne radio materials, and two
sets of print materials, each set consisting of spout nalf tre total

produced. TNe Contractor shall:

1. Meet with tne Project Officer to discuss marketing plans and

specific arrangements for launching tne program. The Contractor

shall work with the Project Officer to plan these activities and
have tne materials ready for the marketing events.

2.0
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2. Oevelop kits of -sdio materials and print materials for
distribution (550 radio its and 500 print materials kits).

3. Distribute the radio kits to broadcasters according to plan;
distribute tne print materials to cooperating groups according to
plan.

2
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SECTION E
Inspection and Acceptance

E.1 Inspection and Acceptance

a. All work under this contract is subject to inspection and final
acceptance by an autnorized representative of the Government.

b. Tne Government Project Officer Is responsible for inspection and
acceptance of all items to be delivered under this contract.

C. The Contractor's attention is directed to tne contract clause FAA
52.246-5 "Inspection of Services" (APR 1984), mien is nereoy

incorporated in tnis contract by reference.

212
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SECTION F
Deliveries or Performance

F.1 The Contractor shell su)mit the deliverable items, described in the Work
Statement (Section C), in accordance with the following schedule:

By End of
Weeks After

item Quantity Contract Award

1. Orientation meeting (Task A.1.) N/A 1

2. Background rases= and consultation 5 3
(Task A.2.); preliminary report

3. Media limits meatiness (Task A.3.) N/A 5

4. Mork group meeting (Task A.4.) N/A 6

5. Report on am:met research (Task A.5.) 8

6. Focus group meetings reports (Task 8.1.) 5 6

7. Creative development meeting N/A 9
(Task 8.2.)

8. Creative plan (Task 8.3.) 5 12

9. Radio and print treatments and rough 5 18
sketonas (Task 8.4.a.)

10. Draft scripts and print texts and 5 20
art won' (Task 8.4.b. and 8.5.6.)

11. Results of copy-test researcn 5 23
(Task 8.4.c.)

12. Results of work group review 5 23
(Task 8.4.d.)

13. Revised draft scripts, print texts, 5 24
etc. (Task 8.4.e. and 8.5.o.)

14. Final scripts, print texts, *camera- 5 26
ready copy, art work (Task 8.4.f.
and 8.5.c.)

4 weeks for PHS and CO46 review
2 weeks for modification/reworking
and review

15. Radio preproduction preparations
(Task 8.4.g.)

N/A 32

2.0



Item

16. Radio sound recording
(Task B.4.11.)

Radio rot:9n edit (Task 13.4.i.)17.

210

18. Radio fine edit (Task 8.4.j.)
2 weeks MG and OHMS review

19. Final radio spots; print mecnenicals
(Task B.4.k. and B.S.d.)

20. Release first wave materials
(Task 61.5.1.)

Wantity
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By End of
Meeks After
Contract Award

N/A

N/A 34

N/A 35

1 each
38

N/A 39

50
21. Release second wave radio and

print materials (Task 8.4.4.) N/A

22. taster mixed track; scripts
releases (Task 8.4.n.)

23. Financial Report of IndividWal
Projectdtontract - FeiS Form 646
to be prepared in accordance with

accompenying instructions
(Section G) (Attachment 3)

24. Final report, to include a
review of tne projec::
analysis of impact o' the first wave;
and recommendations For improvements

1 52

3 quarterly. Delivery

to be within 15 dayr
after end of tne

period reported. A

final report for the
last three months de
on or before expirethin
of tne contract

5 On or before
contract
expiration.

Note: Five working days are allotted to the government for review and
approval except for after Its 14 and 18 wnen additional weeks are
allotted for DINS review and possible modification.

A camera-ready original is specified to mean a single spaced, reproducible
original typed on enite paper with a carocn ribbon, complying with all
Government Printing Office ortrographic require:tents for printing oy N1DA

by the pnoto offset process.

Two copies of tne Final Report shall oe forwarded directly to the

Contracting Officer.

F.2 Contract Expiration Date

This contract sell expire

2i4
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MARKET RESEARCH AND HEALTH COMMUNICATIONS PLAN

ON AIDS AND IV DRUG ABUSE

BACKGROUND AND EXTENT OF PROBLEM

The purpose of this background paper is to outline o communications pion aimed at

preventing and reducirn the transmission of Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) within

and from the intravenous (IV) drug abusing community.
After Goy or Bisexual men, IV

drug abusers ore the second largest risk group for AIDS. Sharing of contaminated needles

has been implicated as the likely means of HIV tronsmission within the IV drug abusing

populotion. IV drug abusers are a bridge to two other groups: children and heterosexual

partners. The majority of reported heterosexual
tronsmission cases hove involved o link

to IV drug abusers, most of them male drug abusers who transmit the vi. .is to non-drug

abusing females through sexual contact.

Currently, 25 percent of the approximately 33,000 reported cases of AIDS ore

identified os being associated with IV drug use as a risk behavior (as of March 23, 1987).

Of these cases, 32 percent (8% of the 33,000) were found to be Goy moles while 68

percent (17% of the 33,000) were heterosexu, IV drug users. Transmission of the HIV

virus by heterosexual contact,
believed to be mainly transmitted by those infected by IV

drug use, presently accounts for 4 percent of the cases. In utero or perinotol

tronsmission to children has been
determined to be the cause in about one percent of the

existing cases of AIDS.

Table 1 presents the growth of the AIDS problem relative to the transmission

categories. This table provides the yearly number of cases (December 9 of one year to

December 8 of the following year) and percent increase from the end of 1982 to the end

of 1986. According to these data, the percentcpe increase of cases for overall mole and

female IV drug users has diminished
in the 1986 period relative to the comparable period

in 1985. (Males: 78% increase in the 1985 period vs. 52% in the 1986 period; and

females: 82% increase in 1985 vs. 56% in 1986). The exception to this, in the IV drug use

transmission category, is among Goy moles who oleo use drugs intravenously where the

yearly percentage increase is actually increasing (45% in the 1985 period vs. 61% in the

1986 period). This anomaly is understandable,
however, since that group is at risk

relative to two of the primary high risk behaviors.

-I-
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TABLE h Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome (AIDS) Cases Reported for three Trorumission
Categories (IV Drug Use, iettrosexual Contact, and Pediatric) with Percentages of Yearly
Increases (Inc.). United States, through December 8, 1986.

TrenemIsslors Defer. 1219/82- 12/9/13- I20/111- 1219/45-

1ML 12/8/82 12/8/83 .12/11/111 12/11/115 12/816 TOTAL

ADULT MALE:

All IV drug) 172 489 957 1,708 2,599 5,925

(% (184) (96) (78) (52)

IV drug user only 98 29S 561 1,132 1,674 3.760

(% inc.) (201) (90) (102) (48)

IV drug user
homosexual

74 194 396 576 925 2,165

(% inc.) (162) (104) (45) (61)

All heterosexual
confect

41 69 106 131 195 542

(% inc.) (68) (54) (24) (49)

U.S. Contact I I 10 20 49 81

(% inc.) (0) (900) (100) (145)

N o n U.S. born? 40 68 9 6 I I I 146 461

(% inc.) (70) (41) (16) (32)

2

Percent increase

Includes both heterosexual and homosexual IV drug users.

Includes persons without other identified risks who were born in countries in which heterosexual
transmission is believed to ploy a major role.

(Toble continued)

2



214

TABLE I (Cent3 Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome (AIDS) Cases Reported for Three
Transmission Categories (IV Drug Ube, Heterosexual Contact, and Pediatric) with Percentages of

Yearly Increases - United States, through December 8, Stec

Tronemimien Before 1219112- IMAM- 12M114- 12/9/85-

Ceftxt 12/8/42 12/1/13 12111(Se 12/SMS 12/8/16 TOTAL

ADULT FEMALE:

IV drug user 26 79 152 276 430 963

(% inc.). (204) (92) (82) (56)

All heterosexus.
contact

16 32 60 131 275 514

(% inc.) (100) (88) (118) (110)

U.S. contact 7 20 47 100 230 404

(% inc.) (186, (135) (113) (130)

Non U.S. born? 9 12 13 31 45 110

(% inc.) (33) (8) (138) (45)

PEDIATRIC 1 41 50 124 178 394

(% inc) (4000) (22) (148) (44)

2

Percent increase

Includes persons without other identified risks who were born in i ,vnrriesi which hete,osexuol
transmission is believed to ploy a major role.
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The apparent decrease in the year -to -year percentage increase in the overall IV
drug use category is hardly a consolation, as the absolute number of cases continues to
increase. Empirical models employed by CDC estimate that the proportion of AIDS
cases related to IV drug use *i . remain about the some in 1991.1 Since the total number

of cases is projected to be 273,C..)0 by 1991, this implies that ove 60,000 cases will be
related to IV drug use.

This degree of growth in the number of AIDS cases due to transmission by IV drug
use is supported by other epidemiologic evidence. For example, CDC estimates that
approximately 750,000 Americans inject heroin or other drugs intravenously at least once
a week with a similar number injecting drugs less often. 2 This estimated total number

of intravenous drug users (1.5 million) is independently substantiated using treatment
statistics and other studies. Specifically, the Notional Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA)
estimated that more than 305,000 clients were admitted to State monitored drug abuse

treatment programs in the United States in FY 1985.3 Of those clients in treatment,
over half (57%) report the use of needles as a route to drug administration. 4 Combining

these data with findings in epidemiological studies which estimate that nine to twelve
percent of all IV drug users are in treatment suggests that there are about 1.45 million of
this type of drug user in the United States (using 12% in treatment). 5 Thus, it could be a
reasonable assertion that there are about 1.5 million IV drug users in the U.S.

Using this total prevalence as a base, seropositivity and infection con be used to
project the number of IV drug use related AIDS cases in 1991. Studies of the rate of
seropositivity have shown a range of prevalence rates, from 10 to 87 percent. 6,7 But
the most recent findings suggest that, overall, IV drug abusers have an infection rate
which already exceeds 50 percent 8. Seropositivity denotes exposure but not necessarily
the presence of the virus, although the growing rote of seropositivity probably reflects
the growth of infection. When blood samples of seropositive cases were .Itured for the
presence of the virus, at least 62 percent of the samples were found to contain the
virus. Given the limitation in the culturing technology relative to the HIV virus (e.g., it
would not identify the presence of the virus in the neural tissue in the brain), the true
rate of viral infection is probably higher in seropositive cases. 9. However, using the 50
percent seroposh ty rate among IV drug users and a 62 percent rate of actual infection
in this group, one can conclude that about 31 percent of IV drug users are carriers of the
virus. Combining this infection rate with the prevalence of IV drug use (i.e., 1.5 million
individuals), it could be estimated that there are presently about 465,000 IV drug users

-2-
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infected with the virus. Since CDC projects the 20 to 30 percent of those presently

infected will develop AIDS by 1991, the foregoing data suggests that 93,000 IV drug users

will have AIDS at that time. This estimate could be seen as being high because all of the

estimated 13 million IV drug users may not have the some degree of risk. However, this

estimate for 1991 (93,000) does tend to substantiate the CDC estimate of over 60,000 IV

drug use related AIDS cases for thot year. These are only the coses related to individuals

who ore presently infected and does not consider the future spread of infection.

Results relating behaviors to seropositivity are presently fragmented. This

frogmentotion should be soon remedied since NIDA and CDC are sponsoring numerous

studies to investigate behaviors related to virol transmission. In the interim, olthough

evidence is partial, some aspects of behavior reloted transmission ore relatively

For example, in Son Francisco, where the rote of seropositivity among IV drug users was

low (10%), seropositivity was found to be clearly related to the number of individuols

with whom an IV drug users shared needles. I° The toble presented below shows the

degree of seropositivity and the relotive risk Ncperienced by 209 IV drug users in San

Francisco.

Seopositivity Related to the Number of Persons
with whom Needles are Usually Shared (1984-1985)

Number of Relative
Persons Percent Risk

Sharing Needles N Positive (Odds Ratio)

Rarely 65 3% I

1 76 9 3.2

2 or more 68 15 5.4

These data show that for those individuals who share needles with two or more people the

risk of being seropositive is more than 5 times that of individuals who rarely shore. This

finding, however, should be considered as a description of relative risk in a city where

infection is somewhat minimal (i.e., 10% seropositivity) compared to other communities

and factors which ore conducive to reduced transmission (i.e., a lock of shooting golleries

ond little overlap between the Goy ond heterosexual drug using populotion).

-3-
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Conditions for transmission are more present in the east. In New York, the pool of
infected IV drug users is over 50%; shooting galleries, where needles are purchased and

shared, ore common, and there is more shoring with the Gay population. In one study,
the majority of heterosexual IV drug users with AIDS or AIDS related complex had shared

needles with Gay men. II In circumstances such as this, one would have to conclude that

the relative risk associated with multiple person needle sharing would exceed that
described in San Francisco.

While needle shoring behavior has been studied among AIDS patients and clients in

treatment, as was stated, little comprehensive evidence is available for all IV drug users
both in and out of treatment. Relative to this, a study was conducted in Washington,

D.C. in 1986 where samples of IV drug users who were in treatment and not in treatment

were surveyed. 12 The fallowing results were found:

Needle Sharing Behavior Among IV Drug Users
In =I Not In Treatment - Washington, D.C. (1986)

Na Per:eons
Shared With In treatment Not in Treatment
0.ast Month) (n=159) (rL=63)

0 49% 39%
I 35 21
2 10 24
3 2 9
4 or more 3 8

These two groups are shown to have marked differences in risk in two ways. For those
not in treatment, not only do they share needles more often (61% in comparison to 51%),

but they share needles with more individuals (40% not in treatment shore with two or
more persons in comparison to 15% of those in treatment). While no clear data are
available describing seropositivity rates in Washington, D.C., preliminary information
indicates that the rote is about 30 percent - somewhere between the rates in San
Francisco and New York. Given that there ore more individuals not in treatment than in

treatment, it could be expected that rates will rise, as the use of shooting wineries is
prevalent in Washington, D.C.

-4-
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While studies are underway to determine more precisely the behavioral correlates

of infection, it is not necessary to await their findings to understand how rapidly the

virus can spread among IV drug users. Retrospective studies of blood samples from

various populations of IV drug users clearly indicate that once the virus is introduced into

a -community, it can diffuse to infect a majority of users. In New York City, for

example, the prevalence of seropositivity in samples of IV drug users increased from II

percent in 1977 to 27 percent in 1979, and to 58 percent in 1984)3 In Edinburgh,

Scotland, a similar pattern was observed with seropositivity rising to more than 50

percent among IV drug users in a two year period.14 In addition, rapid rises in the

proportion of seropositivity have been documented in Spain and Italy where rates among

tested addicts have gone from zero to one-half to three-fourths in the space of several

years. With growth rates such as these which broaden the pool of infected IV drug users,

it may not be a matter of how often on individual shares a needle, nor with how many

others, but if they share at all. As the infected pool in a community includes the

majority of IV drug users, the probability of being infected in a single sharing experience

(without disinfecting the needle) becomes maximized.

As previously noted, there is grave concern that the pool of HIV infection due to

transmission among IV drug users could act as a conduit to spread the virus to the general

heterosexual population. This concern is supported by the epidemiological data. As of

March 23, 1987, four percent of the 32,696 cases of AIDS among adults and adolescents

reported heterosexual transmission as the probable cause for being infected with the

virus.15 Of these 1230 cases, 608 persons (114 men, 494 women) reported having

heterosexual contact with a person with AIDS or at risk for AIDS and 622 (500 men, and

122 women) were without other identified risks but were born in countries where
heterosexual transmission is believed to play a major role. The yearly growth of

heterosexually contracted cases of AIDS from 12/9/82 to 12/8/86 is given in Table 1 for

males and females as all heterosexual contact, contact among those born in the U.S., and

contact among those not born in the U.S. Note that percentage increase in the last

period, for all heterosexual concoct; either increases above the previous period (for

moles: 49% in the 1986 period versus 24% in the 1985 period) or stays relatively the

same (for females: 110% in the 1986 period versus 118% in the 1985 period). This type

of increase is an anomaly relative to other transmission categories (IV drug use,
Cay/Bisexual) where the yearly percent increases are diminishing. This anomaly is even

more pronounced if one examines the category of U.S. heterosexual contact where for

both moles and females the last period increase is larger than the previous period which
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was a decline from the period before that (males: 1984 - 900%; 1985 - 100%; 1986 -
145%; and females: 1984 -135%; 1985 - 113%; 1986 - 130%). This data indicates that

heterosexual transmission is the category which is experiencing the most rapid growth in

cases.

Linking heterosexual transmission explicitly to IV drug use is problematic since

individuals who contract AIDS usually only report one risk factor. As of the week of
March 23, 1987, 88.4 percent reported one risk foctor.I6 However, among the cases
which reported multiple risk factors and one of them was IV drug use among
heterosexuals, 68 percent also reported heterosexual contact as another risk factor. This

does not clearly demonstrate a link because the preponderance of those contracting AIDS

by heterosexual transmission "don't report", or "don't know", that their partners were IV
drug users. Viewing this from a different standpoint, where among those reporting

multiple risk factors including heterosexual contact, only about 10 percent indicated

factors other than IV drug use. Again, this does not show the link conclusively; but these

data together make a rather compelling argument about the link between heterosexual
transmission and IV drug abuse.

The final aspect of the problem involves transmission of the virus to children,

either as a fetus or perinotally, from mothers who have AIDS or are at risk of
contracting AIDS. The focus relative to this discussion has to do with the mother
contracting AIDS by IV drug use or heterosexual contact with on IV drug user. Here
again, there is no precise information describing the link between IV drug use and
transmission to children but the data do indicate that the preponderant number of
children with AIDS contracted the virus as a fetus or during the perinatal period.
Specifically, as of March 23, 1987, 80 percent of the 462 children under 13 with AIDS has

a parent with AIDS or was at risk.I7 Since 51 percent of the women with AIDS acquired

the virus by IV drug use and 28 percent by heterosexual transmission, one would expect

these modes of transmission to ploy a corollary role in transmitting the virus to
children.I8

IV drug abusers, therefore, occupy a pivotal position in the developing AIDS

epidemic, and efforts to control the spreod of the disease must focus, at least in po.t, on
this risk group. In the absence of either effective treatment or vaccines, reducing

transmission-related behavior (in all risk groups) is the most practical means of trying to
control the AIDS epidemic. Public health education has been suggested as a means of

-6-
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reducing the spread of the infections among IV at. sers, their children, and sexual

partners, and has been credited by many with already having hod an impact on high-risk

sexual octivity among Gay and Bisexual men.

An effective health education campaign should, therefore, be concerned with two

(2) types of risk behaviors:

o sharing of contaminated body fluids (i.e., blood) through the use of unclean,

shared needles and works, and

o sexual transmission of HIV to uninfected partners.

Of the two, sharing of contaminated blood through the sharing of needles and/or

"works" is the risk behavior most often associated with IV drug abusers. Both IV drug

abusers and the general public appear to perceive that IV drug abusers are among the

primary groups at high-risk for infection, due to sharing behaviors. The second risk

foctor, sexual transmission from the IV drug abusing population to non-IV drug abusers, is

clearly documented. The general perception of this "link" and risk among IV drug a:susers

and the general population is somewhat unclear. The ability to control and prevent HIV

infection among all population groups strongly depends upon the understanding of the two

risk hehaviors, as well as on individual's ability to respond tc. AIDS health messages

targetted to the modification of high.risk practices (e.g., ". 'er" sexual practices,

disinfection of needles and "works", etc.).

Education campaigns aimed at eliminating or reducing HIV transmission through the

modification of, primarily, IV drug abuse behaviors, and, secondarily, sexual behaviors,

need to 13:. directed to a broad range of individuals. Specific target populations include:

o Current and ex-IV drug abusers

o Sexual partners of current and ex-IV drug abusers

o Family and significant others of current ond ex-IV drug abusers

o All sexually active heterosexuals

All target populations would benefit from AIDS education materials and messages

based on both past and current IV drug use and/or sexual behaviors, and those of their

sexual partners.

-7-
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In dev,zloping an educational campaign for the target groups mentioned above, it

will be necessary to be sensitive to vc.-ious demogrophic aspects underlying the target

groups. In particular, it will be necessary to recognize the disproportionate

representation of minorities among those who may be of risk. For example, among AIDS

cases whose only risk factor was IV drug use, 51 percent ore Block, 30 percent Hispanic,

with only 19 percent White. A similar disproportionolity is found in relation to
seropositivity. In a study conducted in San Francisco, Blocks and Hispanics were found to

have almost three (3) times the risk o! becoming seropositive even though Whites hod o

higher mean number of persons with whom needles were shared.19 This difference was

also found in New York and New Jersey.2° There was no evident behavioral or other

demographic characteristic to explain the higher prevolence of infection in this

population. While needle sharing is no more prevalent omong Blocks ond Hispanics than

among Whites, the risk of infection is clearly greater for individuals who shore needles

with minority group members due to the relatively higher seroprevolei.ce within those

populations.

Similar ethnic differences occur in relotion to heterosexuol tronsmission. As of

March 23, 1987, among AIDS cases reported in thot category, 74 percent ore Block, 13

percent Hispanic, and 14 percent White. In addition, among female AIDS cases, most of

which ore related to IV drug use or heterosexual transmission (79% of all female AIDS

cases), 73 percent of these individuals are Black or Hispanic. Moreover, 81 percent of

childhood cases are Block or Hispanic.

The other demographic focus is age. The various target groups discussed above are

most predominently betwen the ages of 20 ond the mid to upper 40's. Relotive to AIDS

cases virtually 90 percent of the individuals ore between 20 and 49 and the predominent

proportion of admissions to drug abuse treatment are between 21 and 44.21

IV drug abusers have o potentiol to practice both drug abuse and sexual high-risk

behaviors in relation to AIDS. This is not the cose with other high risk groups. Thus,

from on overoll educotion standpoint which will impact and effect both IV drug abuse and

sexual high risk behaviors, there are substantial but different communication problems in

relation to the compound risk behoviors associated with IV drug abusers. In addition,

importont questions remain on the effectiveness of educational interventions, the
relationship of knowledge to behavior change, and the persistence or decline of risk
behavior in the IV drug abusing populotion.

-8-
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A significant amount of future infection can be prevented through current
intervention and educotion strotegies. It is in this course of action that the greatest
opportunities for altering the course of the epidemic lie. Retrospective studies of blood

sera from populotions of IV drug abusers suggest thot once HIV is Introduced into 0

community, it spreads rapidly to infect the majority of drug addicts. The opportunity for
slowing HIV infection in the IV drug abusing populotion does exist through AIDS
education. A primary goal of AIDS education and intervention strategies is to modify or

eliminote drug abuse and sexual high risk behaviors. Both behaviors are difficult to
alter. Sexual behaviors are fixed early in life and are rorely modified without some
external influence. Drug use behaviors are also difficult to modify, in greot part due to

the addictive process, the ritualistic nature of IV drug abuse which encourages needle

sharing, and lows ogainst IV drug abuse which hinder access to sterile equipment. These

are just o few of the potential barriers to effecting behavior chonge in IV drug abusers

ond their sexual partners. Borriers to educotion, behavior change, and intervention lie on

numerous bases, such as the nature of the torget groups, effective moterial and message

development, ond dissemination through the different communications channels which

ore most likely to reach the torget groups, as discussed below.

II Barriers to Education and Behavior Change

a) Nature of Target Groups

The primary target group for NIDA's AIDS education activities should be current IV

drug abusers, to positively impact high-risk drug abuse and sexual behaviors. This is not

to soy thot the other target groups (e.g., ex-IV obusers, sexual partners of current and

ex-1V drug abusers, etc.) are less important, but the current IV drug abuser is potentially

(and directly) practicing high risk behaviors which are both drug and sexual behoviors. In

addition, the fact thot one is an illicit IV drug obuser creotes problems such as
receptiveness and access to risk - reduction messages, as detailed below.

I) Current IV drug obusers

Control of the AIDS epidemic among drug abusers, and subsequent sexual
tronsinission to others, will be dependent upon on elimination or reduction of the shoring

of contamined needles and works by IV drug abusers. "Traditional" images of IV drug
abusers lends one to expect little a no risk reduction. Although some repons indicate
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increased demand for sterile needles and/or works, and a small number of IV abusers

reporting regularly cleaning needles with alcohol, bleach, or boiling, significant high risk

drug behaviors are still prevalent in this population.

Recent literature, NIDA sponsored research and AIDS education publication
pretesting, and surveys vs IV drug abusers in treatment and not in treatment (r recently
conducted in the District of Columbia) provide Important insight into the level of
kr,r;wieage, attitudes, beliefs, and behaviors of the IV drug abusing population concerninc

AIDS and risk behaviors. This population generally knows about the high risk behaviors

associated with HIV transmission, is knowledgeable of AIDS high risk group composition

and etiology, and is aware of preventive (risk avoidance and risk-reduction) behaviors.

Based on focus group and survey data from Cleveland, Detroit, Washington, D.C.,

Miami, Houston, and St. Louis, current and former IV drug abusers identified how they

believed "AIDS is spreod".

Mode of Transmission % Responding Yes

o Sharing needles 92.8%
o Through sex 92.5%
o Semen 78.8%
o Getting blood of hospital 78%
o Broken skin, such as sore, cut or tracks 46.8%
o Toilet seats 9%

o Casual contoct 3.5%

Respondents also accurately defined high risk population groups:

Gay men 91%

IV drug abusers 86.3%

Bisexual men 87.5%

Prostitutes 84.8%

Children born to mothers

with the AIDS virus 67.3%
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"High risk" behaviors were believed to be sex with multiple partners (90.8%),

1

exchange of blood or semen (86%), and IV drug abuse (85%). Behaviors which helped
prevent HIV-transmission were also relatively well known. Respondents noted that

preventive behaviors included "stop shooting drugs" (82.8%), engaging only in "safer sex"

(58.5%), restricting sex to a closed relationship (58.5%), and cleaning "works" (57.8%).

Despite knowledge of AIDS and high-risk and preventive behaviors among IV drug

abusers, however, personal behavior does not reflect this knowledge. Data from a recent

survey of current and former IV drug abusers in Washington, D.C., indicates that aver

52% ore sharing needles andiar "works", and over 22% did not consistently clean
borrowed works prior to using them. In addition, among those who clean works
immediately prior to personal use, aver 50% use ineffective cleaning techniques such as
rinsing In tap water only. Similar data on sexual practices indicate continued high-risk

sexual practices with over 60% of surve!, respondents having continued sexual relations

with more than one partner (10% having sex with six (6) or more different partners).
Over 85% never use condoms during vaginal intercourse.

Based on these findings, it can be noted that IV drug abusers recognize high-risk

behaviors in relation to HIV-transmission, but continue to practice high-risk sexual and

drug abuse behaviors. They recognize risk, but their actions do not reflect a personal
response to this risk. IV drug abusers, therefore, comprehend the theoretical risk but do

not personalize the risk as indicated by the continued practice of high-risk behaviors.

Clearly knowledge alone does not translate into behavior change. It appears that the
lock of perceived risk, either due to comprehension issues or personal denial, must al=
be overcome to effect behavior change.

Non-comprehension of the risk as opposeo to denial of the risk are thus two

potential issues effecting behavior change. One must undertond the risk, before denial of
the risk can occur. Based on IV drug user focus group pretesting of two (2) NIDA
publications, the following was determined in relation to comprehension and

understanding of AIDS and AIDS etiology.

o Many IV drug abusers had reading and comprehension difficulties with terms
which they felt were "too technical". These terms included "HTLV-III/LAV",
"HIV", Kaposi's Sarcoma, and "Pneumosystic Corinii Pneumonia". Many
respondents stated that they wouldn't continue rending written materials, or
listen to audio messages, after being "tripped up" over these terms.

-II-
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o There was often confusion about the meaning of the AIDS anti -body test.
Respondents were confused about the differences between the AIDS virus,
HIV, HTLV-III/LAV, and the AIDS antibody, what the AIDS antibody test was
for, and why someone should get the test.

o The link between AIDS virus transmission via IV drug abuse and sexual
activity was unclear to many Jaws group members. Often, respondents felt
that it was only possible to transmit AIDS through one of these behaviors,
but not both. In general, respondents understood how AIDS could be
transitted through the sharing of their works, but were unsure what the role
of specific sexual activities was, and were relatively uninformed about high
risk sexual behaviors as a mode of AIDS transmission.

Denial is an issue even when AIDS tronstrissior and the role of high risk sexual and

drug abusing behaviors is comprehended. Denial is a personal but undefined function
which is unique to each person. Given the fact that the pre-test, survey, and some
ancedotal data reflect a relatively "sophisticated" level of knowledge about hiV-
transmission among IV drug abusers, denial is clearly evident as evidenced by behaviors

as well as data on perceived personal risk for AIDS. Combined NIDA pre-test and

Washington, D.C. survey results indicate that over 50% of curre't and recent IV drug
abusers do not think that they are personally at risk for AIDS, with almost 15% unsure or

don't know. This is clearly inconsistent with dot 'rom the same respondents which

indicates a knowledge of how AIDS is transmitted and personal practices of continued

high-risk drug and sexual behaviors.

Other factors inherent in the "make -up" of the IV drug abuser and the drug abusing

community must be considered in terms of knowledge, messages receptiveness, and

personal denial. These factors include:

o If drug abusers continued IV drug use but elected the risk avoidance
behaviors (of not shoring works, cleaning 'borrowed" works before personal
usage, or using condoms), they would possibly alienate themselves from their
support network. For drug abusers, altering social norms within the drug
community would imply "mistrust", or be contrued as a negative reflection
on "drug buddies" or sexual partners. Many IV drug abusers would not wish to
practice "safer" behaviors if it would threaten the few support networks they
have of fellow drug users ,,4x1 sexual partners, isnd

o IV drug abusers ore traditionally nonreceptive to all kinds of health
education messages. The AIDS issue is yet another of many problems which
they have avoided facing or denied by continuins the use of IV drugs. AIDS
may simply be "added to the list", along with overdosing, hepatitis,
endocarditis, etc. A 1986 California study conducted by J. Newmeyer and H.
Feldman on IV drug user receptivity to AIDS risk. "These individuals view
AIDS as just one of many life-threotenting risks in pursuing a career in
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heroin use." Similar sentiments were expressed by Mr. Robert Baxter, on
epidemiology consultant of the New Jersey Deportment of Health, who is
quoted In the February 16, 1986 New York Times os stating, "The life of a
drug addict is so fraught with danger - overdosing, hepatitis, getting busted
or ripped off, AIDS is just one more hoist*, on occupational hazard."

The most effective strategy to prev.tnt 111V infection in IV drug abusers is to
eliminate 11, drug abuse altogether. For individuals who continue to inject drugs, a
cessation of needle shoring and the use of sterile needles and syringes, in addition to
increased use of condoms, as on example, is essential. The following characteristics of

IV drug abusers also hinder the adoption of these important behaviors to stop AIDS
transmission:

o Drug abusers in general (and IV abusers in particular) do not hove on
organized constituency, or support, self-help, or odvococy groups.

o IV drug abuse is troditionolly regarded as being associated with self-
destructive activities.

o IV drug abusers are generally recognized and identified only when they make
contact with the criminal justice or drug treotment/rehobitation systems.
They are difficult to reach through traditional health communication
channels.

More specifically, factors inherent in the severely addictive, illegal, and ritualist
process of IV drug abuse also hinder efforts to get IV drug abusers to stop using drugs,
stop shoring works, or sterilize equipment used to administer drugs. These include:

o An inability to legally obtain sterile equipment for administrating drugs,
often resulting in shoring behaviors.

o The expediency and desperation to take drugs, particularly in times of °cute
withdrowol, increasing shoring behavior or the use of non-sterile 'Works".

o Misinformation in the IV drug abusing community about high-risk sharing
behaviors within o small or closed group, and sexual transmission of 111V.

-13-
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2) Ex-IV dr abusers sexual tners of current and ex-1V dr abusers their

significant othercl sexually active heterosexuals.

These target groups present some of the some issues regarding AIDS education and

high-risk behavior intervention that ore evident in current IV drug abusers. The most

significant barrier to education and behavior change is providing accurate information

about the sexual transmission of AIDS, the "link" of high risk drug abuse behavior and

sexual transmission, and overcoming misinformation and false beliefs about highisk

sexual behaviors. In particular, heterosexuals, particularly those wi ) multiple partners,

must be mode aware of the risk to themselves.

Barriers to education and behavior change for these populations ore often the some

os one would expect to find for other issues of major public health concern. The some

problems of comprehension, denial, and social/personal "pressure", os discussed in

relation to IV drug abusers, is also an issue with non-IV drug abusers. These barriers

include a lock of information, overcoming folse/incorrect information, and overcoming

various moral, personal, and often religious beliefs, as AIDS education touches upon many

social "taboos" (such as drug use and sexual practices) which ore often not well received

by many people.

For populations who ore not in clearly defined high-risk groups (such as non -IV drug

abusing heterosexuals), denial is also difficult to overcome. They must understand the

risk before they con clearly deny it. Blocks and Hispanics, as an example, comprise a

disproportionately high percentage of AIDS cases, in spite of the media's frequent

portrayal of the disease os o white, middle - class, Gay male disease. Many of the ethnic

minority groups do not even recognize their risk, so therefore do not recognize the risk

reduction activity. Similar problems ore generally reported among women, and non-drug

abusing heterosexuals of both sexes and all races.

The perception of risk due to heterosexual transmission has heightened, but pnhops

not as acutely as it should. Recent surveys of public attitude seem to indicate than many

have altered their sexual behavior, and the use of condoms (as an example) is
increasing. However, the receptiveness of these populations to the message, and the

strength of the message, is still somewhat uncertain.

-14-

231 ,.
. I . ;



228

b) Problems with Different Materials aid Media

Not oll medio reach oIl potential target groups for the AIDS messages. Some
popt-'-"sons or more receptive, as an example, to visual response, whie others are more

receptive to, of exomples, one-to-one counseling and education. Be Tiers to the use of
different AIDS educotion moteriols and media are an two levels:

(I) The receptiveness of different target groups to particular media and
materiols, and

(2) An unwillingness (or refusal) of different media to distribute, broadcast,
reproduce, etc., AIDS education materials (often due to the connection with
illegal drug use and/or sexual practices). These barriers not only negotively
effect the potentiol a.....tribution of materials through all avoiloble channels,
but hinders essential pre-testing (or "morket testing") necessary for the
development of effective messages.

Cleorly, the moteriols must be in a form that will be received by the potentiol
target groups. Given the unique nature of these target groups (most porticularly current
IV-drug abusers), little research is ovoi: e to determine which materiols ore the best"
for each populotion.

c) Problems With the AIDS Message Focus old/or Form

As stoted, particularly grophic or specific AIDS education messages and infor-
motion may be determined to be "inappropriate" for distribution or dissimenotion through

porticulor communications channels or media. This clearly impedes the ability to target
unique and particular messages. As on example, the message "Don't Shoot Drugs" may be
deemed acceptable or appropriate for posters on subwaysbut "Don't Come Inside
Him/Her" may be inappropriote for this medium. This example (olbeit simplistic)
illustrotes the barriers to message development without even considering what the focus
of AIDS educotion messages should be. More specificolly, the basic question with regard
to the messooe is still unclear what should be odvccoted? What should the "officio,
posture" be?

The AIDS high risk behovio change messages are o abject of often heated
debote. Some potential alternatives include:

-IS-
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o Risk-reduction messages(i.e., get into treatment, clean works, reduce the
number of sexual partners, increase the use of condoms).

o Risk-avoidance messages(i.e., don't use drugs, ovoid sexual relations).

o A "mix" of the abovegenerolly of the nature of "don't shoot drugs, but, if
you must, don't shore works".

The messages to be developed and distributed will often be impacted by their form

(as materials), and their distribution through different health education/communication

channels and media. This creates o barrier to message development which would not be

at issue if they were not dependent upon the ability to use different materials and

channels of communication. Shcr,ld the messages be "educational" in a general sense?

Strongly coercive? "Graphic"? or unique and directed to one target group only, and their

specific behaviors?

The form, content, and desired output (as expected behavior change) of the message

or messages is not consistent omong the various groups who ore currently developing and

conducting AIDS education strategies directed to these target groups. This can creo. a

problem of "mixed messages" perceived by the populations who need to practice high-risk

behavior changes the most. The present set of messages often include the concept of

"risk", but "risk" is comprehended differently by current IV drug abusers and others in the

target groups. There is often uncertainty surrounding the degree of risk given personal,

sexual, health and other practices. This, in turn, creates a great deal of confusion among

the recipients of AIDS prevention messages.

d) Problems with Channels of Communications (Dissemination Network)

There are numerous potential means to reach the target populations. Historically,

on accepted method of reaching IV drug abusers was through the drug

treatment/rehabilitation network. Evidcnce seems to indicate that only nine to twelve

percent of this group ever enter the drug treatment system, with the remainder a largely

(and continued) hidden population. Clearly, large portions of the IV drug abusing
population may be difficult to reach through troditic al health communication channels.

L.:spite this low figure, there is still a strong reliance on the drug treatment system

to provide essential AIDS and other health eduction. To confound this problem, the drug

treatment system is often quite separated from the more general medical/health/social
service delivery systems.

-16-
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Although there is expected to be "overlap", the means to reach the current I/ drug

abusing populations and others defined as target groups for AIDS education messages will

be different. Certain modes of communication will not reach certain groups; even if the.

target group "gets" the message, they may not be receptive to it.

AIDS messages need not be directed only to a defined audience, such as Gay/
Bisexual males, making all communication channels for the dissemination of AIDS
information potential channels for the messages. Al) channels are not "ready" for the
role, however. The issues of AIDS and IV drug abuse are not particular media "grabbers"-
-they are perceived to be problems of a smell (and "undesirable") audience.

Despite the existence of national television and radio networks, and newspapers and

:-.1ogazines distributed across the country, channels of communication and education are

strongly based on tne local level. Local communities have their own forms of media, and

locally based organizations, which hove a strong impact in a smaller, defined area. The
problem is that local areas often do not recognize the importance of larger concerns such

as AIDS and IV drug abuse, or do not even recognize the problem. Communications and

organizational networks based at the communit? level can be an excellent vehicle for

transmitting health education messages, but they are currently not performing that
nction to their highest potential.

e) Barriers to NIDA in the Development/Dissemination of AIDS Education

In the most direct sense, the problems and barriers discussed above with respect to

the target audiences materials, messages, cnd channels of communications are the
boy, ders which NIDA faces in the development and dissemination of AIDS education

materials. Complicating these problems is the lock of available treatment programs and
facilities for IV drug abusers. Drug treatment programs are currently operating at, or
over capacity, and campaigns that inspire widespread efforts at treatment/rehabilitation

among IV drug abusers could swamp already strained facilities.

Fear of AIDS will undoubtedly lead significant numbers of IV drug abusers to seek
treatment for their drug abuse. To some degree, an increase in treatment seeking

behavior is already occurring. Unfortunately, many who seek treatment discover that it
is not avoiloble. Therefore, if materials developed for dissemination contain statements

urging abusers to seek treatment, and it is not widely available, then the recognition of

-17-
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this by the target group could cause them to doubt the veracity of the entire message.

This may seriously undermine the efficiency of the campaign.

Other barriers ore faced by NIDA in the development of a broad campaign to
reduce the risk of transmission due to needle shoring behaviors and heterosexual contact

internal to and external from the target populations. A significant first step will be the
overcoming of folse beliefs and misinformotion held by many and significant segments of

society about all facets of the AIDS epidemic. The problem is found everywhere in the

country.

Following is o discussion of the materials, messages, and channels of
communications which may be potentially utilized in o NIDA campaign aimed at reducing

the risk of AIDS transmission for the defined target groups. Also included is a discussion

of the recommended moteriols, messages, and health education communications channels

which will best meet NIDA's mandate and needs for an effective AIDS eduation
campaign.

:11. Materials, Messages, and Communications Channels

a) Types of Potential Materials

Notionol and local efforts specific to AIDS education for these target groups have

used o wide variety of different materials, with different degrees of success. These

include:

o Pamphlets, brochures, fact sheets
o Posters/billboords (in public locations such os the street, subways, busses)
o Photo novels/comic books
o Movies
o Videotapes
o Audiotapes
o Newsletters
o Wallet cards
o T-shirts, lapel buttons, etc.
o "Rap" (and other) musicol tapes/records
o Magazines "ticles and news releases
o Television spots
o Radio spots
o Print advertisements
o Discussion guides for talk shows and group discussions
o Training moteriols for person-to-person risk reduction information diffusion
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Documentatories
o Curriculum guides for courses

Moteriols hove been developed in response to various messages, to utilize oll

possible communication channels, and address all target grows. These "traditional" and

"non-traditional" materials meet the need for multi-directional commur ications. All an

be adopted to be culturally, ethnically, and educationally-sensitive, and be developed in

different languages.

b) Types of Potential Messages

In general, the messages :hot are currently being disseminated, and which
potentially could be disseminated, also show great variation, showing significant
differences in tone, focus, level-of-detail, "explicitness", and use of "scare tactics" a-
coerciveness. Some general types of messages include:

o General informational/educational messages

o Non -maralistic/non-judgemental messages

o Messages which emphasize that AIDS is deadly, painful, non-curable

o Messages which emphasize risk-avoidance: "Don't Shoot Drugs"

Messages which emphasize intermediate behavior change: "Sterilize Your
Works"

o Information aimed at aver - coming false beliefs or misinformation

o Messages which emphasize the epidimialogy of spread to other populations

o Messages specific to IV drug use and AIDS

o Messages specific to sexual behaviors and AIDS

o Messages which are a "mix" of information about IV drug abuse and sexual
transmission

Other messages are clearly directed specifically to women, particular minorities,

families and significant others of those in the target groups, or particular geographic
regions. In fact, most messages contain a variety of messages, and may be dire led to
more than one target group.
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e) Types of Potential Communications Memel:

It is often difficult to clearly separate the material, messages, and communication

channel as distinct entities. Certain communication channels lend themselves to

particular messages and materials. It would be, as a simplistic example, difficult if not

impossible to distribute video messages in a street setting. Communication channels are

both national and local in scope. To develop and execute a brood campaign aimed at

variety of target groups (both specific and broadly defined), a wide spectrum of
communication channels may be utilized. The scope of the channels could range from

notion-wide moss media to person-to-person contact, and irk !ude:

o Television and radio

o Newspapers, periodicals, and magazines

o Specialized print medium (i.e., for ethnic groups or special interest groups)

o Public visual displays (e.g., billboards, bus posters, etc.)

o Telephone hotlines

o Public health organizational network (e.g., health clinics, V.D. clinics,
hospitals, drug and alcohol abuse clinics, CMHC's, etc.)

o Community and civic organizations (e.g., sports booster clubs and teams,
political-clubs, interest groups, business groups, etc.)

o Churches

o Schools

o Criminal justice system

o Local merchundizing networks and stores

o Businesses and corporations

a Outreach ;nto neighborhoods and areas where hard-to-reach target groups
exist (e.g., IV drug users).

The media has been Icbele the most influential source of information in this
country. Ad. Intogas to using media for health education include its immediate access to

a moss media audience that is comfortable with the medium and may appreciate its
a:)ortymity for some types of health education. While its effectiveness may not match
tiro of more perse...lal ed.roation settings, the very size of the audience makes media a
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highly effective approoch is absolute numerical terms. However, there is no known
single media channel powerful enough by itself to make an effective AIDS educotion
program. It has been shown that the most effective campaigns need a mix of media

channels. In past communications, findings support the use of broadcast media (radio and

television) for reaching people c41.1ckly with fairly simple ideas, and then use print media

for providing complex information or information people may wont to reread at the time
it is actually needed. Interpersor.ol communication channels, group meetings, and

community organizations are best kr reinforcing and developing credibility for the
information, but a combination of broack,...:!, nrint and interpersonal components are

needed to make a truly effective program. Large number of people need to be reached

quickly, they need a remit-Ater about whet they have been told, and they must believe in

the integrity and worth of the proyrcms if they are to follow the recommendations ond
information received.

The challenge in developing on effective communication methodology is to

orchestrate the various inputs to maximize their total impact and to minimize costs.
Not all channels con be used all the time because ^osts would be exorbinont. Elements

must be selected from each of the media groups Or, , ntegrated in a manner that results

in achieving a total impact that is greater than the sum of the individual efforts.

In makirrg a rational combination of choices, the following questions can be raised:

How muny people will be exposed to the message (media coverage or readership); to what

extent wil, particular target audiences be reached; to wnot extent will the prestige and

credibility of the media channel contibute to the effect of the message (media
authority); and what are the economic consequences of the use o: certain media (cos'
effectiveness considerations).

To further support recommendations for an effective communications methodology,

data collected directly from IV drug users in various cities around the country have been

analyzed to guide the mix of informotion channels and messages to be employed.

Communications data were collected from 287 IV drug obusers in treatment settings in

seven U.S. cities: Miami, St. Louis, Houston, Boston, Detroit, Cleveland, and the District
of Columbia. Data were collected as port of o pretest of AIDS informational materials
developed by the Notional Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA). As the following tables
(Tables 2 ond 3) indicate, additional data were collected from IV drug users, both in
treotmen and not in treatment in the District of Columbia. In this case, data were
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collected for the District's Cammission on Public Health as port of a research study on

attitudes, knowedge, and behaviors among AIDS high risk groups in D.C. In this latter
study, a total of 159 IV drug users who were in treatment and 63 not in treatment were

surveyed.
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TABLE 2

Foraws/Cun ent IV Drug Abusers Beliefs
Regarding Action That Would He Stop

The Spread of AIDS

Actions

Combined NIDA
Pretest Data
(In Treat-
meet) le,287

%

DC. :1ESEARCH STUDY
In Not In
Treatment Treatment
Isk 159 Isk63

% %

I. More treatment for
drug users

71 60 27

2. Educating people on
how to prevent the
spread of AIDS

91 77 90

3. Having the government
provide free needles

29 49 3

4. Teaching IV drug users
how to clean their needles
(works, rig)

37 59 18

5. Have the government
stop trying to score

II 18 5

IV drug users

6. Teoching people to
have safer sex

69 76 54

7. Legalizing drug use 8 12 3

8. Having the govemment
help people to stop
taking drugs with needles

:4A 59 8

9. Other 5 2
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TABLE 3

Former/Current IV Drug Abuser
Sources of Health Information

Source Of Health
Information

Comoi ed NIDA
Pretest Data
(In Treat-
meet) hk287

%

DC RESEARCH STUDY
Not lo
Treatmu.t
1+-63

%

In
Treatment
1'4159

%

I. Television 84 89 89

2. Rodio 64 37 29

3. Goy Newspaoer 10 0 0

4. Newspaper 77 69 56

5. Magazines 70 41 13

6. Churches 24 2 0

7. Schools 37 4 0

8. AIDS Hotline 31 I 0

9. Community Groups 38 3 0

- ,10. Friends 48 28 14

II. Relatives 42 20 11

12. Health core worker/
professional

58 12 3

13. Other 5 0 0

14. Have not obtained I 0 0
AIDS health information
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These findings, when viewed in the context of IV drug users general knowledge, risk

behaviors, and perceptions of their own susceptibility present a perplexing dilemna. iV

drug abusers are knowlegeable about AIDS and the general modes of transmission but ce

neither changing their risk behaviors nor perceiving themselves at risk. On the other

hind, as shown in Table 2, of all the IV drug abusers surveyed, the majority (an overage

of 86%) felt that education would be effective in preventing the spread of AIDS and that

teaching people to have safer sex was of particular importance (an average of 66%).

Teaching IV drug users how to clean their needles appears to be of secondary importance

across all IV abuser populations surveyed, (at an average of 38%). These finding present

serious implications for the content of the education messages.

Upon review of health information sources, (Table 3), we find that television is the

most common source (with an average of 87%) across all surveyed. Newspapers are

second across all groups showirg an average readership of 67%. Health information

through radio is third most common, showing on average of 43%, (with the greater
population being in-treatment, 64% and 37% vs. 29% not in treatment). Outside of D.C.,

it appears that interpersonal communication through churches, schools, and community

groups, friends, relatives and health core workers ploys o rale in health education for

ubout 40% of those surveyed.

An average of 11% of those in-treatment in D.C. reportedly receive health
information on an interpersonal basis while 5% of those not in-treatment report these

sources. The large discrepancy in interpersonal communication as a source of health

information between the pretest and D.C. data is possibly due to the fact that at the

time of the D.C. survey, street outreach to drug abusers hod only just begun. In many of

the oretest cities, howc.vt, 'trees ou,-rach octivitiec as well as relatively sophisticated

AIDS education referrc, a: wor' Neu. operating during the time the survey was

administered.

a. Recommended Materials, Messages, and Communications Channels

Suggested heines and tones for messages have been developed based on the

consideration of fallowing:

I. How do drug abusers feel about AIDS? imoortont or serious do they
perceive it to be? An they afraid to do anything about AIDS? Do they
believe that preventive measures are effective?
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2. Do the target group members know their own degree of risk or
susceptibility? Does the target gr. if) know what actions should be token? If
so, would taking action conflict with their personal priorities or self image?
What are the major barriers to taking action against AIDS?

3. What do people believe to be the consequence of not acting? What do they
believe to be the benefits of taking action? Is is for their future well-
being? For the well-being of their loved ones?

4. What are the characteristics of each groups' present needle shoring and
sexual behaviors, knowledge, and attitudes respectively? Which behaviors
contribute to the spread of AIDS? Which are most amenable to change?

Some of the answers to these questions have been discussed in the context of this
report. In general it appears that IV drug abusers do not acknowledge personal risk.
Furthermore, they do not fully understand the compound risk in needle shoring comb'', 4
with unprotected sexual p.actices. It also has be ,g ested that drug users frequently
underestimate the threat of AIDS and that they ore a group who is least likely to change
their behavior because of it.

Because IV drug abusers have basic knowledge of the modes of transmission,
however, one is lead to believe Out denial ploys o large port in their not perceiving
themselves at risk. This deniol may stem from a more immediate threat than AIDS-the
loss of friends and possibly family. "Drug buddies" and their families ore, in general,
their only support systems. To openly acknowledge that one is at risk threatens those
people with whom they have shored netedles, and all those who had unprotected sex with
him/her. It also means breaking long established behavior patterns. Futhermore, to
openly acknowledge o lovea one :e at risk reflects suspicion, and to refuse to have
unprotected sex and/or share needles may result in alienation. These latter problems,
reflected in data collected by IV drug abusers, may very well reflect those of the general
public.

Messages directed toward the IV drug abuser need to break through the denial
barriers by creating o less threatening image of safe sex and reduced needle sharing.
Condoms have already token on o new image for many, one of being smart, protecting
one's self and sexual independence. For the Coy population, safer sex practices have
become o new and respected way of life for many in that safer sex demonstrates sexual
responsibility.
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Although IV dn.; abusers are traditionally a difficult group in which tv effect
behavior change, they, like the general public, are influenced by the media and social

norms. Therefore, messurtx must work to change their attitudes toward unprotected sex

and needle shoring; this is a first step in creating new norms and behavior change.

Following is a synoptic overview of the recommended materials, messages and

communications channels necessary for an effective NIDA campaign to combat further

HIV infection internal to and external from the IV drug abusing population. It should be

stressed that, in all cases, the materials and messages to be disseminated through the

communications channels have the following characteristics:

a Be culturally and ethnically sensitive.

o Be updated continually to reflect current information.

o Be ttvIewed by local area panels and committees to assure that they are
sensitive .o unique community characteristics, needs, and "standards".

o Be reinforced through constant use of different media and alternative forms,
level of detail, etc.
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RECOMMENDED

MATERIAL I I

TELEVISION "SPOTS"/PSA'S

Primary Audience: oll current IV drug obusers

Secondary Audiences: sexual portners of current or ex-IV drug obusers; fomily, friends,
and significont others of current or ex-IV drug abusers; sexually active heterosexuois.

Recommended Recommended Channels
Messages of Distribution

I) Specific, direct, correct I) Network television,
2) Stop using dr gs locol television
3) "Catchy" slogans/phroses 2) Timing: during music,
4) Emphasize pain, suffering, sports events, and/or

isolation ossocioted with evening/late evening
AIDS hours

5) People con be "asymptomatic"

corriers of HIV

6) Direct viewers to realistic

p/oces/resources for drug

treatment and /or further information

Discussion: Television stotions will not oir oll types of AIDS meuoges, due to
Hopproprioteness" and "community standards". Potential roles of television include
generol education and increasing AIDS oworeneu, and directing viewers to sources of
drug treatment, medico! core, and further information.
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RECOMMENDED

MATERIAL t'2

RADIO "SPOTSIPSA'S

Prio.ory Audience: oll current IV drug abusers.

Secondary Audiences: sexual partners of current or ex-IV drug airusers; family, friends,

and significalt others of current or ex-IV drug abusers; sexually active heterosexuals

Recommended

Messages

Recommended Channels

of Distribution

I) Specific, direct, correct I) Local radio stotions

2) Stop using drugs 2) Types: Urban

3) "Catchy" slogans/phroses contemporary,

4) Emphasize pain, suffering, Block contemporary

isolation associated with Album oriented rock

5) People con be "asymptomatic"

carriers of HIV

6) Direct listeners to realistic

places /resources for drug

treatment and /or further

information

Discussion: Radio stations will not air oll types of AIDS messages, for reasons similar to

those applied to television. They con be used for general public Information and

education, and some specific IV drug abuse and sexual behavior messages. A strong

benefit to radio will be directing viewers to sources of drug treatment, medical core, and

further informotion.
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MATERIAL 03

NEWSPAPER ARTICLES/ADVEkTISEMENTS/PUBLICSERVICE SPACE

Primary Audiences: "vetran abusers", "non/user users", "recreational users".

Secondary Audiences: sexual partners of current or ex-IV drug abusers; family, friends,
and significant others of current or ex-IV drug abusers; sexually active hetersexuals.

Recommended

Mess es

I) Specific, direct, correct
2) Stop using drugs/Don't use drugs
3) "Co tchy" slogans/phrases

4) Emphasize pain, suffering,

isolation associated with
AIDS

5) People can be "asymptomatic"

carriers of HIV
6) Direct readers to realistic

places /resources for drug

treatment and /or further

nformotion

Recommended Channels

of Distribution

I) Local newspapers,

community newspapers

2) Placement: community

news, sports, enter-

tain /lent sections

Discussion: Newspapers can provide very timely information about AIDS, and qo into
further and target group-specific detail than some other distribution chonrwls. Local
newspapers (including "dailies" and weekly community papers) have distinct advantages
over some other channels of communication: they can be read and reread in privacy, they
reach most homes, and they can be "passed on" or remain in one location for use by more
than one person.
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RECOMMENDED

MATERIAL I/4

AIDS PAMPHLETS

Primly Audiences: "veteran users", "active adult abusers", "dual diagnosisabusers"

Secondary Audiences: "ncn user/users", sexual partners of current or ex-IV drug obusers;

family, friends, and significant others of current or ex-IV drug obuse-s; sexually active

heterosexuals.

Recommended

Messages

I) Informational /educational

2) Stop using drugs

3) Sex and drug use behaviors

4) Specific, direct, correct

5) Emphasize pain, suffering,

and social isolation often

associated with AIDS

6) Direct readers to realistic

plo .thesourzes for drug

treatment andior further

information

Recommended Channels

of Distribution

I) Medical/sociol service

programs and facilities

2) Drug treatment

3) Churches

4) Civic groups, community

centers

5) Joils/criminol justice

system

Disctssion: Pamphlets can take many forrr., be tailored to be culturally and ethnically

sensitive, and be prepared in different languages. It is recommended that a "photobook"

or "comic book" style be compiled for use by those with reduced reading abilities.

Pamphlets con be graphic and provide (if warranted) specific detail on high-risk drug

obuse and sexuo. behaviors, HIV anti -body testing, etc., and be tailored to community

organizations through the use of specific and unique logos, telephone numbers, etc.

Pamphlets also tend themselves to discussion, and distribution to more than one reader.
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RECOMMENDED

MATERIAL IS

TRAINING MATERIALS FOR ONE -TO -ONE COUNSELING AND EDUCATION

Primary Audiences: "veteran obusers", "active, adult obusers", "dual diagnosis obusers"

Secondory Audiences: 'ton-users/users", sexual partners of current or ex-IV drug obusers

Recommended Recommended Chonneis
Messages of Distribution

I) Coercive I) Streets
2) Stop using drugs 2) Health fairs
3) Get into treatment 3) Medicoi/sociol
4) Specific, direct, correct services programs
5) Emphasize transmission

to loved ones
4) Drug treatment

6) Cover sex and drug use

behaviors

7) People can be "asymptomotic"

corriers of HIV

Discussion: Troining materials for me-to-one counseling and educotian are essential for
the conduct of street outreach ond personalized informotion dissemination in numerous
settings. They he the counselor/educotion provide informotson and advice which the

person receiving the information can use in o practical ond personal way. For many
persons in these target groups, the "personal touch" is perceived to be highly effective,
especially when provided by ex-oddicts, ex-prostitutes, ond/or respected community
members of similar background.

-32-
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RECOMMENDED

MATERIAL #6

POSTERS/BILLBOARDS

Primary Audiences: 'active, adult abusers", "dual diagnosis abusers"

Secondary Audiences: all other target groups

Recommended ChannelsRecommended

Messages of Distribution

I) "Catchy" slogan/phrases I) Public transportation

2) Stop using drugs 2) "Fast food", supermarkets

3) Get into treatment 3) Streets

4) Specific, direct, correct 4) Prisons/jails/criminal

5) Emphasize transmission

to loved ones

justice system

6) Direct readers to realistic

places/resources for drug

treatment and/or further

information

Discussion: Posters and billboards are an established form of information

dissemination. They work best when "catchy", highly visual, and quick to read and

understand. A traditional use for posters and billboards is to engage the reader's interest

enough so tho' they will find out more about the subject of the materials. Posters and

billboards con also be used effectively to channel people to community resources for

further information.

-33-
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SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED MESSAGES AND MATERIALS
BY TYPE OF IV DRUG ABUSER

I) "Veteran Abuser"

MESSAGE:

MATERIALS

INTERMEDIARIES:

2) "Active, Adult Abuser"

MESSAGE:

MATERIALS:

INTERMEDIARIES:

3) "Non User/User"

MESSAGE:

MATERIALS:

INTERMEDIARIES:

4) "Recreatioial User"

MESSAGE:

MATERIALS:

INTERMEDIARIES:

5) "Dual Diagnosis"

MESSAGE:

MATERIALS:

INTERMEDIARIES:

Risk Reduction - Clean needles/don't share/seek treatment

Short pamphlets, training materials for one- to-one
counseling, community newspapers /newsletters, television,
radio

Civic groups, drug treatment, criminal justice system,
street outreach

Risk Reduction - Clean needles/don't share/seek treatment

Short pamphlets, training materials for one-to-one
counseling, posters/billboards, radio, television

Drug abuse programs, medical/social service programs,
criminal justice system, street outreach

Risk avoidance - Pb further abuse /no experimentation

Radio, television, mogazir.'s

Community/civic groups, drag abuse prever. >n programs

Risk Avoidance - Pb further abuse/no experimentation

Television, radio, magazines /newspapers

Community/civic groups, drug abuse prevention programs,
profPssionol argcnizations/societies

Risk Reduction - Clean needles, don't shore, seek
treatment

Radio, television, print, training materials for one-to-one
counseling, short pamphlets

Medical/social/mental health system, street outreach,
neighborhood/civicPolock" associations

-34-
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SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED MATERIAL. MESSAGES,
AND CHANIELS OF COMMUNICATION

MATERIALS

o Television wspotsw/PSA's

o Radio "spots " /PSA's

o Newspaper articles/odvertisements/public service space

o Pamphlets

o Training materials for one-to-one counseling and education

o Posters/billboards

MESSAGES

o Risk Avoidance - no further drug abuse/ no experimentation

o Risk Reduction - clean needles/don't share/seek treatment

o Combine high-risk drug abuse and sexual behavior messages

o Specific, direct, correct

CHANNELS OF COMMUNICATION

o Television, radio

o Newspapers

o One-to-one counseliN and education

o Public areas - public tronsporation, streets, community centers

o Drug abuse prevention programs, drug abuse treatment and rehabilitation
programs and settings.

-35-
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IV. NIDA Role in Health Communications Plan on AIDS a Id IV Drug Abuse

NIDA is in on excellent position to act as a catalyst to promote a national campaign
with local focuses. From an overall perspective, NIDA's role in this campaign should be
both substantive and supportive. This dual role i; necessary because there are certain
fuctions which can be best performed by NIDA, with others requiring the active
participation of individuals and organizations in local areas. Specifically, NIDA has the
expertise in plaming communication campaigns, conducting background and supportive
research, developing materials and providing technical assistance, among other important
functions necessary for a successful campaign. However, it is not recommended that
NIDA be responsible for actually conducting the campaign, as the local, community focus
requires the active participation of local elements as a legitimizing and strongly
supportive factor.

Some specific recommended roles for NIDA with respect to an AIDS education
campaign as described include:

a) Background Research/Needs Assessment in Collaboration With Local
Resources

NIDA has already performed a good deal of bockgraund research for this cumpaign
through pretesting materials with focus groups, contacting local organizations and
individuals, and by holding workshops with local representatives and :members of the
media. However, more active and supportive effort is necessary.

In relation to IV drug users and those associated with them, a range of information
has been collected. For this target group, several mare focus groups should be conducted
to refine information upon which messages will be developed. For other target groups
who are at risk of transmission due to iitersexual contact, a breadth of information
describing beliefs, attitudes and knowledge is needed. Some of this can be taken from
data already collected at various sites across the country. However, more in-depth
information is needed from the range of age and ethnic groups involved. A series of
focus groups needs to be conducted to obtain this information. Persons who are best able
to conduct these focus group would be sex educators who have dealt with the range of
groups under consideration. 11 is suggested that NIDA obtain the expertise of these
individuals, to ect the information which will be a 'amino! part of various messages.

-36-
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b) Messages and Materials Development

NIDA has significant experience In this area It should develop the messages, the

formats for the materials, and in some cases produce the materials. The types of

recommend messages and materials were discussed earlier; however, all materials or

messages should be developed in partnership with expertise available at the local ie,"I.

Alternative materials should also be developed as models or "templates" for local area

use, so that they may tailor the materials and messages for local area use. This could be

done simply with unique 'agos, specific information on "sere to get help or more
information" available at the local level, etc., or through more detailed modification of

the materials and/or messages.

c) Pretesting Materials and Messages

The pretesting of materials should be initially conducted by NIDA, given its

expertise and experience in this process. Technical assistance and training should be

made available at the local level, so that communities can assume tome of this

responsibility in the future.

c0 Provision of Materiels Clearinghouse

NIDA is the logical choice for the collection, storage, and dissemination of
materials. NIDA should assume the role of "gate- keeper" of information about AIDS and

IV drug abuse, and not only distribute materials to local areas, but collect local orec
materials as we This important resource would significantly assist areas which are

beginning to expr problems with AIDS, and who would not be able to develop or

research the use of umer materials without a significant time delay. The clearinghouse

could provi a quick response of high qual:ty materials to meet local area needs.

c) Developing Comnsunkations Channels

The development of communication choinels is an activity that should be

performed by local organizations. Some an So "roncisco) have shown that they

are very effective in doing this. However, many of the cities which are the focus of me

NIDA campaign are not progressing as rapidly as they should. Where this is ad, case

NIDA must provide supportive assistance.

-37-
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The development of local communication channels is a matter of interacting with
the media and developing collaborative efforts involving local public and private
organizations. As has been seen, some cities have not been able to mobilize relative to
this health problem. The c"chnical assistance that is required should be in the form of
training those involved to do organizational, community, and resource development.
Individuals who provide this technical assistance should have experience in these
development processes as they relate to AIDS.

0 Funding

To be successful the health communications campaign will require significant
funding. As important, if it is successful, there will be an increased demand for more
health education, HIV testing, and drug treatment/rehabilitation. With respect to drug
education and treatment, this financial responsibility will fall, in part, within the realm
of NIDA responsibility. NIDA can also assist local communities by identifying
alternative funding sources for the education and treatment initiatives, and potentially
provide technical assistance to local areas in seeking out and successfully obtaining this
alternative source funding.

g) Maintain Local Support

NIDA should rely on local areas to assist them with education on the local level.
NIDA shoqid develop a newsletter aimed at local supporting persons and organizations, to
keep them up to date on new information initiatives, research, etc. Regional or national
workshops and conferences involving local area organizations and coalitions to share
information, expertise, and materials should be strongly considered as well. This will
help maintain the network developed, and allow local areas to feel that they are an
integral port to the important struggle to educate the public about AIDS and IV drug
abuse.

1-0 Mc nitoring, Feedback, and Control

Ti e monitoring and control of the campaign in the cities is a communication
research activity that should be carried by local organizations. Past experience in some
of these cities hos shown that either expertise is not available in responsible
organizations, or that it cannot be identified. This, therefore, is on area where NIDA can

-38-
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provide technical assistance. Assistance should be in the form of training responsible

organizations how ,> acquire com.nunication d.ito in this setting, and analyzing it so as to

enhance the effectiveness of message diffusion.

-39-
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PREFACE

The most important public health problem facing us today is acquired immunodeficiency
syndromeAIDS.

Needy 32.000 Americans have developed AIDS, and mute than half of them have died. As
many as 1.5 million more Americans may already have been infected by the AIDS virus.
Even if they currently show no symptsms, they can transmit the virus to others. The Public
Health Service estimates that by the end of 1991, total AIDS cases in the United States will
have risen to more than 270.000 and more than 179,000 people with AIDS will have died.

The devastating effects of AIDS also are being felt far beyond the boundaries of our own
country. Indeed. AIDS already has been repo. led from at least 90 countries throughout the
world. World Health Organization officials estimate that between 5 million and 10 millkin
people worldwide may have been infected by the AIDS virus. By 1990, according to WHO
estimates. conceivably as many as 100 million people worldwide may be infected by the
virus. and a number of these may have developed AIDS itself.

Clearly. AIDS represents a national and international emergency. For this reason. AIDS is a
top priority on my personal agenda and on the agenda of this Administration.

This Department is conducting and supporting intensive research to develop effective treat-
ments for AIDS patients and a safe and effective vaccine that will prevent initial infection
with the virus. But no cure for the disease currently exists, and if a successful vaccine can
be developed, it will not be generally available for some years to come. Our best hope
today for controlling the AIDS epidemic lass in educating the public about the senousness
of the threat, the ways the AIDS virus is transmitted, and the practical steps each person
can take to avoid acquiring or spreading it

A massive, effective c' .paign to educe!, I public is in order The plan presented hers is
a blueprint for accomplish. j it.

This AIDS Information/Education Plan is consistent with the following principles proposed
by the Domestic Policy Council and approved by the President:

Despite intensive research efforts. prevention is the only effective AIDS control strate-
gy at present. Thus, there should be an aggressive Federal effort in AIDS education.

The scope and content of the school portion of this AIDS education effort should be
locally ,leterrnined, and should be consistent with parental values.

The Federal role should focus on developing and conveying accurate health informa-
tion on AIDS to the educators and others, not mandating a specific school curriculum
on this subject. and trusting the Amencan people to use this information in a manner
appropriate to their conurnity's needs

Any health information devekoed by the Federal Government that will be used for
education should encourage responsible sexual behaviorbased on fidelity, commit-
ment, and maturity, placing sexuali:v within the context of mamage.

2t 0



Any health information provided by the Federal Government that might be used in
schools should teach that children should not engage in sex. and should be used with
the consent and involvement of parents.

The Jepartrnent of Health and Human Services will apply these principles to the fullest
extent, working with all other sectors of our society and cooperating vis'l international ef-
forts to defeat this terrible disease. Together, we will press forward on all frontsresearch.
information, education, and services to those afflictedand togetherwe will win the battle
against AIDS.

6.,--71a-sSres.PeiA., 01A5 .

Otis R. Bowen, M.D.
Secretary
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FOREWORD

The Public Health Service's mission, broadly stated, is to protect and improve the health of
the American people. PHS is "-- component of the Department of Health and Human Ser-
vices with lea I responsibility fr research and education on AIDS.

Since AIDS cases were first identified in 1981, informing and educating the public about
AIDS has been a primary part of our work. These efforts to inform and educate must be
greatly intensified, and their effe:ts must be multiplied through the collaboration of many
other agencies and organizations in the public and privatesectors.

This document presents a comprehensive PHS plan for informing and educating the Ameri-
can people about AIDS. The plan specifies the audiences to be addressed by this effort, the
basic elements of AIDS information and education, and the means by which this education
wRI be accomplished (among them, mass media campaigns, health education programs.
demonstration programs, a clearinghouse of AIDS information. critic::: partnerships with
other agencies and organizations, and development of special information for use by
educators).

The cooperation of State. county, and municipal governments, professional and serviceor-
ganizations, the private sector, and other Federal agencies will be crucial to ultimate suc-
cess of the Public Health Service's plan. For these varied agencies and organizations, this
document provides an overview of the m.eys in which their efforts contribute to the urgent
task of educating Americans about AIDS.

The plan draws upon the knowledge and experience the Public Health Service has gained
since AIDS was first recognized. and it incorporates the contributions of many experts in
the PHS agencies: the Alcohol. Drug Abuse, and Mental Health Administration, the Centers
for Disease Control, the Food and Drug Administration, Health Resources and Services Ad-
ministration, the National Institutes of Health, and the Office of the Surgeon General. It rep-
resents a tremendous amount of work by staff. laboring under many pressures.

I am grateful for the contributions of those who have worked on this plan, and I am proud
to be associated with ell the dedicated persons in the Public Health Service who have com-
mitted so much personal effort to the battle to prevent and control AIDS

774.-e4Y,_

Ill

2P,,

Robert E. Windom. M.D.
Assistant Secretary for Health
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As of March 2. .387. deaths in the United States due to acquired immunodeficiency syn-
drome (AIDS), total almost 18,385. In 1985. AIDS became the llth leading cause of years
of potential life lost, and in 1986 it is expected to be eighth. The report of the Public Health
Service (PHS) Coolfont Conference in June 1986 projected that by the end of 1991 the
cumulative total of AIDS cases would exceed 270.000. with more than 179.000 deaths.
AIDS will remain a serious problem for the nation for some time to come.

At this time, the best hopes :or prevention rest on a strategy based on public information
and education. Kr adedge about AIDS has already proved to be effective in changing beha-
vior among homosexual men.

The 22 Public Health Service (PHS) Guidelines on the prevention of AIDS issued between
1982 and 1986 have provided a foundation for informational and educational efforts to
prevent this disease (see Appendices A &13). The Public Health Service Plan for the Preven-
tion and Control of AIDS (1985). the Report of the PHS Coolfont Conference (1986), and
the Surgeon General's Rep. on AIDS (1986) all focus on developing information, educa-
tion. and risk reduction programs.

Successful implementation of ti..is plan requires action from and cooperation among State.
county, and municipal governments, professional and services organizations, the private
sector, and the Federal Government. It is expected that funds appropriated by Congress in
any given year for information and education will be multiplied manyfold by the efforts and
resources of others.

The information/education effort consists of four major components:

1. The Public

Everyone must be aware of behavior that puts them at risk of infection.

2. School and College Aged Populations

Sciools and colleges provide an effective channel for appropriately instructing the
young people of our nation about AIDS before, and as, they reach the ages teat they
might engage in behaviors that place them at risk of infection. The Public Health Service
will provide national, State, and local educators with up-to-date, factual AIDS informa-
tion. State and local school boards, along with families, community, and parent groups
have the primary responsibility for educating the young.

3. Persons at Inc:reseed Risk or infected

The highest priority for AIDS inforr- .. and education efforts are those groups at in-
crease* risk of acquiring or transmitting the AIDS virus because of certain .,ehaviors or
circumstances: gay and bisexual men. IV drug abusers, hemophil acs. female sex part-
ners of those at risk and who may become pregnant and infect their offspring, and pros-
titutes and their clients. Persons known to be infected must receive information to pre-
vent their transmission of the virus :o others.

4. Ksaith Workers

Members of this group have direct responsibility for patient care, for counseling AIDS pa-
tients or persons with laboratory evidence of infection, and for providing leadership in in-
forming and educating the public. By virtue of their occupations, there is some risk, albeit
small, of infection.

Iv
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Following are examples of some of the major projects include in the PHS plan:

The Public.

Produce a mass media campaign under contract with a leading advertising agency (TV
and radio spots, print materials).

Form a coalition of public and private sector groups to exchange and coo.dinate AIDS in-
formation efforts.

Set up a clearinghouse on AIDS information to serve State and local AIDS program per-
sonnel and the public.

Support toll-free hotfine on AIDS (since 1983).

School and College Aged Populations.

Convene national school health coalition on AIDS and work with national organizations.

Stimulate the development of programs for Black and Hispanic youth.

Help State education departments and colleges of education provide AIDS education.

Work with State and local areas with highest incidence of AIDS to assist in providing
educational programs in schools

Develop compendium of materials, programs and resources; instruments to measure
quality and outcomes of this education.

Help provide AIDS education to college students, assist especially in areas where AIDS
incidense is high, work with other groups to reach youth not in school. ,

Persons at Increased Risk or Infected.

Demonstrate effective ways of educating those at increased risk.

Help State' build their own capacity for conducting programs (counseling, health educa-
tion, minority programs, hotlines, coordination).

Expand drug abuse treatment services, counseling, and antibody testing and develop
new strrolgies for preventing and treating drug abuse.

Add educational programs to regional hemophilia centers.

Provide information on behaviors that reduce perinatal transmission of the AIDS virus.

Demonstrate effective programs to reduce perinatal transmission.

Health Workers.

Survey physician counseling practices and develop appropriate materials.

v
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Train physicians and other health workers through training center programs and out-
reach programs.

Provide informat.r and materials to professional organizations.

Provide training in up-to-date laboratory techniques.

Educate health professionals to assess women and counsel them, including minority
women.

In June 1988. the Public Health Service convenedsome 85 experts on AIDS to update PHS
plans ft}, the prevention and control of the disease in light of new knowledge and of
demographic projections through 1991. A major section of the final report from this Cool-
font Planning Conference dealt with needed AIDS information and education initiatives.
The information/education plan summarized here responds fuUy to these
recomrnenoations.

vl
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I. OVERVIEW

INFORMATION/EDUCATION PLAN TO
PREVENT AND CONTRCg- AIDS IN

THE UNITED STATES

I. OVERVIEW

A. INTRODUCTION

Deaths due to acquired immunodeficiency syndrome (AIDS) became the 11th leading
cause of years of potential life lost in 14)35 In 1986, AIDS was one of the first 10
causes. The report of the Public Health Service (PHS) Coolfont Conference in June
1988 projected that by the end of 1991 the cumulative total of AIDS cases would
exceed 270,000, with more than 179,000 deaths. Most of these projected future
AIDS cases will be among persons who in 1986 are already infected. Current esti-
mates of infected persons in the United States range from 1 million to 1.5 million.
AIDS will re ',Ain a serious problem for the nation for some title to some_

The current data indicate that 97% of AIDS patients in the United States can be placed
in groups related to possible means of disease acquisition: men with homosexual or
bisexual orientation who have histories of using intravenous (IV) drugs (8% of cases);
homosexual or bisexual men who are not known IV drug users (65%). heterosexual IV
drug users ( i 7%); persons with hemophilia (190; heterosexual sex partners of persons
with AIDS or at risk for AIDS (4%); and recipients of ransfused blood or blood compo-
nents (2%). Insufficient information is available to classify the remaining 3% by the
above recognized risk factors for AIDS.

In Africa over 90% of cases have occurred through heterosexual transmission, equally
divided among men and women. .

The World Health Organization estimates that 50 to 100 million persons worldwide
may be infected with the AIDS virus In 4991. Based on current information, 20-30%
will progress to AIDS within 5 years of initial infection. This percentage is likely to in-
crease beyond 5 years. Thus, AIDS represents a health disaster of pandemic
proportions.

The best hopes at this time for prevention rest on a strategy based on information and
education. Knowledge about AIDS has already proved to be effective in changing
behavior among gay men. The effectiveness of informtion/education programs, how-
ever, remains to be demonstrated in populations wi.ose members have not been as
personally touched by AIDS and who do not perceive themselves to be at risk. The
rant that the AIDS virus can be spread by sexual contact with psons who may other-
wise sppear healthy adds to the complexity of the task.

Key to changing attitudes and behaviors is the provision of factual, consistent, and un-
ders- ndable information about AIDS by persons and organizations in whom the reci-
pient has confidence. Thus, multiple channels must be used, including the Federal,
State, and local governments, medical professionals, teachers, parents, religious lead-
ers, voluntary organisations, employee organizations, State and local departments of
health and educatior,, busines..es, commercial organizations, and public figures held in
high esteem.

3
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Information/education efforts will be designed for the general public and for specific
groups based on the risks of AI,.?S, the messages to be provided. and the chann for
delivering those messages. The use of multiple channels will reinforce ' Jasic
messages and increare the opportunities to inform and educate the U.S. p Alation
about NUS.

111.PLANNtM

In order to meet its responsib...ty in controlling the spread of AIDS, the Public Health
Service created the Executive Task Force on AIDS in 1984. The Task Force. chaired
by the Assistant Secretary for He h. serves as the mechanism by ..tich AIDS related
isle "a are identified and addresses. in a coordinated fashion by the PHS constituent
agencies: Alcohoi. Drug Abuse and Mental Health Administration (ADAMHA), Centers
for Disease Control (CDC). Food and Drug Administration (FDA). Health Resources
and Services Administration (HRSA). and the National Institutes of Health (NIH).
Within the Task Force, CDC has been designated as the lead agency :n the area of
AIDS information, education, and risk reduction.

The 22 Public Health Service (PHS) Guidelines on the prevention of AIDS issued be-
tween 1982 and 1986 have provided a foundation for informational and educational
efforts to prevent this disease (see Appendices A & 8). The Public Health Service Plan
for the Prevention and Control of AIDS (1985). the Report of the PHS Cr,olfont Con-
ference (1986) and the Surgeon General's Report on AIDS (1986) all focus on devel-
oping information, education, and risk reduction programs.

From 1983 through 1986, the Pi,blic Health Service spent 540 million in direct ex-
penditures to inform and educate the public and groups at high risk of acquiring infec-
tion. In 1987. P115 will spend 579.5 million for AIDS education; the President's FY
1988 budget requests 5103.9 mili;on for this activity. States, local governments,
voluntary organizations, and community service organizations have also contributed
significantly in information/education efforts.

This plan draws on the knowledge and experience gained since the recognition ofthe
AIDS epidemic in 1981. Each of the PHS member agencies have contributed to the
wan. The plan will be reassessed and revised on an annual basis. The revised plan for
1988/89 will be available in November 1987.

C.!MPLEMENTING

PW..% has a responsibility to provide clear and accurate information about A.7.4 to all
segments of cur society. This plan is designed to ensure that the necessary informa-
tion about AIDS will be transmitted in an efficient and eftective manner. Successful
implementation of this plan deperds upon action from and cooperatior among State,
county, and municipal governments. professional and services organizations, the pri-
vate tiector, and the Federal Government. It is expected that funds appropriated by
Congress in any given year for information/education will be multiplied manyfold by
the efforts and resources of others. Those organizations dealing with specific issces
are identified in the sectior.. that follow.

The information/education plan addresses the following:

1. The Public

In order to control transmission of the AIDS virus, everyone must be aware of beha-
vior that puts them at risk of infection. They must learn how the virus is and is not
Weed.

4
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2. School and College Aged Populations

Schools, colleges, and family institutions pi ovide an effective channel for appropri-
ately instructing the yi...ng people of our nation about AIDS before, and as, they
reach the ages when they might practice behaviors that place them at risk of
infection.

School and college aged populations who do not attend schools or colleges will be
informed/educated about AIDS through other agencies that terve youth.

Persons at L:crased Risk or Infected

The highest prig for AIDS in Jrrnation and education efforts are those groups at
increased risk of acquiring or tr .nsmitting the AIDS virus because of certain beha-
viors or circumstances: gay and bisexual men. IV de ig abusers, hemophiliacs.
female sex partners of those at risk (because of pot .41 pregnancy), and prosti-
tutes and their clients. Persons known to be infected must receive information to
prevent their transmission of the virus to others.

4. Health Workers

Members of this grouphave direct responsibility for patient care. for counseling
persons with laboratory evidence of infection or AIDS patients. and for providinu
leadership in informing and educating the public. By virtue of their occupations,
there is some risk. albeit small, of infection.

D. EVALUATING

Evaluation is an integi al part of the planning and implementation process. Both quan-
titative and qualitative evaluation methods will be used to assess :actors such as:

the effectiveness of the information and education materials and venous teaching
,net hods for reaching the target populations

the extent to which all appropriate organizations and individuals are being made a
part of the prevention activities

changes in the behavior of the target groups toward reducing the risk of infection
and transmission

change- in the rate of virus transmission.

E. TIME TABLE

A beginning date is indicated for each task.

Under this plan, each PHS agency will develor operational plans containing more
detailed descriptions of tasks and subtasks, including responsible organizational
components, names of collaborating ixganizations, beginning and ending dates, antic-
ipated outcomes, and methods of evaluation. These operational plans will be available
by April 1.1987.

5
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II.BASIC ELEMENTS OF AIDS INFORMATION
The elements described below will need to be adapted to varying degrees of specificity
for different subgroups within the four major groups: the public, the school and college
aged, persons at increased risk or infected, and health workers.

Communities and their important institutions, such as churches, families, and voluntary
organizations, will need to adapt the presentation of this information to fit within their
value systems. Within this framework, individuals will be able to determine responsible
behavior, thereby avoiding adverse health consequences to themselves and others.

The specific wording and style of presentation, once developed, should be pretested on
representative samples of the intended audiences to ensure effectiveness. Expert advice,
consultation, and creative assistance can be provided by public and private health educa-
tion and communication experts.

A. INDIVIDUALS IN ALL ORDUPC NEED TO KNOW:

1. Current information on the seriousnse of the disease

2. How the Virus is Spread

The AIDS virus has been shown to be spread from an infected person to an unin-
fected person by:

sexual contact (penis/vagina, penis/rectum, mouth/rectum, mouth/genital),

sharing needles or "works" used in injecting drugs,

an infected woman to her fetus or newly born baby, and

transfusion or injection of infectious blood or blood fractions.

An individual can be infected with the virus that causes AIDS without having
symptoms of AIDS or appearing ill. Infected individuals without symptoms can
transmit the infection to others. Once infected, a person is presumed infected for
life, but actual symptoms may not develop for many rms.

to A single exposure to the AIDS virus may result in infection.

3. Hew the Virus is NOT Known To Be Spread

There is no evidence that the virus is spread through casual social contact (shak-
ing hands, social kissing, coughing, sneezing, sharing swimming pools, bed
linens, eating utensils, office equipment, being next to or served by an infected
person). There is no reason to .void an infected person in ordinary social contact.

It is not spread by the process of giving blood; new transfusion equipment is
used for each donor.

It is not spread by sexual intercourse between individuals who have maintained a
sexual relationship exclusively with each other assuming that they have not been
infected through contaminated blood, blood factors, IV drug abuse, or a previous
sexual partner.

9
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4. How to Prevent Infection in Yourself and Others

Infection through sexual contact can be avoided by practicing abstinence or
having a mutually monogamous marriage/relationship with an uninfected person.

If you suspect yuu or your sex partner is or may be infected,

the only certain way to protect yourself or your partner is to abstain from
sexual intercourse with him or her. If it is not possible to practice abstinence
until Infection status can be determined, always use condoms eu.:ng sex be-
cause use of condoms can reduce the risk of transmission of the AIDS virus.

avoid sexual activity that may damage the condom or body tissues. A condom
is effective only if it is used properly; it must remain intact and in place from
start to finisn of sexual activity to ensure that semon and blood are not avoida-
bly exchanged. Be aware that condoms sometimes fail. The failure rate may be
10% when used as a contraceptive.

seek counseling and AIDS virus antibody testing to be sure of '.our own infec-
tion status. Be aware that weeks to months may elapse from the time of infec-
tion to the time that antibodies to the AIDS virus appear in the blood. During
this time persons may be infectious but the test may be negative.

encourage your partner to obtain counseling and testing.

Be aware that multiple eel partners increase your .sk of acquinng the AIDS virus
unless you can be certain that each is uninfected. If you have more than one sex
partner or your partner has more than one partner, alwato use condoms because
use of condoms can reduce the risk of transmission of the AIDS virus.

Avoid prostitutes; engaging in sexual activity with those who have multiple
sex partners increases the risk of contracting the AIDS virus.

Do not use IV drugs; do not share needles or "works".

6. How To Get More Information About AIDS

Call an AIDS Hotline number (lJeal number(s) to be provided).

Call your personal physician, health department, or an AIDS community service
organization.

& Information Which Will Emphasize the Seriousness of the Problem,
Yet Reduce Inappropriate Fear

AIDS is a ....uonal emergency requiring attention from all citizens.

If people change their behaviors, the spread of AIDS virus can be reduced.

Blo . tor transfusion in the United States is screened for antibody to the AIDS
virus and is now essentially safe, but some risks cannot be eliminated.

Everyone who engages in high risk behavior is at risk for AIDS, regardless of age,
race, or socioeconomic status.

10
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B. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED BY THE SCHOOL AND CJLLEGEAGED
POPULATIONS:

Saying no to sex and drugs can virtually eliminate the risk of AIDS.

Instructions on how the virus is known to be transmitted and how transmission may
be prevented.

Sexual transmission of the AIDS virus is not a threat to those uninfected individuals
who practice responsible sexual behavior. toed on fidelity, commitment and
maturity, placing human sexuality within the context of marriage and family life.

C. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION tel EDP.' BY PERSONS AT INCREASED RISK OR
INFECTED:

Know where to get more information and help.

Where to seek counseling and voluntary testing.

Do not donate blood, semen, tissues, or organs.

Know the signs and symptoms of AIDS infection.

For IV drug users, where to seek treatment for drug abuse.

Infected women mutt know that the AIDS virus can be transmitted to unborn
babir s and to newborns. Female partners of those at increased risk or infected must
be aware of the need to be tested to assist in family planning.

For those infected, inform past and present sexual partners Avoid sexual contact
that may transmit the virus to others. The only certain way to ensure that others will
not be infected is to abstain from sex.

D.ADDITtONAL INFORMATION NEEDED BY HEALTH WORKERS
(AS APPROPRIATE):

The basic facts about AIDS (transmission, diagnosis, signs and symptoms, high risk
behavior).

Curreat public health recommendatioas.

How to interpret the test.

The need to hold test results and diagnosis confidential in accordance with relevant
laws.

4 How best to cooperate with local public health authn-:ties in surveillance and pre-
vention of AIDS virus infections.

How to manage AIDS patients clinically.

How to counsel persons about infection and where to refer high risk individuals and
people with AIDS virus infections.

11
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Current research findings.

e Appropriate infection control measures, including nsks of needlestick injuries
which present a small but serious risk of virus transmission.

Which isolation procedures or restrictions of visitors are or aea not necessary.

When to get aciti:tional information for medical professionals, patients and persons
caring for the AIDS );;tients at home.

12
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III. COMPONENTS OF THE PLAN

A. ACTION MATRIX

B. AC1 ION STEPS

13
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A, ACTION MATRIX

MOS INFORMATION/E0OCATION

FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

FCC

NO TASK FORCE

COC

ADAMNA

NIN

FDA

NASA

GASH -OMN

STATE AND LOCAL

STATE HEALTH AGENCIES

STATE OFILIC AliuSE AGENCAS

STATE EDUCATION AVENGES

STATE LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES

LOCAL AGENCIES

VOLUNTMV ORGANIZATIONS

NATIONAL IWOINAAT ION EDUCATION COALITION

NATIONAL EDUCATION COALITION

NATIONAL HEALTH ORGANIZATIONS

NATIONAL AIDEORGANITATIONE

NATIONAL EDUCATION ORCANIZAT iONS

NATIONAL MINA iv ORGANIZATIONS

NATIONAL 101 ESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

NATIONAL II *LIG iOuS ORGANIZATIONS

NATIONAL VANN OFIGANIZAT IONS

LOCAL Ai f ILIATEGEOUNTERPARTS

COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES

PIIIVATE If TERPRISE

NATIONAL COSMINCATONSAGENCV

vATIONAL MAIN s*AssoaAT own

NATIONAL LAZAR ORGANIZAT IONS

NATIONAL MEDIA

DUSINESSIS THAT S, rano. SCHOOLS. HEALTH

LOCAL AFFILIATES

V N 'S

S. && fli; &&

IP

3

a

I

IN IN

4

e

a e a

a
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B. ACTION STEPS

1.0 PUBLIC

An informed public provides the basis upon which other information/education pro-
grams operate. Information must be provided through a variety of channels: teem
Si Oft radio, press, posters, leaflets, advertisements, and personal appearances. This
effort must be closely coordinated and sustained over a long period of time. Groups
specifically spotlighted include teenagers, young adults, parents, minorities, and
opinion leaders.

16
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WHAT: Inform and Educate
THE PUBLIC

HOW: HOTLINES
COALITiONS

AD CAMPAIGN
CLEARINGHOUSE

SCHOOL &
COLLEGE AGED

MINORITIES PARENTS

HIGH RISK HEALTH
PERSONS WORKERS

TEENAGERS &
YOUNG ADULTS
NOT IN SCHOOL

17

OPINION LEADERS
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1.0 ThE PUBLIC
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FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

FCC

FNS TAW FORCE

CDC

ADAMHA

NIH

FDA

HRSA

DASH OM

STATE AND LOCAL

STATE HEALTH AGENCIES

STATE DRUG ABUSE AGENCIES

STAVE /PRIVATE ECK ICA1 ION AGENCIES

STATE LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES

LOCAL AGENCIES

VOLUNTARY ORGANIZATIONS

NATIONAL INFORMATION EDUCATION CLAL IT ION

NATIONAL EOUCATION COALITION

NATIONAL HEALTH ORGANIZATIONS

NATIONAL AIDS ORGANIZATIONS

NATIONAL EOUCATION ORGANIZATIONS

NATIONAL MINORITY ORGANIZATIONS

NATIONAL ROFESSONAL CR1ANIZATIOYS

NATIONAL RELIGIOUS ORGANIZATIONS

NATIONAL vOUTII ORGANIZATIONS

LOCAL AFFILIATESCOUNTERARTS

COLLEGES AND UMVERSITIES

PRIVATE ENTERPRISE

NATIONAL COMUUNICATIONS AGENCY

NATIONAL BUS, MSS ASSOCIATIONS

NATIONAL LA...OR ORGANIZATIONS

NATIONAL MEOIA

BUSINESSES THAT SERVE YOUTH. SCHOOLS. HEALTH

LC AL AFPLINTES
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1.0 PUBLIC

LEAD PHS COLL/ISCHIA - MG BEGINNING
TASKS AGENCIES ORGANIZATIONS OATE

1.1.1. Enter into contract with ensign CDC State & local 6/87
national advensng agency and health &pert-
cam out mess made carnpagns ITV & merits S Private
redo spots. posters, Print KR. 0191111.200(18
Ilia at nation i and local levels

1.1.2 Meet with molar pubic CDC AIDS orauszetiorw. 2187
and gamete sector organizations private. professior.a&
to provide coition for infonnebon & voluntary orgsni-
ruichenge and coordination of zations.
Infonsationfeducabon programs.

1.1.3. Distribute the Surgeon Generars CDC State health 85/88
Repot on AIDS. P/IS4ideo tapes as departments.
well as puticetions and pubic & tarate
erne CII ennouncements prepared in organizations.
collaboration with dr. Red Cross end
other argenuationt.

1.1.4. Esplav the effectiveness of (Geri CDC 2/87
ming as an appropriate method of
providing ADS riformabon to the
pubEc.

1.1 3. Provide clearinghouse to respond CDC : .ate Si local 8/87
to the public's enfomiaborial needs & private
for the most current S accurate
infomuttion on AIDS.

1 1.6. Provide nationally avaSetle hot- CDC 85
is

1.1.7. Issue press releases & pubic inf or- AS PHS 83
matron mounds to provide summit age-cm
inforynabon to the pubic through
the news made.

1.12. Work with natant & local print All PHS 83
media to asset m =trate BSolldell
reporting on AIDS.

1.1.9 Complement generic ongoing AXIS NH Noboru& State. 87/88
inburnabonteducation program to BMW is d local mance-
stimulate C /*deposit of blood by bons representmg
elective sc IBM patients and Usnsf users. col-
Inma4.4)o '. donabons by lectors. am, oonors
healthy donors. of blood.

219
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2- SCHOOL AN: COLLEGE AGED POPULA-SONS

The Public Health Service has e responsibility to provide claw and accurate information about AIDS to
all segments of our society. in par'eular. our youth must understand that sexual activity and IV drug
abuse can lea.: to AIDS. Engaging in sexual activity with multiple partners. both heterosexual and homo-
sexual incrusts the probability of contracting AIDS In the United States. to date. homosexual practices
and IV drug abuse have been the main routs for spread of AIDS. Clearly. our yonth must have informa-
tion about the disease. how the AIDS virus is transmitted. and how to prevtat infection with this virus.

The Public Health Sonic-, will provide national. State. and local educators with up-to-date. factual AIDS
information. Sten and local school boards. along with families. community. and parent groups have the
Omen/ ruponsibiloy for educating the young. It is for these groups to determine how best to dissemi-
nate this information In the most effect - a fashion. with consideration of their own values and concerns.
to achieve the goal of prey-nting AIDS among our youth.

20
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WHAT: Inform and Educate
SCHOOL & COLLEGE AGED

HOW:
'GUIDELINES

'CLEARINGHOUSE
'TEACHER TRAINING

-EDUCATIONAL COALITION
'CURRICULA DEVELOPMEMT
STATE AND LOCAL PROGRAMS

ELEMENTARY
SCHOOLS

21

COLLEGES &
UNIVERSITIES

NOT
IN SCHOOL
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School Health Education to Pr. . AIDS

2.1 Primary and Secondary Schools

TASKS
LEAD PHS COLLABORATING BEGINNING
1 lENCIES ORGANIZATIONS DATE

2.1 1. Develop and dosanunate gudthnes
for effective school healtn 'dues tan
*bout AIDS.

CDC National pubk,
private. profit.
SiOnat & voluntary
organizations &
State & local depart-
ments of education
4 health

21 .2. Convene a national cookhon for CDC National public.
school health education about AIDS private. profes-

sional. & voluntary
Organizations & State
& local departments
of education & health.

2.1.3 Wort wrth relevant
national orguncations to help
schools prowl* effective health
educabon about AIDS

2.1.4. Work with appropriate national
organashons to assure that Black
and Hopsnic school se Youth
Weir' of fileuve SdUCL on about
AIDS.

2 1.5 Ih..11t with an appropriate
national organization to he p
colleges of education pr vide
PrIPService and can rvice
teacher training about AIDS.

2.1.6. Work wt h an soon. 'a
national xganIzation to . apart
State de.ortmonts of sducabun
provide effective education about
AIDS.

CDC

CDC

CDC

CDC

23

National
pnvats. profes-
sional & voluntary
organizations & State
& local departments
of education & het.th.

National public.
private. prof a-
slant' S voluntary
organizations & sea
departments of education
& health.

National public.
private. profes-
sional. & voluntary
organizations. un.
vOrtities, State &
Goal departments of
education &

National pubic.
Ovate. profes-
sional, & voluntary
organizations & State
& local departments
of education & health

2/88

9/87

8/86

9/87

9/87

9/87
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TASKS
LEAD HS CILLABORATING BEGINNING
AGENCIES ORGANIZATIONS DATE

2.1.7. Work with the Stine and local
school systems with the Aghast
Incidence of AIDS to help schools
in these States provide effective
education about AIDS.

2.1.8. Establish and continuously update an
annotated. computerized belogrephy
of relevant educational materials.
programs. research. and resources.

2.19. As requested. provide technics'
assistance to providers of eismentery
school health education programs to
help elementary school Meows pro-
vide effective education about AIDS

2.1.10 As requested. provide technical
assistance to proviows of secondary
school heath motorists to he
secondary sdlool teachers movies
effective education about AIDS.

CDC National public. 9/87
private. prof 's-
alons,. & voluntary
organizations & State
departments of education
& health.

CDC National pubic. 4/87
Ovate. profes-
sional & voluntary
organizations & State
depenments of education
& heelth.

CDC Notional pubk. 9/37
private. Min-
'Moat & veto' ntary
organizations. &
State departments
of education & health.

CDC Notional pubic. 9/87
private. profes-
sional & voluntary
organizations. & state
departments of educa-
tion & health.

21.11 Assist relevant pubic and private- CDC National pubic
sector organization to develop and private. Profs.'
disseminate as requested acts -ate sionel & voluntary
and effective educational matenals organizations. &
that could be used by schools. State departments
=Nelms- end other agencies that of education & health.
serve youth.

2.1.12 Develop and dies. irate es CDC Malone! public.
requested en eanutstod congendium private, proteg-
e materials. progress. activities. woe & voluntary....
reseerch, and resources. organizations. and

State deperbnents
of education & health.

3/87

12/87

2.1.13 Develop. field test. and disseminate CDC National pubic, 9/87
as requested instruments that can be private. prefig-
ured to measure the quality & Kenai & voluntary
outcomes of education about AIDS. orgenizatIons, univer-

sities. & State
departments of educe-
Pon & nogg:.

2.1.14 Plen a national survey of
secondary school students
knowledge about AIDS.

CDC

24

Cs
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National pubic. 12/87
private. Profes-
sional & voluntary
orgenizetlons. univer-
sities. & State
departments of educe-
Kan & health.



281

2.2 Colleges and Universities

TASKS
LEAD HS COLLABORATING BEGINNING
AGENCIES ORGANIZATIONS DATE

2.2.1. Work iiith en spgarpriate
naue tat organizebon to help
colleges and 'adversities provide
effective health education about
AIDS for theL students.

CDC

29

National public,
private, prof et.
slonal. & voluntary
organitatims & uni-
volutes

9187
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2.3 Other Agwelea That Serve Yes*

TAWS
LEAD PBS COLLASORATING BEGINNING
AGENCIES ORGANITATIONS DATE

23.1 Work with local education deperbnents
news penes' that serve youth In

cities with the highest incidence of
AIDS to assure that school-ege popula-
tions who Wend, and who do not attend.
schools or alleges In the wee receive
ef fictive sr:location about AIDS.

CDC Local 6 State
education 8 health
departments 6 other
agencies serve
youth In Ng, at
cities.

23.2. Work with the education departments CDC Local 6 State
and other agencies that serve youth education II health
In three cities and one State departments & other
with the highest Incidence of AIDS 'uncles that serve
to develop a mat I system to assure youth In high risk
that schoolage populations, both cities
those who attend and who do not attend
schools or colleges In the sift rush,*
effective *Nattier+ about AIDS and to
serve as trailing and demonstration
centers.

e/e7

9/87

23.3. Support the attendance of at hest CDC Local education b,a?
300 representabus from local 8 and health depart.
Stale education departments to attend mints and other
the regional training 8 demonstration agencies that serve
centers. youth in high risk

cities.

2$
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3.0 PERSONS AT INCREASED RISK OR INFECTED

Prevention end control of AIDS will depend upon successfully mterrupling the transmission of the
virus among those persons whose behaviors or thin circumstances nut them and others at high nsk
of Infection.

2'7

4%7
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WHAT: Inform and Educate
PERJONS AT INCREASED RISK OR INFECTED

HOW: HOTLINES
TESTING &

COUNSELING
DRU1 TREATMENT
HE RR PROGRAMS

DEMONSTRATION PROGRAMS

2

288
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3.10m sad Maxus' Men

Most of the AIDS cases have been among gay or bi swat men. National and community gay organizations
mobilized early to ilducate that constituents about AIDS. State health agencies have also begun to target
educational amide tc gay and bisexual men. Continued collaboration among these organizations is 05-
Medal to communicate effectively and reinforce the AIDS risk reduction Messages.

TASKS
LEAD PIM
AGENCIES

COLLABORATING
ORGANIZATIONS

BEGINNING
DATE

3.1.1. Develop through reseersh cooperative
egreementainneystin ways M change
Nixed and other Whom= to mini-
gran risk of infection.

CDC Selected local
heath depts.
academic
inehtubons
and community
organizations.

12/85

3.12. Weaning through demonstration pro-
Nets in 6 Bros communibes.
the effectmeneas of comprehensive pro-
grams of pubic inframation. health
ethic rink "bursa. and wt.-on-ono

CDC Selected State
and local
governments.

9/65

(cunning in reducing tranamision of
IMAMS veva.

3.1.3. Award155 cooperative ervernent funds
to States to build their capacity for

CDC State & local
governments.

5/66

Mahn education and risk reduction
activities inducting:

counseing sex Penner, of persons
who are AIDS virus antibody palmy.

ProvOng pre- and post-test counsel-
ing for those coauthoring serologic
Wing

Providing focal support for Maid+
education performed by community AIDS
serstos groups

providing With education to change
wand plosions

determining the needs of minority groups
for information regarding avoidance of
behaviors conducive*, rranameisiee

fending hotlines to ghvinfonnation
and education to gay and bisexual men as
well as to the general pubic

coop:Mete pubic information. MOM
education of risk groups. and Individual
counsains efforts at the State level

30
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3.3 Ifernophillecs

Pomona with hemophilia who have boo. infected with the AIDS virus can infect their sex partner&
Hernophiscs and thee sex partners need counseling on how to reduce possible virus transmission and
reinforce behavioral changes already adopted. The National Hemophilia Foundation is assisting Compre-
hensive Homophile Treatment C&Mars (CHTC) in providing health education/risk reduction programs to
hemopfulocs in their respective localities.

TASKS
LEAD PIS COLLABORATING BEGINNING
AGENCIES ORGANIZATIONS DATE

3.3.1. Award funds to regionsIttemophie HRSA Nat :MI and
censors to 'noble provision of CDC regional
opeclormod risk reduction counseling organizations.
rebtad to AIDS. and to provide
one-on-one cementing to patients end
their spouses about ways to reduce
tronseniesion through safer sae
practices.

32
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3.5 Female Sex Partners of nom at Incteemd ISMor Infected

The sex pertness of those infected with the AIDS virus are at increased risk of infection. Than individuals
Sr. directly reached through sex and needleshanng partner referral. Women who are sex partners of
those et increased risk of infection are particularly at risk. They may also unknowingly infect their Infants
during pregnancy or birth. Many woman who have developed AIDS belong to minority groups. Women
svh. are at increased risk should receive counseling from fauidies that provide them health cars service.
i.e. family planning centers, health departments, hospital outpatient clinics.and drug abuse centers.

TAWS
LEAD /NS COLUUIORATING BEGINNING
AGENCIES ORGANITATIONS DATE

3.5.1. Award COOpirativSreentent fundS tO CDC State 8. Soul 5/85
provide one-on-one counseling of eevernmenia
females whose mewl partners may be
II risk gin ups. or who are Move, to
be seroposews.

3.5.2. Detoured, women who think thee sex CDC State & local 5/86penes may be at increased nab or ADAMHA governments.
Medea to sae existing counsekng community 9/87and service sites for pre- and post organizations
commend about seroiogc tasted

35.3 Develop and disserneste reessades CDC State & local 5/86about safeties practices to women ADAMHA governments.
who may basis partners of persons community 9/87In high eels groups. but who Wee organizations
not to seek One-on-One COunseeng

354 %tete demonstraten points to ADAMHA Community 9/87
Idenbly female sexual PlleAllfs of organizations
drug abuser% encourage serologic
test.q. and reduce risktaking
behavior.

3.5 5. Ink*, demonstrshon protects to CDC State 5 local 6/87reduce per natal transmission in ADAMHA governments.
selected high incidence areas. by community 9/87intensive outreach and munseleg to organizations
women who are sex partners of those
at Increased risk or infected.

3.56 Educate health cam providers to CDC Stets a local 5/85actively assess the risk status of HRSA governments.
women. intern them of existing ADAMHA drug *bum treat.
counseling and testing neatens. Meet megrims
and counsel them about safer see
practices.

3 5.7 Demure, and address the special CDC State & local
needs of minority women for health governments,
education materials end counseling drug abuse treat.
to reduce risk mint programs.

34
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3.6 Proet nut** and Their Olen le

Prostitutes are at increased nsk of an AIDS virus infection because they have multiple sex partners. and
some share needles and syringes while abusing IV drugs. Their clients are also at increased nsk

LEAD HIS COUABORATIKI3 BEGINNING

TASKS AGENCIES ORGANIZATIONS DATE

3.6.1. Amid cooperative agreements to States CDC Sm. & local 5/66
to provide general health education °overmans.
end one-on-one counsehng to prosti-
tutes and other women with multiple sex
partners.

3.62. Encourage prostitutes to utfue ex- CDC State & local 5/85
Ming sites for pm- and pox, community
counseling end serologic testing organizations.

36.3. WOE* demonstration proposes ADAMRA Community 9/57
to identify prostitutes who are IV organizations.
tin/sebum' or an sexually
Involved witb IV thy abusers.
encourage serologic testing, and
reduce risk-taking behaviors.

3 6 4. Provide information to the general CDC Stn. & local 5/36
public, and targeted health education governments.
messages to the users of presto otos.
regsuling the nsk of female to male
transmission.

36
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40 HEALTH WORKERS

Health workers must be prepared to address infected persons' health needs and to counsel. or refer for
counseling. those infected with the AIDS virus to reduce the infected persons' nsk of transmitting the
virus to others.

Health workers represent a major channel for providing accurate AIDS information to the patient sex
partners of the pabent friends and family members of the patient allied health can workers. as well as
the public.

Some health can workers by virtue of their occupation reed to be informed that there is some risk.
albeit small. of infection.

U
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Inform and Educate
HEALTH WORKERS

SYMPOSIA
WORKSHOPS

CLEARINGHOUSE
TRAINING CENTERS

IN-SERVICE TRAINING

PHYSICIANS 1
NURSES

DENTISTS A
HYGIENISTS

ALLIED HEALTH
WORKERS

37
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4.1 Physle lane and Plumes

Physicians and nurses maks up a primery group of health professionals requiring timely antes( Moronity.
meson* and risk reduction infonnetion to an for persons infected with AIDS and to serve as a communi-
ty Information resource. They also rein*, appropriate messages for those with positive antibody tests for
the AIDS Nies and for sea and needle-sharing pertness and family members of infected persons. This
group will need to be informed of steps they can take to reduce their own risk of infection. Flask. privets.
hooka end non-hospitel personnel are Included in this group. Special emphasis will be given to reaching
minodly health profession* and roviders who serve minority patients. perticulwlY (New */ women-

LOAD PHI COLLADONATese 1110INNING
TASKS AGINCIt1 0110AINZATION1 DATE

4.1.1. 1111111010Vey Wirlornine whit CDC Anwricn 7/17
11511054elona antt 08/GYN rim* Medical
linaNionoto. intomaset, and otter Assodetion.
physicisme mune *4 couney Mow
Mort AIDS and idanaly wow whore
lahartnation Wools Mould to
*goat

4.12 Pion survey of *Melon NM Georgetown 5/57
totonsolins motion and olovotop *ma Whinny.
*propane oolocausnol notional.

4.13. Encores, Ihe efforts of professional P411 Public 8 Oval* 5/57
Vasnitabono that sow nanontes POM 0191111110110all.

lid ores*. oriapooin

4.1.4. Develop Or Colobwolivit OJOS FINSA Pubic IL private 5/87
Edgesoon Tniining Center Prawn anon/towns .
Is IN. pnytacions. OPUS. and
KN. hasIlls are profemenolo and
Ilteao who we lrode Wows.

4.1$ know nano* conference NH Unloors441. 7/83
let lth care weeders. IMAM) Hospitals.

4.1.1 Incomaiso "skim and outran NH Notional & Slots Ili
Worm' of 'NOW wow/ INFRA 000lossionoi
pollen,. ler ptetIsonet of bloo.1 orgenirstsons.
far anotegau. irensfusion:
increeee see of ewer forme of
anoleesus trwerusion; and
reduction ef wwwasary vow
fusions.

WI
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4.2 Dept leta NW HY SWAM

Dentioto. dental trtgieniets., end Oorttel technicians are at a small theoretical occupsbonte Asa of Wing in-
'oche by ON AIDS *us.

LIAO IlliS CCALASOSATINS IICGINiatei
ANENCIES ONSANUATIONS 0411TASKS

1. ?WS WNW le 'Waft AIDS- No4 Pubic one42
NOW lutevAstila ettWoloo. end VOW plane
Nadia coeval prococesef appellations.
dont44 este llists awl use Mao
Vollotohloa fa Was es vitailonal
141141410A

4. Devils, ellecatiorelfosefem on NIN22 Pubic one
ASS lot *OW* owl ausehry INDIO Ovate
wow. Onive41 to mon likenbbed CDC oreenhotore,
roads.

40
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43 Mad Health ~tars

Mad health works. such as .tangency medical service PwS Onflat hemophilia tank staff. methadone
and tithe. thug abut* wadies, community health and sor.tal senrica workers. plasma donation tenter per-
sonnoL medical technologists and hospital laboratory Mali require accurate information about AIDS and
work procedures that deems* unwarranted fur and enhance occupational safety skills.

LEAD PDS COLLABORATING SEGINNING
TASKS AGENCIES ORGANIZATIONS DATE

4.3 1. Provide the Meet AIDS information CDC Pubic and 9/55
and safety recornmsndabons to profit- private
Ronal organizations. orgenizahons.

4.32. Spomor a ragiofti training program ADAPAHA State and 3/86
to train rsontsantaaws of more local
than 500 agencies on how to governments.
establish. conduct and evaluate pubic and
outreach to Intrsvenout drug users private
who we not undrr treatment to orgenizahons
Massie aWareneet of AIDS and high
risk behaviors and readoccs adoption
of risk reduction Mellelh,a

43.3. Conduct 30 AIDS mooned training ADAMHA State and 3186
workshops for drug abuse countilors local
and administrators in States that governments.
have not yet had many cases of AIDS

4 3 4. Conduct t 9 course* in current ADS CDC Public health. 6/83
laboratory 'athwa rt. hospital ft

pnvVe tabors-
tones & blood
blinks.

41
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IV. APPENDICES

A. ACCOMPLISHMENTS THROUGH
DEC. 31, 1986

B. LIST OF PHS AVAILABLE MATERIALS

C. GLOSSARY OF ABBREVIATIONS
FOR FEDERAL ORGANIZATIONS
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ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Al PHS agencies have participated in MS-related public information and educabon activi-
ties. Efforts have aimed at the four groups:

1.0 The Pubic

2.0 School end College Aged Populations

3.0 Persons et Incensed Risk or Infected

4.0 Health Workers

Specific setivithm aimed at reaching each of these groups are described in the following
pages. Frequently one activity mentioned in one section addresses more than one group;
however. the activities have not been repeated.

41$
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1.0 THEPUBLIC

&From 1982. worked with national and local electronics and print media to disseminate in-
formation to American public. Planned and arranged pass conferences covering hetero-
sexual tranentiesisn of AIDS, development of AIDS thereof's. PHS guidelines on AIDS
and the workplace. PHS recommendations to prevent perinatal transmission. progress in
march to develop therapies and a wan:. :I tS recommendations to reduce sexual
end dreg -abuse- 'slated transmission, the award of contracts for AIDS treatment evalua-
tion units. and the amouncernent of evidence that azidothymidine (AZT') prolonged sur-
vival in some AIDS patients.

8. Released a report from the Surgeon General of the PHS to the general public on the pre-
vention of AIDS (October 1986). The report is being &sung fcl to the public through
many charnels. Television public service announcements 0 ..ews reports advertise
evaNabiTity of report.(0ASH)

C. Established and operated a national toll-free AIDS hotline (1983- present) avitilabM to
the public. As of November 1986, the hotline was contracted to the American Social
Heald: Association, a vendor with related hotline/outresch experience. (CDC)

D.Provided funding for a National Conference on AIDS in the Black Community (July
1988). Developed end distributed print, television. and radio releases on AIDS nationwide
through minority media; produced Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report (MMWR) sni-
de on ADS in minorities. (PHS)

E. Established AIDS speakers' bureaus in four StatesCalifornia. Texas. Pennsylvania. end
Illinoisthrough a contract with the AMA. Models wiN be developed as a result of this
pilot propel in which local physicians are trained to provide information end risk reduc-
tion messages on AIDS to thew commun;ties end the local media. The models win be
easily and widely adaptable for use in al States. (DASH)

F. Developed a mass media campaign with the American Red Cross. including television
public service announcements, a poster promoting the AIDS hotline. and a series of 10
pemphlets for various tenoned aucrences. (GASH)

G.Wrota and distributed widely across the country AIDS publications "Pants About
AIDS." ''AIDS information Ouliebri." and several AIDS booklets. Designed and displayed
eideltits at major medical meetings. Developed AIDS videotapes for the general public
and occupational groups frightened of AIDS. DASIO

H. Established Comprehensive Community-Based AIDS Risk Reduction. Health Education
and Prevention Demonstration Projects in six cities: Albany (NY), Chicago (1), Oaks
(TX), Denver (CO). Long Beach (CA) and Seattle (WA). Projects will produce prototype,
comprehensive community prevention programs for reducing AIDS virus transmission
through education/nsk reduction efforts. Four projects are into thew second year of fund-
ing. two were first funded in September 1986 (CDC)

'Trude tame maws. by Owe.** Viacom. wee of Me moms does not in* endarmenwol ley Ow U S Govsnomot

44
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2.0 SCHOOL AND COLLEGE AGED POPULATIONS

A. Convened repnesentatwes from relevant national organizations to develop guidelines for
effective school huhu education about AIDS. The guidelines will later be distributed
tffrodith 3010PrWte enceinte. (CDC)

L Worked with the Health Insurance Association of America and the American Council of
Life Insurance to develop educations: materials for adolescents These materials are to
be used fur junior and senior high school students (CDC)

C Worked with the inchans Department of Health and Indiana University to develop a
manual on AIDS for students and teachers. (CDC)

D. Weed - computerized system (CHID) for an annotated compendium of materials. po-
grom% tier ries and resources that could be used by schools. colleges. and other agen-
cies that serve youth to provide effective education about AIDS. (CDC)

47
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30 PERSONS AMC/EASED/USK OR INFECTED

A. Awarded information and education program grants to the six largest AIDS morbidity

areas (Los Angeles. New Jersey. New York City. Florida. Texas. and San Francisco).
beginning in FY 84 Activities include assistance to community organizations in delivering

health education and risk reduction messages to groups at risk support for the creation
of hottinec and dissemination of risk reduction information to groups at risk and to the

general Population. (CDC)

IL Established AIDS Prevention Augmentation Projects in 18 selected cities and States

with significant AIDS problem. The project areas will use funds to augment ongoing
AIDS prevention. risk reduction and health education programs, and evaluate the efficacy

of these prevention programs. (CDC)

C.Estabulahed Community-based AIDS Prevention/Risk Reduction/Health Education
Capacity Witting Projects in 37 States, since April 1986. The project areas will obtain
baseline data on AIDS virus infection and the AIDS problem in their communities, analyze
the community resources related to AIDS. end plan goals. objectives. andactivities for

an AIDS risk reduction/prevention program. (CDC)

D. Collaborated with the US. Conference of Mayors to increase knowledge and influence
behaviors associated with transmission of AIDS virus infection, beginning in FY 84. Ac-

tivities include awarding grants to eight community-based organizations to provide AIDS

education for high risk groups: and producing the bimonthly newsletter, "AIDS Informa-
tion Interchange." which is circulated to cities around the country. (CDC)

E. Funded 55 agencies. via cooperative agreements, to establish "Counseling and Testing"
sites beginning in ' '5. The purpose of this program is to enable State and local health
departments to cou. I persons at increased risk for AIDS views infection. test the anti-
body status of swop. late people. and counsel those who are AIDS virus antibody posi-

tive. (CDC)

F. Funded Innovative AIDS Risk Reduction Projects to evaluate unique and innovative risk
seduction, pnivention, and/or health education activities for selected high risk groups.
Projects have been funded at Sloan-Kettering (NY). University of Pittsburgh (PA), Gay
Men's Health Crisis (NY). Ohio Department ef Health (OH/. AID Atlanta (GA), AIDS Project
Los Angeles. Inc. (CA). Narcotic and Drug Research. Inc. (NY). and Beth Israel Medical
Center (NY). ((CDC)

G.Developed an interagency agreement to provide AIDS risk reduction. health education
end prevention programs for the iternophilsa populations served by Regional Hemophilia
Diagnosis au. Treatment Corners. OIRS.4. CDC)

H. Provided risk reduction counseling to gay and bisexual men participating in natural his-
tory studies being conducted in San Francisco, Los Angeles, Chicago. Getman. and Pit-
tsburgh. MO

L Investigated underlying elements dealing with the psychosocial aspects of persons with
AIDS end persons demonstrating high risk behavior for AIDS through a grants program.
Among the Issues being *tidied are intervention techniques for risk reduction behavior
for AIDS virus seropositive and seroriegative persons. ways to encourage drug abusers
to enter treatment factors that Influence gay men's compliance or non-compliance with
safe sex recommendations, and effects on undergoing AIDS health education sessions
upon risk reduction and other behavioral changes among persons in high risk status.

(ADAMHA) 4$
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J. Funded wants to develop strategies for reaching and modifying behavior of IV drug
abusers not in treatment. (ADAMHA)

K. Worked with the blood banks and plasma centers on programs to inform persons at in-
creased risk for AIDS that they should refrain from donation. (FDA).

L Provided recommendations to blood and plasma collecting centers of steps to take to
reduce the risk of transmitting the AIDS virus through the transfusion of blood or
plums. (FON

49
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4.0 HEALTH WORKERS

A. Panicipated in hundreds of symposia. workshops, etc.. during past 5 years and published
hundreds of peer ',viewed scientific end other articles on AIDS. (PHS)

8. Sponsored in 10 U.S. cities 18 conferences designed to provide the taunt information
about AIDS to health can workers (October 1953-October 1986). These cOnferences
addressed the epidemiology. pathogenesis, and immunology of the disease. as well as
Maid PlYehosocial. economic and social issues. In addition. a number of AIDS work-
shops have been designed and implemented in conjunction With national professional

°Wines- OM

C. Conducted 45 comprehensive 2 Y.day Regional Workshops to train over 2.500 drug
abuse tresbnent program counselors and drug abuse treatment program administrators
to counsel and manage persons with AIDS virus infection and intravenous drug abusers
to prevent transmission: followup technical assistance is being provided to 120 drug
abuse treatment agencies. At-Dining guide on education. risk assessment. and treatment
planning for counselors and program administrators was developed. pilot tested and
used in these workshops. In collaboration with criminal justice and health care agencies.
AIDS training is being delivered to 750 workers who corm into contact with IV drug
abusers. (ADAMHA)

D. Advised registered blood or plasma establishments on safe procedures for handling
blood or plasma =Meted from donors who are AIDS virus antibody positive. Encour-
aged educational programs for personnel who screen donors to emphasize the need to
reject donors with early signs and symptoms of AIDS. (FDA)

L Issued a "Dear Doctor letter to over 500.000 physicians explaining the utility of the
AIDS virus antibody test. following its liconsure in March 1985. (FDA)

F. Prepared State and local health departments for AIDS virus antibody testing and the es-
tablishment of alternate testing sites through training activities (CDC):

Conducted 44 1-day seminars on AIDS virus antibody testing in 34 cilia reaching
over 7.500 professionals from health deportment. blood donation centers. and com-
munity organizations concerned with AIDS.

Conducted 35 2-day courses in 24 States to train personnel staffing alternate testing
sites to prepare them to offer sensitive and effective pre- and post-test counseling
services. An additional 40 sessions were provided by selected State or local health
department personnel using CDC's curriculum

Conducted 6 training courses on Western blot serologic tests for 112 students from
42 different States and 3 foreign countries: one course in EUSA test methodology for
19 students representing 10 State health apartments: a second course in EUSA test
methodology was anclucted in Hawaii for 16 students.

Trained various representatives of government and nongovernment laboratories to
culture AIDS virus.

O.Developed and disseminated recommendations and guidelines for the prevention .if
AIDS and AIDS virus infection. These materials are used to train health -care profession-
* and others who handle and dispose of materials containing AIDS virus, And who need

SO
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to counsel and manage individuals with or at risk of. infection. The guidelines and
recommendations published in the Morbidity end Mortality Weekly Report Pi4nWR) are
listed at the and of this appendix. (CDC)

H. Funded 9 comprehensive AIDSrelated projects to address the special mantel health
educational needs of medical students and ()the health care students and to develop
training programs for health can workers who are currently providing health care to
AIDS patients. (ADMINA)

I. Developed and distributed brochures aimed at health care *Miters, such as "Coping
with AIDS:" awarded contracts to continua education efforts through pedietncisins, ob-
stetricians/gynecologist:it employee *sentence program staff, and college health profes-
sionals and counselors. (ADAWMA)

J. Supported development of an A/OS Reference Guide for Health Can Professionals for
the Lott Angeles and Washington. D C. areas, through the Center for Interdisciplinary Re-
match on Immunologic Diseases (CND) at UCLA. These guides provide information
about the dimes* and its transmission, as well as about local health care and support ser-
vice& NH

K. Prepared information packages for patients. physicians, and pharmacists in connection
with the program for the distnbution of AZT to patients who meet the qualifying entersa
for the drug. 91119

L Worked with dental organisations to improve infection control practices in dental offices.
with primary focus on preventing hepatitis B vine and AIDS virus infections. Guidelines
for dental personnel have been issued. (CDC. NIti)

M.Produced and distributed videotape "What If the Patient Has AIDS?" for use in educating
health care workers .10ASH)

N.Wrote and distributed AIDS publications "Facts About AIDS" (distributed widely.
Including major supermarket chains across the country), "AIDS Information Bulletin."
Chaining Bete AIDS booklets, etc.; designed and displayed exhibits at major medical
meetings. (DASH)

SI
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22 AIDA Ge/DIIIJNESPF4OMMENDA7101411PUINJOIED IN MMWR

1. Acquired Immo Jet.. synurorne (IUDS): Precautions for clinical and laboratory

staffs. MMWR 1982 Nov 5;31:57740.

2. PrOVIIC:7;111 of acquired immune deficiency syndrome (ADS): Report of interagency
recommendations. MMWR 1983 Mar 4;32: ;01-03.

3. Acquired immunodeficiency syndrome (AIDS): Pecs.,tior t for health-care workers
end allied professionals. MMWR 1983 Sept 2 ;32:450.51

4. Prospective *valuation of health-care workers exposed via parenrut: or mucous-
membrule Mutes to blood and body fluids of patients with acquired irrrnunodeficien-
eV syndrome. MMWR 1984 Apr 6;33:16142.

5. Update: Acquired immunodeficiency syndrome CAMS) 'a persons with hemnphilia.
MMWR 1994 Oct 26 ;33:5$941.

6. Hepatitis B vaccine: Evidence confirming Ink of AIDS trensmission. MINA 1984
Dec 14;33:69547.

7. Provisional public Math s. is interagency recommendations for screening doned
blood and plasma for antibody to the virus causing acquired knotunodeficiency syn-
drome. /MAWR 1985 Jan 11;34:1-5.

9. Updei s: Prospective *valuation of Itealth.care workers exposed via the parents el or
mum sus- membrane route to blood or body fluids from prients with acquired immuno-
deiiciency syndromeUnited States. MMWR 1995 Feb 22;34:10143.

9. World Health Organization workshop: Conclusions and recommendations On acre ;rep
knmunodeficiency syndrome. MMWR 1985 Mey 17;34:275-76.

10. Testing donors of t (gene. tissues, end semen for antibody to human T-Iymphotropic
virus type Iblymplu denopathy-associated view. MMWR 1995 May 24 ;34294.

11. Education and foster are of children infected with human T-lyrnphotropic virus ty.
Wlympludenopethy-essocisted virus. MMWR 1965 Aug 30;34:517.21.

12. Recommendations for preventing possible transmission of human T.lemphotroolc
vino type Milymphedenopethy-assocleted virus from tests. MMWR 1995 Aug
30;34:533-34.

13. Update: Revised Public Health Service definition of persons who should refrain from
donating blood and plasma United States. MMWR 1985 Sop 8;34:547-49.

14. Update: Evaluation of human T-lyrnphotropic virus type Illilymphadenopsthy-
associated vino infection in health -core personnel United States. MMWR 1985
Sept 27;34:575-78.

15. Reaxnmendations for preventing transmission of infection with human T.
lymphotropic virus type IllAymphadenopethy-assodeted virus in the workplace.
WAWA 1995 Nov 15;34:69146.691-95.

52
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16. Recommendations foe assisting in the prevention of Peitmtel transmission of human
T-Iyinphotropit vine type ditymphadenopetrry-associsted *us and acqutied immu-
nodetleiensY syndrome. WWII 19115 Dec 6:34:721-26.731-32

17. Additional recommendations to Mute sexual and disc ebuse -reisted transmission of
human T4ymphadersopatfrrassocisted MMWR 1988 Mae 14:35:152-55.

111. Rominmendations for preventins trenemimisn of infection with human T-
Iymphotropic *vs type Illilympliadenopethrsmociated Ayr during invasiveprate-
duras.WW111994180, 11:35:221.21

19. Sof*, of dismount immune globulin propitiations with rasped to transmission of
human 7-help/ratio* virus type Illnyrnphedenopattra-associated virus infection.
MMWR 1988 Apr 11:35:73143.

20. fl000mmended Infliction-control practices for dentistry. MMY/R 1988 Apr 18:
35:237.42.

21. Diagnosis and Managernent of Mytotsctorisi infection and Disease in Persons with
Human T-tymphotropic Virus Type OULymphodenopethy-Associsted Vitus Infection.
MMVill 1986 My 18:35:448-52.

22. Immunisation of Children infecteS with Human T-iyinphotropic Virus Type
M/Lymphodonopethy-Assodated Vitus. MMWR 1988 Sept 26:35.595-98.6U3-08.

SS
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UST OF RECOMMENDATIONS/PUBLICATIONS *SUED BY FOA
TO *ODD/PLASMA COLLECT*. ESTAILISHMERTS

Recornmendetions to domes* the risk of transmitting Infectious diseases from blood
donors. 19111

Recommenmians to decrees. the risk of transmitting Acquired Immune DoriclemY
Syndrome MOS) from *NM donors. 11114.

Source meter* used to manufacture certain plume derivetivm. 1984.

Revised recommendetions to *creme the risk of transmitting Acquired Immunodefi
cleat r Syndrome from blood end plants donors, 1984.

implementation of MO provisional recommendations concerning testing blood and
Memo for antibodies to HTLV-111. 1995.

Testing for anabodies to HTLV-111. 1985.

Revised definilion of high risk groups with respect to Acquired Immunooeficiency
Syndrome (AIDS) transmission from blood and plasma donors. 1985.

Collection end shipment of HTLV-11 antibody-positive blood products. 1485.

Latter to medical professionals and blood and plasma colie.ling mtabkshments from
Commissioner Young appending FRS materials concerning the HTLV-IN antibody test
and its use. 1995.

Additional recormnendations for reducing further the number of units of blood and
plume donated for **fusion and for further manufacture by persons et increased
risk of HTLV-111/tAV infection, 1988.

AIDS information desembeted to medical professionals through the 'FDA Drug Bulletin"

Research on AIDS The FDA Drug Sulletki. December, 1982: 126311143.

AIDS Update The FDA Drug Minim August. 1983 :13121:9 -11.

Progress on AIDS The FDA Drug %IMAM October, 1985: 15631:27-32.

AIDS Worn-Won disseminated to consumers through the "FDA Consumer rusguine.

Whet the Experts Know About AIDS FDA Consumer. September, 1983. pp. 15.19.

Screening Mood Donegan for AIDS FDA COMIMMS. May, 1986. pp. 6-11.

AIDS Fromm !report FDA Consumer.IJS:vary. 1986. pp. 33-36.

The Centurim-Old Struggle Against Infectious Diseases FDA Consumer. April
1986, pp. 15-23.
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APPENDIX I

LIST OF MATERIALS AVAILABLE

PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE PUSLICATIOOS. VIDEOTAPES. POSTERS ON AIDS

IINIkellote

Oniot Imo INN, codes or it oventity) born knotAnwiea Resoorch. 1200E North Henry
St. Meson** VA 22314. Attn: aim Jones:

'Surgeon Gemara Report on Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome " October
11186 report by the Surgeon General of the U.S. Pubic Health Service to the American
people. A claw and coinPrehensive explanetion of what AIDS is. how the AIDS vino is
and la net .peed. end Om practical INN each person can UN, to ovoid infection
Atittrosees eontroversiol Pewee sad provides projections for the future.'

'Facts About AIDS"Leeflet provides timely. accurate infonnelion in question'
and -onewer format. Updated somoxlmstaty carom*. Includes Public /North Serve
tecommondotiono for the worst pubic. persons et incremod risk of Infection. and
Moons with positive AIDS antibody test requite

'CNN, with AIDS Imenclod for health cos workers. this booklet addresses Psy-
chological end social consielsr.bone in serving people with AIDS and others who have
been Infected by the AIDS virus.

taffeta eoproduoed by the Public iieel6i Service and IN American Red Cross:
"AIDS lea, and You'
*facts About AIDS and Drug Abuse
"AIDS and Your JobAre There Risks?'
--Gay and IlisemelMen and AIDS"
"AIDS and ChNelleInformetion for Peones of School Age Children"
"ADS and Chlidren.-Informelion for Teachers end School Officials-
- 'Caring for the AIDS Patient at Nome
If Your Test for MING* to the AIDS Virus N Positive...'

Ofiloy 0 to 25 again of fie AMousim Am horn the Office of Public Inquiries. Centers for
(*Nee Control. ado. 1.11.n. 1.43, 1100 Clifton Rd. Adorn'. GA 30333.

lotorquontION en kw solo by Chinning L ate Co.. Inc- 100 Lists Rd.. South Deerfield.
MA 01373: MIshone 413-065-7811. Peke per unit mdse, cleONON on site of order.)

S0000rePhic bouidote:
"Whet Everyone Should know About AIDS' (also amid* In Swish)
'Why You Should Se Nfomied About AIDS" (for hoolth-care workers)
"What Gay end Sowturd Minn Should Know About AIDS'
"AIDS and Shooting Dugs' (for intravenous drug ileirf, thin family

numbers. and diva treatment ofonaolors)

.04100114.11.11 MOO. ill .1111411 wf OOP 11.0100n 01 Ow ins poblholliew UN 0141. owiris,e0r OW Iwo Oe
Pam el Alia ANY" PIMO Nola lianiso :00114oprolmor MAL 01".11....7211.11. Wooingook OC 20201
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0.1w eft ferboving ham the Netionsi Technical Informetion Service. 62116 Pon Ilvyal M..
Sprirrodekl. VA 22161; telephone 703-4117-4060:

ilecenImendetions and Guke Owe Concerning AIDS Published in Sr Mortaktity end
*Waft Weekly Omen. Novweber 1162 through Awl 191147Containe al Public
IMMO Sella woorrenentgione monk" AIDS during the staled period. including
wececllier for WM, eare worries and eked professia nele. guidelines concerning
AIDS Nike wereplecs. moonwnendesions Is prevent pedestal wwniseion of the
AIDS vine. and nicemorendetiene concernire 'Macedon and foster are of AIDS-
drue-infecesd Olken. Order No. P1011 10101. Paper copy. $7.50; microfiche.
um. Add $3 per «est kg shining end bona*

"Reports on ADS Published In the Merbidily and Morality Weekly Aspect. June 11181
thoush May 1111111--Ake Incksies all Public Melds Sonia recommendoions and
relelinse concerning AIDS during the Meld period. Onler No. P111111-211456. Paper
coc y. $11.76; microfiche. $010. (Add $3 per orderer Milirelni and filinllinni

Aorrise Immunedeficiency Syndrome: Lugs, end Nemaknory Poky: by Willem
Curren Larry Gesdn. and Mary awn Depertment of Nude Policy Menagement Mer-
vin, School of Public *elk Report of a surly clonEwled by 50 *Whom under con-
tract with the Public *NM Union Onew No. PPS- 210211/AS. Paper copy:
$3015; microfiche. $11.60. (Add 13 'weeder for shipping and handlisq1

Viesetapes Wr. OITA 2. VHS)

To perchan tam NIS each/. concoct the Notions, Audiovisual Center. 0700 Edgeworth
Or.. Capitol MO* MD 20743-3701. Attn: Customer Service Section; %Whom
301-763-1111111.

to @blob area an hoe bon, cootact Modern Make Picture Seeks. 6000 Put St. North.
St Pelereburn 11.337011.Am Film Scheduling: tekphone$13-641-11763.

'AIDS: hors and fads' For the gem* pubic. Answers the most frequently askJ
gasedons about AIDS: whet causes it. who Is et risk. how It is transmitted. whet is
being done to control IN speed. and how Individuals can reduce their delis of Infec-
tion. 23 minutes.

'Whet If the redone Has AIDS?"For haelln-care wagon. InclvdIng laboratory and
hospital personnsL °whose the risks modeled with consin procedwes involved be
sent" for AIDS oedema and handlire their 'seamen and dikes precautions recom
mended to "Wanks lose risks. 22 errimme.

'AIDS and Vow JoieDeveloped for poi en. &man. r4 other ernergencr, per-
sonnel. Oudkos the precautions that can be taken to reduce the lel, of exposure to
Mr AIDS virus on thejob. 23 sin uten

Peek.

Over his 61wl cebs es 1p oNwalf. foal itrtwAwdr clearch. 1200E North Remy
St. Alexandria. VA 22314. Attn: Clint A:

Four-color poster. produced fit the Pt es American Ned
Crow. Mount" Pak Laken Poster um. mu.... 'Do not Wen to rumors
about AWL Get Me War and works" 6 . '4 number of the Public lieWth Ser-
vice's national AIDS hoar,' (14100-342-AIDA.
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APPENDIX C

GLOSSARY OF ABBREVIATIONS FOR FEDERAL ORGANIZATIONS

ADAMHA Alto ht.. Drug Abuse and Mental Health Administration

CDC Centers fee Disease Control

FCC Federal Coordinating Committee (AIDS)

FDA Food & Drug Administration

HRSA Health Resources and Services Administration

MAID National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases

NIDA National Institute on Drug Abuse

MDR National Institute of Dental Research

Nil National Institutes of Health

OASH-OMH Office of the Assistant Secretary for Health - Office of Minority Health

PHS Public Health Service

57
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APPENDIX 2.-MATERIAL SUBMITTED FOR THE RECORD

National Association of State Boards of Education
701 N. Fairfax Si, Suite 340

Alexandria, VA 22314

(703) 684-4000

March 4, 1987

Dear State Board Chair:

to January. the National Association of State Boards of Education (NASBE)
Board of Directors discussed the issue of the spread of Acquired Immune
Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS) among youth. As a result of that discussion, the

Board developed a position statement recommending that state boards adopt
policies to address the need for educat ,r1 about AIDS and Its prevention, to
assure education and protection of privacy rights for young people who have the
disease, and to address the rights and privileges of school personnel with

AIDS.

The frightening statistics contained in the position statement underscores
the dimensions of the problem. You will also find enclosed with this position
statement the American Red Cross brochure, *AIDS and Children." NASBE is
collaborating with the Red Cross on an AIDS Education program for use in middle
and senior high schools next fail. Included in the program will be a short
film, student workbooks, teacher guides and a parent brochure. In addition.
Red Cross chapters will be encouraged to make the film available for home video

use.

The AIDS crisis, in the opinion of medical experts, is an Impending

catastrophe. The urgent recommendations contained in the NASBE policy
statement will help state boards recognize and meet their obligations to the

nation's young people and school personnel.

Sincerely.

Phyllis L. Blaunstein

L Rummel"
becutive Mum
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NATICNAL ASECCIATICII OP STATE BOARDS OF EDirATICII

STATINENY 01 =PARED BMS IE DEFICIENCY SYNDICAIE

There is a general agreement among medical experts that Acquired Immune

Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS) represents an impending catastrophe. By 1991, there

are expected to be 179,000 AIDS related deaths in the United States.

Worldwide, conservative estimates put the number of AIDS victims at 100 million

by 1990.

Medical experts and scientists assert that the majority of heterosexual

victims of AIDS will continue to be young people. The American School Health

Association projects some 2.5 million teenagers will contract a sexually

transmitted disease this year. It is therefore critical that our youth are

educated about the dangers of sexually transmitted diseases and intravenous

drug use.

The National Association of State Boards of Education (NASBE) urgently

recommends that all state boards of education adopt a policy:

1. To require school districts to provide instruction regarding AIDS

that includes a full range of preventive measures youngsters can

employ to avoid contracting the disease;

2. To assure that young people infected with AIDS have full access to

education, and their rights to privacy are protected; and

3. To address the rights and privileges of all school personnel infected

with AIDS.
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